To the UK’s homes and businesses,
waste matters. Gone are the days of
‘out of sight, out of mind’. We are at
the forefront of change, shaping
our industry and investing in
our business to help people
do the right thing.
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We’re here to change the way
people think about waste.




Biffa is aleading UK integrated waste
management company providing
collection, recycling, treatment,
disposal and energy generation
services to businesses and
households across the UK.
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Strategic Report

Highlights

Another year of strong performance by Biffa®:

Solid underlying growth in revenue and profitability - underlying netrevenue growth 4.4%¢

Statutory Revenue (Em}*®

£1,091.2m

2019 1,081.2
2018 1,078.7
2017 990.4

Underlying Operating Profit (£ra)?

£81.7m

Net Revenue (£m)2>45

£1,030.8m

2019 1,030.8 2019 B1L7
2018 1.0086.1 2018 81.2
2017 926.6 2017 73.8

Strong underlying free cash flow and marginalincrease in leverage following SWR®acquisition

Uﬂc@fvhxg Free Cash Flow (Em)? Leve rage Ratio

£47.8m

2019 q7.8
2018 44.4
2017 28.8

2.1x

2019 2.1
2018 1.9
2017 138

Underlying EPS up 6.8% and dividend up 7.5%

Uh&ﬁing Ear‘ths:-per Share
{pence]

20.6p

2019 20.6
2018 19.2
2017 29.2

Dividend per Share

(pence)

7.20p
2019 7.20
2018 £.70
2017 2.40

Decline in statutory profit after tax takes into account one-off exceptional onerous contract provisions

Statutory Profit after Tax
(Em)

£18.0m

2018 18.0
2018 311
2017 (10.9)

éié.tutorv Eaminés ber Share

(pence)

7.20p
2019 7.2
2018 12.4
2017 (9.0}

1 Wehaveused anumberof techmical terms and abbreviations wathin this document For ease, we donot define terms or provide
explanations evary time they are used, please refer to the glossary on pages 183-185.

2 Torfinancialreconctliations batween statutoryand non-1FRS parformance measures see Note 3 on page 143

3 NetRevenue lor 2018 has been restated forthe removal of internal land hil tax revenue, resultingin a previous understaternent of revenue.

4 2018 wasa53-week period snd 2019 was 8 52-week period This hasimpacted ravenue,but as previouslyreported there is no significant

impact on earnings.

5 IFRS15 Revenue frorm contraots with customers adaptedin 2018 See Note 1,0on page 127,

B Specialigt Waste Recycling Limited (SWR).

www . biffa.couk
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Strategic Report
Group ata Glance

Delivering across
the breadth of UK
waste management

Every day Biita collects 15,000 tonnes of rubbish
from the UK's housahalds and businessaes. But cur
skills and operational capabitities stretch well
beyond the bins, spanning the entire breadth of
the waste management procass.

Today, waste collection represants around 77% of
the Group's revanue. We ara the UK market leader

in Industrial and Commaercial waste collection
managementand have consistently grownrevenue
and profits. In this fragmented markat, ourscaleand
national presence enable us to drive efficiencigs.

We are at the forefront ok market consolidation and
you canread more on our strategy to drive valus for
stakeholders on pages 8-7,

Assustainable waste management climbs the
agenda for consumers, businesses and government,
Biffa is ready torespond, We welcoma the
Government's Resources and Wastie Strategy [RWS)
and thedrivetoincrease UK recycling and on pages
18-19we setout the oppertunity thisbrings.

Together with energy generation, the balance

of the Group's revenues jg made up of waste
tyeatment, processing. recycling and disposal.
Inresponse to evolving market demand and policy
initiatives, areas like plastic recycling present
exciting opportunities. On pages 18-19 we outline
theinvestmant we are making to expand our
capabilities, underpinning our long-term strategy
tolead the UKin sustainable waste management

Aboutus

100+ No.1

years of heritage for business waste

7,900 Leader

employees inindustry H&S performance

2,794 95%

frontline vehicles coverage across the UK

2  Biffa plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Industrial & Commercial (1&C)
The I&C division provides services
toindustrial, commmerecial and public
sectorcustomers jncluding waste and
recyclables collaction, sorting, processing
and transfer of ryaterials for raprocessing,
energy recovery or disposal.

Read mare o page 26

Comprehensive UK National Network

» Qver 95% UK postcode coverage.

« Criticalmass of 70 depots, and 38 wagte transfar
stations and processing factlities.

+ 1,200 front line vehicles and 3,100 employees.

Broad Service Otfering

+ Collections; schedualed, on demand and reactive nationwide
collections of all major categories of waste, including general
waste; mixed snd segregated recyclables; food waste, and
other services such as confidential and clinical waste

- On-site waste managementand consultancy.

- Producer responsibility compliance services.

Customer Breakdown

+ 78,000 customers.

+ Nationalmulti-site customers: UK-wide coverageallows
access to high contract value corparate customers which
typicallyrequire services across their entire estate.

Resource Recovery

& Treatment [RR&T)

The RR&T division focuses on the
treatment, recycling and disposal of waste.
It provides anumber of treatment services
for those materials that can be recovered,
andlandfilldisposal for those thatarenot
suitable forrecvcling or energy recovery.

Read more on pages 28-29

Soil Treatment and Composting

« 15operational facilities which treat materials that would
otherwise be sent tolandfill. Products include sand.
aggregates, soils and compost.

Materials Recycling Facilitiss (MRFyg)

» Fourautomated facilities capableof handling 470k tonnes
perannum of mixed recycling. The facilities sort dry mixed
recyclables ready for use as secondary raw materials in
manufacturing processes

Hazoardous Waste

« Weoperatea national collection, transfer and treatment
of hazardous waste materials serviced from 11 facilities.
Hazardous materials handled include acids, alkalis. lght
bulbs and serosals, among cthers.

Polymers

+ Aleadingproducer of recycled plastic compounds from its
facility in Teessids Products Include HDPE one plastic used
in the production of milk bottles and food trays - the first of its
kind inthe UK.

Landfill Disposal

- Bitfacperates nine landfill sites across the UK, primarily
accepting waste that cannot barecycled or used for energy
recovery. Waste is buried safely infacllities operated to the
highestenvironmentalstandards.

www.biffa.couk

Municipal

The Municipal division offers househoid
waste and recyeling collection and
assocviated services onbehalf of local
authorities acroes the UK

Read more enpage 27

Sarvice Dffering

+ Household waste and recycling collection.

» Street cleansing and ancillary services,

+ Management of household waste and recycling centres.

Contracts

« 2 2million households served,

« Contracts are secured through public tenders with local
authoarities Biffacurrently holds 33 contracts sexrvicing
30 local authorities acrose the UK.

« Contracts are typlcally 7-10 years in duration, with the
opportunity to extend for a further seven ormore years.

« Bifta hasalonghistory of constructiverelationships with
trade unions, our Local Governmentcustomers and the
communities that we serve.

Energy

The Energy divisionis a significant
provider of renewable energy with 80 4AMW
of installed energy generation capacity.
The Energy division comprises the Group's
energy productionaperations generating
gas from landfill and from food waste via
anaerohic digestion (AD)

Read more on page 29

Landtill Gas
» 33landfill gas sites generating electricity far the National Grid.

Anaerobic Digestion
= Three AD facilities, twoowned [Poplars and Leicester] and one

operated on behalf of West Sussex County Council generate
electricity from food waste. The electricity is exported to
private customers or Natianal Grid.

Performance at a glance (%)

2018 Not Revenue Employoos
10 49
8
15
41
59
16 43

Underlying Operating Profit KBV

Industrial
28 & Commercial
Municipal
%esource
ecovery
56 & Treatment
11 Energy
Central
5 Functions
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Strategic Report
Business Model

Creating value for all

Resources and relationships

Scalable Brand and Reputation
Infrastructure for Delivery

Biffa I&C's depot and transfer Biffa's brand is highly recognised
station network allows us ta sarvice and issynonyrous with the Biffa
over 95% of UK postcodes and has Bin. Durservice levels across our
significant capacitytocollectand Municipal cellection business run at

prepare waste lor treatmant. 99.91%success rate across the UK.

Operational and
Technical Expertise

Biffa's people have great operational

and technical know-howallowing us to
deliver an excellent service every day.
Thisis built on waste industry experience
including an average tenure of pight years
for managerment at Biffa and allows us

torecover more value

from waste.

*

| We collect waste
I and recycling

What we do

+ Household collactions
+ Industrial and commercial

4,007

ktns collected

s

We process and treat
waste and recycling

+ Widerange ol methods toextractvalue
andminimise environmental impact

4,031

ktns processed

A 4

x9
Landhill
sites

2,808

ktns of waste
landfilled - majority
received direct from

We dispose of waste
that cannot be reused
tecycled or recovered

customers
LY
4
Landfill gas
s generates
renewable energy

How we

make money

Revenue sources = Liftend disposalcharges = Gatefeesfortaking third-party
» Payment for services waste 10 process

Costs « Gatefses pavabletothird-party + Processingand treatment costs

operators (if waste cannot be
processed at a Biffa facility)
» Vehicle, personneland associated

I
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1
1
1
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|
I
|
b
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1
1
|
I
I
I
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|
|
I
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I
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{
{
: support services

« Landfill Tax
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Environmental Engaged and Strong, Predictable
Responsibility Committed Workforce Cash Flows

Biffa offers a range of services Biffaremains committed to further Biffa's track record shows our ability
totreat waste, recover value from increasing employee engagement toreinvest inthe business while
recyclable material and prepare following significant improvement paying a growingdividend.

waste for energyrecovery. This both since 2011. Weremain focused on

increases the value of wasteand developing our people, offering

offers the most environrnentally competitive rewards and providing

responsible solution asafe working environment.

We produce and sell recycled The value
commodities for use in manufacturing we create

Shareholders

By growing market share,
developing services and
infrastructure with attractive
returns and optimising
systems and processas

Customers

By providing efficientand

) changing environmeant
+ Through recycling, gas capture and organic processes

Local Government

8 0.4 Byreducingroad miles, noise
MW energy generation capability and emissions ourscale
allows us tobe more efficiant

441

Employses
GWh energy generated during year

By creating jobs and career
opportunities across the full
range of our growing, well
invested businesses

» Saleofendproductsto reprocessors
+ Revenues from the sale of electricity

+ Processing costs (includingequipment and personnel costs)
« Gatefee disposal costs for certain products (e.g. for RDF to an ERFY)

4
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1
|
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I
* We generate and sell renewable energy flaxible solutions inan ever-
I
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Strategic Report
Why Invest?

A clear and compelling
investment case

Biffa is a leading nationwide operator with a strong track record
of delivery in a growing, changing industry that we all rely on.

Attractive Market Dynamics
for Consolidation

Biffa's business, and in particular its I&C piatform,
operates in a fragmented marketplace, which holds
attractive opportunities for consolidation. Increased
regulation, a more complex service offer tomere
demanding customers, and the naad for sacure access
todisposal cutlets mean that scala1s more critical
than ever.

Biffa has become a natural consolidator in this space,
completing 37 acquisitions over five years foratotal
putlay [cash plus net debt taken on) of £151.3m. In all
cases, acquisitions have beenrebranded sand integrated
fully into Biffa's aperational network and systems.

Cost savings have been achieved by theremoval of
duplicate routes and locations, bringing sub-contracted
services in-house, Jower disposal costs, better
procurement, and back office and support service
Revenue and Profit Delivery efficiencies. All acquisitions, once fully integratead,
have been sarrungsaccrative.

1&C collections, London

Biffa has grown revenue and underlying profits over
thelast five years. We have achieved this througha
combination of organic revenus growth, successful
acquisitions, operational improvements and investraent
in capital projects Qurrecord stems from:

There remain further opportunities, with many smaller
operators keen to explore a combination with Bitfa.

+ acombination of market-share gains, investment
in new products and services and pricing discipline.
Net Revenua growth has averaged B.3% over the last
five years;

« profitabla acquisitions. During the ysar seven wers
completed, for a total investment of E47m; and

+ costdiscipline and delivering operational initiatives hava
resulted in Underlying Operating Profit and EBITDA
margins either growing or being maintained over
thefive-year period.

Jeft Andecson, COD Collsctions
and Ron Weir at WWS premises
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Strong National Brand

and Service Delivery

Biffa has built a strong reputation for service delivery,
reflected both in key service operating measuras and
customer surveys.

»

HDPE plant, Redcar

Long-Term Structural Growth Drivers

Whilstoverall waste volurnes in the UK are growing
at modest rates, there are somae key structural growth
drivers that benefit Bifta's positioning:

Recycling: recycling levels have grown significantly
over 1ime, but have recently plateaved. Finding stabls
outlets for recycled materials in acomplex global
market canbe challenging and recycled commodity
prices are volatile. Regulation and industry
investment are needed to stimulate further growth
inrecycling. Withitsscale and experience, Biffais
well placed to helpthe UK to meet future targets in
this space,

Energy from Waste (EfW): there remains a significant
deficitof infrastructure to sately process and generate
low carbon energy from waste that cannot barecycled.
Biffaisin a uniquely strong position due toits control
of waste flows, and partnership with thelsading EfW
operator Covanta, to helpunlock these much-needed
infrastructure projects.

Landfill: for waste that cannot berecycled or treated
for energy recovery, landfiliremains an essential
solution. Biffa is a long-established operator in this
space. Whilstlandfill is rightly no longer at the centre
of ourstratogy for dealing with waste,itremains a

key underpinning component of the UK's waste
management infrastructure. Through Bitfa's existing
portfolio of sites, experience of developing new sites
and ourrail hubs, we are well placed to continue to
provide this much-needed service.

Afirst-classreputation for service deliveryand
experience 1n expanding and developing its services
to meet changing customer demands have helped
Biffa both win and retai1n customers while improving
operational efficiencies. Biffa has been at the centre
of the transformation of the waste sector over the past
two decades, successfully introducing new servicas
on a national scale to enable its customers to increase
recycling and energy recovery and maximise the
divarsion of waste materials from landfill.

The Group's strong record of service delivery, together
withits national presence and history, hasled tothe
Biffa brand becoming one of the most highly
recognisable inthe UK wasteindustry and a key asset
for the Group. Strong brandrecognition playsa
significantrole in the Group'ssuccess, helpingto
attract and retain both customers and ermployeses.
Biffa's people are one of its key assets, and the Group
works to ensurs that it provides asafe and engaging
working environment for its employees. Strong
emplovee engagement and providing a safe work
environment are important factors in both attracting
andretaining emplovees, given werely on a largs
workiorce for the delivery of pur services.

I&C collections, Digbeth, Birmingham

Experience and
Operational Excellence

www.bilfa couk

Biffa's Board and Group Executive Team havea
wealth of experience 1n the waste industiy to guide
the business from a position of knowledge. Excellent
operational performance and a track record of
deliveryaretheir hallmark, together with their
ability tordentify and execute strategic investment
opportunities, such as acquisitions, and their
embracing of the opportunitiesin EtW. Biffa is more
than prepared for the inevitable challenges and
opportunities that await us.

Biffa ple Annual Report and Accounts 2018 7
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Strategic Report
Chairman's Statement

Well positioned
for the future

“Biffa enjoys a leading competitive
position in its markets and has a
number of growth projects to progress.
We have a clear strategy to achieve
sustainable growth in value
over time."

Ken Lever, Chairman

It gives me great pleasure tointroduce the third
Annual Report of Biffa since the IPQ 1n Getobar 20186,

My first full year as Chairman has besn a busyona.
IThave extended my knowledge of our business by
further visits to our operating lacations, and there
have bean a number of Board changes,including

the appointment of a new Chief Executive Dfficer
and Chief Financial Officer, as outlined below, and
preparations have been madae for the revisionstuihe
UK Corporate Governance Code.

Board Chenges

From 29 September 2018, Michael Topharm, previously
Chuef Financial Officer, assumed the role of Chist
Executive Officer when Ian Wakelin stepped down from
the Board after eight vears as the Chief Executive Officer,
Michasl Topham worked alongside lan for a number

of those years and together they playaed significant
leadarship rolés during the IPO process in 2016, Together
threy were instrumiental in developing the initial stratagy
of the business and so Michael is Ian's natural successor.
The Board is hugely grateful for the contribution made

by lan during his tenure as Chief Executive Officer and
wa wish him well for the future. Richard Pike joined the
Board as Chief Financial Gfficer at the time of Michael's
promotion and he and Michael have both settled in well to
their new roles.

Tam delighted to report that we have been abletgattract
Carol Chesney and Gab Barbaro tothe Biffa Board as new
Non-Executiva Directors. Carol had a long and successful
career with Halma ple, datterly as their Company
Sacretary, and has become the Chair of the Audit
Committes. Gabis a senlor executive with Centrica. Both
have settied in quickly to their roles and have brought
greater diversity and balances of experience tothe Board,

8  Biffa plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Businessand Markets

Etficient and sustainabis waste management is
important tous all. We have all seen the heightened
publicity around the challenges we face in dealing with
the growing amount of waste, especially the growth

in plastic packaging. Coretothe Biffa businessisthe
efficientcollection of industrial, commercial and
domestic waste of different types and then. through
various processes, to prioritise its recycling, and energy
recovery, with disposal to landhll as alast resort, Biffa's
service offerings and investments are designed to helpits
customers meet their own ever-increasingstandards for
environmental stewardship, This is aresponsibility the
Company and its senior managament takeseriously.

Themarkets in which we operate provide opportunities
tor modest averall organic growth broadlyinline with
the growth of the economy. There are alsc opportunities
to expand the scope of existing services and introduce
new service offerings to supplement underlying market
growth. Jur business model pasitions us well in the
waste managementecosystem, achievinga good balanca
between essential collection services and recycling,
energyracoveryandlandifil],

Strategy and Capital Aliocation

With Michael Topham's appointment as Chief Executive
Otficer, Biffa hasreviewed its business strategy. The
overall strategy at the time of the TP0, with a focus on
growth (organically and through acquisition], develop
[mew products and services) and optimise (systemsand
processes] remainsin place, However, Michael, with

the support of the Board, has brought some additional
dimensions teo it, identifying some new opportunities for
growth and expansion of the business. This1s discussed
at greater length in the section In Conversation with our
CEOon pages 10-13.

The Board monitors the implementation of strategy

at Board meetings and periodic strategicreviews. An
integral part of this is ensuring that the Group has the
necessary financing and appropriate capital allocation.
On the back oflast years performance and the racent
refinancing, the Group continues to havethe appropriate
balance sheet and appetite to facilitate the varicus areas
af growth and expansion avaijlabletoit.

Shareholder Returns

Qur financial performanceisdiscussed in some detail by
Richard Pike, our Chief Frtnancial Officer in the Financial
Review. Despite the headwinds arising from the changes
in GChina to the regulations relating to recycling of
commodities, and the cost and margin pressures of some
of the Municipal contracts, we have again delivered a
good set of linancial results, meeting o1 exceeding the
rnarket's expectations for ravenue, protit, cash flow, net
debtand Underlying Earnings per Share. The underlying

www biffa co uk

intrinsic value of the business continues to grow steadily
and it1s the Board's view that Biffa remains strongly
positioned over the medivm and long term to deliver
growthin value. The Board has proposed a final dividend
of 4,90 pence per share, bringing the total dividend forthe
year, to 7.20 pencerepresenting a 3.2 % yield on the year-
end share price of 223.5 pance.

Hualth and Safety

Biffa has an excellent record for Health & Safety among
its peers. However, judging ourselves by our own high
standards, we have been disappointed by the slight
increase inthe Lost Time Injury (LTI) rate thus year.
Arenewed focus inthis area aims toensureareturn to
year-on-year improvement.

Corporate Governance

Included inthe Annual Reportis alarge section
summarising the various processes and activities of
the main Board Committees. We ara conscious of the
growing demands placed on the business by changes to
the corporate governance regims and we will endeavour
toimplement the requirements in the most efficientand
effective manner. As a generalrule, weaim to strike the
right balance between the strategicand entreprenauriai
managerment of the business and the requirements for
good corporate governanca.

Employess

Iwould like tothank ourloyal employeas for their

hard work and commitment during the year. The

succass of our business, is without doubt, dependent

on their continued support. The Board was delighted

to see further improvement in the overall scores of the
employee engagermaeant survey conducted recently. David
Martin, our Semior Independent Director, has takenonthe
additional responsibility to oversee for the Board the new
corporate governancerequiraments re¢lating to increased
workforce engagerment

Looking tothe Future

We have demonstrated during the year our resilience in
managing the short-term challenges arsing from the
changing markets for recycled commodities. Biffa enjoys
aleading competitive position inits marketsand hasa
number of growth projects to progress. We have a clear
strategy toachieve sustaineble growth in value over
time and a strong Board and Group Executive Team to
implement it.

Ken Lever
Chairman
5June 2019

Biffa plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019 9

£9-1 Modey ordajells



Strategic Report
In Conversation with our CEQ

Delivering on
our strategy

“We are making significant progress
in positioning the business for future
success in an era where how we
manage our waste has never been
raore important.”

Michael Topham, Chief Executive Dfticer

Q » Howwould yousummarise the year for Bitfa?

A. s Tam delighted with the progress we havemade
aver the course of the year. We have delivered good
tinancial results whilst making significant progress

in positioning tha business for future successinan

era where how we manage our waste has naver baen
more important We have helped our customers meet
ever more demanding sustainability ambitions whilst
gontinuing toreduce the impact our own business has on
the anvironment. The Government has recently set outan
ambitious strategy for our sector and we stand ready to
help mplement it.

In short, 1t has been a year of tremendous progress for tha
Group and I would l1ke to thank all of my colleagues for
their commitment in achiaving it.

Q o Howwouldyoud ihe tha li fal
performance of the husiness over the
last12 months?

A » Tamvery pleased with Biffa's performance.

We have delivered another year of growth in underlying
revenueds and profitadbility, payingan increased dividend
whilst maintaining a strong balance sheet. Wa have

seen further organic and acquisition growth inour I&C
business, which has more than offset the anticipated
challanges inthe international recycled commodity
markets and the lower margins we are seeing intha
Municipal mmarket. Net Ravenue grew by 4.4% [on a like-for-
like basis]) to £1,030.8m, Underlying Operating Profit grew
by 0.6% to £81.7m and Underlying Profit after Tax grew

by 7.5% to £61.5m, while leverage was 2.1x Underlying
EBITDA at year-end. Our statutory revenue grew from
£1,076.7m to £1,091.2mq, while our statutory profitafter
tax raduced from £31.1m to £18.0m due to the impact of
some non-recurring non-cash items, for example onerous
contracts and GMP equalisation.

10 B:ffa ple Annual Report and Accounts 2019




QurI&C division again performed well, with strong
organic and acquisition revenue growth, and operating
margins increasingto 9.1% from 8.4%last year. This

was achieved daspite the business experiencing lower
recyclate prices and cost pressures inlabourand fuel.
We had a record year of new business performance and
again reduced our custormer attrition levels. Acquisitions
once again contributed togrowth, with costsynergies
being delivered to plan.

Our Municipal business had a somewhat more
challengingtime, with margins coming under pressure
as aresult of higher fuel and labour costs, the expiry of
some higher-margin mature contracts, and difficulties
with one of our newer contracts. Whilst we have been
disappointed with the results for the year we are
encouraged by the stability we have seenin trading
performanceinthe laterstages of the year and by
recent contract wins

As anticipated, inthe RR&T division, we delivered
reduced profits as we worked our way through
challenging recycling markets. When we entered the
year, commodity prices wera very depressed as a result
of the changestothe importregulationsin Chinathat
haveimpacted global recycled commadity markets. This
impacted our profitability throughout the year but, as
expected, inthe sacond half of the year we saw impraved
trading. We also experienced reduced landfill volumes
inthe year, intine with our medium-term expectations.
Meanwhile we henefited from some of the recent
investments that we have made in soil treatment and
plastic recycling operations.

Finally, 1n our Energy division our operating performance

was once again strong and financialresults benefited
from higher values for renewable vnergy subsidies.

wwwbiffa.couk

I&C eveningtrade waste collection round,

customer site, Wost Midlands

Q » TheGBovernment regcently published a new
strategy for the industry. How do you see it
impacting Biffa’sbusiness?

A » We were pleased to see the Government publish
the ambitious new RWS for how England manages its
wasta [other parts of the UK have similar plansin place].
Recycling levels have stopped growing and we havs

been calling for some tima for policy intervention to

help ensure that valuable resources are notlostandto
minimisa the impac¢t onthe environment of the way we
coilect, treat and dispose of our waste. We expect that the
strategy will result in greater demand for our collection
services, such as separate food wasta collections from
households and businesses, and greater demand for high-
quality recycied products, such as the recycled plastics
Biffa manufactures. There is no doubt in ray mind that
dealing with plastic wasta is rightly the key issue that
society - and therefore Government - are motivated by
and Biffaisalreadytaking actionin this space. It was
alsoreassuringtoseethatthe strategy is realisticin
understanding that, whilst recycling must ba prioritised,
there is a clear need for energy from waste infrastructura,
which provides reliable low-carben energy from waste
that cannotberecycled, as well as landfill disposal.In
short, the Government's strategy aligns well with our
key strategic priorities and we look forward to working
further with policy makerg to bring the strategy

into action.

Q s« Inrecent years, acquisitions have beena kay
partof the Group’s growth strategy. Has this
continued to be tha case in the year justended?

e Yes.Overthelast few years we have been
supplementing organic growth in our I&C businpss
byacquiring smaller competitors which we are abie
to swiftly rebrand and integrate into our operating

Bitfa plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019 11
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Stratagic Repont
In Conversation with our CEQ continued

platform. Waste ¢collection has become far mose
complicated inrecent years and it is a businessthat
unquestionably lends itself to scale. By growingthrough
acquisitions, we are able toreduce our servics delivery
costs whilst offering greater service quality and
flaxibility tp pur customers, whila the improved route
dansity of pur operations reduces the environmental
irmpact of gur activities. During the vear we completed
saven acquisitions, investing a total of £47m, tobring
c.£64m of ravenues into the division. The most notable
transactipne were of Weir Waste Services Limated
{WWS]), a Birmingham based collection business, and
Specialist Waste Recycling Limited (SWR), a nationwide
waste broker. Wa have a strong track record in this

area, delivering transactions and integrating themina
disciplined manner. We intend to continue to pursue this
strategy inthe year ahead and as always we havea good
pipeline of opportunities.

Q = What progress have you madein
! Energyfrom Waste?

s Durobjectiveis always to maximise theamount
of our custpmers’ waste that canbe recycled. There
remains, however, a substantial amount of waste that
cannot ba racycled, and for which the bast dispoasal
method 13 energy racovery through incineration.

This is acknowledged inthe Government's recent RWS.
Howevar, the UK currently does not have anough EfwW
farcilities, meaning waste 1s either sant to mainland
Europe forincineration orislandfilled in the UK,
resultingintheloss of its inherent energy value. Qur
control 0¥ waste volumes gives us the oppurtunity to
untlock the development of sorme of these much-neaded
facilities. We have been working with the US EfW
developer and operator Covanta over the lasttwo years
to bring two projects to fruition, 1in Leicestershire and
Cheshire These projects have taken alittle longer than
planned toreach financial cloge, but we are pleased
with the progress we are making and hope to beable to
commence construction in the coming year. This will
amount to a commitrmment by the Group of ¢.£70-80m
over the goming threse years. Once operatipnal, these two
facilities will treat just under 25% of the cuyrantresidual
waste that wecontrol inour I&C business.

Q » Wealso understand that you have decided
! to invaest further in plastics recycling?

w» The UKurgently needs toincrease the amount of
plastic thatisrecyclad. Here in the UK Biffa isleading
theway. We ara a leading operator in closed loop plastic
recyclingin the UK, with an established presance in
HDPE milkbottle recycling. We have been racycling post-
consumer HDPE milk bottles back into foad grade HDPE,
which is used in the manufacture of new milkbottles,
here inthe UK for a decade. During the year wetoolk the
decision tobuild a PET plastic drinks bottie recycling
facility. This project is attractive as it capitalisss on pur
established capabilities in this fisld and the control of
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feedstock we enjoy through our ¢ollections and sorting
activities. It comesat a time when dermnand for recycied
food grade raw materials for plastic packaging is growing
and is set tobe furthersupported by recently anngunced
Government poligies such as a plastic taxand the
introduction of deposit return schemes, which were key
features of the Governmaent's RWS. [t is anticipated that
this project will enter production during 2020, and will
be another key tep in the further growth of our Biffa
Polymers business.

Q » Stakeholders increasingiy expect to see
companies roport on thelr sustainability
activities. Can you tel]l us what progress you are
makinginthls ares?

A s Inthaelastyear wahave made enormous progress
both in making our own business activitias more
sustainable, and indelivering more sustainable solutions
for cur customers. For example in terms of overall carbon
smissions we have received from Carben Saver their Gold
Award for year-on-year carbon emissionreductions for

12 successive years now, assistad by on-going diversion

of biodegradable waste fromlandiill and routingand
operational efficiencies achieved through businass
acquisitions.

Whilst thereis slways much rnore to do toirmprove the
way the UK deals with its waste, we should reflect on
how fortunate we are that we have well-developed waste
managerment systems. That is not the casein much of
the developing waorld and I am delighted that, at Biffa,
we have recently been able to back the charity WasteAid,
which helps communitiesin Africa managatheir waste
in a more sustainabie manmnar.

Board site visit, leachate treatment plant,
Westmill Landfill Site

www.biffa.couk



Q » Employeesatisfaction and engagementare
two other hot topica. What ave you doing to
make Biffa a better place to work?

A s Wearetfortunate at Biffathatwe have aclear
PUrpnse as an organisation, and my colleagues and Iare
motivated by the positive impac: that gur activities are
having on the snvironment. Iam datermaned to continue
tomake Biffa a better place toworkand I am pleased with
the progress we have made in the yearwhich s reported
inmore detail on pages 51-52,

Our safety performance in the past few years has
improved significantly and we remain a leader in our
sector. It was disappointing that this year our safety
performance as raeasured by our LTIrate deteriorated
somewhat, but this trend beligs the huge progress we are
makinginthisareaand [remainconfidentthatas time
passes, our safety performance will exceed pastracords.

Looking at the nations’ demographic, I see a great
opportunity for Biffa to enhance our gander and sthnicity
diversity and I am committed taomakinganimpactin
this arga. [t may take us some time, but we will be setting
ambitinus targets for the business, a first for Biffa

Securing and developing our people for future business
requirements remains of strategic importance tous As
part ourresponse to this, we have been pleased to see
thenumber of employees on an increasing variety of
apprenticeship programrnes continue to grow.

Employee engagement is at the core of our People
strategy. Every year we measure employee engagerment
through a gonfidential survey and put in place focused
action plans toaddress emerging priorities.

Q + Canyousummarise the impact Brexitis
! having on your business?

s Astheservice we provide is predominantly
delivered locally to UK-based customers, the impact
of Brexit on our business isnot as significantasitisto
other businesses. Keyrisks for the Group include foreign
exchange movements, imposition of tariffs and potential
constraint of labour supplies. Asa Board we will continue
to closgly monitor developrentsin the UK Bovernment's
Brexit plans and any potential impacts on the Group and
solike most businesses we are kean to have certainty
over how Brexit will be implemented,

Q » Whatarethekeychanges you have made since
becoming Chisf Executive Officer?

A- e lam fortunate to have taken over a husiness

with a clear strategythatis delivering for all of its
stakaholders. There is, however, aneed tochange the way
thatweare organised to ensure wa best capitalise on the
significant opportunities available to us. I have therafora

www.bitfa.couk

implemented a more focused, two-division structure,
with effect from the start of FY20, comprising Collections
and Resources & Energy.

Dur Collections division, led by Jetf Anderson,
incorporates all of our collection services, comprising
1&C, Municipal and Hazardous Waste (which previously
was part of our RR&T division). Its priorities are to
continue topursue the organic and acquisitive growth
pfthe I&C business, tostabilise and selactively grow our
Municipal offer and to grow our Hazardous Waste and
other specialist services offers through cross-selling of
services to pur I&C customer base. All of our collections
services will benefit from the same operational rigour
thathas underpinned the successtul growth of the I&C
business inrecent yaars.

Our Resources & Energy division, led by Mick Davis,
incorporates all of our waste treatment and disposal
aoctivities, including recyeling, energy and landfill. Its
priorities are to capitalise on the clear opportunities we
have inplasticrecyciing and energy from waste.

Iamconfident that organising our business into thess
two divisions will provide clearer strategic prioritisation
and capital allocation, accelerate our growth, and deliver
operational best practice and Group synergy.

Q » Insuchaperiod of unprecedented change,
how would you describe Biffa's outlook?

A =« We have had a good year, growing our business and
making progress in all of our key strategic priorities. We
are setto grow our business further next year.

Aswoe look further out, Biffa is well positioned toadapt

as soclety and the economy avolve. At ourcore, wearea
service business and stand ready to provide the services
needed to ensure that our country receives the much-
needed change in how it manages its waste. Qur business
model aligns us well with the ambitions of our custorners
and the Government.

As a Group werecognise that we have an importantrole
to play in how our society and the economy function and
that what we domatters to our stakeholders. To thatend
we have defined pur purpose as:

"Tochange the way peopla think about waste.”

This1s whatguides theteam.andlam privileged toleadt.

Michae! Topham
Chief Executive Officer
5June 2019
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Strategic Report

Our Strategy at a Glance

Our strategy seeks to capitalise upon the growing market for Increasingly
sophisticated waste management services demanded by customers as a
result of increasing environmental regulation and awareness. i

Ourstratagic frameworkis split into three elements of focus which areundsrpinned by ensuringa safle, efficientand
engaging working environment for tha peaple whoultimately deliver the strategic activities. We beliove this strategy
will deliver pur targeted growth in shareholdersreturns.

Our purpose
We existtochange the way psopls
think about waste.

Our vision
Tobetheleaderin UK sustainable
waste managemant.

Our values

Be safo

Wa strive to keep our employees.
customers and the eanvironment
safeand always take action when
we sea danger

Be innovative

We will continuously improve our
processes toensuie that weare
efficient, deliver value and are
sasy to do business with.

Be customer focused

We will provide value for money
leading market propositions, and
deliver the best customer service
and experience,

Be a team player

Wewillactively engage our
emplayees and our stakeholders to
build pride in Biffa and our brand.

Be accountahble

Wa w:ll take responsiblity for
everything we doand deliver
on our promises,

Strategy WhatWe Achievad
Biffa made sevan 1&C Division acquisitions
during the year, investing £47.0m. Additionally.
the 1&C division has continued to grow
organically with year-on-year growth of 3.2%
Grow our and reduced customer churn levels.
market share

Bitfa seeks to be a natural
consolidator within the waste
market, growing by acquisition,
gaining new customers and
providing services that drive
organic growth

Biffa Polymers had an exceptional year growing
Revenue by 40%. |

Develop services
&infrastructure

Biffalooks toinvestin waste
processing infrastructure to
expand capacity and service
offarings as well as increase the
valua recovered from waste.

Duringthe year the second HDPE plastics ' |
rmilk bottle processinglinerampedup to

full operational capacity. The next phasein

our Polymers business developmentis the

investment inthe new PET plastics drinks

bottle recycling facility. We have now secured

the site and ordered the equipment and expect

tostart commissioning early in 2020. We have

also continued to expand our portfolio of so1l

treatment and aggregate processing facilities.

Optimise
systems and
processes

Biffaaims tointegrate acquisitions,
improve our systems and
processes, and ensure that projects
maet investment criteria and
improve the Company's position.

Our continuved drive for efficiency has led to

a number of routing optimisations, during

the year within theI&C division. There has
been increased use of telematics and CCTV
toimprove driver performance and provide
evidence of our street sweaping work. Thera has
been continued improvement in the transfer
stations and MRF processes to improve the
quality of recyclate. We have trialied electric
collection vehicles as part of our fleet in
Manchester as part of our engoing efforts te
raduce both costs and emissions. We have also
consolidated part of our Customer Servicesand
Accounts Receivable functions inadedicated
facility in Barlborough, Derbyshira

14 Bifa plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Priorities

How we measure success

Risks

We continue to seek accrative
acquisitions and organic growth
opportunitias that leverage our
national network of collection
operations or provide key
infrastructuretoallowus todrive
value from the waste wecollect. The
acquisition of SWR provides new
routes to marketin terms of access to
the brokerchannal.

The underlying Acquisition Net
Revenue growth rate for FY19

was 2.9% [FY18: 4.4%). Underlying
Organic Net Revenue Growth rate
was 1 5% (FY18:2.1%). The underlying
rate normalises the comparison
batweenthe 52 weeksin FY19

versus the 53 wesks in FY18.

There remains a risk other operators

could seek to play @ more activerole in I&C
collections consalidation, however, the
preadth of Biffa's network for I&C collections

is a key differentiator and area of competitiva
advantage. Thatimingof businass acquisition is
inherently uncertain and can lead to variances
in growth rate year-on-year, Additionally,
further progress inrecycling solutions could
raduce volumes over time, but again we believe
wearewell placed to outcompete othersinthe
market over time.

Our key focus of development next
yearisthedevelopment ofthe PET
recycling plantinthe North East
allied to further investment in
plant for sortingboth HDPE and
PET. Additionally, we will continue
expanding our reach with soil and
aggregate treatment plants.

Increases 1n the number of tonnes
processed and margin contributed.
We would expectthis todrive
organic revenue growth and irmprove
margins through the increased value
recovered for materials processed
from plastics, soils and aggregates.

Thereremains someriskaround thatimelines
for construction and commissioning of the

PET plant Thisriskis partially mitigated by
using proven technology, the naw facility being
only 20 miles from our existing facility and

the Polymers team having already undergone
similar construction and commissioningin the
HDPE plant.

Investment in the efficiency of
collection, processing and back
office functions operations rernains
anever anding focus for the Groop.
Reducing thelevel of manual
intervention required insorting
operations provides a fixed cost base
and allows for more value added
roles within operations.

Increasing Underlying Operating
Profit Margin by reducing our

unit costs of productionis a key
measure of success. There are

other factors influencing thisand
operational reviews of processing
costs and efficiancy arereviewed by
management on a periodic basis.

See page 22 for more information

Re-routing vehicles and process automation,
carries operation riskand the risk of disruption
to customers. However, Biffa has well-
established processes for managing these
changes. Thetechnology associated with
electric vehicles1s still notyetat the stage of
commerclal viability toroll out beyond city
centre collections.

See page 32 far more information

www biffa.couk
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Strategic Report
Strategyin Action

Grow our
market share

Wa aestimate the UK I&C wasta collection market to be
warth £6 billion in revenue terms The main activities
in this sector are the collection of waste, followaed by the
processing and disposal of the waste, With the top five
service providers havingless than 256% marketshare

in aggregate, this means that it is a fragmentad market.
Numerous service providars offer sorting, recycling and
collection services to customers, in similar vehicles,
across the country, but the costs of operation and service
standards vary hugely, with differentiation being
undecpinned by hath scale and available resources.

The mostmaterial costsin a collection businessare
waste disposal, peopie and vehicles, Our significant
market share, coupled with widespread market coverage,
allows the most efficient deploymaent of peoplesnd
vehicles per tonne of waste coliected. We optimise
vehicle routes to maximise daily waste collections per
vehicle, while minimising vehicle G0, emissions Our
scale and national prasence, gives us access tothe most
cost-effective disposal outlets. In a market short of
landfill and incineration capacity, beingable to cornmit
to longer-term dispoasal dealg protects us againstdisposal
cost inflation over time.

£608m

Biffa's 16C Businsss has grown,
substaniielly Insize overthelyge
sixyears 10 € 508 3mthis year

Biffacustomer services team member

16

The scale of the business underpins our sarvice promise
inseveral ways. Having low cost to service and returng
abovethe norrm enables us toinvaestin technology

and management information that better informs the
decisions of our customers, while our larger than average
vehicle fleet gives us the flexibility ot vehicles and also
provides service cover i1n casa vehicles encounter access
{ssues, soas to minimise collection fatlure, and we have
the resaurces tainvest inthe fleet, to ensure compliance
with the required fuel emissions standards while gaining
hestfuel efficiency.

Biffa's I&C business has grown substantially in size
over the last six years from £390.8ra in 2014 to E608 3m
this yoar, EBITDA has improved by £67.2m and EBIT
has grown by £62.4m. This has been achieved through
amax of organic growth, depot rationalisationand

routa optimisation. The business has alsoacquired

and successfully integrated 37 other businesses since
January 2014,




“Another year of strong organic
and acquisition growth for our
I&C division.”

Michael Topham, Chief Executive Officer

Today, Biffa's I&C business hasaround 10% markat
share and covers over 95% of UK postcodes. As a result,
whersver Biffa acquires new I&C waste customers,
whether organically or through acquisition, it can
achieve synergistic benefits, whilstimproving service
standards and beingcompetitive on price. This
positions Biffa at the forefront of consolidation in

the sector, enabling ongoing superior returns.

Acquisitions in the year:

Biffa's I&C division has enjoyed another vear of strong <> London Recycling Limited*
prganic and acquisition growth. Key customer wins < Bisset Waste Management Limited®
include Busy Bees, The National Trust and Kingspan @ Weir Waste Services Limited

Group, whilst customer churn has one again fallen.
P & @ HE&A Recycling Limited"

This year Biffa acquisitions included SWR which <& Kier Group Companies®
provides waste and recycling solutions toits c.500 SBEM Limited (Saving British
commercial customers on a national basis, with the Business Money)*

physical delivery of the service provided by a network

ot sub-contractors. SWR generates revenues of c.£40.1m
and has a workforce of ¢.90 people. This acquisition has
strengthened Biffa's custorner offeringand provided
Biffa with the opportunity toincrease the proportion of
work sarvicad by its collection and processing nstwork,
as wellasexpandingits routes to market. Italse acquired
WWS, a commercial collection business which serves
¢.1,600 customers, generates revenues of ¢.£18.1m and
operatesa substantialrecycling and wastetreatment
pperation fraom a seven-acre freehold site at a key location
in Birmingham. This business is being integrated into
Biffa's I&C division, enabling the combined business
toimprove its customer offer throughout Birmingham
and the West Midlands and to deliver operational and
procuremant benefits. Biffa's acquisition of WWS's
recycling operations will further anhance our recycling
capabilities in the region.

<& Specialist Waste Recycling Limited

Tradeandassetdeals

1&C callection, Bullring, Birmingham

www.biffa.couk Bitffa plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018
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Strategic Report
Strategy in Action

Develop services
& infrastructure

Plastigs: Rising to the Challenge

The UK uses 13bn plastic bottles each year yet anly 57%
of those bottles enter the recycling system via houssehold
recycling collections. Instead of being recycled as
materials, used in the production of new plastic bottles,
tha 5.5bn hottlas hecoma litter or are thrown away as
general waste to be disposed of inlandhill, incinerated or
exported abroad.

90% of plastic materials leaving Biffa's recycling
facilitigs are reprocessed into raw rmaterials inthe UK
with tha rest going to Europe tobe recycled. Howsvaer,
more can be done overall to investin the UK's recycling
infrastructure. This s onereason why Biffa isinvesting
in a new plastic bottle recycling facility in Seaham.

The Seaham facility is not Biffa's first Invastment in

the UK's plastic recycling infrastructurs. In 2008, Bitfa
Polymars constructed the world's first commercially
available rHDPE food grade production plant. The facility
is designed to process 57k tonnes of material, a ground-
breaking process, which recycles and produces HDPE
‘pellets' from milk bottles. Thase pellets can berecyclad
almost endlessly intonew milk bottles. The facility has
raproGessed over 3bn plastic milk bottles over the last
11 years and 85% of milk bottles in the UK now contain
Bitfa material.

90%

90% of plasticmeterials
leaving Palfa's recycling
facilities are reprocessed inta
raw materials in the UK

Optical tHDPE flake sorter

i8

Biffa's new plastic facility in Seaham will pracess a
different plastic to that usedin milk bottles, known as
PET.PET is a strong, synthetic substance used in the food
packaging industry and 70% of soft drinks are packaged
in it because 1tislightweight, flexible and affordable.
Another advantage is that PET plastic is 100% recyclable
and can even baused 1n the manufacture of items such as
clothes, sleeping bags, and construction msaterials.

Inaddition to the elready announced £15m investment
inthe PET recycling facilityin Seaham, we haveanow
decided to further expand this facility to encompass
pelleting capacity, investinga further £12.5m. This
cormbined investment takes our overall plastics recycling
capacityto120,000tp.a.




“Our deep development and operational experience,
together with control of feedstock and trusted end
customer relationships, position us well for success
as demand for recycled plastic grows.”

Michael Tapham, Chisf Executive Otficer

The Government’s RWS, published in December 2018,
includes arange of measures that witl further support
this venture, including a proposed tax on virgin plastic,

a deposit return scheme to stimulate higher levels of
capture and extended producer responsibilities, designed
to promote greater recyclability by design and provide
funding support for racycling collections.

Energy from Waste Development

Another key featyra of the Government’s recent RWS was
theacknowledgraent of the vitalrole that energy recovery
will play in treating non-recyclable waste. At Biffa we
have always been clear that, whilst recycling isrightly
apriority, there will be a need for dependable, enargy
recovery capacity for residual waste, providing low
carbon, baseload energy supply-

Biffa hasresponsibility for the safe disposal of c.2m
tonnes of residual waste and as such it isin our interests
that these facilities are constructed.

We have been working with an American EfW developer
and oparater Covanta toassess the feasibility ofbuilding
facilities in Leicastershire and Cheshire, Whilst progress
has takenalittlelanger than anticipated, weare now
close to making our hirnal decisions and, all being well,
commencing construction of the facilities.

www bitfa.coul
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c.2m
tonnes

Bilfa has responsibility for the
safe disposal of ¢ 2m tonnes
of residual waste

MRF facllity, Edmonton



Strategic Report

Strategy in Action

Optimise systems

and processes

At Biffa we arerelentlessly focused on delivering efhicient
business operations Not only does this underpinthe
profit and cash flow delivery for tha Group but itensures
our services are aperated with minimum impactto the
environmant.

Kay developmentsin the year in¢lude:

Acqulsition Integration

During the year, we have cornpleted the integration of the
acquisitions we made in the prior year and commenced
integration of morerecent acquisitions. Vehicles, waste
containers and sites have been rabranded and business
aperations transferred onto Bilfa IT systems. Vehicle
routes have been reorganised and where relevant, sites
have besn closed. Qur centralised procurament team
have integrated supply chains, ensuring both costand
quality are optimised.

1

first cammearoiz) opacation
olanelectric refuse vehicle

Electric refuse vehicle

20

Support Bervices Reorganisation

As partof Project Fusion, a strategio review of certain
support services activities was completed in the year.
The nead for this arose following a significant period
of growthin the I&C business. This culminated in the
decision to consolidate activities at a single purpose
built centre in Barlborough, Darbyshire. Through
better resource mapping and sharing of best practice
wea are confident this will not oanly sava cost but moze
impartantly will improve the customer experience

Electric Vehicles

Biffa recently took a ground-breaking step, the first fully
commaercial operation of an elactric refuse vehicle. The
vehicle is in operation as part of our City of Manchestar
contract. The response from our customer, the City
Council, and local residents and our colleagues who
pperate the vehicle, have all been positive. Sadly it will
hesome tima before these vehicles become common
placs, but we willnodoubt look back at thastrial asthe
beginning of a new era for Biffa and the industry.




Biffa customer service tear meraber

“By growing through
acquisitions, we reduce
our service delivery
costs while offering
greater service quality
and flexibility to our
customers.”

Michael Topham,
Chief Executive Officer

7

acquisitionsinthe year

www.biffa.couk

Barlterough shared services centrs
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Strategic Repont

KPIs

Measuring our progress

Financial

Underlying Organic Net Revenue Growth (%]

2019 1.5%

2018 2.1%

2017 3.6%
Definition Performance

The increase/(decrease) in
netrevenueinthe period
excluding net yevenue from
acquisitions completed
inthe period and net
revanue fromacquisitians
completed in the prior
perioduptothe annivergary
of the relevant acquisition
date, to the extent such net
revenue falls in the current
period Where comparative
periods differin duration,
the KFPlis adjustedon a
pro-rata basis. 2018 was a
53-waek year and this has
been adjustedto a S2-week
year to enable a like-tor-hike
comparisen

New key accountsinclude
Busy Bees, The National
Trustand Kingspan Group

Targat
CP1+1%

Remunsration Linkage
Associeted with annual
bonus financialor personal
metrics

Linkto Strategy

Underlying Operating Profit Margin (%]

20189 7.5%

2018 7.5%

2017 2.5%
Definition Targot

Profitbefore exceptional
items. amortisation of
acquisition intangibles,
impact of real discount
rate changes tolandfill
provisions, finance costs
and taxationexpressed as
a percentage of sales

Parfoermance

Underlying marging
rermmalined stahle with
improvementsinl&Cand
Energy offsetting declines
in Municipaland RR&T

Continuous improvernent.

Ramunperation Linkege
Associated with annual
bonus financial orpersonal
metrics

Linkto Strategy
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Acquisition Net Revenue Grawth (%)

2019 2.9%
2018 4.4%
2017 4.6%
Definitlon Parformance
Acquisition Net Revenue We completed seven
Growth i any period scquisitions witha
represents the Net Revenue combined annualised
Growth in the relevant Net Revenusg ofc.£57 9m

perlod from (i) acquisitions
completad in the relevant
penicd and (it} any
acquisitions compieted in
the 12 months pricr tothe
relevant period uptothe
12-month anniversary of the
relevant acquisition date (to
the extent such Net Revenue
falls in the current period).
Acqulsitian Revenus
Growthis calculatedonthe
same basis, usingrevenue
in place of Net Ravenue.

Target
>2.5%
Remunerstion Linkags
Assoclated withannual

honus hnancial or pezsonal
metrics

Linkto Strategy

Return On Operating Assets (%)

2019 25.6%
2018 27.2%
2017 27 6%

Detinition Targot

Underlying Operating Profit Maintsin in excess

divided by the average of 20%

of opening and closing Remuneration Linkage

tangible fixed assets plus
networking capital

Performance

Underlying Cperating
Profit was relatively stable
versus last yeat, buot capital
employed rose 2s aresult

of filxed assetadditions
excerding depreciation.

Assoclated with annual
bonus financtalor persanal
metrics.

Linkta Strategy

www.biffa.co.uk



Return On Capital Employed (%)

Key: Link to Strategy

Grow our market share

Develop services & infrastructurs

Optimise systems and processor

Underlying Eamings per Share (pence)

2019 9.4% 2019 20.8p
2018 9.8% 2018 19.2p
2017 9.9% 2017 29.3p
Detinition Target Definition Target
Operating prohit gxcluding Continuousimprovement. Underlying Profit after Tax Consistent growth.
i 11t dividad by th b f
queptmna ! en:ns andthe Remuneration Linkage 1vidac Byine pumaer o Remuneration Linkage
impactofrealdiscount shares in issue.
Associated with annual LTIP - Earnings Per Share
rate changes tolandtiil
L bonus Hinancial or personal Performance 50%.
provisionsdivided by the
. metrics Underlying Earnings per
average of openingand : Linkto Strategy
: Share grewby 7.3%in
closing shareholders' equity  Linkto Stxategy theyear
plus Net Debt [insluding '
finance leases), pensions
and environmental
provisicns.
Performance
Profits were relativaly
stable versus last year but
capital emplayed increased
principally as a result
of hixed asset gdditions
exceeding deprecistionand
B lerge ecquisition late in
tha year.
Leverage Ratio (x) Underlying Free Cash Flow (£m)
2019 2.1x 2018 £47.8m
2018 1.9x 2018 £44.4m
2017 1.8x 2017 £28.8m
Definition Targoet Definition Target
NetDebt Underlying 2.0x Netcashandcash Maximising converslon of
ivalents pl t
EBITDA Hemunaration Linkaga ::1;::“3:; ;:h :&;smon underlying PAT tocash
Performance Associated withannual -acq . Remuneration Linkage
spend, restructuring. EVP
We ended the yearat2.1x bonus financial or personal Annualbonus,
i and exceptionalspend
atter acquiring SWRin metrics.
March 2018 movementinfinancial Linkto Strategy
Linktc Strategy asgets lass net borrowings.
Parformance
UFCFincreased from
£44 . Amto £47.8m this year,
www.biffa couk Bitfa plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Strategic Report
KPIs continued

Measuring our progress continued

Financial
Dividend per Share (pence)

20189 7.20p
2018 6.70p
2017 2 40p
Definition Target
Dividend declared divided Grow over time
‘nl\‘r the t;:tal r::l:nbe: ot SemunerationLi "
gharee In1ssue. Assoclated with annugl
Performance bonus financial metrics.
DPSincreasedby 76%
Linkto Strat:
1072 pence nlto Strategy

See page 175 for more information

Non-financial
Tonnes of waste processed [ktns)

2019 4,031ktns
2018 3,693ktns
2017 3,265ktns
Definition Performance

Tonnages recelvedinthe peripd subjected to processing
activitles at Blffa operated sites.

Processing activities include (i) sorting, bailing and transfer;
[il) RDF preparation; (i{i) soils and aggregates processing:

[iv) composting; [v] plastics recycllng: (vi] hazardous waste
processing; (vil]) AD, and [(vii1] mechanical and biological
treatment. Where materials aze subjectad to moreg than

one procassing ectivity, tonnages are caunted per process.
Tonnages that have not been subjected to any processing
actlvityand aredisposed ofin landfilland soils received at
landfill sites for restoration aye excluded. Also excluded are
any pracessing activities carried out by third partiggon Bifla's
behalf Whers waste is not weighed (e.g. some hazardous
wastg), tonnages are estimated.
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Tonnage processed increased by 9.2% this year mainly asa
result of increased volumes in plastics recycling and soils and
aggregates processing

Tearget
Gzowth.

Remuneration Linkage
Associated with annualbonus financial or personal metrics

LinktioStrotagy

wwwbiffa.co.uk



Non-financial

Tonnes of waste ¢ollected (ktns)

Koy: Linkto Strategy

Grow our marketshare
Develop services & infrastructure
Optimise systems and processor

Health & Safety — Lost time injuries [LTI] rate

2019 4,007ktns 2019 0.40%
2018 4,124kins 2018 0.27%
2017 3,789ktns 2017 0.31%
Definition Target Definition Target
Total waste tonnages Growth Lost time injuries are 5% reduction in LTIrate.
collected from custormers b defined kp!
e . v Ramuneration Linkage ) etinsdas ‘"_mr piacs Remuneration Linkage
Biffa operations Excludes . injurles which resulted in
Associated with annual Annualbonus personal
sub-contracted services Botus Hnancial or persanal theinjured persontaking roetric (6%)
and haulage/internal mEtuis Anelatorpersons tine off work to 1ecover b
movernents rics from their injuries. Linkto Strategy
Li
Performance fkto Strategy Performance
Growthin[&C tonnage Cur performance declined

duringthe vear was more
thanoffset by declining
Municipal tennageasa
result of contract attntion.

CO; emissions reduction

thisyearasaresultofan
{ncreaseininjurieselated
to slips, trips and falls

See page 53 {or more information

Employee engagement

2019 27ktns 2019 58%
2018 109ktns 2018 53%
2017 58kins 2017 56%
Definition achjeved through business Definition Taxrget
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) ecquisitions. The leve!ls of employee A 2% point increase toan
emlssions dataiscaptured Target engagement as measured employee engagement score
whichis then converted b through the Aon Employee of BO%.
Year-on-year reduction in
to CQ, equivalents using Engagement Index.
overall carbon emigsions. Remuneration Linkage
Government grnission
. Performance Annualbonus personal
conversion factors for GHG Remuneration Linkage
A The 2019 survey result metric [6%).
reporting published by the Assaciated with annuatl from a sur vey carrled out
Departrment for Busingss bonus tinancial or personal ¥ Linkto Strategy

Energyand Industrial
Strategy

Performance

Reduced carben emissions
over the last year by

345% duein partto
cn-going diversion ot
biedegradable waste from
landtilland routing and
operational efficiencies

metrics.

Linkta Strategy

inFebruary 2019 wasgan
employee engagerment score
of 58%.

See page 59 for more information

www.biffa.co.uk

See page 51 tor more informaticn
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Strategic Report
Operating Review

Collections

Jeff Anderson
Chietf Operating Officer,
Collections

Industrial & Commercial

Highlights

+ Strongrevenue growth of 8.0%: organicrevenua
growth 1.3% and revenue fram acquired businaess
4.7%. These numbers reflect a 53-week yearin
2018. When normalised for 52 weeks, the organic
growth was 3.2% and the acquisition.-related
growth was 4.8%.

+ Underlying Operating Profit growth of 15.6% to
£655.6m from acquisition synergies, excallent
customer service, other cost efficiencies and
strong pricediscipline.

» Current year scquisition of SWR ofters new growth
options and WWS and H&A provide new
processing capability in the Midlands and
Cornwall. Smaller ‘infill' acquisitions have been
quickly integrated to the wider I&C network.

Summary (Emunlessstated] 2019 2018 Growth

Statutory ravenue 608.3 574.0 8 0%

Underlying EEITDA B87.4 77.2 13 2%

Underlying Operating Protit §6.6 48.1 15.6%

Underlying Operating Protit

Margin B8.1% 8.4%
Employees Customers

Performance Summary

The I&C division has continued to see strong growth with
revenues increaging by 6.0%to £608.3m and Underlying
Operating Profitincreasing by 15.6% to £55.6m. When

we adjust the underlying Revenus runrate for the fact
that FY19 was a 52 week period versus 53 weeks in FY18,
the underlying growth rate is 8.0%. Revenue has grown
prganicelly through a combination of priceincreases and
collection volume growth including a number of major
business wins such as, Busy Bees, The National Trust and
Kingspan Group.
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Underpinning thisis another strong customer service
performance and improved business retantion across all
customer channsls.

The largaest cost within the I&C division relates to

the disposal of waste. To ensure that we maintaina
sustainable disposal strategy we have continued to
secure long-term supply contyacts for hoth mainland
Europe and UKEfW facilities.

In the first half of the year, a wholgsala shiftin the

global commodities market requirad us tore-optimise
and re-price the processing of our Dry Mixed Recycling
waste stream. New guality requirements ([mainly that
introduced in China) haverequired changes to our
processing network (anhanced further with the WWS and
H&A acquisitions) and thess have enabled us torespond
positively ta the current market needs and we are well
positioned to mest future neads.

The division continued to identify and convert a number
of acquisitions. We cormnpleted the purchase ofseven
businesses acrossthe UK which added annualised
revenues of ¢ £57.9m,

Thelargest two acquisitions were SWRin the final
qQuarter, 8 waste broker business primarily focused on tha
corporata customerchannel and WWS, alarge collection
and processing business which will significantly
enhanceourscaleinthe Midlands.

Through a comination of revenua gains, acquisition
integration benefits and strong cost management, the
overall Underlying Operating Profit Marginin the division
increased from 8 4% to 9.1%.

Market Conditions

UK waste volumes are relatively stable, but we have
continued to esa pressure on comimoedity prices. Asa
result, itis increasingly important tohave scals to enable
access {0 the lowest cost disposal whilst continuing to
operate an efficient collection and processing network
We believe 1&C is well placed to exploit these market
conditions, whereas a large number of smaller or regional
businessas will come under increasing cost pressure.

We expect this to support further market consclidation
and provide the division with an ongoing pipeline

of ppportunities, which will underpin ongoing

operating efficiencles.

Strategic Objectives

The I&C division remains focused ondriving organic and
acquisition revenuve growth and delivering operational
efficiencies. Wa are investing in new routes to market, as
demonstrated by the SWR acquisition, we are building out
our digital sales and fulfilment capability and starting to
explore new opportunities that will arise from the policy
drivea toseparate food waste collection.

www.hiffa.co.uk




Collections

Roger Edwards
Managing Diractor,
Municipal

Municipal

Highlights

«  Adiificult yvearwith revenue and margin decline,
principally as a result of contract attrition.

* Underlying EBITDA and pperating profit wers also
impactad by fuel and wages pressures, together
with1solated underperforming contracts

Summary (Em unless stated) 2010 Rsstzia?:g' Growth
Statutory revenue 164.8 174.8 -5.8%
Hnderl_vlrns EBITDA 7 ) ;;!:s - e‘ig -37_72__2%#
Underlying dperatlng Prohit 4.7 11.2 -568.0%
Underlyung Upemtrlrng Prioiﬂrt - - h
Margin 2.9% 5.4%

* 2018 hesbeen restated te exclude the Leicester City Council
contract, nowincludedin the Eneigy division.

3,400 41

Employees

33

Contracts

Locations

Performance Summary

The Municipal division hasseena 5.8% reductionin
revenue (4.0% reduction on a 52-week to 52-week basis]
due tothe impact of various contracts comingtoan
end,beingonly partially off-set by underlying organic
grawth Undsriying Operating Profit for the year was
£4.7m, with an Underlying Operating Profit Margin of
2.9%. The year-on-year decline in profitability 1s due
inthe main to contract attritior, coupled with labour
marketand fuel prices pressures, and isolated contract
performance losses.

wwwbiffa.couk

Despite performance improvement efforts, two contracts
identifiad in the year are expected to continue to generate
losses over their contract term. As a result, we are making
onerous contract provisions, as required under IAS37,

for the anticipated future issues that we have already
incorporatedinto ourforward forecasts.

Our servicelevels rernained commendably high with
afirst-time collection success rate of 99.91%. Thishas
enabled thesuccessful extension of five contracts and no
doubt enabled us to secure twonew long-terrm contracts
with the East Sussex Joint Waste Partnership and
Waverley Borough Cauncil.

Market Conditions

The market remains competitive although we areseeing
early s1gns of fewer bidders on recent contracts coming to
market The marketisstill dominated by a fewlarge-scale
operators with nosign, inthe short term, thatany new
entrants arelikely to emerge.

The stabilisation of the market isleading to more
maturityinthe sales and procurement processes and
amore equitable transfer of risk from the public to the
private sector. Whiale Local Government still wants the
best value proposition available, thereis a growing
appreciation thatsustainable service quality over

the long-term s paramount for one of the most visible
services provided to residents and Biffa is commaitted
tothis goal. We havealsoseenrecent evidence of
willingness on the part of Local Governmeant to fund the
vehicle capex for new contracts.

On the back of our success with the Green Waste club, we
haveentered into the domestic tankering masket, which
we are confident has the potential to grow and deliver
strong returns.

The market is still waiting to see the outcome of the
Governrment’s WRS consultation. Howeverit is expected
to impact our business positively with increased food
waste service requirements and the subsequent higher
volumes of collections.

Strategic Objectivas

The Municipal division has stabilised ite portfolio

and will continue toimplement the commercial and
operational solutions developed ta mitigats any further
trading declines, keeping a firm control of our cast base
and delivering efficiencies through the increased use of
technology. We will continue tobuild our complementary
and adjacent Non-Local Government revenus streams
whilst delivering high quality, commercially robust and
risk appropriate tenders for new business 10 our core
market.

The first fully electric 26t refuse collaction vehicleis now
in operation on our Manchester City Contract, With the
expansion of zero and low emission requirements from
local Government, we are confident that early adoption
and experiencein this technology positions us well for
the future.
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Strategic Report

Operating Review continued

Resources & Energy

Migk Davis
Chiet Operating Officer,
Resources & Energy

Resgurce Recovery & Treatment

Highlights

« Goodrevenue growth in the portiolio, with net revenue
3 6% ahead of last year The increase was duemainlyto
the performance of the Palymers business. Thisnumber
reflects a 53-week year in 2018 When normalised for
52 weeks the growth was 5 5%

»  Underlying EBIT1s £11.1m whichrepresants a decrease
of £2 Bm versus last year. This was mainlyduetoa
reduction in commodity prices for recycled paper
following themport regulation restrictions in China.
Tha Polymers buginess achieved excellent praduetion
and sales pesformance.

« Landfill velumes down 10X reflecting both langdfill site
closures and underlying volume, trending down inline

with expectations.

2018
Summary{fm unlessstated)} 2019 Restated® Growth
Stututory revence 215.4 2203 -2.2%
NetRevenve 1688 1487  3.5%
Underlying EBITDA T aa7 321 106%
Underiv_m?tiparaﬂng Profit ) _;1.1 13.7 EQ%
Underlvi;\g Operating Proht -
Margin g.ex 6.2%
'I'_nr\nes Landﬂ!rled {ktns) 2,808 3,118

* 2018 NatRevenue hasbaen restated toadjust {or msstated
interngl Landfill Tax revenues which had led to Net Revenug

velng understated.
Employees Locations

Performance Summary

China's Operation National Sword continued toimpact on
thesales price of recycled paper produced by the MRFs
throughout the year, albeit this was mostly marked in the
firsthalf. China was the main recipient of ourrecycled
paper butbanned the import of mixed paper since October
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2017. We havaresvamped our operations toaddress revised
market quality requirements and have also procured
alternative domestic and international gustomers for our
mixed paper. However, we are continuing to see reduced
prices, cormpared ta historic norms.

Biffa has been working towards a model of shared risk
with Local Government customers, and sbout half of

the commuodity priceriskis now held by Biffa. This has
helped to partially mitigatethe impact of the falling
paper prices and new contracts are being won on the
basis that the majority of commodity risk is borng by the
customer. Biffa has also negotiated a contribution from
key custornars towards the ingreased costs of maetingthe
naw mixed paper quality standard.

Tha Aldridge MRF was repurposed during the yearasa
plastic bottle sorting facility with a capacity of 40ktpa
and this facility has led to morg internal feedstock for

the Poiymers plastics plant strengthening its position
inthe market

The Edmonton MRF continues tobenefit from the £6m
investmentmadeinthe previous year, which has
resulted in increased operational yields in line with
axpectations.

The Polymers plant has had a very good year and
achieved all production and sales targets and with 95%
production uptims, the facilityis indusiryleading.
Faedstock costs roseduring the year, and a5 aresult,
customer contracts have been renegotiated, to both take
this into accountand to provide some protection against
further price 1ncroases.

Landfill volumes have seena decline of 10% since last
year driven predominately by the closures of Brookhurst
Wood, Horsham and Skelton Grange, Leeds together and
a quieter contaminated so1ls mayket.

Market Conditions

Tha recycling market is facing a challengingtime,

with pressure onachieving high mixed paper quality
standards as other countries follow the exarmple of
China and tightan quality standards. Biffais responding
tothis by improving processing techniques. Separate
paper collections will be the solutionin thelong term

to achieving high quality ata lower cost of processing.
Biffa is promoting this solution to our gustomers as 1t is
beneficial to both parties.

Government 1nitiatives such as extended producer
responsibility) (EPR) and deposit return schemes (DRS)
and public dernand are all increasing therequirement
tor further recyching facilities. Inits 2018 Budget, the
Governrent announced that fzom April 2022 it will
introduce & world-leading new tax on the production and
import of plastic packaging with less than 30% recycled
content. Dur Polymers business1s well positioned to take
advantage of the increased drive to recycie plastics.

The landfill market continues tobe focused upon waste
that cannot be recycled or treated for energy recovery.
We have also seen competitor landfll sites close with no
new landfill sites raplacing the closed sites. This means

www.biifa.co.uk



there are fewer landfills within the UK and wasta has
tobe transported further. In consequence, Biffa plans
on expandingits current rail hub programrme further
next year.

Strategic Objectives

The RRET division will continue to sesk to grow revenue
through expanding 1ts processing infrastructure

where the markat conditions exist and where risks are
understood and can be managed.

We will continue 10 expand our rall network to utilise void
at ourlandfill sites.

We will davelop additional plastic processing capacities,
and have already made an investment of E15mina

PET plastic bottle processing plantin Seaham. We are
now committad to expanding the PET facility, with a
further £12.5m investment, to incorporate compounding
and pelleting capability and with further significant
investment pianned in the next three to five years
building on our market leading capabilities to provide
enhanced capacity for evolving market demand.

Energy

Highlights

= Revenues feil slightly year-on-year with improved
prreing and ROC income offset by expectad
reductions in both landfill gas volumes and Wast
Sussex County Councildisposal revenues These
numbersreflect a 53-week yearin 2018. When
normalised for b2-weeks the growth inrevenue
was [2.b%).

= Underlying Operating Profit increased by 6.2%
from £26.6mt0 £27.2m mainly due tohigherthan
expected ROC income levels.

+ Further progress onthe twonewlarge-scale ERFs
in partnership with Covanta.

Summary [Emuniess stated) 2019 Resteac:ég* Browth
NetRevenue 102.9 1076 -4 4%
Und.(;l;v_ingE_BIT—DT az.a 32.3 1.9%7 )
Underlying Operating Prc;t 27.2 -25 6 6.3%

Underlying Dperating Profit

Margin 26.4% 23.8%
Energvgeneration [GWh) 441 476 2.4%
Energy price (E/MWh) 48.0 41.9 99%

¢ 2018 hasbeen restated toinclude the Leicester City Counoal
contract previouslyincluded 1n the Munmicipal divasion.

300 33

Employees Locations
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Poriormance Summary

The Energy division delivered another year of strong
operational performance while progressing plans for
developmentsin new EfW infrastructure.

Revenue fell by 4 4% year-on-year ({2.5)% on a 52-week to
62-week basis) despite the natural decline in gas yields
year-on-year. Energy generation reduced by 7.4% from
476GWh to 441GWh whilst average electricity prices
increased by 9.8% from £41.9/MWh o £46.0/MWh

Qur development efforts were principally focusad on
progressing our partnership with Covanta tojointly
sponsor the devalopment of two large-scale ERFs. Weare
pleased with how things have gons to dats and expect to
progress both these projects in the coming year.

We are also continuing to explore the viability of a small-
scale ERFin Swansea However, whilst the operating

permit was granted for this plantin March 2108, planning

consent for its construction was subsequently refused.
Thebusiness is currently reviewing the position.

As from April 2018 aur collections and processing
contract with Leicester City Council (FY1Brevenue
£19.9m, underlying EBIT £(1.1)m]), transferred into

the Energy division from Municipal.and reported
results for FY18 have been restated. Whilst the contract
continues to ba Jogs making, we are satisfied with the
progress we have made in stabilising its performance.

Market Conditions

Frnergy prices have improved despita continued
unceriainty. For this reason, we forward-sell the bulk of
cur genaration for the coming year to provide earnings
certainty. We also benefit from renawables incentives,
providing another stable reverue stream. Landfill gas
vields will continue to decline over tume as landfill waste
inputs reduce and the mix of landfillinputs continues to
ghifttoless crganic material.

The growth of separate food waste collections has
been limited in thelast year and thers gontinues to
be an excess of AD processing capacity, which places
downwaird pressure an prices. Through ourscala,
operational expertise and collection network, we
remain well positioned to benafit from a rebalancing
in this market.

Strategic Objectivas

In 2018 we sxpect teachigve financial close on two EfW
projects, both joint ventures with proven developer and
operator Covanta. Equity investment over the coming
three years will be £70-£80m.

The Energy division will continue toseek to rnaximisa
earnings from its existing operations by optimising gas,
electrical and material yields while contralling costs.

Inthe ADmarket, while the sector remains challenged,
we remain optirmustic that proposed segregated food
waste collection ré-balances the market.
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Strategic Report
Qur Stakeholders

Listening and
responding to
our stakeholders

At Biffa we provide essential services to homes and businesses across the UK.
As such, we have a diverse network of stakeholders with whom we engageon a

positive and open basis.

Customers

How We Engage

Ensuring that we work
collaboratively with our custormers
is of vital importance. Dur customers
raly onthe services wa provide,
therefora the ability tolisten,
understand and respond tecustomer
{eedback is paramount

Biffa provides clearand structured
lines of engagement for our core
custormner groups. Withinthe I&C
gorporate group, we segrment
customers into distinct operational
sectors and allocate dedicated teams
to manage their requirements.
These teams live and breathe the
day-to-day ckallenges faced by
their clignts. This experienceis
shared across the corporate team to
ensurs that knowledge is retained,

and best practice delivared. Local
Goverament customers benefit
{rom asimilar arrangement, with
dedicated contractsupport built
into ways of working for the duration
of the pertnership. Within the I&C
Small Medium-sized Enterprises
group, customers are on-boarded by
regional teams betore assignment
to our dedicated Customer Services
teams. Increasingly, customers
choose to self-serve through our
online GustormerZone portal.

Stakeholder Expuctations
Expectations are varied and
sometimes complex. Structuring our
systemns end processes ta support
customer raquirements in a timely
and consistant way lies st the heart
of our pffer. Reliability of service is

thecentral expectation. When issues
dooccur, derling with them and
ensuring that the customaer is kept up
to date whila we do so are our focus.

Relaevance tothe Business

Model and Strategy

Delivering ongoing and long-lasting
custornu salislaction enables Biffa
to grow. Ensuring that existing
customers are retained and that new
business benefits from a consistant
experience requires systemsand
processes that aredeveloped and
optimisaed. Al three elements of
our core strategy. Grow, Develop,
Optimise, egsential to delivering
customear satisfaction.

See page 14 for mare Information

Shareholders

HowWe Engage

The Exacutive Directors, supported
by the Investor Relations team, meet
in person or via & conferenca call
with both existing and potential
investors during the year.

Stakeholder Expactations
Insightinto theunderlying
performance of tha business and
progress against tha strategic targets
of growing market shara, developing
services and infrastructure, and
uptimising processes and $e1vices.
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Relevance totha Business

Model and Strategy

Good shareholder engagemeantis
fundsmental to ensure thelong-term
funding support for the business

See page 80 for more information

www.biffa co.uk



Communities

How We Engage

Thedetails of our community
engagement activitiesare givenin
the Sustainability and Environment
saction of this regorton pages 43
t063. Activities include local site
lialson groups and newsletters; Biffa
Award funding support for local
projects; losal volunteering and
fund raising activities; hosting site
visits for local s¢hoals and groups;
communication through municipal
contract community liaison officers;
and undertaking community
volunteering.

Stakeholdar Expectations
Withhigh publicinterestin recycling
and environmental protection, we
are seen asplayingakayrolein
helpingsocietyachieve sustainable
resources and waste management
salutions. Local communities also
expect our sites to be wellrun and
for us tobeable torespond toany
queries or complaints as quickly

ag possible. Quractions relating
toenvironmental protectionare
discussed in more detail in the
Environment section on pages

57t0 63.

Relevancetathe Business

Model and Strategy

Community engagement is akey
strand in our Corporate and Social
Responsibility and Sustainability
initiatives, helping to inform and
underpin our commercial strategy.
More information about this canba
found in the Sustainability section
of thisreport. At the local level,
community engagement helps create
positive local working relationships
and responsive operating practices.

See page 43 for more information

Local Government

How We Engage

Wa liaise directly with our Local
Government customers in terms

of service contracts and alsoin
various other ways. For axample,

we are currently liaising with the
Local Authority Recyeling Advisory
Commuttee (LARAE] over national
Government consultations on the
new Govarnment RWS and we are
represented onseveralregional
wasta planning forums. Wa also
assist with requests for site visits to
our facilities and councillor training
sessions,suchasthetraining
session onwaste planning provided
toStaffordshire County Councils
planning committea1n May last year.

Stakeholder Expectations

Local Government customers

expect effective and cost-efficient
services from Bitfa, backed up by
expert knowledgearound logal
requirements as well as advice and
supportregarding emerging national
waste policy and regulation.

Relevance tothe Business

Model and Strategy

Liaison with Local Government
stakeholders helps deliver our
services through a collaborative,
partnership approach. This supports
delivery of waste collection and
recycling ambitions at the local
lavel, all of which contributesto the

national pictura. Aligned knowledge
and ambitions also help to support,
ourinfrastructure and service
investment decisions

See page 57 formore information

Suppliers

How We Engage

We lcok tosecure excellent value
for money while minimising risk

in key areas such as environment,
ethics, quality and supply chain
security. Suppliers are engaged by a
team of procurement professionals
supporting thebusinessin
delivering a positive, two-way
communication process,

Stakeholder Expectations

We deliver toour internat
stakeholders a quality product

www.bifta.couk

or service ata competitive price
from areliable and sustainabla
spurce, introducing innovation
where appropriate. Welook tobuild
long-term mutually beneficial
relationships with all our
stakehotiders inthe belief thatall
parties benefit from this approach.

Relevance to the Business
Model and Strategy

Oursuppliers ate keyin delivering
our business model and strategy.
During the year therisk of Modern

Slavery was given particular focus to
ensure that our suppliers have taken
the appropriate steps to protect
against it within their supply chains
Working clpsely with suppliers, we
continue tointroduce innovation

to our businessdriving service
enhancernent, safety improvements
and business sfficiency

See page 48 for moreinformation
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Strategic Report
Risk Management

Managing our risks
and opportunities

QOverall responsibility for risk managementrests with the Board, but the
management of risk is embedded in our everyday business activities and
culture, with all our employees having an important role to play.

Risk Bovernance

The Board racognises its responsibilities for ensuring
thatthe Group's internal control systems and risk
managamsnt framswork are effective. The Audit
Commuittee has specific delsgated authority to monitor
these processes and the annual Audit Commities
calendar enables ongeing focus and review of key
management processes and controls

Day-to-day risk management and control rests with the
Group Executive Team with Board oversight designed
toensurs that Inanagemant provides l2adership and
direction to employees so that our overall risk-taking
activityis kept within our risk appetite,

Biffa operates the ‘Thise Lines of Defence’ model to
manage the ongoing effectiveness of risk and control, to
define therelationship between the various management
and pversight fupctions, and to demonstrate how
responsibilities are allocated.

Risk Appetite

The Group's tolerance for riskin the areas of Health &
Safety, regulatory and environmental rigks 15 low. Biffa
dedicatessignificant resources and focus tomanaging
and monitoring thase risks on a daily basis. Othervisks
are considered and reviewed on an ongoing basis. Ineach
case controis and mitigating aotions aligned to the risk
appetite ara put in placa.

Risk Management Process

The Group's risk management processes are centrally
coordinated with an established network of 'Risk
Champions' embedded in sach division/function to
facilitate updates to key risks during the year. The Risk
Charpions are merbers of the local senior management
tearn and take a lead role in engaging local management
toidentity, agree and update risk information on
aregular basis,
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Tha Group Executive Team receives regular updatss on
theriskmanagement process and tha key risks including:

+ riskdescription;

- gurrent asgessment of liehhood and impact
(assessed over anumber of risk impacts including
financial, regulatory, reputation and customer risk);

» theongoing controls or mitigation activityin place;
and

- planned futura mitigation activity with pwnersand
cormnpletion dates,

The Audit Gommittee receives regular updates en the
risk management process in place and also undertakes
regular reviews of the key risks, asidentifiad and
assessed by managemeant through the above process.
The Audit Committee also reviews summaries of the
work undertaken by the Internal Audit team, which has
arisk-based annual plan of assurance reviews.

Cur nskmanagement systems are intanded to mitigate
and yeduce risk to the lowest extent possible, but cannot
eliminate allrisks to the Group. The risk management
processes canonly provide reasonable and notabsolute
assurancs against material misstaterment orloss.

wwwbiffa.co.uk



Risk Management Framework

Board/Audit Committee e

Group Executive Team

1stline ot defence 2nd line of defence 3rd line of defence
Owns and manages risks Oversight of risks and Independent assurance
and implements/operates control compliance

business contrals

Who is rasponsible: Whois responsible: Wheo is responstble:
= Operational managesment/ - Complianca/oversight = Internal Audit

employees functions

Activity/controls:

Activity/controls: Activity/controls: « Approved Internal Audit plan
+ Poligies and procedures « Health, Safety & Quality = Internal Audit reportingline
+ Internal controls Team with audit programme to Audit Committee
+ Planning, budgeting, inplace « Regular Internal Audit

forecasting processes » Environmental/regulatory updates te Audit Cammittee
« Delegated authorities compliance
= Business workflows/ » Riskmanagament/

IT system controls Committee
+ Personal objectives + Controls compliance

andincentives monitoring

= Managemant/Board
reporting and raview of KPIs
and financial performance

« Gorporate policies and
central function oversight
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Strategic Report Ray

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Pocheoge %
Reduced nsk v
Increased risk 7

Stratagic Movement

Risk titlesdescription Impact Mitigatingactions. Changesinyear objactive 1nyear
1.Changesin QOperational  Environmental & External Atfales Throughout the yeax Dptirmise (_)
Governmantpolicyand  pinaneia) department, with experienced and we engaged with the
legal and regulatory qualified environmental support Governmenton its new
compliance Reputational experts working across all operating RWS, publighed in
The Group operates in a Regulatory  divisians. December 2018 We
highly regulated (ndustry Externalaffalrs processes in place continue to sngage and
and any changes to addressing Biffa representationon the  20vise Gavernment
Government policy, ESA and externalbodies; lialson with inralationto
standards orregulatory policy makers and regulators at nationa) Svnsvltations on the
compliance requirements andlocallevels; ragponses to key strategyefements
could have an adverse Governrnent/regulatary cansultations launched in February
Impacton the Group's and sustainability reporting. f:::uaxx\xdt;:m;:: ‘T['\lfe
operations and resulls Ongoingenvironmental compliance prop o s“:te“

strategy inplace including annually Measures to boost
raviewad targets and actions at local, fecyeling and stirulate
divisionaland Group level more investment in UK
Established compliance progcesses infrastructure suppart
inplace to menage other regulatory ourbusinessstrategy

compliance risks, such asbribery and andare viewed as an

corruption, Modern Slavery, competition area of oppartunity.

and vehicle operatinglicences. During the year. we
introduced tralning
far senior Ieaders on
Modern Slaveryand
refreshad pur anti-
bribery and corruption
training,

Biffabecsma a founding
membert of the
Slave-Free Alliance and
intreduced a nurmber ot
initiatives, including
amanager’s guide fo
Modern Slavery.toraise

awareness across the
business.
2.Health & Safety (H&8) Repulational Group H&Sfunction:ieportstotheCED. Duringthe year Optimise €—>
Biffa's operations present Regulatory Active and reguiar engagement by we 5“{"?‘35“”\'
inherent H&S rlsks o oUr  pinancial senfor managemnentincluding weekly ~ Sompletedthe
employeas. our customers reporting and calls with the Group muna‘g_ﬂmentsyéstem
and the wider public. Executive Team. :radn Isslolcér[\) 3:11';‘01130 o1.
] : .
Viclations of H&S laws/ Inclusion of H&S targets and abjectives
regulations could have within Group Balanced Business Plans
& matarial adverse effect (BBP] with one of the five ptllars being

on Biffa's business and

‘Warkingtogether safely’.
reputation gtog salely

Embedded polities, standasds and
procedures in place across Biffa for
the systemstic cantrol of significant
HESrisks.

Resourced HES teams supporting
operations and deliverfng a programme
of independent assuranaa.

Primary Authority relationship with
Hampshire Firg and Rescue Service
enables access to advice and counsel
on fireriskissues,
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Kay

Nochange (—)
Reducednisk W+
Increased sk 4
Strategic  Movement
Risk titlefdescription fmpact Mitigating actions Changesin year objective  1nyear
3. M&Astrategy Finanecial Group delegated authorities in place During the year wehave Grow >
anddelivery tomanage the review/approval ofsll continued pur M&A
Biffa faces risks arlsing material transactions by senior strategy tosupport
from its acquisition management and the Board. growthand ct?mp]eted
strategy, such as increased Established M& A process Inplace with ~ S¢venacquisitions ot
competition for defined governance, Including sponsors  Varying sizes, thalargest
acquisition targats ora and project management for all acquisition being SWR. Develop
lackof suitabletargeats. trangactions and engagement with Wehave continued to
Additionally, acquisition allrelevant subject matter experts monltor and improve ous
integrationrisks and to consider acquisition and integration  M&A process, based on
issues could arise, factors. feedback, stakeholder
impacting the delivery of Dedicated corposate finance expertise ~ °hgagementand
expected benefits, either in place ta manage M5 A transactions past-acquisition reviews.
withia expected together wath experienced Bitfa subject
timeframes orto the matter experts as seruor stakehelders for
extentanticipated. the acquisition process.
Board and executive level review and
update included in monthly Board report
summarising pipeline of identitied
potential targets.
Duediligence undertaken for all M&A
transactions, including use of external
advisers depending ontaygetvalueand
coraplexity. Astandardised approach
using anestablished valuation modsl is
in place with all transactions reviewed/
approved by the Investment Cormumitiee
and {where appropriate) the Board.
Project team kept in place until
integrat{on phase completed. Post-
acquisitionreviews to track benefit
delivery with financial benefits
embedded within financial planning
processes (e g foracasts and budgets).
The Group's funding arrangements
contain flexibility dasigned to allow for
expansion/reliefinthe event of
material acquisitions.
4.Long-tarm contracts  Flnancial All material bids are subjectto a detailed Ourestablished Grow ¢
and tendering Reputalional review and formal approval at divisional, governance and approval
The Group is exposed to Group and Board levels. processes haveremalined
risks Inherent in long-term Matertalbids are compiled by dedicated 17 Place. We totuson
fixed-price contracts,1n development teams with significant ensuringthat they
particular in its Municipal expertise and experlence Theyare femainrobust and fit
division and related supported by subject matter experts for purpose, and seek
operations. Risks include as appropriate. tareduce or eliminate
inaceurate long-term cost Protection fror change of law or force ;r:‘?;r;irzl;:r;l;ic:;al
estimates due to changes majeure for unforeseen CITCUMSIANCES tondars/eontracts in 1
intheexternal operating is designed into contracts. ers/contractsinting
environment and market . withcarporate
dynarnics that lead to Certalnrisks. such as excessive axpectations.
material deviations from cqmmodity price volatility exposure
initial underlying will not be accepted
assurnptions,
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Strategic Report Key
Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued Hochange <
Reduced rigk ¥
Incrassad sk ™
Swrategic  Movement
Riek hitle/description Impact Mitigatingactions Charges in year objective  inyear
6. Business continuity, Financial Crisis management and emergency Cioud failover and Optimise €—>
oyber securityand Reputationgy Tesponseplansinplace for ¥ey sites resilience have been
IT resilionce o Honal and operstions. tested throughaut the
Astgnificantdisruption T 0 O Serverintsastructnresupportingkey  Yearonddacumentation
to Bitfa's infrastruciure, 1T services hosted tn Microsoft Azure and processes updatea
inohdingIT systems, Cloud providing resilience, tatloverand  Businesscontinuity
could potentially havean backupservices Xurkplacexecn;:ervsnes
impactonthe ectivity of 150 27001 certification (Information . avt'e‘l;ge‘n re;‘l urllv
the Group'e customers, Security) in place. ested throughou }
such as increased billing the year.
times. inteyruptions to Extarnally hosted business CONUNUItY  pyrper cyber security
collection operations and tecoverVsitesin place for key measures have been
processing logistics, and administrative and suppart functions implemented during the
additionsl costs with atri-annual testing programme vearand cyber Secunty
Additionally, the theft, inplace education initiatives
destruction, loss, Intrusiondetectionin placeand a have taken place.
misappropriation or clougd-based ‘always on’ security sarvice
selease of sengitive and/or provided by Micraosoft protecting against
confidential information key cyberthreats.
couldresultinbusiness Web tiltering, malware protectionand
disruption, negative regular penetration testing inplace.
publicity or brand darmage
8.Economic Financtal A substantial proportion of our Whilstwe continue ta Grow «—>
environment/Brexit contractual relationships with monitor thisrisk, Bifta
Fconomicconditiong sustamers glve pricing flexibility provides sgrvices across
inthe Uk mayhavaan ctfering adegree of pratection against the hreadth of the UX ,
adverse impact on Bitfa's inflation or other cost pressures. econormy and to
operating performance, Biffa hasrevenues and costs thatare custamers in the pubile )
revenues andrasuits of elther directly orindirectly impacted 200 private sectors. Optimlsw
operations, The Groupis by the valus of Sterling relative tokey The breadth of costomers
expased ta political, social currencles such asthe USDollar ot the otfers u degrea ot
and macreaconomic risks Eurp. This provides some degree of offset protection against
relating tothe UK's and natural hedge. economic pressures that
sxpected exit from the EU. We anterinto torward contracts for may affect specific areas
Any economic weaknges the sale of electricity and tomitigate of tha economy.
thatleads to reducad short-term Gurrency exposuras, The Group has assessed ‘
volumaes of waste and improving earnings visibilityin the potential impact of
recyclate will sdversely the shortterm. certain Brexit scenarios
irnpact the Group's on its sctivitieaandis
business Furthermora, satistied that there is :
adsteriorerionin unlikely ta be a net
;:\cr;&?:z:?n‘:lvcalso material impacton the
o t
resuitinincreased fira‘l.lept::;o;‘-l'd he UK
competitive pricing
prassure and incteased
customsr turnover.
7. Pagpla- attraction, Operatlonal  Overall Reward Framework for Further strateglc Graw H
sucscassian, retention Finanoial eraployees and managers competitively  mitigations havebeen
The loss of the services aligned tothe market, including Lmplemented this year
of a number of Directors, Performance Share Plan for senfor They inciude a new
senjor management or personnel and Sharasave scherme apprenticeship
key employees. crif the aveilableto allemployees. programme; a driver
Graup encountersd Jabour Reviewoftegms and conditions for frecruitment/retention Develop
shortages or wasunable to operational gmplayees toensuze project; and astrateglc
attract geople for corg alignment to market reviaw of terms snd
businass roles, could have Talentand management development :on:g:?;\;it:rcoramles
amaterlal adverse effect programmes deployed at senior levels & &
on Bitfa's business results, and progressively toother levels Although ourzellance
operations, financlal going forward on non-UK EU labour
condlition and prospects. Ongoingravi ) fth witment and remains relativelylow, Optimise
The UK's exit frorm the n::g‘:\t!i‘:n ':; :x‘ivvuexs B 180T wa continue to monitor
EUmayimpactihe . thelskof
Estabilshed apprenticeship programme, rmacroeconarmic lactars

avaijlability and costof EU
labour which could atfact
our operations.

which will continuatohe further
developed In the coming year

sueh as Rrexitand
axthangerate valatility,
which couldimpact the
avarlatalityof the EU
workers who suppart

s number of our
operations
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Key

Nochange ©
Reduced risk <+
Increased nisk N
Strategic Movement
Risk title/description Impact Matigating actions Changesin year objective 1N year
8. Strategic project Operational Boardand Group Executive Team An independent Develop (—)
implementation Financial engagement and leadership tor programeme agsurance
Failure to deliver strategic strategic projects. review of Project Fusion
projects. such as EFW and Established Fusion Prograrmme was undertaken, withits
P:ojectFusion. Fusion is Managemant Dffice with ongoing recommendations now
tocused on our products riskand issue management, ?81?}5 puttln pl?;"' )
and services, how theyare : . urther strengthening «
sold and delivered, the :lelili;:‘t;?uio:;:vale is a proven 'otfthe the Lrnplementation Optimise
technology used and the ’ and reducingthe
enline services affered to Change networkinplacetoensureline  deliveryrisk
customers. As withany management ownership of Fusion A senijor Microsoft
such projects, there are transformational change. sponsor at the VP level
rigks that the project fails Significant investment in Fusion has jained the Project
to deliver the anticipated training materials and resources. Fuslonboard tosupport
mergve;nen}t‘s 1“‘:{“‘; 4 Proven EW technology, substantial UK tTe programme.
eneiits fort de ' gf @ and worldwide reference plants with >30
;nves tn;ent, a verlsa y a operationalinthe UK treatingin excess
mpactingreputation an of 10m tonnes pes annum.
operating résults.
EfW Joint Venture providing
complementary skill sets and experience
tominimise risk.
Leading advisory team (legal, financial
and technical) to provide due diligence.
Limited recourse project structure
9. Financeavatlability/ Financial Significant and flexible bank funding The Group agreed a Crow >
investment facility with substantial headroom to new five year £3560m
If the Group were to fail to enable the Group to progress strategic unsegured revalving
comply withany ofthe priorities and accommodate any creditfacilily, expiring
financialarnon-tinancial downside performance risk. 1n March 2024 but with
covenants inits credit In addition to the bank funding facility, 2n0optiontoextengfora
facilities (due, tor the Group has over £140m of finance further two years. Develop
example, to deterioration leasefacilities, withundrawnfunding  Asattheendoftheyear,
inflnancial performancs). of over £20m at the end of the year. £99m of the facility
1tjr;o\;ld iesu;n;an event Group Treasury function in place as was undrawn.
oldelault andthe . partof Finance organisation.
acceleration of the Group's i
obligations tarepay those Ongoing monitoring of financialand
borrowings, increased non-financial covenants with surnmary Optimlise

borrowing costs or
cancallation of certain
areditfacilities.

updates to the Board. Significant current
headroom on all covenants.

Financlal forecasting and medellingin
place to test headroom under a number
of reascnable worgt-case scenarios,
whichin turn feeds into longer-term
viability review.

Regular meetings held with key members
of the Group's hank funding facility

wwwhbiffa.couk
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Strategic Report

Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk title/description Impact

Mitiganngactions

Rey
Nochange Lxd

Redyced risk N
Ingteasedrigk 4‘

Movement
1nyear

Strategic

Changesin year objective

Financlal
QOperational

10. Commodities market
and pricing volatility

Biffa produces signiticant
volumaes of recycled
commodities forre-sale.
Comumodities praduced
include various paper
grades, caxd. plastics, and
fexrous and non-ferrous
metals.

Markets far these recyclate
products have individual
supply and demand
dynamies impacting hoth
price and availability of
aff-take

GChina's Operation National
Sword has had animpacton
the sales price of rzecycled
paper praduced by the
MRFs.Chinawasthemain
recipient of ourrecycled
paper and 1t has banned the
import of mixed paperinto
the country eince Octobers
2017. We have sought
alternative off-takers for
ous paper, but this js at
reduced prices

Biffahas been working
towaide a mcdel of shared
risk, with customers with,
0.64% of the commodity
price risk held by Bifla.
This has helped partialiy to
mitigate the impact of
falling paper prices. Biffa
hae worked closely with the
local authority custormers
and has successiully
negotiated a contribution
fiomkay customers
towsards the inoreased costs
of meeting the new mixed
paper quality standard.

Ongoing monitoring and Improvements
to productguality within recycling
processes

Off-taker strategy review to himit
dependency, where able, onthe
Chinese market

Corumodity price risk sharing within
long-term eomumercial contracts.

Working with key customers [ 8. Local
Government) to agree gate foes to reflect
any increased ¢osts and alsadual
collegtion methods.

Biffahas successfully
negotiated a nuraber of
customer contracts to
gainacontribution
towards increased costs
of meeting revised
quality standards

Develop l'

Optimise

11. Strategic/competitive Financial
threat to business model Operational

Market disruption frorm
the application of new
tachnology and the advent
of new business models
couldchange the waste
supply chainend
adverselyimpact Bitfa's
established operating
asset base of a traditional
collection network and
processing factlities.

Aninternal business innovation groug
has been established to focus on market
developments and to actas anincubator
for ideas and new business models.

Continualcompetitor analysis to
considey threats and changes to

tha landscape

Annualstrategy review to ensure that
Blfta business modelremains current
and competitive.

Continuing to invest Graw
inandimprove the

custorner experience

through dig:tisation,

improved processes

and management

information.

Survey of customers
taensurethatthe
Bitfa offer

remaine relavant
and compelling.

>

Devalap

Optimise
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Viability Statement and Going Concern

Inaccordance with the June 2016 UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Board has assessed the viability

of the Group over alonger period than 12 months and has
adopted a period of three years for the assessment. The
Board's strategic planning horizon is five years; howevet,
the firstthree years nf the plan were selected for tha
testing as most of the Group’s risks would have the greater
adverse impact over this timespan. The following factors
were taken into account in making this decision.

« Weahavereasonahle clayityover a three-year period,
allowinganappropriate assessment of our principal
risksto be made.

+ Inordertosetthe three years, the Board considered
whether there are specific, foreseeable key events
relating to the principal risks that are likely to
materialise. and which might be substantial enough
taaffect the continued viability and therefore should
be taken into account when settingthe assessment
period. Norisks of this sort were identified beyond the
three-year period

Tha Group has a broad range of customners and

suppliers and operates across the breadth of the UK
waste management chain.Itis supported by a well-
funded balance sheet and has significant further
committed and undrawn liquidity facitities. The Board
assessedthe principal risks to the business as set out
on pages 3410 38 and agreed that a number of severe but

www.biffa.couk

plausible risk scenarios should be explicitly modelladg,
both individually and 1in corabination. In making their
assessment, the Directors took into account the potential
financial and operational impacts of the principal
risks which might threaten the Group's viability during
the 3 year period. Although the output of the Group's
strategic and financial planning process, reflects the
Directors best estimate of the future prospects of the
business, the Group also assessed the financial impact
of other scenarios. The Group also identified a numher
of mitigating steps it would take toreduce the risk,
including cost reduction programmes.

The Group's profitality, liquidity and finaneial
headroom have all been assessed and incorporated
within the risk scenario model!ling. Based on the
consolidated financial impact of the sensitivity analysis
which included scenarios of reduction in market activity,
M&A dehivery and availability of future financing, and
associated mitigating actions that are eitherin place or
could be implemented, it has been demonstrated thatthe
Group wouid maintain adequate headroom under each of
the scenarios modelled.

Based ontheresults of this analysis, the Directors
confirmthat they have areasonable expectation that the
Group will be able to continue in operation and meetats
habilities as they fall due over the period of assessment,
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Strategic Report
Financial Review

Continued strong
momentum

“We have delivered good financial
results and strong underlying free
cash flow, enabling us to fund our
acquisitions and a growing dividend.”
Richard Pike, Chief Financial Dfficer

Group Performance

lam pleased inmy tirst year as CFO to be able ta present
a good set of financial results. Whilst our headline
statutory revenue paints a picture of modest growth, this
belies the underlying picture. First, because the current
yearisas52-week period versus a 53-week period last
year. As such the headline growth rates are understated
by around 2%. And eecond, because the businesshas had
to copa with both the ongoing impact of the China impart
restrictions, which depressed cormodity prices, and the
deterioration in Municipal performance. As such, we ax1t
the year with areally sohid performance.

Other Items

Toenable abetter undarstanding of business
performance, ¢ertain iterms are excluded when
calculatingthe Group's underlying measures of
periormance. These items are more fully explained
in Note 3 tothe consolidated Financial Staterments
and include:

{i] iterasthatrecur most years but that we feel will aid
the user by excluding from underlying performance -
amortisation of acquisition intangibles, acquisition-
relatad costs, movament on landfiil provisionsasa
result of discount rate changes and strategyrelated
costs; and

[i)) otherone-offiterns which are considerad exceptional
- onerous contract provisions, GMP equalisations
costsandlegacy loan amortisation write-offs.

Inthe second category, tha onerous contract provisions
movement relates to thelong-term contract with
Leicester City Council, together with isolated
underperforming Municipel contracts.
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Areconciliation from Underlying Profit After Tax to
statutory profitafter tax is set out below:

2018 2018
€m £m
Underlying Profit after Tax 51.6 479
Acqulisition-related costs f2.8) {18)
Amortisation of acquisition intangibles (16.5) (18.8)
Impactof changes in realdiscount rate on
lendfill provisions (1.8) 5.7
QOther [2.1) (o8}
Onerous contracts (10.2) {5.2}
Ponsions GMP equalisation [2.1) -
Finance charges [6.2) [2.5]
Taxatignimpact on atheritems 2.0 45
Statutory profit after tax 18.0 31.1

Finance Charges

Underlying financing costs fell significantly compared
tothe prior vear, driven by lower average cost toloan
borrowings and the natural decline of the number of
older, more expensive finance leases. Abreakdown in
netfinance charges is below:

2019 2018
£ £m

Interest on net borrowlings 8.8 119
Interest on finance leases 5.0 63
Bond presmiums 1.8 17
Landfill provision discount unwing 2.0 2.2
Pension discount/surplus unwing (1.0 (06B)
Netunderlying tinance charges 17.7 215
Discount unwind on EVP instrument
and IPC costs 2.4 2.5
Unamortised arrangement fees on
oldFacility 3.8 -
Netfinance chargea 23.9 24.0
Taxation

The Group's tax strategyis approved annually by the
Board and isavailable on the Group’s website, The

Group remaing committed to fully discharging its
responsibilities in respect of all relevant tax legislationin
aclearand transparent manner based on a collaborative
relationship with all tax agencies.

The effectivetaxrate onunderlying profits was 20% (prior
year 20%], slightly higher than the prevailing rate due
tocertain charges beingdisallowed for UK corporation
tax. Paymants in respect of corporation tax in the year
were £0.2m {prior year £1.7m). The Group's deferred tax
balance of £2 Im includes balances totalling £48.7m 1n
respect of Accelarated Capital Allowances, previously
written off goodwill and losses which will continue to
moderate tax payments in future years.

www.biffa.co.uk

Earnings per Share

Underlying Earnings per Share rose by 7.3% to 20.6 pence
from 19.2 pence in the prior year. However, Total Earnings
per Sharereduced to 7.2 pence (prior year 12.4 pence)asa
result of the higher exceptional, non-underlying items in
the year.

Dividend

The Board continues to pursue a progressive dividend
policy, aiming to distribute c.35% of Underlying Profit
After Tax split approximately one-third (interim) and
two-thirds {final]). The Directors recommend a final
dividend of 4,90 pence per share, bringing the total
dividend payable in respect of the year to 7.20 pence per
share (prior year 6.70 pence per share]. The year-snd
dividend is expected to total £12 3mand, if approved,
will be paid on 19July 2018 to those sharsholders on the
register as at 28 June 2019.

Ratirement Bonefits

Tha Group operates delined pension schemaes for certain
employees. These are ¢losed to new members and to
future accrual (except for a small number of membars
who have protected entitlernents under local Government
contracts) At29 March 2019, the net retirement surplus
was £79.0m (prior year £61.2m). The Biffa Pension
Scheme had an actuarial deficit of £29 2m at the ime ot
thelast valuationin March 2018 [compared to £E8.7m in
March 2015), and an inflation-linked annual paymant of
£4.0m has been agreed with the Trustee of the schemse.

Capital Allocation

The Group maintains a strong capital base in order
to pursue its growth plans, whilst rmaintaining
stakeholder contidence.

The Group seeks tobalance the allocation of its
discretionary capital between shareholderreturns,
acquisitions and organic growth.

Acquisitions

The Group continued to deliver against its growth
strategy by completing seven acquisitions for £47.0m
during the year - WWS on 17 August 2018 for £16.1m, SWR
on 12 March 2019 for £25.8m, and five smaller trade and
assets acquisitions for a total consideration of £5.1m.
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Strategic Report
Financial Review continued

Cash Flow
Strong cash flow dsliveryinthe year anabled further
significantinvestment in acquisitions, together with

Reported Nat Debt at year-gnd breaks down as:

29Margh 30 March

t Dbt (£ 8
ahigherdividend. Reported Not Debt (€m) 201 2018
Actual Actual Actual
Asummary of the Group's cash flows is shown below: GCash 88.2 43.8
Loans [248.0] (1947)
2019 2018
£m £m Finance leases [122.8) [i1188)
Underlying EBITDA 160.7 160.0 EVP preference instrument (8.3) (6.3)
Working capital movement (a.21 (3.3] Total [310.7) [279.0)
Net capex (48.2) [40.4}
Net interest paid (18.0) [18.5) Reported Net Debt excludes £42,3r (prior yeay £38,9m)
Finance lease principal payments (33.0) €as 3] of EVP preference instrument liability in respect of the
EVP Dispute (see Note 33). £6.3m of the EVP preferenca
Pension deficit pavments (5.0) (3.9) instrument liability is includad in Reported Net Debt as it
Advancefor purchase of own shares will be payable itréspective of the cutcome of the dispute
for PSP awards -4 (1.6] and is therefore considered tore debt.
Taxpaidre acquisitions .2) (2.7)
Underiying Free Cagh Flow 47.7 44.4 EVP Dispute
Restructuring and exceptional iters (4.5) (4.3 Tha Group is engaged in a dispute with I_-!MRC concerning
. s ” historic Landfill Tax. The Upper Tax Tribunal hearing for
Acquisitions (31.8) (41.0) this dispute is scheduled for November 2019.
Changes in borrowlngs 45.1 (4.6)
Movernent in financial assets a.4) 12 Finanoial Reporting Council (FRC)
Dividends (170) (11.4) [nformation Request )
Netincreamer[decreass] in cashand In Feb:rua.rv 2019 the Group received a request fos
cash equivalents 26.4 (15.6) irformation on the reporting treatment of certain aress

Undeslying Free Cash Flowincreasad by £3.3min

the year, driven primarily by lower working capital
outflow and interest costs, partly offset by higher capex,
whilst net cash flow has intreased significantlyasa
result of higher RCF drawings, partly off-set by a higher
dividend payment.

NetDebt and Financing Facilities

In March 2019, the Group rafinanced its bank borrowings
with & new unsecursd revolving credit facility of E350m.
This facility has an initial five-year term expiring in
March 2024, but with an option to extend foruptoa
further twoyears, The RCF will provide the Group with
alower than avarage cost of debt, an increased maturity
profile, and improved covenants. The refinancing will
result in interest cost savings for the Group of around
£3.5m per annum (being a combination of lower
marginand lowsr arrangement fees for amortisation).
Unamortised arrangement fees of £3.8rm relating to the
old facilities have been written off within non-underlying
interestcharges in the current year resulits,
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from the FRC following a review of the Group's 2018
Annual Report and Accounts. The request focused on
four mein areas - aliernative performance measures,
landfill restorationand aftercare provisions, pension
schemes, and service concession arrangements. The
Group rasponded fully and on a timaly basistathe FRC,
enabling tha FRC to¢lose thair enquiry in early May 2018,
As g result of the enquiry the Group has made a number
of smalil disclosure changes which ithas adopted for the
first time inthis set of Financial Statements.

IFRS18 Leoases

The Group will beadopting IFRS 16 with eifect from

its new financial year. It does not intend torastate the
current year Financial Statements, An estimate of the
irapact of the new standard is shown in Note 1 on page
128. Adoption of IFR5 16 has no sffect on how the business
1s run, noron the cash flows tor the Group.

Reporting Periods

The Financial Statements for 2019 have been prepared for
the 52-week period ended 29 March 2019. The prior year
was a 53-week period, to 30 March 2018, The upcoming
year will also be a52-week period, up to 27 March 2020,

Richard Pike

Chief Financial Ofticer
§June 2019

www biffa.couk




The Way We Work

Sustainabilityis
integral to our business

Our Role in Soclety

Asabusiness with a leading position in the waste

and recycling industry, we have a responsiblity toall
stakeholdars, including investors, our employees, our
customers, the public and the communities in which we
work, to serve, protect and engage. We aim tobe the best
at what we do, acting responsibly at all times to ensure
delivery of sustainable waste management services

to our customers, protection of the environment and
social wellbeing.

Sustainability Governance

We are committed to promoting high standards of
environmental, carbonand energy management onall
our sites, premises, workplaces and in all our activities.
Our position in the waste and resources chain means
that we are integral to the supply of sustainable solutions
to our customers and, therefore, corporate and social
responsibility is at the heart of everything we do. Dur
Corporate Responsibility framework encompasses our
people, health, satety and wellbeing, communities, the
environment, our marketplace and relationships with
our ¢ustomers, suppliers and other interested parties

as well as our commitment to business ethics and
conduct. We set ourselves clear and measurable business
objectives and targets each year. Wesimtolead the way
in developing sustainable solutions for everyone we work
with, to work with like-minded organisations with similar
aims and obiectives, and to educate and inform those
that do not. Wa ensure that our employees, customers and
the coramunities we are part of, are made awara ofthe
valug Biffa places on Corporata Responsibility through
participation and consultation.

Sustainability in Action

We consider rasponsibility for sustainahle business
practices a key priority in all our activities. Durapproach
tosustainability ata corporate level is exemplified

by our naw partnership with Waste Aid, a registersd
charity assisting basic waste management in developing
countriss, reflecting arecognition of global challenges.
The services we provideinthe UK and the way we operate
help deliver relevant aspects of the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals [UN SDGs), which are
alsoreflected through the 2015 EU Circular Economy
Package and the Government's 26 Year Environment Plan
andthe RWS, both published in 2018 and the subject of
consultation on detatled proposals, which we are engagsd
with. On alocal, practical leval our activities also

include initiatives such as community volunteering and
fundraising. More details on these environmental policy
matters and actions can be found an page 57.

www.hiffa.couk

WastaAid charlty workers

WasteAld

Waste management is pften taken for granted in the
daveloped world. However, thisis notthe case in poorer
econornies wheare one in three people donot havs access
toa basic waste management service. Biffa's funding

of, and partnership with WasteAid, s UK-based charity
whosa vision is A world with equal access to waste
servicas for all’ will help the charity to further develop its
infrastructure to support more projecta worldwide Biffa
will alsooffer the benefit of its expertise in supporting
these projects and the opportunity for employees and
customers to fundraise, and help to make a positive
diffarence in parts of the world where there are no
structured waste management systems in place.
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Strategic Report

The Way We Work continued

UN Sustainable Development Goals
The UN SDGs are a call by the UN tor action by all countries to promote
prosperity whila protecting the planet. The goalsrecognise that ending
poverty must g0 hand-in-hand with strategies that build economic growthand
address a range of social needs including education, health, spcial protection
and job opportunities, while tackling climate change and environmental

protaction.

Biffa has undertaken a mapping exercise to ident1fy the goals directly
relavant to it and whera our activities align or impact upon the goals.

The UN SDGs upon which our activities align with orimpact inctude Goal 3-
Good Health and Well-being, Goal 4 - Quality Education, Goal 8 - Dacent Work
and Economic Growth, Goal 8- Industry, Innovation and Infrastructureand
Goal 12 - Responsible Production and Consumption.

The UN SDGs are a cail foraction at the country level, and although not all are
applicable ta Biffa, we have undertaken the assessment to assist pur business
and our customers in understanding how we are working towards achieving
therelevant targets. As indicated above, in terms of waste and resource use,
elements cf the UN SDGs low through into the EU Circular Econamy Package,
towhich the UK has signalled its cornmitment to and which, in turn flows
through into the Bovernment's 25 Year Environment Plan and the RWS.

More commentary onthis canbe found on paga 57

Non-financial information statement

Reporting
reguirement

Policies. standards and actions which
govern our approach

buediligence/audittrail/KPls

Whuie o hual further information

Environmental
matters

Bitta compliss with all applicable
environmental regulation.

Bifta has developed an Environmental
Compliance Strategy in relationto
waste management facilities which
have tocomply with Environmental
Permits. It contains targsts and KFPIs
raviewed end getannually to help
maintain compliance and best
practice.

‘We angage with Government
regulators and policy makers tohelp
shape the national regulatory and
policy framework. See page 57.

Bitfahas atsamof environmental
regulation and policy specialists to
provide the necessarysuppart ta
the business

Refer to our Risk Management
Framework [page 33) tolearn more
aboutourapproach.

When the husiness makes an
acquisition, environmentaldue
diligence is included in the process
inrelation tooperational
environmental compliance and
liabilities.

Refertothe Environment section
of purannual report on pages
57-83

Employeas

Biffa hasa comprehensive suiteof
policies and all polices are freely
available onthe Compeny Intranet.
Polisias include,

+  Whistleblowing policy

« Anil-freud, briberyand carruption
policy

+ SHEQManagement-The Biffa Way

+ Control of Substances Hazardous
toHealth {COSHH ) management
aystem

+« Employee Assistance Programme
(EAF)

+ Diversity policy

Work s ongoingto develop an

a-learning madule on Diversity for
deployment in 2019-20.

An employee's induction
programms, the employes
hendbook and complation of a suite
of e-learning modules reinforce the
key policies to new and existing
employees.

We undertake an annual employee
engagemant survey through which
we encourage everyone to‘have
theirsay*

In 2019, Blffa achieved itshighest
ever employee engagement score
[58%) and agpire to achieve an
Upper Quartile scare (measured by
the Aon UK Employes Engagement
benchmark] in the future,

Refertothe QurPeople and
Health & Safety section of nur
annual report on pages 46=56.
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Reporting
requirement

Pclicies, standards and actions which
governaur approach

Due diligence/audit tra1l/KPIs

Where tafind turther information

Humanrights

‘We expect our employeesto‘dothe
right thing' and uphold values of
honesty, fairness and respect.

Qur employee handbook sets out our
expectations of ouy people and
referenges the key policies which
underpin this:

« Modern Slavery and human
traificking policy

+  Whstleblowing policy

« Anti-fraud, briberyand carruption
policy

» Safeguardingpolicy

In Q¢tober 2018 we alsobecame a

founder member of the Slave-Free
Alitance.

We procure under the Code of
Ethics of the Chartered Institute of
Procurement & Supply (C1PS) and
complete due diligance checks on
new and existing suppliers.
Allcases of alleged Modern Slavery
and humantrafficking are fully
investigated and reposrted to the
Audit Committes.

During 2018-19 we developed and
deployed several s-learning
modules toleaders and line
managers tobuild their knowledge
and understand their
responsibilities.

E-learning module completion
rates by employess during the
reporting period were as follows:
+ Modern Slavery - 92%

*»  Whistleblowing -87%

Referto pages 46-52 for specific
content in our annualreport
(contained within the Qur
Peaple section)

Social matters

We encourage our emplayees to
volunteer. Biffa's people willingly go
the extra mile to help out in ourlocal
communities. Beyond giving
something backto society, we believe
volunteering results in better
teamwork, motivation, engagement
and personal fulfilment for our
employees

Bifta Award s a Landfill Communities
Fund scheme run by the Royal Society
of Wildlife Trustsinitsrole as an
approved environmental body since
1997.

Biffapartner WasteAid whoarean
independent UK charity (non-profit).
Through this partnership Biffa
ermnployees canget invelved in charity
fundraising events.

Through our compliance strategy.
wehave delivered training and
best practice gmidance to
employees toassist with
community engagement and have
subsequently achieved a 74%
reduction incomplaints about
oursites,

Inthelasti12 months. 50 profects
have recelved funding in excess of
£5 9m in aggregate from Biffa
Awazd

170 employees took partin
community volunteering exerclses
inthe last yaar in our Resources &
Energy division as employees are
given a day each vear to volunteer
for alocal cause

In addition. werecognise
individuals and teams who have
gone ‘the extra mile' through our
annualDiamond Award ceremony.

Reter tothe Environment section
of our annual report on pages
57-63.

Anti-fraud,
briberyand
corruption

Biffa has a comprehensive suite of
policies and all polices are freely
available on the Company intranet
Related paolicies include:

+  Whistleblowing policy
»  Anti-fraud, bribery and
corruption policy

During 2018-19, there were eightcases
afalleged fraud, bribery or corruption
reported tothe Whistleblowing
hotline

In five of these cases precess/sysiem
changes were recommended to be
enacted.

In the other three cases the
investigation was cempleted butdid
notresultin sufhicientevidence to
warrant @isciplinaryactionora
changetoexisting processes or
systems

The Anti-frand. bribery and
carruptian policy is raviewed
annuallytoensureitremains
effective and It for purpose.

All cases of alleged fraud, bribery
or corruption are fully investigated
and reported ta the Audit
Committee

Ansg-learning module on Ant-
Fraud, Bribery and Corruption was
developed and launched to all
leaders andline managersin
2018-189,

During thereperting period, 88% of

the target audience successfully
completed the module.

Refertopages 46-52 for specific
content in our annual report
(contained within the Qur Pecple
section).

Read more about our business model on pages 4-5

www.biffa.couk
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Strategic Report
The Way We Work continued

Our People

Qur Valueas and Pillars

Fach year, we develop a Group BBP aligned to cur
businaess strategy. Each division and function develops
its own BBP, too, from which it derives individual
objectives to ensure that everyone has a clear line of
sight as to how their targets align and contributetothe
‘big picture’. The BBPs are made up of five pillars:

1. Working together safely
2.First choice for customers
3.Easytodobusiness with
4. Bufilding pride 1n Biffa

5. Growing profitably

Our values [Be safe, Be innovative, Be customer
focused, Be a tearn player and Be accountable] help
guide our people intheir daily activities and support pur
beshavioural framework. These describe the behaviours
we encourage ail employees to adopt to bestserve the
interests of aur customers, employees and the

business overall.

This year we have reviewed and revised our visionand
purpose, which ars also aligned to our business strategy
and our values.

Each year we share out strategy and BBPs with

our employees through seniorleader and manager
conferences, and employeeroadshows delivered by
Michael Topham, our GEQ.

Employes Rewards

We offar a compstitive reward package which encourages
highindividual and team performance and helps us
attract and retain key talent. Employee benefits include
salary sacrifice schemes [pensions, cycle2workand
childcare], and banefits through aur Parkz discount
scheme (healthcare, high streat discounts, holiday,
travel and leisure discounts), which has beenupdated
with new offerings this year. We again successfully
taunched a Sharesave Plan in 2018, and we intend to offer
afurther Planin 2019, A total of 26% of eligibie employees
now participate in atleast one of the Sharesave Plans.
We have continued our communications campaign to
raise awarenass of our full suite of ernployes benefits,
including the production of a benefits booklet sent to

all amployees.
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Here's what our apprentices
are saying:

“I am now a driver full time thanks
to the apprenticeship. 1 also have
choices of what I can do for career
progression which I never had
befora. It's given rue a real boost
for the future.”

Aidan Young
OQur first loader-to-LGV driver apprentice

“My MBA programme hag givenme
the opportunity to broaden my
business knowledge and develop a
great network of contacts beyond
Biffa and the waste industry.
Understanding how my role relates
to the other business functions
is giving me a much broader
perspective on business as a whole.”

Hannah Clitiord
Regional Environmental Control Manager

Talent Management and Development

Biffa is committed to providing opportunities for
personal growth and development throughout each
employee’s career.

OurLearning and Development team provides a broad
selection of development programmes ranging from
technical and compliance training to personaland
managemaent development. We have invested in a broad
portiolio of e-learning, which means that all employees
will have access totimely and relevantlearning ¢content.

We continue to ensure that we gainthamaximuravalue
from appranticeships. As an approved employer pravider,
we deliver LGV driver apprenticeships, giving our junior
operatives that opportunity to prograss their career. In
addition, we partner with a number of external providers
10 create opportunities ior our emmployeesicundertakea
broad array of apprenticeship qualifications including
Institute of Leadership and Managsment programmes,
engineering, accountancy and MBAs.

www.hiifa.couk



Bitfs team members hitter-picking, Bedfordshire

87

Employees are engaged in apprenticeship
programmes. This number will continue
toincrease.

Health and Wellbeing

Biffa1s committed to providing a healthy working
environment and improving the quality of working life for
ail our emplovaes. Our wellbeing strategy aims to support
our core values and we believethat the integration of
wallbeingin all work activities and practices meansa
positive environment and culture can be created that

is compatible with promoting employee engagement,
performance and business success.

Dur uitimata goal is to improve the health and wellbeing
of all our eraployees and to prevent work associated ill
health, for the overall benefit of our employees and the
organisation. This encormnpasses the physical, mental
andsocial health of employess and recognises that
employees’ values, personal development and work
activity contribute totheir overall wellbeing at work.

Workis ongoingin the following key areas:

» Improving working lives through policies such as
flexible working, absence management and smarter
ways of working.

www.bitta.couk

« (Ongoingcampaignsto tackle a number of issueeg.
mala health issuas, mental wellbeing, financial
weilbeing, weight and exercise.

+ Creatingasafe place toworkthrough our Health &
Safety policy and initlatives.

= Decreasing theinterval between traatment and return
towork through occupational health referral and advice

= Personalsupportthroughthe Employee Assistance
Programme.

« Biffa Wellbeing website offers help and advicaon
a broad range of issues.

Smarter Working

This year walaunched aninitiative called ‘Smarter
Working' tosupport our Health and Wellbeing agenda

and to encouragse all employees to make changes tnthe
way we work at Biffa toreduce non- productive time

and promote more flexible working practices. This year
under Smarter Working we have encouraged employees
toreduce time spent travelling to meetings by using
Skype as analternative and tomaximise the use of our
technology such as Microsoft OneDrive and SharePoint.
We have focused on building employees’ personallavels
of resilience and enhancing their understanding of the
impact health and wellbeing has onindividual ability to
work smartly. We will be tracking our success through our
reduction in business mileage and CO, emissionsand the
work-life balance score within the employee engagement
survey results,
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Strategic Report
The Way We Work continued

Our People continued

“Biffa has made some significant
strides over the past twao years and
has adopted a proactive stance
to mitigate risks. Thers is strong
commitment and engagement from
key stakeholders in the business
and a desire to be a market leader
in the Modern Slavery agenda.”

Gary Booth
Slave-Free Alliance

Ethicgs and Human Rights

We like todobusiness with honesty, integrity, fairness
andrespact and encourage all our smployees to
embrace these values in'doingtheright thing' every
day. Qur comprehensive employes handbook s¢ts out
our expectations with particular emphasis on honesty,
integrity, fairness and raspect and includes specific
policies including:

+ whistleblowing, anti-fraud, bribery and corruption;
« divarsity;

- disgiplinary and grievance matters;

+ warkinghours;

+ harassmentand bullying;

» safeguarding;and

* Modern Slavery and human trafficking.

ModexrnSlavery

Biffa is committed to preventing Modern Slavery and
human traffickingin its cperational activities and supply
chains. Toensure we achieva this we have embarked

on aprogramme of continuous improvement, We work
with Hopa for Justice (www.hopeforjustice.org.uk), an
international anti-human-trafficking charity, to promote
awareness of Modern Slavery in key business operations.
In 2018 we launched a Modern Slavery a-learning module
for all line managers. We procurg under the Code of Ethics
of the Chartered Institute of Procurement & Supply

and complete due diligence checks on new and

existing supplisrs.
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In October 2018, wa became a founder member of the
Slave-Free Alliance, a scheme forbusinesses that want
to protect and enhence their reputation and improve
the quality of the products and sarvices they offer by
snsuring that workers producing and providing such
products and services are not exploited. The schermne
requires businesses to undergo a threat assessment,
which we successfully completad in early 2019.

In addition, we have launched a suite of other a-learning
modules, as partof our overall policy compliance
programma, te support understanding of the policies
and reinforce our expectations. By engendering
understanding and effective operation of the ahove
policies and practices, werespect the human rights of
our employees and fulfil ourlegal requirements.

Whistleblowing

Bitfa's whistleblowing policy follows accepted best
practice. An employee canraise a concern internally or
via an externally provided confidential hotline. Every
concernraised isthoroughly investigated and reviewed
by senior management, and appropriate actionistaken
where necessary. All whistleblowing reports are entered
in the Group Whistleblowing Register.

There were 43 whistleblowing reports received in the year
ended 31 March 2019, nearlytwo-thirds of thembeinginthe
categories of health, safety and enviranment or dishonasty.

Customer service tean members in Barlhorough

wwwbiffa.couk




KRteam in Cressex, High Wycambe

Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption

Our Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Carruption Policy includes
guidance to employees on the giving, receiving and
recording of business gifts and hospitality. As part of

our compliance programme, an e- learning moduls was
released to all Broup leaders and managers in January
2019. Any breaches of policy are investigated by the Head
of Internal Audit and are reported to the Audit Cornmittee.

E-learning Audience Completion Rate
module 201819

General Data Protection

Regulation (GDPR) 06%

Modern Slavery 92%

Whistleblowing B7%

Anti-Fraud, Bribery

and Corruption 88%

Diversity

Biffa understands that one of its most powerful tools
for achieving sustained success1s ourability torecruit
andretain a high-performing workforce that ernbraces
diversity and prorotes inclusivity as a catalyst for
new ideas and innovation. Our diversity, respect and
inclusion strategyisto create and supporta diverse
and inclusive workpiace and embrace the beanefits of
diversity to achieve a competitiva business advantage.
The strategy has four key aims:

1. Tobuildand sustainan inclusive environment that
fosters innovation and high performance.

www.biffa.co.uk

2 Toattract, develop, advance andretain diverse
employees

w

To promote diversity and inclusion awarenass and
encourage angagement across the business.

4. Tofacilitate diversity and inclusion outcames to
influence business opportunities,

Biffa is committed to providingequal employment
opportunities and to avoiding unlawful discrimination
inthe workplace or against customers.

Biffa will not discriminate directly or indirectly
inrecruitment, employment or post-employment
practices onthe grounds of age, disability, sex, gender
reassigninent, pregnarncy, maternity, race (which
inciudes colour, nationality and ethnic or national
origing), sexual orientation, religion or belief, or because
of marital or civil partnership status.

Our Diversity Policy covers specificarrangements for
people with disabilities including:

« givingfull and fair consideration to applications for
smployment from disabled persons, havingregardto
their particular aptitudes and abilities;

= continuing the employment of, and arranging
appropriate training for, those who have become
disabled while employed by Biffa; and

+ career development and promotion of disablad
employess.
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Strategic Report
The Way We Work continued

Our People continued

Group Conference
2018 feedback

*The conference was great in its
content. I now feel ] know where
Biffa is heading and 1 know more
about the industry.”

Sue Harrington

“As a new ernployee, the event
provided me with an ideal
opportunity to put names to
faces (including those on the
Executive Team] it also provided
a greatinsight into the size of the
company, its progress and the
direction it is taking.”

Adam Cooper

Employee Roadshows
2019 feedback

“Thank you for putting on the
roadshow - I found this very useful
and informative.”

Roger Barratt

“I attended both the Milton Keynes
and High Wycombe roadshows.
From discussions with colleagues
everyone found it very worth-while.”
Andrew Chalk
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For 2018 we are developing and launching a suite of
a-learning modules on diversity, respect and inclusion
that ensure.

+ diversityisrespected in the working environment;

» amployeas areconscious of theirrole in maintaining
aninclusive environment;

» employsesrecognise any prejudices and make
cultural assumptions; and

+« employeesrespectfully seek to understand other
gultures that they encounter,

Gander Diversity Figures

Biffa employs around 7,300 peoplea: 88% of our warkforce
is mals, a ratio which increases to 98% for our blue-collar
woarkforce.

We believe that diversity anhances Boasd effectiveness
and in 2018 we recruited a fernale Board member and
amale Board member of European Nationality, We will
continue to address our gender imbalancs whenmaking
future Board and senior leader appointments and will
strive to develop a diverse pipeline of exacutive talent.

The table below shows employment by gender in each of
the job classifications:

Male Female Nondisclosed
Job
classification Nos x Nos % Nos %
Board 6 85.7% 1 1a3% Q Q0%
Group
Executive
Team 8 75.0% 2 25.0% a 0.0%
Allemployees 6,942 87.7% 978 12.3% a D.0%
Gander PayGap

Biffa believesin promoting equality and diversity
arongst our workiorce. We welcome the ppportunity to
publish tha information required under the Equality Act
2010 (Gendar Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017. Wa
published our gendar pay gap data on the Government
weabsite and www.biffa.co.uk in March 2018,

For the Group asawhole:

Our mean gender pay gap: -15.6% (-10.6Xin 2017)
Our median gender pay gap: -7.6X [-6.2%X in 2017)

www.biifa.coulk



Municipal collection, Bedford

The negative gender pay gap tigures mean that average
pay for female employees at Biffais greaterthan
average pay formale employees. Thisis asaresultof the
compaosition of pur workforce

Ourindustry’s worktforce is predominantiy male,
particularly at blua collar level, and this isteflected in
our own workforce. Atactor influencing our gender pay
gap results is that, although famales make up around
12% ot our werkforce, there are proportionately mors
femalesin higher-paid professional, managerial and
administrative roles than in front line rolas.

Pay rates for hourly paid hlue collar roles (which
comprise 73% of our overall workforce) are established for
each accupational job, s male and female incumbents
are paid the same fartha samerole.

Salaries for white collarroles ara set withinsalary bands,
underpinned by the application of ajob evaluation
methodology, which ensures that jobs with the same job
evaluation outcome fall within the same salary range

A more detailed analysis can be found on our website.
Trade Union Relationships
Constructive working relationships with trade unions

at national and lacal levels have enabled the continued
avoidance of any recent significant industrial action.

www.hiffa.couk

Employee Engagement

Emplovee engagement remains a key process for Biffa. We
have benefited greatly from year-en-year improvements
inour engagement level and believe that we could attain
aposition inthe UKupper quartileinthe medium texm.
Currently at 58%, weare equivalent tothe UK average

and within 11 percentage points of the uppaer quartile
threshold. Qver thelast eight years, we have improved by
anaverage of 3.5 percentage points annually, ahead of our
target of 3.0 percentage points per year.

Each year, we identify areas 1n which we can improve
engagementlevels through a number of business-wide
and local-level action plans developed by our network of
Employee Engagement Champions. Last year, we focused
oncreating a culture ofinnovation and invelvement/
collaboration across the Group, We launched our
suggestion schema, Bright Sparks, this year alongside

an Innovation Hub to foster ideas across the business.

Communication with ourc.7,.800 strong worktorce 1s a
challengs, particularly because our front lina amployess
donot have access to Biffa's email system. We are
launching an Employee App this year to enable better and
more immediate communication and also tafacilitate
two-way feedback for our employees through a fun and
engaging toal.
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Strategic Repont

The Way We Work cantinued

Our People continued

We hold annual management confarences and rsadshows
for aur employees where we share our progress over

the year and stratagic priorities for the forthcoming 12
raonths. The Diarnond Awards are our formal annual
recognition ceremony at which we celebrate individuals
who have ‘gone the extra mile’ in their contribution ta
Bitta. We are alwavys overwhelmed by the qualityof the
nominations for each of the main award categorias, which
reflect the five pillars of aur BBP.

Duremployess actively participate in volunteering
activities and raising money for charities of their
choosing. This year, we are proud to announce our
partnership with WasteAld, which we are supparting
with a Company donation and fundraising activities

to support tha charity’s projects in poorer aconomies
overseas. We are also supporting WasteAid projects with
our waste managemaent expertise, and two of pur key
techonical experts will ba supporting projects this year
in Lake Naivasha, Kenya and The Gambia.

Acquisitions

This year we have continued to grow our business
through acquisitions as well as organically. When

ws acquire businesses, ensuring thatthe employees
who join Biffa ere supportad through the transition is
critically important. We have strengthened our project
management capabilities and have added more HR
resogurce to support M&A activity and to ensurethat HR
support 15 gn site throughout the integration period.

Employee engagement graphics
in HR at High Wycombe of fices
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Communications play a key part during such changes.
We continue to refine our approach to ensure that it is
right for the business we are acquiring with a detailed
communications and engagement plan. Heiping naw
employess to understand Bitfa, our culture and valves is
important, and is something we start on day one, whilst
clearly respecting the heritage and strengths they bring
to us.

Future Priorities
Our priorities emanating from our people strategy areto:

« develop our key talent through succession planning,
targatedindividual developrment plansand an
enhanced development offer for front line managers;

« deployresourcing stratsgies as necessary toensura
that we tap into tha besttalent and ensurelabour
supply for all of our key roles;

+ continue the journay for all of our teams to reach the
upper quarfile employee engagement score as
maeasured by the Aon Employee Engagement Index;
and

« suppoert business growth to énsure the successful
integration of our acquisitions and, 1n particular, the
reahisalion of benelils thiough synaigies,
harmonisation, cultural alignment and engagement.

wwwbiffa.couk



Health & Safety

Our Commitment to Safa Working

Health, satety and wellbeing is the highest priority
within the business and Biffa is committed to monitoring
andreviewing periormance on a regular and ongoing
basis. Our goal is to keep our employees, our customers
and the public safe by promoting high standards of
health, safety and wellbeingin the workplace and inall
our activities. The Board takes overall responsibility for
Health & Safety in the Company, including setting policy
andreviewing performancse,

Performancea

This year we have seen arise inlost time injuries from 45
in2017/18to B7in 201B/18. We are disappointed with this
trend and have already completed numerous targeted
interventions toaddress this.

A significant number of the LTIs in 2018/19 were
attributable to ships, trips, falls and manual handling.
Positive interventions comnpleted and underway include
the development and communication of targeted

health and safety messaging tosafeguward against high
frequencs, low consequence accidents.

Lost Time Injury Rate and RIDDOR Rate
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Health & Safety the Biffa Way

The management and governanca of Safety, Health,
Environment and Quality (SHEQ) is clearly laid outin
ourdocument, SHEQ Management - The Biffa Way.

The Board and Group Executive Team have endorsed
strategies to ensure that signilicant risks areidentified
and suitable controls implemented along with adequate
supervision, information, training, monitoring and
reguler reviews.

We have invested in developing the safety leadership
behaviours of our senior business leaders. Dver 70 plus
senior operational business leaders received health and
safetyiraininginaccordance with The Biffa Way.

Egqually, we continue to ensure our operational teams
have access to the highest standards of health and safety
competent advice and support, Qur SHEQ team undertook
and completed training in disciplines such as process
safetyand ISC auditing.

www.biffa.couk

Incab reversing

CRIMBTI& SCIEER
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Strategic Repert
The Way We Work continued

Health & Safety continued

H&S pre-vehlcle chacks

Wealsoracognise the risk of company driving operations
inand around public areas and the potential for Road
Traffic Accidents involving one of our vehicles, As part
of our continual commitment to sate and responsible
driving we arginvesting in a new defensive driving
programne for our professional drivers, along with other
road and safe driving measures,

Biffa is committed to continual improvement of health
and safety which is monitorad and measured todentify
effactive key performance indicators such as accident
rates. We track leading indicators including compliance
assurance, near miss reportingand internal audit
findings.

Wse continue to focus on strong, visible leadership, good
communications and consultation supported by gur ‘I for
Safety’and 'Step Up' campaigns. We have also reviewed
our management systems and carried put comprghensive
raviews of our risk profiles.
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‘[for Safety’is centrad onthe five key bahaviours that
prevent accidents and support safer working, all summad
up in afriendly graphic that highlights the importance

of taking persanal responsibitity. The campaign has
supported the increase inpur hazard and naar miss
raportingand, as evidenced by our annual employes
engageraent survey, has increased safety engagement.

While safety begins at home, Biffa also seeks extarnal
accreditation through audit and external benchmarking.
Our performanceis compared to ESA, Confederation of
Paper Industries and Health and Safety Executive (HSE)
statistics for the UK.

Biffa is a member of the British Safaty Council and

has, for tha seventh year running, undertaken the
organisaton’s ‘Five Star' integrated salety, health

and environmental management audit, This year, we
achieved a score of over 95%, securing the Counocil's Five
Star award in a combined review of health and safetyand
environment managementsystams.

www.biffa.couk



Biffa has alsomaintained accereditation of key ISO
standards with our external accreditor, NQA, to ensure
legal compliance and maintain our goal of continual
improvement. This year Biffa has successfully
transitioned to IS0 9001:2015and IS0 14001.2015.
Biffa plans to migrate to 150 45001:2018 nextyearin
accordance with a jointstrategy with the accreditors,

Driving Positive Change and Continusal Improvement
Biffa has developed a number of its own safety
campaigns, willingly sharing them across tha sector.
These include the foliowing:

SafetyStep Up

Biffa’s Safety Step Up is an annual week-long event at
which employees across the divisions discuss safetyand
health issues and carry out local campaigns. This year,
the focus was on celebrating succass and embedding
what the Company does weil, finding improvemnents to
safety standardsand learning fromothers. Itis an event
that challenges and encourages our sites and employees
to take partin a Company-wide discussion about those
thames and how to apply them locally.

Abroadrange of activities took placeranging from
healthy eating initiatives and talks from local mental
health charities to vehicle checks and activities looking
at firs safety control measures. Inrecognition of the

daily challenges faced by our drivers, a new short film
called ‘In the Driving Seat’ was produced. It positively
highlights some of the scenarios our drivers may be faced
with and was discussed in driver briefings as part of
Safety Step Up week.

COSHH Management System

This year we have launched a new GOSHH management
systam. Jtis a Cormnpany-wide tool designed to help

us manage hazardous substances in more effective
ways 50 that our employees are protected. The COSHH
assessments produced by the new system are clearer
and more comprehensive, enabling them to be read and
undserstood by employees throughout the business.
The new system will also help Biffa to be more targeted
inreducing, substitutingand eliminating hazardous
substances.

Driving Recklessly on Pavements (DRoPs)

Every year, our employees facethe threat of reckless
and aggressive drivers who donot hava the courtesy
or patience to wait for them to perform their duties. It
is notuncommon, for example, fora cartomountthe
pavement to get past one of our teams at work Clearly, the
consequences of this could be a seripus injury or even
afatality to one of ourteam or a member of the public.
Although emplovees report such threatsthrough the
hazard and near miss reporting system, historically,
prosecutions have beenrare.

www.biffa.couk

Safstydemonstration

We have developed the DRoFs initiative, toraise
awareness of the social unacceptability of this hazard.
DRoPs has bean endorsed by many highly respected
safety bodies including the HSE, the Institution of
Occupational Safety and Health, the Royal Society for the
Prevention of Accidents and the Parliamentary Advisory
Committee for Transport Safety.

Theinitiative has resulted in drivers being prosecuted.
Strong partnerships have been built with many police
forces and Local Government groups across the UKand
DRoPs has been recognised natinnally as asignificant
road safetyinitiative.

Safe Movement of Vehicles and Plant

We operate many waste facilities, where low-speed
maobile plant and vehicle movements can cause
significant risk. To control this, we maintain robust
pedestrian segregation systems at all of our facilities to
ensure that our tratfic management plans ara affactive.

At our sites, vehicles and plant stop work if pedestrians
enter their safe working zone - we call it gur ‘Five-metre
rule'. This is reinforced by the work of our Best Practice
Groups which, continually review our practices and
assess new technology to reduce therisks A Group-wide
campaign was carried out toreinforce the measure
required to control safe movement of vehicles and to
ensure that all locations had effective risk assessments
and traffic managements plans.

83%
(0
of employees feel that health and safety

is important within the Company
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Strategic Report
The Way We Work continued

Health & Safety continued

Fire Prevention

Fira is one of the most significant operational risks
toour husiness and fira prevention1s never far from
thethoughts of the SHEQ leadership team. Tothat

end, we maintain our Primary Authority agreement
with Hampshire Fire and Rescus Sarvice to developa
successiul fire prevention strategy and processes. The
agreement not only ensures that we are compliant with
fire regulations, but provides us with regular supportat
the forefront of design, technology and engineering in
firg safety and prevention Thisenablesus to progctively
challenge tireriskto the benetit of our amploeyees and
thabusiness.

Statutory Inspections

As partof our continual improvement, Biffa has been
working closely with our Facilities Management
contractor to improve how we manage statutory
compliance. This has included an upgrade of our current
Compliance Database system to make it easiar for our
sites to remain compliant. There is also a new dashhoard
that sites and support functions can use tomonitor
compliance across all the divisions.

Working with our Stakeholders

Biffa continues to work with stakeholders. In particular,
weplayaleadingroleintwoindustry-wide concerns
DRePs and volnerable peopie sleeping in bins.

Biffa's SHE() team supports relevant industry bodies
and regularly presents to Health & Safety conferences,
Biffa also contributes to major industry and safety
publications and organisations including the ESA, the

Bitfa team members
litter-picking, Bedfordshire
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Waste Industry Safety and Health (WISH)Foyum and
Confederation of Paper Industries. Over thelast, year
our team has contribhuted to over 13 events/publications
with one of our SHEQ coaches achieving the RoSPA
Guardian Angel Award, as part of the RoSPA Guardian
Angel award scheme, torecognise his commitment to
spreading the word and encouraging otherstoembrace
our DRoPs campaign.

We have been proactive during the consultation process
for sector guidance in the waste and recycling industry.
Anumber of our SHEQ coaches take an active role in
developingindustryguidanceas part of the ESAand
WISH industry working groups.

Planning the Future of Health, Safety & Quality In Biffa

Biffa is committed toaligning its improvereant objectives

with the waste industry strategy. We will focus on the

strategic areas that directly affect operational safety.

Theyare:

Vigible leadership « NewBitia Health & Safety

cultyre change programme

+ Dixector and seniof rnanager
inspections

+ Safety Step Up week

+ SHEQExcellence Forum

+  Executlveincidentreviews

Controlofrisk + Riskprofiling and develop
defensive driving behaviours
- Flreprevention

+ Occupationalhygiene

+ Dynamic working environments

Pertormance management « Compliance validation
+ Leading and lagging indicators
+» Riskbased assurance

Embedding change « Validation of corrective actions

wwwbilfa.couk




Environment

Biffa the Commentator: A New Direction and the UK
Government’s RWS

Thelastyear has besn a busy one for national waste
policy devalopment in the UK, Biitahas besn actively
engaged at alllevels, helping to advise on and shape the
new policy suite. The launch of the Governmant’s 25 Year
Environment Plan in January 2018 heralded a new era
in UK environmental policy, fuelled by a combination
of the need for ‘homa-grown’ policy post Brexit and
aver-increasing publicinterest in waste and recycling.
Akeycommitmentin the Environment Plan was the
development of a new RWS, which was publishadin
December 2018 after lengthy engagement with a wide
range of stakeholders, including Biffa.

Akeyaimof the RWS is todrive uprecyclingirom
currently stalled natinnal levels, in order toachievea
new ‘municipal waste’ reoyoling target of 65% by 2035,
withinterim targetsup tothatdate. The definition of
‘municipal waste’ is now aligned with the EU Circular
Leonorny definition as being household waste and
similar business waste. Biffa welcomes the new strategy
as providing a clear, much-needed policy direction to
driverecycling and tostirnulate investment in mora UK
waste management services and infrastructure.

Thestrategy was followed in February 2018 by

more detailed consultations on four proposed, key
measures: collactions consistency, Packaging Producer
Responsibility raform, a deposit return scheme for drinks
containers and a proposed tax on plastic packaging with
under 30%recycled content. Key themes include making
products and packaging easier torecycle whilst phasing
out hard to recycle materials; requiring packaging
producers to bear a much greater share of the waste
management costs of their materials; raquiring wasta
producers to recycle more; capturing plastic drinks
bottles and cans which escape recycling collections and
and up as litter; capturing more food waste for recycling;
and tackling waste-related crime. Biffa continues o
contribute to Government work on developing these ngw
policies and subsequent regulations, whilst also keeping
our customers informed and supported. As part of this
work we have developed an internal expert network to
help establish agreed positions on key issues and, in April
2019, wa published a new Recycling Collections guide.

www.biffa.couk

Biifa customer Recycling

Collections guide

Bitta the Operator: Environmental Compliance Focus
Compliance with Environmental Permits for our
opsrational waste management facilities 1s a major,
ongolng focus for the business. Compliance reassures
customaers, protects the business legally and, overall,
delivers an environmentally friendly and sustainabie
waste management service. Wahave now completed tha
fourth year of our Environmental Compliance Strategy,
which focuses on how we comply with the Environmental
Permits issued by the relevant UK regulators, namely
the Environment Agency in England and the equivalent
bodies in Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland. Over
the four years we have far outstripped the original
targets and have, to date, achieved a 68% improvement
incompliance sgores, a 74% reduction in complaints and
seen over B70 key employeas through specialist training
onspecific compliance issues.

The opportunities for further improvement are
considerably morelimited, particularly againsta
background of tougher regulationand increased serutiny
fromregulators. Nevertheless, over this last year we
have maintained corapliance performance across the
Group with further performance improvementinthe
Resources & Energy Division, where the majority of our
permit compliance requirements apply. This year, we
have also trained over 120 employees and have targeted
improvement actions on specific issues, such as water
management and odour control. Senior level liaison
with the Environmasnt Agency continues to elicit strong
support ior the approach taken in our Environmentai
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Strategic Report

The Way We Work continued

Environment continued

Compliance Strategy and positive recognition of tha
results achieved to date. With growth in our in-house
compliance training, this year we hava published a
Training & Best Practice service brochure and continued
to make guidance available through our intranet.

We have cantinued to deliver strorgresults onthe
operational development side, with over 60 planning
consent and Environmental Permit approvals secured
for new projects and compliance initiatives.

Carbon Management

Providing environmantally beneticial wasta
management solutions (such as mixed and single stream
recycling, food racycling and energy from waste) to our
customers offerssignificant carbon footprint reductions.
We recognise that, in the delivery of those solutions, we
need to minimise the impact our own operations have

on the environment by promoting high standards of
environmantal, carbon and energy manageinent in all
our workplaces and activitjes.

We achieve this by constantly seeking ways toreduce
our energy consumption, by ensuring optimal efficiency
in the capturs of bingas for generation of renewable
energy and through innovation and investment in new
techniques, equipment and services.

Other people's waste is our asset. We focus on ensuring
that wa realise its inherent valua, be that through
opportunities to recycle or recover, or generating
sacondary raw materials from facilities such as our
Polymers plant and aggregate treatment and recycling
facilities. We recognise that the processing of waste will
cansume energy and we wiil continua to try and reduca
thacarbon intensity of thase processes as we realise the
overall benefits of recycling, recycling prevents carbon
emissions through avoiding extraction of primary
materials and avoiding emissions from disposal®.

Carbon Reporting
Weundertake an annual data capture exercise for the
purposes of reporting Scope 1and 2 GHG emissions,

cornpliance with Pollution Inventory Returns, the Carbon

Reduyction Commitment [CRC) and Energy Savings
Opportunity Scheme (ES0S). The methodology for
collating our environmental metrice has beenextarnally
sudited and classed as ‘excellent’.
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The transition trom CRC to ESOS and the Streamlined
Energyand Carbon Reporting (SECR] systern over the
coming year is well under way in our business. Phase 2
ESOS audits will highlight areas in our business where we
are able toimplement projects with short-term payback
viability for considaration. Qurexisting data capture
under the greenhouse gas reporting mechanism well
piaces us todeliver upon the requirernents of SECR 1n

our future reporting

Environmaental data is also captured for a number of
voluntary accreditation and reporting schemas to which
Bitfa subscribes, These include the following:

Carbon Baver
Gold

Demonstrating 12 consecutive years
of reduction in our carbonemissions
Bifta is the tirstand only certihed
company 1o achieve this

Mauntenance of best-in-sector
sustalnabilityrating based an annual
agsessment of pur environmental,
economic and soclal sustainability
practices

CIPS

LERS Demaonstrating year-on-year fleet
emissions reductions in association

withthe Freight Transport Assoclation.

BITC Platinum award for environmental

performance in benchmarking survey.

*  hitps://www.zerowsstescotland.org uk/sites/defanlt/filess

Carbon¥20impacts%200f%20recyclingX20and%20transport pdf

wwwhbifta.couk




Electric refuse vehicle at charging point

Carbon Reduction Achisvements

Curcommitment to reducing our own carbon footprintis
reflected inthe increasingly diverse range of services we
offer around recycling and recovery, including traating
organic waste via anaergbic digastion, in-vessel and open
windrow composting, harvesting hiogas for renewable
energy generation and producing secondary raw materials
from waste such as plastics and streot sweepings.

Thisyear has also seen our business commit furtherto
tackling the issue of plastic waste, announcing plans
tobuild a 37,000 tonne per annum PET plastics plant.
Processing around five tonnes of clear PET per hour, the
facility will produce a food-grade PET flake, which will
be used in the manufacture of new bottles and food trays.
This new stream of secondary raw materials not only
prevents the emissions associated with extraction of raw
materials used in the manufacture of virgin plastics, but
alsp saves ermissions in comparison to traditional waste
disposal methods.

Ourbusiness is also focused onreducing emissions
associated with transport, supporting the principlas set
outin the Government's Clean Growth Strategy.Inthe
last vear, our locomotive service in partnership with

GB Railfreight has opanad a sgcond railhub, doubling

our ¢capacity to maove waste by rail with a 75% reduction in
transport emissions in comparison to traditional

road haulags.

www hiffa.co.uk

Qur Municipal Division continuas to employ tha use of
electric vans, trialling an all electric collection vehicle
for six months in 2019. The 26 tonne vehicle RCV, fitted
with a 1.5 tonne lithium-ion battery, provided both refuse,
dry mixed recycling and organic waste collactions. Over
thesix monthtrial period, the vehicla was testedina
nurnbar of scenarios including motorway driving and
urban stop-start driving; different driving styles, and
different material payloads.
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Strategic Report
The Way We Work continued

Environment continued

GreonHouse Gas Emissions

A GHG is one that absorbs and aernits radiation within the
thermal infrarad fange, this processis the fundamental
cause of the greenhousa effect and global warming.

The UK has atarget under the Paris Agreement to reduce
global temperature increases to less than two degrees
Celsius by 2050 - in order to achieva this, the UKrnust
reduce GHG emissions by B0% on a 1990 baseline. Qur
sumnmary GHG resylts demonstrate a yaar-on-year
reduction bothin absolute numbers, and in ous catbon
intensity metric measurement as a businass,

ktneatCOye

2019 2018
Emissions from combustion of fuel
(Scapel) 124 744
Emissions from electricity, heat, steam
and cooling [Scopa 2) 31 38
Tetal Scopel & 2 emssions 766 782
Emissions intensity ratlo (CO;e {tonnes}
per smployes) 98.8 98.9
Energy Generation
Generation 2019 2018
Generation (GWh) 441 476
Carbon benefit (ktnsof CO;e) 125 167

Biffa Greenhousge Gas Emissions; Scope1 &2

1\
Scope 1

Natural Gas used for
heating up our buildings

Kerosene used for heating
& gas ol used for heating
and plant equipment

Diesal, petrol and bio-diesel used to
run our trucks and our company cars

—— e A E e o v o e e e e o e e =

T

Scope 2

Grid Electricity used
to power our business

Electricity generated from the capture

of methane at our landfills

Qutside
Methane from our of Scope
landfilis vented to
the atmosphere
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Soctal and Community Invalvement

Community volunteering

Itis important to our businessthat we encourage our
empioyees to volunteer. Beit painting a Scout hutor
clearing a community garden, Biffa's people willingly
go the extra mile to helpoutin our local communities.
Beyond giving something back to society, we believe
volunteering results tn better teamwork, motivation,
engagement and personal fulfilment for our employees,

In our Resources & Energy division, employees are
given a day each year to volunteer for a local cause.
170 employees took part in community volunteering
exercises in the last year, including painting a village
hall, truck washing, coppicing and litter picking.

Community fundraising

OurI&C division operates a formal charitable giving
scheme through which depots accrue funds for each day
with no time LTI Atthe end of the year, the funds are
donated to the charities of choice of the local depots. The
totalraised last year was a veryimpressive £698,577.

Elsewhere in the business,informal fundraising events
are held regularly. Money rajsed has been donated to
charities such as Children in Nead, Cancer Research
UK, the British Heart Foundation and Macmilian

Cancer Support.

Linked to the SHEQ campaign to tackla the issua of
peopls sleepinginbins, a team of Biffa volunteers was
invplved in a ‘'sleep out’ event, which raised over £400 for
Framework Housing Association.

Informing our communities

Through many of our Municipal contracts, we eagage
community liaison officers who visit schools and the
local community to educate on the need to recycle and
improverecycling rates.

We also host public liaison meetings at our key sitesto
keep inregular contact with community representatives
on existing and developing issues. We aim to foster good
working relationships with gur neighbours, encouraging
open dialogue and regular fgedback. Through cur
compliance strategy, we have delivered training and best

practice guidance to employees to assist with community

engagement, and have subsequently achieved a 74%
radugtionin complaints about our sites.

Bifta Award

Biffa Award is a Landfill Communities Fund schemerun
by the Royal Society of Wildlife Trustsinitsroleasan
approved environmental body Since 1997, the scherme
hasenabled Biffa toredirect g proportion of Landfill

www.hiffa.co.uk

Case study:

Changing the way
people think
about waste

Biffa Better Beaches

The issue of plastics inthe ocean has besnat the
forefront of awareness inthe UKover the last 12
months. 76 of our employees voluntesread for eight
beach cleaning events to help tackle the problem
onthe North East, North Yorkshire, North Norfolk
and South East coast lines inthelast year. Working
in partnership with Surfers Against Sewage and
Sea Shepherd UK volunteers, our teams collected

a variety of different litter types from the beaches,
including plastic packaging, fishing line, rope.
vehicletyres, balloons and disposable barbeques
And to highlight our involvement, Winston the Waste
Eater attended one event onthe North East ¢coastto
hungrily consume the results of the day's labour.

Beachcleansing in North Norfoll

Winston the Wasteater
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Strategic Report

The Way We Work continued

Environment continued

Tax liability tosupporta variety of commmunityand
environmental projecte in the vicinity of our landf{ill sites

Case study:
through the Landfill COmmunities Fund. .

AIM Histary Makers -
¥n thelasti2 rnontllls. 50 projects havs'received Iundi.ng Nationnl paralvmpic
in excess of £6.9m in aggregate from Biffa Award. Projects -
awsrded funding range frorm the replacing of chucch Herltage Trust

roofs and fitting new dancefioors, toinstalling new
playgrounds and habitat rastoration at nature reserves.

Biffa Award has also provided a number of Partnership
Scherme grants during the last year, including supporting
the Association of Indepandent Museums (AIM]History
Makets programme with a £1m grant. History Makars
will fund museurns {0 create new exhibitions that will
inspire the public through thea lives and achievements

of extraordinary historical figures who have made

a significant impact ontha industrial, scientific,
cammercial or sacial history of the UK, shapingthe world
welive intoday.

Highlights

A grant of E77,000 has funded the development of
a54sqm heritagecentrein Stoke Mandevills,the
home of the first Paralympic Games. The haritage
centra celebratesthe extraordinaryachievements
of Dr Guttmann, & doctor, psychologist and enginasr
who astablished the National Spinal Injuries Centre
at Stoke Mandeville Hospital and founded the

Paralyrapic Movement.
Future Priorities

Environmental compliance is something we will

continue to strive for and exceed. Underpinning this

willbe further focused training and best practice 7
development in areas such as odour control, landfill '

leachate management, hazardous waste docurnentation Grant fund value
and anirmal by-products regulation compliance.

Thraughout the course of the coming year, our plans for
carbon managermant and sustainability includa:

maintaining our key sustainability performance
accreditations;

developing and publishing our new comprehensive
sustainability strategy;

preparation for ES0S and SECRreporting;

expansion of our beekeeping projact at 4 number of pur
closed landiill sites; and

internal engagernent campaigns, such as 'Walkto
Work' and ATM Local History Makers

.

Herltage Centre al
Stoke Mandeville Hospital

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on
5.June 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

M:o{u,g@_'
Michael Topham

Chief Executive Dificer
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Case study:

17, 1 3 4 AIM History Makers -
tonnes HDPE delivered to UK dairy bottle National TfﬂmWﬂV
manufacturers Museum

88,673

tonnes bio-fertiliser delivered to
UK agriculture industry from AD

Highlights

Agrantof £74,500 has funded a project to explore
thelife, inspiration and inventions of Michael
Holroyd Smith, the pionesring inventor of the
electric street tramway. The permanent exhibition
in Erich, Derbyshire, explores the link betwesn the

transferable skills and characteristics of his work
and modern engineering practice.
GWh renewable energy generated

Grant fund value
94,481
tonnes glass bottles recycled into new
glass bottles
1,868
tonnes CO, emissions avoided using rail rather Miches] Holroyd Smith

than road haulage

648

tonnes coffee graounds processed in to fuel
logs delivered to new construction projects

exnbition, Crich, Derbyshire
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Corporate Governance

Chairman’s Introduction

Enhancing performance
through good governance

Governance is essential to building a successful business that
is sustainable for the longer term. Biffa is committed to ensuring

and maintaining high standards of corporate governance to enhance

performance far the protection of our stakeholders’ interests.

UK Corporate Governance Gode

The Board considers that it and the Company have
complied with the principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code (2018 Edition]) (the Code), withthe
exception of provision E.2.3. Ses Board Statements on
page 70.

Following the introduction of the new UK Corporate
Govarnance Code (2018 Edition] (the new Codel, the
Board has undertaken a comprehensive reviewoithe
activity needad to support ils pplication. The Roard
has approved a revised schedule of matters reserved for
the Board and Terms of Referencs for each Committes
toensure that we are compliant with effect from1 April
2019. We will report against the new Code in the Annual
Reportand Accounts 2020,

Changesto the Board During the Year

There havabeen a considerable numher of changes to

the Board this year. As previously reported lan Wakelin,
nelonger wished to hold a full-time executive role and
stepped down as Chief Executive Dtficer on 28 September
2018. InJine with the succession plan, wa were dolighted
to announce the appointment of Michael Topham as Chief
Executive Officer, with effect from 29 September 2018.
Michael was previously the Company's Chief Financial
Officer, havingbeeninthatrolesince 2013.
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Richard Pike was appointed as Chisf Financial Officer,

to replace Michael with effect from 28 Septamber

2018. Richard brings with him with a strong financial
background, having held senior finance and management
roles at Associated British Foods plc and latterly as the
ChiefFinancial Officer of Boparan Holdings Limited.

In addition, we appointed two new Non-Executive
Directors to the Board during the year. Caroi Chesnay
joined the Board with effect froru 12 July 2Q18. Caral is
Chaur of the Audit Committee and is a member of ths
Nemination and Remunergtion Committees.

GabBarbarojoined the Board on1January 2018. Gabis
currently the managing director of the UK husiness at
Cantrica plc [a division trading as British Gas Business)
and brings with him a wealth of financial and strategic
expertise. Gab is a mambaer of the Nomination Committee

Stakeholder Engagement

The Board recognses its responsibility to taks into
consideration the needs and concarns of our stakeholders
as part of its discussion and decisien-making process and
remains committed to open channels of communication
with ourstakehoelders.

During the year, the Executive Oirectors hield a nomber

of megetingsinthe UKand USA with both exigting and
potential institutional shareholders Furtherdatails of
our investor relations programme is described on page BO.

Future Priorities

During the coming year, the Board will continue to focus
on the progress made against our strategic priorities

and performance. In addition, we will oversee the
implementation of the new Code, and ensure that the
Company's purpose, values and strategy are aligned with
the Company’s culture,

Ken Lever

Chairman
5June 2019

wwwbiffa.co.uk



How Governance Supports Strategy

Strategic Priority

The Board's Governance Role

What We Achieved

The Board approves the Group's
strategy, reviews subseguent
progress and makes decisions
to support the delivery of

this strategy.

Announced the acquisition of
WWS,SWRand five other
smaller business acquisitions
inthe year.

Oversaw increased organic
growth through new major

contract wins, including Busy
Grow our Bees, The National Trust and
market Kingspan Group.
share
See pages 18-17 for mere information
The Board empowerslocal Invested £250,000into a

Develop
services &
infrastructure

See pages 18-18 formore information

management in each division to
oparate with relative autonomy
within a clear structured
framework to develop services
and infrastructure.

new servicetohelpimprove
the Yorkshire construction
industry's waste compliance.
Received planning approval
from Durham Gounty Council
for a £15m plastics recycling
plant near Seaham.
Developed and opened a new
s0il treatment facility in
South Wales.

Repurposed the Aldridge
materialracycling site into a
plastics processing facility.

Optimise
systems &
processes

See pages20-21 far more nformation

The Board challenges management
toensure thatthe Group's systems

and processes are optimised and
adequate ta support the Group's
plans for future growth.

Continue to review progress
inrelation to Project Fusion -
the introduction of the new
enterpriseresource
planning systam.

The tirst fully electric waste
truck was trialled in
Manchester, bringing quieter
collections and lower fuel
emissionlevels to the pity.

www biffa.coule
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Corporate Govemance

Board of Directors

The right balance of
knowledge and skills

1

KenLever
Indapendent Non-Exi C
Date of Appaintrment

28 September 2016

Cormenittee Membershipa

Natipnality
British

Relevant Skitls and Experience

Kenis a Fellow ol the Institute of Chartered
Accountants and a former pariner at
Arthuar Andersen. He has a wealth of
corporate finance experience, having
previously held board executive director
positions with Numonyx BV, Torokuns plc,
Albright and Wilson plcand Alfred
MecAlpine plc. Ken joined Xchanging ple

a6 its chiet financial ofticer. and was
subsequently appointed and served as its
chiefexceutive officer from 201110 2015.
Hewas previously a non-executive
director of Gatesby Property Group plc,
150t pic and Vega Systems plc. and served
forsix years on the UX Accounting
Standards Board between 2008 and 2012
External Appointments

Ken ischaliman of RPS Croup ploanda
non-executive diregtor of Vertu Motors plc,
Blue Prism plc and Grasham Houge plc.

Read more an Directars’
skills on pS4

Read more about our
diversity policy on p83

Committes Membership
at5.June 2019

’ Audit Committee

’ Nomination Committea
’ Remunpgration Commities
’ Committee Chairman

2

Michasl Topham

Chuef Executive Ofticer
Date of Appointment

29 September 2018

Lommitiee Membarships
None

Nationality
British

Relevant Skills and Expetience
Michaelwas appointed Chief Executive
Otticeron 29 Septernber 2018, having
previousty hald the role of Chiel Financial
Officerfrpm 2013 He was appointed tothe
Board of Bitta ploon 18 August 2016
Michaeltrained as a Chartered Accountant
with Pwi In London, and held positions in
boththeaudit and transactionservices
practices Prior toleining Biffa, he was
finance director at Greenstar UK Holdings
Limited from 2005 to 2010,

3

Righard Pike

Chief Financlal Officer
Date of Appointment

28 Septernber 2018

Committee Memberships
Nane

Kationality
British

Relevant Skills and Experience

Richard was appointed Chief Financial
Qfficeron 29 September 2018 Having
traingd as a Chartered Accountent with
Price Waterhouse he wententohold a
varistyoffl landm t
positions at Pilkington plc, Scapa Group plc
and Manchester At parts Group Latierly
Richard was the chief financialofficer of
AB Sugar, managing director of British
Sugar and group chief inancial atficer of
Boparan Holdings Limited.




4

David Martin
Indapandent Non-Exacutive Director

Date of Appointment
28 September 2016

Committes Memberships

L4 4 4

Nationality
British

Relevant Skills and Experience

David js a Chartered Management
Accountant and has significant
experience of bothdomestic and global
transportbusinesses. He held a variety of
general management and finance
positions before joining the bus industry
in 1986 Hewas involved inthe acquisition
of National Express and the successive
management buy-out, leadingte the
creation of British Bus Group Limited.
David was subsequently appointed chisf
executive of Arriva ple, one of the largest
bus and train tryansport services
organisations in Europe, a positionhe
held from 2006 to Decernber 2015, He was
previgusly a non-executive dirsctor

ol Ladbrokes pic and Arriva ple.

Davidisthe Company's Senior
Independent Director

5

Michael Avertll
Independent Non-Executive Director

Date of Appointment
28 September 2016

Cornmittee Memberships

Nationality
British

Relevant Skills and Expenience
Michael has extensive knowledge ot the
waste managerment industry, He is a Fellow
of the Chartered Institute of Waste
Management and a former chairman of

the Enviranmental Sarvices Association.
Michael held a number of senior
managementroles 1n the mdustry betore
being appointed group chief executive of
Shanks Group plcfrom 1994 to 2007 where
he oversaw the growth ot the group
Michael joined the former Board of Bitfa
Group In February 2013. He was previously
anon-gxecutive director of TDG plc, Care
UK plc and Van Gansewinkel Group in

the Netherlands.

External Appointments

Michaelis chairman of Rochford Capital Pty
in Sydney, Australia and a non-executive
director of the Saudi Investment Recycling
Companyin Riyadh, SaudiAcabia.

g

Carol Chesnay

Independant Non-E ive Director

Date of Appointment
12 July 2018

Cornmittee Mernberships

Nationality
American/British

Relevant Skills and Experience

Carol is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and
Walgs, and qualified with Arthur Andersen
in the UK

Carol was the company secretary of Halma
plc, the FTSE 100 health, satety and
environmental technology group, where
she gversaw governance, pensions, group

ingurance and ethics compliance from
2008 until Septernber 2018, Prior tothis
role, Carol was Halma's group financial
controller with oversight of all day-to-day
financial planning and reporting matters

External Appointments

Carol is a non-executive director of
Renishaw plc, where she has beenchair of
the audit comrnittea since 2012 and, since
Apr1l 2018, a non-executive director and
chair of the auditcommittee of Hunting
plc. In May 2019 Carol was also appointed a
non-executive director andchairof the
audit committee of IQE ple.

7

Bab Barbaro

Independent Non-Executive Director
Date ct Appointment

1January 2019

Committee Memberships

Nationality
Itallan/Australian

Relevant Skills and Experience

Gabis currently the managing director of
UK businees at Centrica ple (a division
trading as British Gas Business), a position
he has held since 2015 following his
promotion frorm his role as managing
director of British Gas Business Services.

Prior tothis, Gabheld a seriss of senior
management roles i strategy including
head of group strategy at Centrica plcand
chief riek officer at Snowy Hydroin
Australia. as well as strategy consulting
roles, In consultancy firms Boston
Consulting Group and Accenture.

67
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Corporate Governance

Group Executive Team

The Group Executive Team comprises the senior leadership team that
reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer and has management
responsibility for the business operations and support functions.

B8 Riffa plc Annual Report and Accounts 2018 www.biffa.couk



1

Jane Pateman
Group HR Director

Date of Appointment: December 2010

Jane joined Biffa in December 2010,
Prior tothis, she held a numbher of
senior HR director positions in FTSE
listed businesses, with significant
experience inmanaging changs.
Jane is accountabla for the people
strategy and her responsibilities
include ernployee relations, internal
comrmmunications, learning and
development, payroll, engagement
and reward and benefits.

4
Michael Topham
Chief Executive Officer
Date of Appointmaent: September 2018

Michael's full biography appears on
page 66.

7

MickDavis
Chief Dperating Officer, Resources
S&Energy

Date of Appointment: September 2010

Mickwas appointed Chaef Operating
Ofticer, Resources &Energy with
effect from April 2019, having
praviously held the role of Managing
Director of the RRET Division{rom
September 2010. He is responsible
for thedaytoday management of
the Resources & Energy Division,
the development of new facilities,
including the EfW plants. In
addition, he has oversightofthe
Group's Environmental strategy as
well as beinga trustee of the chanty
Biffa Award.

2
Richard Pike
Chief Financial Officer
Date of Appointment: September 2018

Richard's full biography appears on
page 6B.

5

David Gooding
Group IT Dirsctor

Date of Appointment: July 2011

David was appointed Group

IT Director inJuly 2011, having
worked in the waste industry

for 15 years. In his role David
isresponsible for IT services,

IT strategy, the development of
management information, projact
governance, and leading Project
Fusion, thecurrent initiativeta
improve the Group's systems and
processes, and Group innovation.

8

Jeff Anderson
Chief Operating Officer, Collections

Date of Appointment: September 2011

Jeff was appointed Chief Operating
Dificar, Collections with effect from
October 2018, having previously
held therole of Managing Director,
I&C division frorn Septamber 2011,
He1s responsible for the overall
leadership of our Collactions
operations, including our hazardous
waste business. His previous carser
was spent within B2B supply chain
and Iogistics companies, and he

has held executive board director
positions at Wincanton plc and
Securicor ple. Jeff has significant
experience inmanaging change,
turnaround management and
operational excellence in large-scala
operational businesses.

3
Roger Edwards
MD, Municipal Division
Date of Appointruent: October 2010

Roger joined Biffain JJune 2010
following the acguisition of
Greenstar UK Holdings Limited.
Prior tothis, he had previously
been managing director at Verdant
Municipal Limited and held

board positions in other waste
businesses. Rogeris responsible for
the Municipal business providing
waste collection and street cleansing
services toover 2m households and
leadingatearn of 3,400 employees.

www.biffa.couk

6

Rachael Hambrook
General Counsel & Company Secretary
Date of Appointment: Decermber 2016

Rachaelisaqualitied sclicitor and
joined Biffa in October 2016. Prior

to this, she heid a number of senior
legal and company secretariat
positionsin FTSE 100 and
international blue-chip companies
with extensive sxperience in M&A
transactions. Rachael is responsible
for the management of legal riskand
in supporting the Board in setting
and raaintaining high standards of
corporate governances.
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Corperate Governance

Leadership

Board Statements
Reguirement Board Statement FurtherInformation
Compliance The Company has applied alithe main See Report on page 70 Leadership
with the Coda pgrinciples of the Code and has complied

fuliy with its provisions except the following
provisions:

(i) provision E.2.3, which requires thechairs
of the committees to be available to answer
questions at the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) and fprall dirsctors to attend. David
Martin, who was the Interim Chair of the
Audit Committee atthetime of the AGMin
July 2018, wasunable to attend duetoa
previous engagement; and

(ii) provision B.8.2, whichrequires an
external evaluation of the Board atlesast
avery three years. With all the changes to
the Board composition last year 1t was
thought that such evaluation would be more
effectiveif undertakeninthe coming year.

BGoing Concern Basis

The Directors have reasonabla expectations
that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continua for the
foreseaabls futera and have therefora
adopted the going concern basis in preparing
the Financial Statements.

SeeNoteltothe
Financial Stataments

Viability Statemant

The Board has assessed the viability of the
Group, takinginto account the current
financial position and certain principal
nisks and uncertainties. The assessment
concluded that the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will
continue to operate effectively and mestits
liabilities as they fall due.

See page 39 of the Strategic Report

Robust assessment of the
principalrisks facing
the business

The Ditectors confirm that they have
undertaken a robust assessment of the
principal risks that face the business and
which could possibly compromise its
business strategy.

See pages 34-38 of the
Strateglc Report

Annusal reviaw of systermns
of risk management and
internal control

The Directors monitgr the Group's systams
of risk management and internal control and
have determined that, overall, thesystems
are effective and fit for their purpose.

More Information on page 890

Fair, Balanced and
Understandable

The Directors have determined that this
year's Annual Report, taken inits entirety,
gives a fair, balanced and understandable
view of the business’s current position and
provides stakeholders with the necessary
informationto fully assess the Group's
current financial position and future
prospects.

Seepage 91 of the Audit
Committee Report

Madern Slavery Statement

Refarence is made in the Directors’ Report,

Furtherdetails are contained on
the Company's website
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Role of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term long-term growth, while maintaininga balanced

success of the Group by providing eftective leadership approach torisk within a frameworkof effective controls.
and direction tothe business as a whole. The Board, Itis also responsible for corporate governance and the
with due regard tothe views of shareholders and other overall financial performance of the Group. All Directors
stakeholders, sets strategic priorities and oversees their arerequired to devate sufficient time and demonstrate
delivery ina way that enables sustainable cormnmitment to theirrola.

Roles and Responsibilities

Role Name Responsibility

Chairman KenLever The Chairman's primaryroleis tolead the Board and ensure that it operatas
gffectively. In particular, the Chairman sets the Board's agenda and ensures
that adequate time is available for discussion of all agenda items. Additionally,
the Board is keen to promote a culture of openness and debate facilitating
effsctive contributions from the Non-Executive Directors and ensuring
constructive relations between themselves and the Exscutive Directors.

Chief Michael The Chiei Executive Officer's rols is the day-to-day running of the Group's

Executive Topham businesses and includes the development and implamentation of strategy,

Officer decisions made by the Board and operational management of the Group,
supported by the Group Executive Team.

Senior David Martin The Senior Independent Director (SID], is an Independent Non-Exscutive

Independent Director of the Board, who provides advice and additional supportand

Non-Executive experience tothe Chairman and performs an intermediary role tothe other

Director Directors, where necessary. The SID will lead the annual appraisal and review of

the Chairman’s performance and be available to shareholders if they haveany
concerns that hava not been resolved through the normal channels of
communication with the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, orif it is
inappropriate for themto do so.

Non-Executive Michael Averill,
Directors Gab Barbaro,
Carol Chesney

Allthe Non-Executive Directors weredeemed independent on appointment and
continueto be independent in accordance with the Code.

Non-Executive Directors are responsible for bringing an external perspective,
sound judgement and objectivity tothe Board's deliberations and decision
making, and to support and eonstructively challenge the Executive Directars
usingtheir broad range of experience and expertise. They are alsorequired to
monitor the delivery of the agreed strategy within the riskmanagement
framework set by the Board and, amongst other things, review the relationship
with the Company's External Auditors within the Audit Committee; and review
the rernuneration of, and succession planning for, the Board.

More detalled background information on each Non-Executive Director canbe
found in their biographies on pages 86-67. Each Non-Executive Director is
appointed for an initial fixed term of three years, subject to annual re-slaction
by shareholders Their appointment texrm may be renewed by mutual agreement.

The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors meet at least twice a year without
the Executive Directors being present.

Company Rachael
Secretary Hambrook

The Cornpany Secretary acts as Secretary tothe Board and all the Board's
Committees and 1s responsible for supporting the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the delivery of the corporate governance agenda. All Dirsctors have
accesstothe advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretaryisresponsible for ensuringthat the Board operatesinaccerdance with
the Company's corporate governance frameworkand that there are good
information flows to the Board and 1its Committees. The sppointment and
removal of the Company Secretary 19 a matter for the Board as a whole.

www.biffa.couk
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Corporate Bovernance

Leadership continued

Board Committees

The Board has established thiee Board Committees,

tha Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees,
and whose members are entirely comprised of Non-
Executive Directors. Each Committes has its own Terms
of Reference approved by the Board which arereviewed
annually, and are available to view on tha [nvestors
saction of the Company’s website at www biffa.co.uk.

Mambership of each Committes is determinsd by

the Board onthe recommendation of the Nomination
Committee. The membership, roles and duties discharged
inthe year ended 29 March 2019 for each Corarnittes

is detailad in their respactive Committee raports on
pages 82-106.

Executive Management Committees

The Executive Directors are supported the Group
Exaocutive Team and by several executive management
committees which meet regularly and help the Executive
Directorsdischarge their duttes. These include reviews
with the senior and divisional management teams
covering areas such as capital axpenditure, investmant

Board and Committee Structura

wpportunities, major contracts, risk managemant and
ragulatory compliance. The Board and Committes
structure is set out below.

EVP Committee

The Board has established an EVP Commtttee in order

to provide an independent review of the EVP disputa
proceedings, as detailad in Note 33 on paga 173, of the
Financial Staterments, and makes recommendations to
the Board. The Independent Non-Executive Directors Gab
Barbaro, Carol Chesney, Ken Lover and David Martin, who
have nofinancialinterest intheresult of the dispute, are
the members of the Cornmittee.

The Group Executive Team

The Group Executive Team comprises tha sen:or
leadership team, whose biographies are datailed on

page B9. The Group Executive Team is respansible for the
day-to-day running of the business The Group Executive
Team meats monthly and relavant matters are reported
to Board meeatings by tha Chle! Executive Officar and, as
appropriate, tha Chief Financial Officer.

Audit Committee

Reviews the integrity, adequacy
and effectiveness of Biffa's
system of internal control and risk
management, and the Integrity

of Bitfa's financial reporting,
whistleblowingand anti-bribery
and corruption obligations.

See more on pages 88-91

Remuneration
Committee

Sets, reviews and recommends
Blifa's gverall Remuneration
Policy and strategy and monitors
thairimplementation

Seemora on pages 92-106

Nomination Committee

Evaluatesand makes
recommendations regarding Board
and Cominittes composition,
succession planning and Directors’
potential conflicts of interest.

Seemore on pages 82-86

s
Lxecntive:

Disclosure Cormmittee
Reviews all material
Regulatory News Service {RNS)
announcements required undar
the Listing Rules.

Risk Management
Committee

Reviews and assesses risks facing
Biffa and recommends mitigating
actions to the Group Executive
Team Assures performanceof
riskmanagement structure and
riskappetite.

Investment Committee
Reviews all significant capital
axpenditure potential acquisitions
and dispasals, major contracts,
tenders and property transactions.
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Reinforcing a Healthy Culture

Established reporting mechanisms within the corporate governance framework and
direct engagement are key to Board aversight of cultural matters, underpinned by our
values, Be safe, Be innovative, Be customer focused, Be a team player and Be accountable

and the BBP five pillars.

Risk
Management

Biffa's risk appetite in the areas
of Health & Safety, regulatory

and environmental risks is low.
and it dedicates significant
resources and focus, to manage
and monltor risks on a daily basis
via our Internal Audit team and
established netwark of Risk
Champions whoare embedded

in each division/function. The
Audit Committee recelves regular
updates onriskmanagement and
regularly reviews the keyrisks In
the business.

Ethics,
Whistleblowing,
Fraud, Bribery

Employaes canreportincidents
of wrongdoing through both
internal and external mechanisms,
including an independent hotline
operated by Satecall for reporting
suchmatters enenamedar
anonymous basis The Audit
Committee, regularly monitor
and review the company policies,
incidents and trends arising from
any suchincidents and provide
the Board with updates.

Listening
to our Eraployees

Employee engagement is measured
through the annval Employee
Engagement Surveyrunby Aonon
behalf of the Company. Questions
allow employees to sharae their visws
onkey topics, which provide valuable
insight in respect af engagement

and ¢ulture. From the overview of
key finding presented to the Board
improvement areas are identified and
action plans developed by aur network
of Employee Engagement Champions
to address the priarity issues.

With the appointment of the SID as
the deslgnated Director for workforce
engagement the Board willhave

the banetitof further employee

A number of the non-financial KP1s
and adherence to Group policies
allowtrends and changes inthe
gverarching cuiture to be monitored,
such as Health & Satetyand
employee engagement Inaddition,
our annual communicatlons plan
includes management conferences
and employee roadshows to engage
face to face withouremployees
and seek feedback and respond
toquestions.

and Culture

Allannual bonus schemes are
directlylinked to the annual Group
BBPtargets which include the
results of the annual employee
engagement surveyand the Health &
Safety improvement targets, aswell
as behavlours underpinned by our
five values.

engagement feedback.
monitnrg
culture
Measuring Aligning Promoting the
our Culture Remuneration Buccess of the Company

The Directors in conducting Board
business and taking decislons at
the Board act in way that is most
likely to promote the success of
the Company for the benefit ol its
mermbers as a whole,buthaving
due regard and taking into account
thelikely short and long-term
consequences of any decision on
the Companyand its business,
theinterests of all the Company's
stakehgolders, including employees,
and the impact on the community
and environment in which the
Company conducts its business.

Intaking therecent decisionto
develop the new PET facility in
Seaham, the Board had due regard
and toak intoaccount all of the
above, especially the environmental,
employment and community
benefits and opportunities of
developing the facility atSeaham.

www.biffa.couk
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Corporate Governance

Leadership continued

Board Meetings

The Board has ragular mesetings. They met formally nine
times duringthe year, with additional Board conference
calls held between the scheduled Board meetings as and
when circumstances required it to meet at short notice
Consideration and decisions taken by the Board have
included the following key matters:

«  Approvalof the appointments of the Chief Executive
Ofticer, Chief Finangial Officer and the appointment of
two Non-Executive Directors, onse being the Chair of
the Audit Committes.

» Approval of the 2019/20 Budget.

» Reviewand approval of the Group's strategy.

« Approval ofthe Biffa plc 2018 Sharesave Plan.

+ Approvalofrecommendation from the EVP Cornmitiee
to appeal the decision of the First Tier Tax Tnnbunal
regarding the EVP Dispute.

- Approval of the provisional and interim results.
pre-close trading statements.

» Approval of the acquisitions of Weir Waste and SWR.

The Board has approved an annual calendar of

agenda items to ensure thatall matters are givendus
consideration and arereviswed at the appropriate point
inthe regulatory and financial cycles.

It is acknowledged that there may be unforeseen
circumstances which prevent a Director from attending
ameeating. Insuch a case the Director would be expected
toreview thameeting papers and provide cornments to
the Chairman, Committee Chair or Company Secretary to
ensurethat they are raised at the meeting.

The Directors' attendanse records al the Board meetings
held during the year are shown in the table opposite;
attendance records at Commuittes meetings are detailed
1n the raspective Committee Reports. Directors are
provided with appropriate documentation approximately

one waekin advance of each Board or Committee maating.

For each scheduled Board meating the papers include a
trading update, inancial performance, market update
and papers where a decision or approval is requirad

74  Bitta plc Annua! Report and Accounts 2019

Non-Executive Ditectors are also encouraged to
commmunicate directly with senior management betwean
Board mestings. Members of the Group Exacutive Team
are invitad to attend at least one Board mesting each year
topresent an update on the performance and forward
focus of their specific area(s] of responsibility.

Should any Dirsctor judge it necessary tosesk
independent legal advice about the performance of theiy
duties with the Company, they are entitled to do so at
the Company's expense. Directors also have access to
tha advice and services of the Company Secretary who
is responeible for advising the Board on all governancae
matters and ensuring that Board procedures are
complied with

Mestings betwean the Non-Executive Directors, without
the presence of the Executive Directors, are scheduted
inthe Board's annual programme. During the year,
Non-Executive Directors rmet on two occasions without
the presence of the Executive Dirgctors. These meetings
provide the Non-Exacutive Directors with a forum in
whichtoshare experiences and discuss wider business
topics, fostering debate in Board and Committee meetings
and strengthaning working relationships.

Board Meeting Attendance 2018/18
Board meetings

Director attended/held
Michael Averill 15715
Gab Barbaro! q/4
Carol Chesney® 10/112
KenLever 15715
David Martin 13715
Richard Pike® a/8
Michael Topham 14/15%
lan Wakelln? B/S

1 Appointedwitheffectfrom 1 January 2018.

2 Appointed with effect from 12 July 2018

3 Carolwasunabletoattend the Board call on 25 Februacy 2019 due
tothemeeting being called at shoit notice which conflicted witha
priorengagament

4 David was unable to attend the Board calls on 15 August 2018
and 22 March 2019 dua to the meatings beingcelled at short notice
which conflicted with prior engagements,

b Appointed with effectirom 29 September 2018,

& Michasl was unabletc attend the Board call on 28 August 2018
due tothemeetingbeing called at short notice which conflicted
with a pnoar engagement

7 Rasgned witheftectfrom 28 Ssptember 2018.
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Matters Reserved for the Baard

In order to ratain control of key decisions and ensure
that there 1s a clear division of responsibilities between
the Board and the running ot the Company business, the
Board has a formal schedule of mattersreserved for its
decision. These reserved matters include Group strategy
and structure, governance and regulatory compliance,
financial reporting, major capital commitments, major
contracts and agreements, internal controls, significant
remuneration changes, stakeholder engagement and

Board Activities during 2018/19

Strategy, Businass Performance and

Capital Investment

« Divisionupdates

« Approved the Company's corporate strategy

« Considered and approved the acquisitions of SWR
and WWS

« Approved the Investor Relations strategy

- Approved the tender of a municipal bid

= Project Fusion update

» Health & Safety update

+ Considered Brexit preparations

People and Culture

» Approved the Nomination Committee's candidate
recommendations for the roles of Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Qfficer and the two
Non-Executive Directors

» Approved the Company's Modern Slavery
Statement

= Approved the Biffa pls 2018 Sharesave Plan

» Considered and noted the letter of resignation from
Ian Wakelin

« Considered a proposal on Group pensions

+ Approved the Cornpany's Gender Pay Gap
statemant

Inadditionto the above, at each Board meeting thereare
standing items, which include:

+ reviewand approval of the previous minutss;

+ Bopard Committes updates to the Board;

= statusupdate on any matters outstanding
from previous meetings;

+ report from the Chief Exacutive Officer;

+ report from the Chief Financial Officer;

« Investor Relations report; and

» ratification and approval of Biffa Group
GCompany minutes.

www.biffa.co.uk

material corporate transactions (including acgquisitions
and disposals]. The formal scheduleisreviewed
annually to gnsure that it remains fit for purpose and
sets the parameters for management and expectation
for internal controls.

During 2019, the Board reviewed the formal scheduls

of matters, which is available at www.biffa.co.uk, and
included cartain revisions, toensurethatitisinline with
the new Code.

Finance

Approved the 2018/19 budget

Reviewed the2018/20 budget

Reviewed and approved the interim and final
dividend recommendations

Reviewed theinterim and full dividend
recommendations

Reviewed and approved the preliminary and
interim results announcements

Reviewed and approved the Pre-Close Trading
Statement

Approved the re-appointment of the Auditors
Approved the preliminary resuits roadshow
presentation

Governance, Compliance and Risk

Reviewed and approved the2018 Annual Report
and Accounts and Notice of AGM

Reviewed and approved theschedule of matters
reserved for the Board and the Terms of Reference
to the Board Committess

Approved the2019/20 Board and Board Committes
prograrnmes and calendar

Approved therevised Investment Commitiee
Terms of Reference

Approved Carol Chesney's appointment as the new
Chair of the Audit Comruittee

EVPdispute update

Received updates on the new Code

Approved a new beard packs software supplier
Considered the Board and Board Committees
evaluation questionnaire
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Corporate Governance

Effectiveness

Indapendence and Conflicis of Interast

The Board is currently comprisad of five independent
Non-Executive Directors and twa Exscutive Dirsctors
and we theretore comply with the independence
requiraments of the Code. However, theindependence
of our Non-Exscutive Directorsis reviewed annually
by the Nomination Corarmittes.

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board
may authorise any actual or potential confliets of
interest that may arise and imposge limits or conditions
as appropriate. Each Director provides the Company
Secratary with information regarding any actusl or
potential interasts that may conflict with thoseof tha
Company, such as other external directorshaps,and any
other potential intarests that each thinks maycausea
conflict requiring prior Board authorisation onan annual
basis. li the circumstances of any of these disclosed
interests change, the relevant Digector is required to
advise the Company Secretary promptly.

Any decision of the Board to anthorise a conflict of
interest, whether matter-specific or situational,isonly
effective if it is agreed without the participationof the
conflicted Director(g) in the decision, and in making
such a degision, as always. the Directors mustactina
wavy they consider in good faith will be most likely to
promote tha success of the Company. The Company has
establishad a procedure wheraby actual or potential
conflicts of interest ara registered. These ara reviewad
annually by the Board toensure that the authorisation
granted to the Directors, and any conditions attached to
therm, are appropriate for the relevant iatter loremain
authorised and the appropriate authorigationis sought
prior to the appointment of any new Director orif a new
conflictarises.

Currently the only registered potantial conflictis
Michael Averill’s non-exacutive directorship of the
Saudi Investment Recycling Company in Saudi Arabia
registered on the S March 2018.

Board and Board Committee Parformance Evaluation
The Code recommends that an evaluation of the
effectiveness ofthe Board and its Committeesshould be
undertaken externally every thres years and internally
intheintervening years. This year, although the
evaluation should have begn undertaken externally,

as described on page 70 of this report, contraryto the
Code the Chairman and the Company Secretary have
facilitated an internal evaluation of Board petformance
and that of the three Board Committeses. It is intended

to undertake an externally facilitated evaluation of

the Board in the coming year. The intarnal evaluation
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examined the level of 5kills, knowledge and experience
which involved all Directors responding to self-
evaluation questionnaires, which included the following
areas: Board/Committee structure; conduct of meatings;
corporata strategy and planning; governance; risk
management and internal controls; financial planning:
measuring and monitoring parformance; and investor
relations The questionnaires were svaluated following
which the Board confirms that ail Directors continue to
be effective and demonstrated a commitment to their
roles and the boardroom culture was found to be effective
and conducive in creating a positive environment for
participation and challenge by the Non-Executive
Dirgctors. The review identified some opportunitias

for the Board as follows: [i)toreview the formatand
length of Board papers; (ii) toreview the process for
cornmunication of material developments between
scheduled Board meetings; and (iii} 10 continueto
develop the Directors greater understanding of the views
of shareholders.

Dirgctors' Induction, Training and Development

Upon appointment, all Directors receive an induction on
their duties and responsibilities as Directors of a publicly
quoted company. The induttion process also comprises

a comprehensive programme which includes meetings
with all Directors, mermbers of the Group Exacutive Team,
the Company Secretary and heads of functions. Kay site
visits are also incorporated into the programmaand
underiaken to mest business management and develop
greater commarcial awareness of the Group; these visits
continue throughout tha year.

Toupdate the Directors’ skills, knowledge and familiarity
withthe busingss,they participated in a number of site
visits during the year, as putlined on page 78. During these
visits thaey recelved brisfing sessions from tachnical
axperts, allowing them to ask questions, lsarn about

the business and spend time with gifferent teams and
individuals to ohserve and experience firzst hand how the
culture and valuesare embedded across the Company.

Annual Re-election of Directors

Allof the current Directorsare standing for re-election
and,in the cases of Richard Pike and Gab Barbara, for
election at the forthcoming AGM. Following the annual
evaluation of the Board and its Committees, all Diractors
standing for ye-election continue to demonstrate
comraitrment to the role and have recent and ralevant
experience and the skillsrequired for the Board to
discharga its responsibilities, as outlined in each of their
biographiss set out at pages B6-52.

wwu.biffa.couk



Board Induction in Action

Carol Chesney

On acceptancs of her appointment, Carol followed

a tailored induction programme.

Carol Chesney with Mick Davis, CO0 Resources & Energy at Poplars AD Plant.

The Business

In order to understand the business in greater depth,
Carol held induction meetings with the CED, CFQ, heads of
each division, the General Counsel & Company Secretary,
Group IT and HR Directors and Head of SHEQ. In addition,
as part of herrole as Chair of the Audit Committea Carol
held meetings with the Head of Risk & Internal Audit,
Director of Group Finance and wider stakeholders
including the External Auditors.

Carol alsoundertook a numbar of site visitsas part of her
induction, including tours of Edmonton MRF in July 2018
and Poplars AD plant and Aldridge MRF in October 2018
During these visits Garol received presentations from

the sits managers and had an oppaortunity for discussion
and engagement with thalocal teams in order togainan
insightintothe operational requirements needed torun
such sites.

Turther information on the Board's site visit to Edmonton

MRF and the Westmill Land#ill site can be found on
page 78.

www.biffa.coulk

Culture and Values

Aspart of herinduction, Carol discussed the Company's
culture and its values with the Group HR Director to
understand how these fit within the Company's
strategic plan.

The Board and Governance

Each Director, ingluding Carol, on thejr appointment
recelves a Corporate Governance Booklet that includes
detailed information onthe Company’s corporate
governance framework, internal control and risk
management processes, Directors’ statutory duties and
obligations, and a comprehensive suite of induction
materials, which eomprise: Group strategic plan;
financial infarmation and trading updates, recent
brokers' notes; risk registers; Gzoup policies; Groupand
business structure; statutory documents of the Company;
Board and Caommittee calendar; Board and Committes
programmaes for the year, and Board and Committee
papars, minutes and other reference documents covering
the prior 12-month period.
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Corporate Governance

Effectiveness continued

Site Visits

Site visits give the Board key insights into the business; at least one
Board meeting each year is held at a location cutside the head office
at High Wycombe to give the Directors an opportunity to review

operations and meet local employees.

Baoard site visit to Edmonton MRF

Westmill Landfill Site

InJanuary 2019, the Board visited Westmilllandfll
sitein Ware to review ita operation. This consisted ot

a sitatour of the disposal area, the snil treatmant and
compostingarea, thaleachats treatment plantand
landfill gas powered generation engines. Thelandfill
sitehas been operational since the1980's andisone the
of the busiestland{ili sites in the country, accapting
around 500,000 tonnas per annum of wastse.

The Bpard recaived an update on the strategic plans

for the Landfill and Soil Treatment and Compasting
busingsses which form part of the Respurces &Energy
division and was shown the growth plans for the next iew
years including the diversification of service offeringas
well as the continued need for landfill in the UK
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Edmonton MRF

In January 2019 the Bpard visited the Edmonton MRF
whera the site operates 24/7 and processas 1n excess of
5,000 tonnes of dried recyclable material every week, For
many membeis of the Board this was the tirst timne they
nhad visited a MR¥. The Buazd was given & prasantation
covering thainstallation of the facility at the site, its
development over the last 10 ypars and its performance.
The presentationwas tollowed by a tour of the facility
whila the plant was in full aperation, allowing the Board
an opportunity tosee the different types of separation
syetems used to sort the materials into their designated
product streams hefora being shipped for reprocessing.
The Board was impressed with the scale and complexity
of the operation,butalsoshowed aninterestinths
banefit this type of facillty brings to the area and the
environment, intarms oflocal employment and the
voluma of material the faciiity can process

Boeard site visit to Westmill Landfill Site

wwwbiffa.couk



Accountability

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for monitoringthe
Group's systam of internal control and risk management
and for carrying out areview of its effectiveness. In
discharging that responsibility, the Board canfirms that
it has established the procedures necessary to apply

the provisions of the Code, including clear operating
proceduras, linas of responsibility and delegated
authority. These procedures are regularly reviewed by the
Board. Business performance is managed closely and the
Board and the Group Executive Team hava established
processes, as part of thenormal good inanagement of the
husiness, to monitor:

- strategic planachievement, through aregularreview
of progress towards strategic objectives;

+» the maintenance ofinsurance cover toinsure allrisk
areas of the Group;

« financial performance, within a comprehensive
financial planning and accounting framework,
including budgeting and forecasting, financial
reporting, analysing variances against planand
taking appropriate managementaction;

» rapital investment and asset managemant
performance, with detailed appraisal, authorisation
and post-investment teviews; and

+ thatthe principal risks facingthe Group are being
identified, evaluated and appropriately managed.

The Board is supported by the Audit Committeein
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's risk process
and internal control systems. The system of internal
control is designed to manage, rather than gliminate, the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and it must
berecognised thatitcanonly provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. Arobust assessment of the principal risks faced by
the Companyhas been undertaken by the Board,

The Executive Directors, with the assistance of the
Finance function, are raspansible for the appropriate
maintenange of iinancial records and processes.
Thisensures thatall financialinformationis

relevant, reliable, inaccordance with applicable

lews and regulations, and distributed both internally
and externally in a timely manner. Areview of the
consolidation and Finanecial Statements is completed
by the Executive Directors to ensurethat the financial
position and results of the Group are appropriately
recorded, circulated to members of the Board and
published where appropriate. All financial information
published by the Group is 8ubject tothe approvalof the
Board, on therecommendation of the Audit Committee.

wwwhiffa.couk

Risk Appetite

The Company's approach to risk appetite has been
developed in line with the Code. By clarifying the type
and level of riskitis willing totake inorder toachieve
1ts strategic objectives, the Company aims to support
consistent, risk-informed decision making across

the Group.

The Campany’s risk appetite has been incorporated
intotherisk management framework and the Audit
Comrmittee monitors whetheritis operating within that
appetite through a review of a series of agreed metrics
and a review of the principal risks.

Risk Management Framework

Alullreview of the principal risks was cormpletsd in
September 2018 for our interim reporting. This exercise
was undertaken again at the year-end. Details of the
process the Board has in place te identity, evaluate and
manage principal risks can be found in the risk section
on pages 34-38 of the Strategic Report. This process has
beenin place for the period under review and up tothe
date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.

In addition, we monitor the effectiveness of therisk
management framework and internal control systemson
an ongoing basis. Nosignificant failings or weaknesses
have been idsntifiad.

Further datail onthe process for monutoring the
effectiveness of our risk management frarmeworkand
control environment can be found in the Audit Committae
Report on page 90.
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Corporate Governance

Shareholder Engagement

The Board is committed to maintaining open channels of Shareholder Engag

comnmunication with its shareholders and to continue to Both the Executive and Non-Executive Directors meat

strengthen further dialogue withits majn stakeholiders. shareholders and prospective shareholders, both

Itis importantthat shareholders understandthe institutional and private, on a regular basis.

Company strategy and objectives, and for the Corapany

toreceive shareholders feedback and constcer the issues Duringtha year the Executive Directors, assistad by the

and questionsraised. Investor Relations team, have held meetings in thea UK
and USA with both existing and potential institutional

Cormmunication with sharaholders, investors and sharghelders, from countries including Canada, South

analysts is an ongoing process throughout the year. This Afnica, Germany, France, Australia and Denrnark,

includes regular scheduled Tnvestor Relations avents, providing insightinto the developmant of the business

results presentations and investor roadshows, one-to-one and its progress.
and group meetings with Executive Directors, hosting

analyst daysand site visits, as well as regular updates Dur tutyre annual shareholder communication strategy
to the market. ensuresthat wamaintain anopen and regulardialogue
with our sharehplders to heipthem undarstand how we
Results and other news releases such as acquisitions, plan to grow thabusiness and execute our strategy.
contract wins and new strategicinitiatives are published
via theLondon Stock Exchange RNS and on the The Non-Executive Directors also play s significant role
Company's Investor website at www.bitia co.uk. indevelopingrelationships with our investors. The Board
receives regular updates on the views of our shareholders
In addition, the Company's website acts as a good and analysts through brietings and in market reparts at
medium through which news and business developmoents  each Board meeting, from Investor Relations, the CEQ,
can be reported including key financial calendar the CFO and the Company brokers, which include:

information, details of live wabeasting services for key
presentations and the source of past key presentations
and announcemsnts.

« shareprice performance monitoring;

+ review of shareholder performance and sector
analysis,

+ composition of the shareholder register;

+  peergroup camparison; and

»  professional and external advizer feedback.

Qur Non-Executive Directors are also availableto meex
sharsholdersif they wishtoraiseissues withoni the
Executive Directors prasent.

Shareholder Activities During the Year

July2018

= AGM
»  Analystsite visitto Edmonton MRF

+ J.P.Morgan Business
Services conterence London

»
»

August2o18

+ Investorroadshowsin
New York and Chicago, USA

+ Full-year results presentation
+ Full-year results roadshow London
= Full-yearresults roadshow Edinburgh
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Shareholders by number of shares (%)

Annual General Meeting
The ABMis animportant forum for shareholders,
particularly privateshareholders, tohear more aboutthe

i;;‘_}goo 57 48 general development of the business. The Chairmanand
501-5,000 the Chairsof the Auditand Remuneration Committees
5,001-100,000 144 will be present at the AGM allowingshareholders an
100.001-500,000 opportunity to ask questions, engage with members of the
500.001-999,399 488 Board and learn mare about the Compan
Y.
163 The 2018 AGM will will be held on 10 July 2019 at the
10 offices of Linklaters LLP in London. Full information
is guntained in the Notice 01 AGM, which wassent to
shareholders with this Annual Report at least 20 working
days prior to the date of the meeting, and is available on
the Company’s wehsite at www.bifta.coulk.
Shareholders by type (%)
005 01 To encourage shareholder participation the Company
Public limited company we will again offer electronic proxy voting through both
?.iundm:s:::mpanv 62 the registrars’ wabsite and, for CREST members, via the
Other CREST service. Voting at the AGM will be conducted by
Bank 101 way of a poll; the results will be announced through the
RNSshortlyafter the conclusion ofthe meeting and will
be available onthe Company's website.
734
»  (1Pre-Close Trading Staternent
and calls with investors
= Smaliand Mid Cap company + (3Pre-Close Trading
investor conference J P.Morgan Statemant and calls
London with investors
= Private client fund manager + Investorroundtabls
roadshowsin Leeds and discussion hosted
Manchester = BerenbergIRconference London by HSBC
> » >

November 2018

+ Half-yearresults presantation

« Half-yearresults roadshow London

+ Half-ygar results roadshow Edinburgh
+ JPM Best of British conference London

www.biffa.co.uk

« Investor roadshowsin New York,
Bostonand Chicago, USA

« Private client fund manager
roadshow Birmingham
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Carporate Governance

Normination Committee Report

Areas of Focus for 2019/20
The Commuattee’s priorities for 2019/20 will be:

+ board and executive sutcession planning; and
+ talentmanagement andleadershipskills for
future Executive Directors.

Attendance at Nomination Committee
Meetings

Comurnittee meelings

Members attended/held
Kan Lever 8/8
Michsael Averill 8/8
Gab Barbare! 1/1
Carol Chesney® a/4
Devid Martin 8/8
Jan Wakelin? 5/6

1 Appointed with affect from1 January 2019
2 Appainted withaHect frem 12 July 2018
3 Resigned with effect from 28 September 2018

Daax Shareholder

1 am pleasad to presant the Nomination Commitiee
[Committee] Report on hehalf of the Board.

The composition of the Beard has evolved durning the
[ast year. As praviousiy reported, fan Wakelin stepped
down as Chiet Executive Otticer in September 2018 and
was replaced by Michael Tophara. Richard Fike joined
the Board in September 2018 as Chief Financial Officar,
replacing Michael.

In addition, we welcomed two new Non-Exaecutive
Directors. Carol Chesney joined the Board on 12 July
2018 and was subsegquently eppointed Chair of the Audit
Cormmittee, while Gab Barbarojoined the Board an
1January 2019 and brings with him a wealth of finanacial
and strategic expertisa.

Full details of the sgarch processes arg contained on
paga 85.

Ken Lever
Chairman
5June 2019
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How dpas the (ommittee ensure that there

are the right akills, experience and behaviours
ontheBoard?

Duringthe year, the Committeereviewad the
camposition of the Board and identified a skills gap
that resulted in the appointment of Gab Barparo in
January 2019. The Cormmittea continues to monitor
the composition of tha Board and jts Caommitteas to
ensurs thatit hasthe breadth of experisnce and skill
set to ensure effactive governance and ovarsight of
the strategic and significant operational decisions af
the business both now and in the future.

What is the Committae’s approach to inclusion
and diversity?

The Committee is fully committed to inclusionand
diversity and agrees with the recomrendations
made in the Hampton-Alexander and Parker
Reviews, tespectively, Further datails on Board
diversity canbe found on the opposite pags.

How has the Committee idered |
planning and theleadership talent pipeline?

The Committee continues to review theleadership
talent pipeline gnd succession plans for the Board,
and senior management and the designated short
and long-term caretakers for sach Board and senior
rola, focusing on resolving key areas of vulnerability.
The Comrnittee takes an active interest inthe quality
and development of talent and capabilities within
Biffa, ensuringthat appropriate opportunities arein
place to develop high-performing individuais.

www.biffa.couk



The Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated oversight of the leadership
needs and succession planning for the Board tothe
Committee, to ensurethatthe Group has the best talent to
performetiectively nowandinthe future.

Memberghip of the Committee and Attendance

The Committes membership comprises the Chair as
Committee Chair and four Non-Executive Directors.
The Committes met eight times during the yearand ths
attendance record at meetings held during the yearis
shownon the previous pags.

The Company Secretary attends all the Committee
rmeetings as Secretary to the Cornmittee and in addition
the Chiei Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer
andthe Group HR Director attend by invitation.

Key Responsibilities

The Committee's rasponsibilities are setout insts
Terms of Reference on the Company’s website at
www.biffa.co.uk,and include:

= keeping underreview thesize,balanceand
composition [evaluating the balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board and
its Committees, and making recommendations tothe
Board on any desired changes;

= overseeing thesuccession planning for the Board and
senior managementt, including the1dentification and
assessment of potential candidates and making
recommendations to the Board;

+ leading the process for Board appointments by
identifying and nominating, for the approval oithe
Board, candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when
theyarise;

* reviewingDirectors' external commitments and
time available to discharge their responsibilities
effectively;

* keepingunderreviewtheleadership needs ofthe
Groupinrespect of both its Executive Directors and
othersenior management; and

+ reviewingtheindependence of Directors.

Ag¢tivities During the Year

+ Working with Odgers Berndtson inpreparinga role
specification for a Chief Financial Officerand a
Non-Executive Directorslsading te the appointment of
Richard Pike and Gab Barbaro respectively.

« Recommending the appointments of Carol Chesney as
Chair of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Committee; Michael
Topham as Chief Executive Officer; Richard Pikeas
Chief Financial Officer, and Gab Barbaro as a Non-
Executive Director and member of the the Committee.

www.hiffa.couk

- Reviewingthe structure, diversity, size and
cormposition of the Board.

+ ReviewingBoard succession planning,

Undertaking the annual review of Director

independence 1niine with Committee Terms of

Reference.

+ Reviewingexscutivesuccessionplansandtalent
development.

« Reviewingthe development plans of the Executive
Directors.

= Reviewingthe Committee Terms of Reference and
ravisinginline with therequirements of the new Code.

Board Composition and Skills

The Board considers that the current membership of

two Executive Directors, a Non-Executive Chairman

and four independent Non-Exacutive Directors is the
right blend of commercial and governance experience,
independence and challenge and that the diverse range
of skills and backgrounds of the Directors prevents any
undue individual or collectiveinfluence over the Board's
decision making.

Board Diversity

The Company fully recognises the benefit of

diversity, including gender and ethnic diversity,

when the Committee is searching for candidates

for Board appointments The Board agrees with the
recommendations of the Women on Boards Davies Reviaw
(published October 2015}, the FTSE Women Leaders
Hampton-Alexander Review {published November

2018) and the Report into Ethnic Diversity ot UK

Boards Parker Review [published October 2017 ) and is
committed to diversity on the Board, Whilst noting the
recommendations of the Reviaws, our policy is toappoint
the best possible candidata considered on merit and
against objective criteria, rather than set objectives on
gender that may deflect from achieving this fundamental
target oneach gccasion. Subject to theserequiraments
the Cornmittee has an ongoing commitment to seek
female and ethnic representationat Board level.

Further details ondiversity and inclusion are setoutin
the Way We Work section on page 49 of this report.
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Corporate Governance

Nomination Committee Report continued

Diversity Overview
Board Skills and Attributes
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Michael Avesill LS . * * * * - *
Gab Barbaro » . - » * . * *
Carol Chesney * [ * * * * .
Ken Lever - - » * * . * »* L
David Martin . * * * +* * * -
Richacd Pike - - * * L * . . *
Michael Topham - * L 3 * * *
Composition of the Board Length of Tenure

Chairman 0-2yesrs

Executive Duecty rs 1 2-4 years

Non-Executive Directors

3
4
4

New Board Members Average tenure across the business
Age Gender

40-49 Ferale

50-59 Msle 1

60-68

b/ years

Average age
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14%

Ferale
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Board Appointments Process

The Board has adopted a formal and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors to the
Board. This procedure includes the evaluation of the
balance of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
of the Board by the Committee to gnsure that any new
appointments complement or address any shortfallsin
any oftheseareas.

The Committeeensures that the selection processis
rigorous and transparent and, if appropriate, it will
appoint a professional external search firm. Candidates
from a widerange of backgrounds that meet therole
specification will ba considered and all appointments
will be mads entirely on merijt, with due regard to the
benefits of diversity onthe Board, which includes, but is
not limited purely to, gender.

Chief Executive Dfficer Appointment

Following the announcement that Ian Wakelin was to
step dawn from the Board, the Cornmittee concluded
that, inline with the current succession plan, the best
candidate toreplace lan would be Michael Topham.
Michael was appointed to therole of Chief Executive
Officer an 29 Septamber 2018

Chief Financial Officer Appointment

As partof the Committee's succassion planning
discussions, it wasagreed that a search be undertaken by
Odgers Berndtson, which specialiges 1n the recruitment
of high-calibre Board and Executive Directors, to identify
apotential candidate for the Chief Financial Oificer role.

The search was initiated by the Chairman with support
from the Company Secraetary Regular oversight of

the process and the progressin identifying suitable
candidates was exercised by the Committee,

The pool of suitable candidates was reduced to a short-
list. Briefing reports onthe short-listed candidates were
reviewed and candidates met with key Board members, [t
became clear to the Committee that Richard Pike was the
most suitable candidate t0 succesd Michael Topham.

The Committae recommended to the Board the
appointmant of Richard Pike as the new Chief Financial
Officer, which received unanimous Board approval,
and on 26 July 20181t was announced that Richard Pike
would join Biffa on 10 September 2018 asan Executive
Director and take up the role nf Chiei Financial Officer
on 28 September 2018.

wwwbiffa.co.uk

Naw Non-Executiva Director

As previously reported, following s review of the Board’s
composition and skill set, the Committee looked to
strengthen the number of Non-Executive Directors

on the Board.

Ddgers Berndtson was once again engaged by Chairman
with support from the Company Sacretary to conduct the
search for the new Non-Executive Director. A specific sat
of skills and attributes was used to seek individuals with
the reguired expertise and capabilities, who were then
considered by the Committee.

Aftterinterviewingselected candidates, the Committee
was pleased torecommend tothe Board GabBarbaroas
a Non-Executive Dirgctor and member of the Committee,
which received Board approval, and in December 2018 it
was announced that Gab would take up the role of Non-
Executive Dirgctor on 1 January 2019,

Odgers Berndtson only provides recruitment consultancy
services to the Committee.

Committees Effectiveness

An internal evaiuation of the Cominittee's effectivenass
took placeduring the year, as partofthe Board effectiveness
teview (for further details see page 78. The review
indicated that the Committes is working well, operates

in such a way as to ensure independence from executive
management and avoid conflicts of interest, and will
focus on executive succession planning and addressing
leadership skills for future Executive Directors
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Corporate Governance

Audit Cornmittee Report

Areas of Focus for 2019/20

The Committea's priorities for 2018/20 will be:

« tocontinueto monitor the implementationofthe
business strategy and its immpact on the Group's
internal controls and risk managerment
framework: and

» theadoptionofthe IFRS 16 leases standard.

Attendance at Audit Committee Meetings

Coramittoe maetings

Members attended/held
CarslChesney! 3/3
Michael Averill 414
Ken Lever® 1
David Mactin® 414

1 Appointed with gffect irom 12 July 2018,

2 Stepped down from Committee following Caroi’s
appontment,

3 Stepped down from role following Carol's appointment

Dear Shareholder

Itis a pleasure to present this year's Audit Committee
{Committae] Report, my tiret as Chair, havingbeen
appointed totherole on 12 July 2018.

Iwould like to acknowledge and thank David Martin
for ail his hard work during his terra as Interim Chair
of the Committes.

During the year, the Committee has continued to focus
on the effectiveness of the controls across the Group,
inciuding tha strengthening of the Internal Audit
resource, and ta further embed ourrisk managemsnt
processes across the Group.

This report sims to provide an understanding of the work

of the Committee over the past year and to highlight our
areas of focus in2019.

Carol Chesney
Chair, Audit Commitiea
5June 2019
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Were there any changes to the key areas

of focus for the Committes this year?

During the year, the Committee remained focused on
its key areas, in particular its work on reportingand
external audit; risk and internal control and internal
audit Inaddition, and inline with reportingagainst
the new Code, the Committes reviewad and updated

its Terrns of Referenca.

How does the Committea revisw whistleblowing,

fraud and anti-bribery procedures?
The Committee considers its work on

whistleblowing, fraud and anti-bribery with great
importance. It is recognised thatspeakingup can

ba difficult, Conssquently. the Committes ragularly
reviews the arrangements the Company has inplace
for emnployees to gnsure the Whastleblowing Policy

and processes remain effective.

What is the Committse’s position on the new Code?
With the introduction of the new Code, during the
vear the Committes reviewed and updoted its

Terims of Refsrance. As part of this update the Board
agreed that the responsibility for oversight and
whistleblowing arrangements shouid continue to

be delegated tothe Audit Committee and notasa
mattar reserved for the Board, as requirad by the
new Code, The Committee will continue to update
the Board, on g raguiar basis, on ajl significant

whistleblowing matters.

wwwiita.couk



The Rols of the CommIittase

Therole of the Committeée is to monitor and review
the Group's financial reporting arrangements,

the effectiveness of its internal controls andrisk
management framework, the [nternal and External
Audit processes and the Group's whistleblowing
procedures, including oversight of the Internaland
External Audit process.

The Committes reports tp the Board on its activities

and makes recommendations, all of which have been
accepted duringthe period under review.

Activities During the Year

Principal Responsibilities of the Commattee

Membership of the Committee and Attandance
The current members of the Committee are the Chair
and two Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Committes meambers are selacted to provide the
widestrange of financial and commercial expertise
nacessary tofulfil the Committee’s duties and
responsimlities, and the Board considers the Committee
members’ financial experience toberecentand relevant
for the purposes of the Code. Two of tha thres Committes
members are qualified accountants

The Company Secretary attends all the Cormittee
meetings as Secretary tothe Committes and they
are also attended by the Chief Financial Officer, the
External Audit Partner, the Chief Executive Officer,
the Head of Risk and internal Audit and the Director
of Group Finance,

Key areas discussed and reviewed by the Committee durning the vear
indischargingits responsibilities

Reporting and * Monitoring the integnity of the Gompany's

External Audit Financial Statements and all related
formal announcements, and reviewing
the signihcant financial reporting issues,
judgements and estimates which they
contain including the consistency, quality
and appropriateness of accounting
policies and the quality and complsteness
of isclosures

» Makingrecommendationstathe
Hosrd regarding the appointment,
re-appointment or removalof the
External Auditors and approving
the External Auvditor remuneration
and teyms of engagement

*  Monitoring and reviewing the External
Auditor's independence, abjectivity
and effectivenass.

* Reviewingthecontentol the Annual
Report and Accounts to ensure thatitis
tair, balanced and understandabls.

+ Reviewingthe Non-Audit Sexvices Folicy
ontheengagement of the External
Auditars to supply non-audit services.

+ FinancialStatements and announcements relating
tothe financial parformance and governance of the Group at
half-year and year-end and the Pre-Close Trading Statements

» Keyaccounting judgements.

+ Changestoaccounting policies

« Goingconcern and the Viability Statement

- Falr.balance and understandablo assessment inrelationte
the Annual Report.

+  External Auditor independence. objectivity and effectiveness,

+ External Auditorreports on planning the half-year and full
year audit, including the final opinion.

+  External Auditor remuneration and terms of engagement of
the External Auditor.

« Non-AuditServices Policy and fess pald to Extarnal Auditors.

RiskandIntarnal + OverseeingtheCompany’srisk

+ Riskregister, including the dentitication of the Group's

Control management systems and internal principal risks and movement in exposures. Status of key
COntral procasses. risk indicators including any breaches of thresholds.
*  Monitoring the Company’srisk exposure +  Effectiveness of the Group's rlskmanagement and internal
ang recommending the Company’s risk control systems.
appetite to the Board for approval. +  Responses to audit findings and recommeondations for control
* Overseeingthe assessment ofthe improvements, including reviewing the External Awdit
principalyisks and mitigating actions. management letter.
« Reviewingtherisk management +  Riskmanagementdisclosures inthe half-yearand
disclosures in the half-yearly and Annual Report.
AnnualReports. +  Whistleblowing Policy and processes, including an analysis
+ Reviewingthe Whistieblowing Policy of mattersralsed during the year.
and its implementation.
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Corporate Governance

Audit Commmittee Report continued

Principal Responsibilities af the Commattee

Keyareas discussed and reviewed by the Commitiee duringthe vear
1 dischargingitstaspansibilities

Intarnal Audit + Appravalef arrangements and termm of
Internal Auditassignments orany such
assignmants byexternal parties andany
termination of such arrangements

* Monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company'sInternal
Audit function and its activities, including
its plans, level of resourcaes andbudgat,

* ReviewingIntarnal Auditreports,
recoruhendations and progressinthe
implementation of those

+ Annuallnternal Audit plan, including its alignmentiothe
principal risks, emerging areas of risk, coverage across the
Group and continuing review of the Group's processas
and controls

+ Internal Audit etfectiveness and independence of the Internal
Audit function, including considszation ot key Internal Audit
reports; stakaholder feadback on the quality of Internal Audit
activity; and the implementation of Internal Augit
recommendations.

» lnternal Audit Reports, including Cyber Securlty, Municipe)
revenueassurence, Municipal tendering, I6C SME pricingand
Gas to Energy operations.

recornrnendations.
Other Duties + Annually reviewingthe Commnittes
of the Audit effectiveness and its Terms ol Reference
Committes +  Review compiiance with legal

requirements and accounting standards.

+  Annuallyreviewing the Related Party
Trensactions Palicy, and bi-ennuaily the
Related Party List,

- TheGommittes’s Terms of Reference
« Evaluation of the effectiveness of the Committes.

+ Annualtreasuryandtaxupdate.

« TheRelsted Party Transactions Policy and Related Party List

Financlal Raporting and Significant Financial Judgements

The Committee assesses whether suitable accounting policies have besn adoptad and whether the Company has made
appropriate underlying assumptions, estimates and judgements. The Committee reviewed accounting papers praparad
by the Company which provide details onsignificant financial reporting judgements. Further details can bafound in

the Financial Statemsents, Nota 1 on page 139.

Tha Committee also reviawed raports by tha External Auditars on the [ull-vearand half-year resylts which highlighted

any issues with respact to the work undertaken on the audit.

The Committes reviewed financial issues through discussion with the Exacutive Directors and the External Auditors.
The significant linancial judgements considered in relation to the accounts are detailad in the table bpposite.

88 &Biffa plc Annual Report and Aceounts 2019

www.biffa.co.uk



Signilicantjssues considered bythe Committezinrelationtotha
Financial Statements

How these1ssues were addressed by the Committee

Landtill The Committee reviewed the valuation of The Committee considered the Group Landfill Capita) and
Accounting the landhll provisions and assets, the level Provisioning Policy, which includes the basis for cost, void space.
af such landfill provisien and the extent of waste compactionratio and gas generation estimates, and
the deprectation of such assets, itbeingnoted  associated accounting methodology
that the responsibility for a landsill sn.e . The Committes determined that with the cambination of
extendis beynm:‘!]tt;le :(:;ssatlon oﬁf llat;? t:ll.hng external third-party reports and guidance and the Group's
operattons until the l;oup has fulfilled its 1 experience to provide for these estimated costs the current
aftercare andsestoration obligations which is landfiil accounting treatment and velue, and level of provisions
estimated tobe up to 60 years post closure of
the site. were appropriate.
Retirement The Group operates a defined beneflt pension  The Committee considered reports from management and
Eenefit scheme known as the Biffa Pension Scheme the External Auditors in relation to the valuation of the BPS
Obligations (BPS] which1s closed to new joiners and to and raviewed the key actuarlalassumptions used in calculating
future accrual as at 31 October 2013. Thereare  the defined benefit pension liabilities, especially in relation to
currently 80 active members of the BPS who discountrates, inflation rates, salary growth, rate of pension
have protected defined benefit acerualeither  1ncreamse and mortality/life expectancy, and concluded thatthe
by virtue of contract location or legislation. assumptions used were apprapriate and were supported by
The BPS wasin a pensionsurplus of £79.8m independent actuarial experts. Details of the key assumptions
as at 28 March 2019. used aresetouton page 158 in Note 29 cfthe Financlal
Statements
Asset The Group carries different classes of The Committee reviewed and discussed management’s report on
Impairment Intangible assets on its balance sheet. which  theimpairment review and considered the External Auditors’
Review include goodwill, lJandfill gas rights, the Biffa  testingthereot
.S;T;?‘;c;s‘:::r:;f:‘;t;:cé::}?q:::;ee?s::‘::n After due consideration, the Committes soncluded that it was
of the c?arr\ring wa!v::e of goodrﬁi]l and the satistied with management’s assumptions and judgements
other Intengible assets is dependent on tha applied inrelationtosuchtesting and agreed that there were
disaggregation of cash-generating units norecognisable indicators of impalrment. Detalls of the key
" assumptions and judgements used aresetoutin Note 12 10
{CGUs) and assumptions of futura cash flows, {he Financial Statements
including beth shortand long-termgrowth
rates. The Group performed its lastasset
impairmentreview atthe end of the financial
year with the assistance of an external
third party
Acquisitions For business combinations, the Group The Cornmittee reviewed this process, the methodoelogy

operates a process for theidentification

of the fair values of the assets acquired
and labil{t{es assumed including separate
identification of intangible assets by
undertaking a purchase price allocation
exercise and using, if required, external
valuation specialists

and assumptions used to value the assets and llabilities of the
acquisitions completed in 2018/19. The Committee concluded
that it was satigfied with managewment’s valuations of these
assets and liabilities,

Onerousfontract The Group operates a broad portfolio of

Pravision complex contracts, especially in the
Municipal and Respurces, Recovery &
Treatment divisions, The accounting for
certain contracts maybe underpinned by
assumptions or judgements made by
management inrespect of the outcome of
future avents.

The Committee reviewed managements Judgements and
assumptions used to determine onerous contracts and any
required provision for future losses,

The Committee concluded that it was satished by managements
assessment and the approech adopted, including the
presentation of these as non-underlying due to the creation of
non-recurring provisions.

www.biffa.couk
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Corporate Governance

Audit Committee Report continued

Rigk Managemeont and Internal Contral

The Board has overall responsibility for settingthe
Group's rigk appetite and ensuring that there isan
effectiva risk management framework. The Board has,
however, delegated responsibility for review of therisk
management methodology and effectiveness of internal
contrals to the Corarnittee. The Committee has reviewed
the work done by management on the assessment of the
Company’s principal risks, including their impact on
the prospéacts of the Company. The Cornpany’s systam

of interns) controls, along with its design and operating
effectivenegss, is subjact to review by the Comimittae,
thraugh reports received from the Gompany, along with
those from both the Internal and External Auditors. Any
control deticiencies identified will be fullowed up with
action plans tracked by the Committee

The Group's principal risk management systems
comprise risk registers and reviews, and Rigk
Management Committee oversight. Further details of the
Broup's risk management systems and controls, principal
risks and staternent following the viability agsessment
are included in the Strategic Report on pages 34-39.
Furtherdetails of the risk management framework

and internal controls are set out on page 90 of thisreport.

The Committesintends to keap the risk managament
andintarnal control systems under raviewand tp
supportthe Board in carrying out an annual review of
their effectiveness Policies and procedures, including
clearly detined levels of delegated authority, have been
communicated across the Group Internal controls have
been implemented in respect of the key apserational and
financial processes which exist within the business.

The Commitias hasnotidentifiad, nor been advised
of, any failings or waaknesses in the internal contral
syetems or risk management processes thatare
determined ta be significant.

Internal Audit

The Company has an Internal Audit function which
tfocuses on performing a programme of reviews of
processes and controls implementsed across the Group.
Internali Audit hndings are presented to the relevant
Head of a Group division or Group function, the Company
Sacretaryand the Chief Finangial Officer for review. The
Committesis responsible for overseaing the work of the
Internal Audit funciion.
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The Committea raviews the effectiveness of the Internal
Aud:t function, revisws and approves thescope of the
Internal Audit annual plan and assesses the quality of
Internal Audit reports, along with management’s actions
relating to findings and the closura of recornmended
actions. The Gornmittes alspconsiders any stakeholder
feedback on thequality of Internal Audit's work. In order
tosafeguard theindependence of the Internal Audit
function, the Head of Risk & Internal Audit is givan

the opportunity to meet privately with the Committee
withoutany Executive Directors or other mernbers of .
management present.

External Auditors

Deloitte LLP were appointed as the External Auditors of
the Company on 23 August2016. The current lead Audit
Partner, Makhan Chahal, was appointed in August 2016.
In compliance with the Code, the requiraments of the
Competition and Markets Authority and EUlegislation,
the Committee must put its audit arrangements out to
tander no later than 2026. The Committee presently
intends to keap the Group's audit arrangements

under ragular revisw, taking into account theannual !
pertormance review that will be conducted by the

Committee. There ara no contractual rastrictions on

tha Company's selection of its Externai Auditors.

The Commities s rasponsible for overseeing the
Group'srelationship with the External Auditors,

The Chiet Financial Officer and his team monitor '
the External Auditors performance, behaviour and
effactiveness during the exercise of their duties, and
this tnlorms the Comimittae's decision whether to
racommend to the Board their re-appointment (subject
toshareholder approval) of ptherwise on anannual
basis. The Commuites recommended 1o the Board, which
inturnis recommending toshareholders, that Deloitte
LLPbere-appointed as tha Company Auditors at the
forthcoming AGM.

The GCommittea also assesses the gffectivenass, '
independence and objectivity of the External Auditors
process by, for example:

+ cansideringall key External Auditor plans and reports;

« havingreguiar engagement with the External Auditers
during Committee meetings and ad hoc meetings
(when regquirad), including rneetings without any
member of management being prasent;

« theCommittee Chair having discussipns with the
Senior Statutory Auditorshead ofeach Commuittes
mesting; and

+ attheend of the financial year, each Cornmittee
member completing an Extarnal Audit process
effectiveness review qQuestionnaire.
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Auditor Independence and Non-Audit Services

To preserve objectivity and independence, the External
Auditorg are not asked to provide consulting services
unless itisinthebestinterests of the Company, in
accordance with Biffa's Non-Audit Services Poiicy.

This policy requites Audit Committee approval for any
non-audit services whose value exceads £50,000. The
engagement of the External Auditors to provide any non-
audit sexvices for morethan £10,000 must be approved
by the Chief Financial Officer in advance. The policy
recognises that certain non-audit services may not he
carried out by the External Auditors (in accordance with
the EU Statutory Audit regime).

Non-audit fees are monitored by the Commuttee and

the Committes is satishied that all non-audit work
undertaken this year was in line with our Policy and

did not detract from the objectivity and independence

of the External Auditors. The fees paid to Deloitte LLP
inrespect of non-audit services during the yearrelated
tothe review of interim Financial Statements and
governance comphance certiticates and totalled £97,900,
reprasenting 10% of the total audit fee {2018 £95,000

and 11%).

The External Auditors confirmed theirindependence
as Auditorsof the Company in a letter addressed to
the Directors.

Faly, Balanced and Understandable Reporting

At the request of the Board, the Committee has
considered whather, 1n its opinion, this Annual Report
and Accounts, taken asa whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and whether it pravides the intormation
necessaryfor sharaholders to assess the Company's
performance. This obligation extends further, to interim
reports and regulatory announcernents to the London
Stock Exchange

Inprovidingthe necessary information to its
shareholdersthe Committee considers that, taken
asawhole, this Annual Report and Accounts gives
afair, balanced and understandable assessimeaent
of the Company’s current financial positienand
its future prospects.

Inarrivingatits assessment the Commuittes has:

+ reviewedthe Annusl Report at several levels within
the Group ensuringoverall balance and consistency;

» benefited from the ovarsight and verification process
by Internal Audit of factual content;

« receivedan early review of the Annual Reportto
enable sufficient time for comment and review; and

+ received confirmation from the Committee that there
is a robust processin place tosupport the fair,
balanced and understandable assessment;

« considered the External Auditorsreview of the
Annual Report; and

+ TheDiurectors' statement on a fair, balanced and
understandablea Annual Report and Accounts is
setout onpage 110 of this Report.

www.biffa.couk

Whistleblowing

The Group has adopted procedures by which all
employeesmay, in confidence, report any concerns. Tha
Whistleblowing Policy sets outthe ethical standards
expected of all persons to whom the policy legally

applies and includes the procedute for raising concerns
instrict confidence. Employees are encouraged in the
first instance to talkto theirline manager or contact the
cantral HRteam directly. However,in ¢circumstances
when this is not poseible or is inappropriate the Group
has provided anindependent, external whistieblowing
hotline, via Safecall, for the reporting of any such matters
on anamed or anonymous basis. All reports are treated

in strictest confidence and investigations are overseen
by the Group HR Director and Company Secretaryas
appropriate, or the Head of Internal Audit, to ensurethata
tharough, fair and transparent process is undertaken and
any actions addressed.

The Committeeis responsible for monitoring the Group's
whistleblowing arrangements and the Whistleblowing
Policy is reviewed annually by the Board. The Committes
hasreviewed these arrangements and is satishied that
they are effective, facilitate the proportionate and
independentinvestigation of reported matters and allow
appropriate follow-up action tobe taken.

Committae Effectiveness

Aninternal evaluation of the Comnmittee effectiveness
toock place during the year, as part of the Board
effectiveness review (for further details see page 76). The
review indicated that the Comrmittee is working well but
identified the on-going personal development needs of
the Cornmittes and the need to improve implementation
ofthe Internal Audit recommendations.
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Corporate Governance

Directors' Remuneration Report

Areas of Focus for 2019/20

The Remuneration Committee's (Committee)
priorities for 2019/20 will be to:

* reviewthaDirectors’ Remuneration Palicyand
consider whether any revisions are required when
itisrenewed at the 2020 AGM

+ implament changestothe Committee's ramitand
processinlight of tha new Code; and

= monitor developrnents in market best practice.

Attendance at Remuneration

Committee Meetings

Commuttee meatings
Current members Attended fHeid
Michael Averill /8
CarolChesney® are
Ken Laver® 474
David Martin B/B

1 Appmnted wthe Cammnittee witheffectfyom 19 November 2018,
2 Steppeddown fromthe Coramitieg with effact from
11September 2018

Dear Shareholder

[am pleased tointroduce the Directors’ Rermuneration
Report for 2019,

The Report comprisas two sections:

+ theDirectors’' Remuneration Policy, which provides
the Remuneration Policy tor which shareholder
approval was obteined at the 2017 AGM and which
will continue to apply without amendment for the
forthcoming year;and

= the Diractors' Annual Report on Rernunsration, which
sats out payments and awards madas to tha Directors
tor 201B/19 and how the policy will be aperated
for 2019/20.

As no changes are proposad to the existing pelicy, only
one remuneration resolution will be tablad at tha 2019
AGM, namely the advisory shargholder vote onthe
Annual Report on Remuneration.

Michael Avenll
Chairman, Remuneration Committes
5June 2019
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How has the Committee prepared for the

introduction of the new UK Corporate

Govarnance Code?

The Commmittee raviewed the provisions of the new

Cods and new UKreporting regulations during the .
year and with the Company’s external advisers ;
discussed and agreed how it should be appropriately

irnplemented. The Terms of Referance jorthe

Commitiee have been revised to ensura we are

compliant with effect from 1 April 2019.

Where appropr:ate the Committee has sought toalign
practice and gisclosures to the new requiremants as
s00n &5 possible and we willreport against the new
Code in full inthe 2020 Annual Report and Accounts.

Whatis the procass in setting Executive
Directors’ Remuneration?

The Committee considars the budgeted salary
increases for the whole employee population,

the guidance given to managers onthe range

of salary increases and other remuneration
arrangemsnts and employment conditions for all
empioyees when determining the remuneration for
Executive Directors.

Itis expected that future salaryincreases for
Executive Diractors will be1in line with the range
setout in the salary review guidelines for the
general employee population, except in exceptianal
circumstances, such as whera a recently-appointed
Executive Director’s salary is increased to reflect
their growth in the rale over time or wherae significant
additional responsibilities are added totherole.

How does the Committee consider pay across

the Broup?

The Committae is regularly updated on the pay
principles and practices in operation across the
Group, inorder totake these into account in setting
the policy for Directors’ pay. Although employess are
not speciticaily consutted on the policy for Executive
Directors' remuneration, there continuestobean
ongoing dialogue with employees, through a variety of
channels,ahput the Company's pay.

New UKrepoarting regulations have introduced the
reguirement to disciosa our CEO to employee pay
ratio for financial years commencing 2020. The
Committee wilibereviewingtherelevant data
during the vear inreadiness to report on the ratios,
following the most appropriate calculation method.

www.biffa.couk



Remuneration Committee Membership

The Committee is comprised of independent Non-
Executive Directors and is chaired by Michael Averill,
with David Martin and Garol Chesney alsobeing
members Ken Lever stepped down from the Committee
duringthe year following arestructure

ofthe Board Committees inlight of his appointment

as Chairman.

The Company Secretary attends all mestings and other
individuals, such as the Chief Exaecutive Officer, the Chief
Financial Qfficer, the Group HR Director and external
professional advisers, may be invited to attend for all

or part of any meeting as and when appropriate and
necessary.

The purpose of the Committee is to establish a formal

and transparent procedure for developing policy on
remuneration in accordance with the Code and to set
therermunseration of the Chairman and the individual
Directors of the Company with due account taken

of all relevant factars such as individual and Group
performance and remuneration payable by companies of
acomparable size and complexity. The Committee meets
four times a year and at such other times as the Chairman
ofthe Committes shall require or as the Board may direct.

The Commmittee has formal Terms of Reference which

can be viewed onthe Company’s website at www.bitfa,
co.uk/investor-centra/company-information/corporate-
governance.

Advisers

FIT Rermuneration Consultants LLP (FIT), signatories
tothe Remuneration Consultants Group's Code of
Conduct, are the Committee’s appointed adviser. FIT
provide advice tothe Committee on matters relating to
executive remuneration and all-employee share awards.
FIT provided noother services tothe Company and,
accordingly, the Committee was satisfied that the advice
provided by FIT was objective and independent. FIT's fees
inrespect of the2018/18 financial year were £66,903,
charged on the basis of the firm's standard terms of
business foradvice provided.

www.biffa.couk

Activities of the Committes During the Year

The Committes met sixtimes last yearand the
Committee's main activities during the year [full details
of which are set out in the relevant sections of this report)
included:

« agreeingthe performance againstthe targetsandthe
payments for the 2017/18 Executive Director annual
bornus awards;

+ reviewing annual bonus payments for 2017/18 for
the Group Executive Team, senior managers
and employees;

» gettingtha performance targets for the Exscutive
Directors 2018/19 ennual bonus;

+  approving the Directors’' Rernuneration Report and the
Remuneration Policy for the 2018 Annual Report;

« agreeingthe population, award levels and
performance targets for the 2018/18 PSP awards;

« overseeingthe grant under the all-employee
Sharaesave Plan;

« receiving anupdate on the Biffa Group employes pay
and conditions and share plans:

« approving theseverance terms for the outgoing CEO;

+ approving approving the salaryand promotion terms
for the CEG;

+ approving thesalary and recruitraent terms for
the CFO;

» reviewing Gender Pay Gap calculations and agreeing
disclosures;

- reviewing proposals for 2018/19 base salary
adjustments for the Group Executive Tearm:

= agreeing Executive Director base salary levels from
1April2018;

« reviewing the various changes tothe ragulatory
environment, including the new Code; and

+ raviewingand updating the Committee Terms
of Reference.

Committee Effectiveness

Aninternal evaluationofthe Committes's effectiveness
took place duringthe year, as partof the Board
effectiveness raview

Thereview indicated that the Commattes 1s working well
1n addressing the main 1ssues it has covered and looking
ahead it will keepits work underreview especially inthe
area of the Committee's interaction with the Nomination
Committes.
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Corporate Governancs

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Pay and Performnance

Biffa has delivered a strong set of financial results, which
include increasing underlying revenues by 3 3%and
maintaining Underlying Operating Profit Marging at 7.5%.
Tha Group delivered good organic growth and madea
saries of parnings enhancing acquisitions. Strongcash
management and tight capita) controls resulted in
year-end Net Debt of E310.7m, which was 2.1times
Underlying EBITDA.

As a resuit, in respect of the 2018719 annual bonus for
Executive Directors, the actual operating profitwas
between the target and maximurm and the free cash flow
result exceeded the maximum target, In addition, the
raajority pf the strategic/personal objactives ware either
partially met of were met in full. As such, bonusawards of
100.8% of salary for Michael Topham and 90.7% of salary
for Richard Pike were awarded in cash (there will ha no
deferralin shares given that both Executive Directors
have metthe 200% of salary shara ownership guidelines).
Inaddition, inaccordance with his departurae tarms, Ian
Wakelin was eligible to receive a bonus for the portion of
the year for which he was amployved and was awarded a
bonus of 102.1% of salary. Full details of the bonus targets
and performance againstthe targetsareset outinthe
Annual Report on Remuneration,

The Dctober 2016 PSP award is subject to unde:lying EPS
performance to 29 March 2019 and TSR performance.
The estimated overall payout for the award is 68 75%

of maximurm.

Board Changes

Following the announcement on13 June 2018, lan
Wakelin stepped down Irom the Beard and Michael
Topham was promoted to CEO effective 29 September
2018. Details on the remuneration arrangementstor lan
Walkelin can be found on page 103.

Richard Pike joined the Board as an Executive Diractor
on 10 Septembgr 2018 and assumed the role of CFO on
29 Seprember 2018,

During the year wea al30 weicomed Caral Chesnay and Gab
Barbaro as Non-Executive Directors.
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Regulatory Changes

During the year, the Commitiee hasreviewed the

various changesto ths regulatory environment and in
particular the naw Code and the newlegislationrequiring
companies to rhake additional pay disclosures.

Notwithstanding that these changes are not technically
applicabie to Biffa until the financial year ending

27 March 2020, the Committee has sought to align
practice and disclosures to the new requirements.
Thisincludes:

« ensuringthat theannual bonus plan and PSP permit
the necessary Committee discretion to override
formulaic outcomes (s naw Code provision);

« introducing a formal post-vesting holding period.
independent of shareholding guideiines;

» therecovery provisionsinthe annwal bonus planand
PSP have been raviewed to ensure that they remain fit
for purpose;

» updatingthe Committee's Terms of Reference to
reflect the expanded scope required by the new Code
namely the (i} responsibility for setting remunaration
for the Board and senior managemasnt, and (i) taking
account of Group-wide remuneration and policies
when setting axecutive pay; and

« undertakingareview alignment of pension provision
of Exacutive Directors to the workforce as part ot the
2020 Policy review.

We trust that you tind this Report to be informative
and transparent, and we hope to receive your support
for the Directors’ Annual Report on Remuneration at
our forthcoming AGM.

Michael Averill
Chairman, Remuneration Committes
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Directors' Remuneration Policy

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy was appraved by shareholders at the 2017 AGM. The full policy is not presented
here, but can be found in full at https ##biffa.co.uk/remuneration_policy. The Policy was developed with reference to
the UK Corporate Governance Code in force at the time of approval and is felt toremain appropriatein supportingthe
long-term success of the Company whils ensuring that it does not promote inappropriate risk-taking.

As context for the rest of thisreport, the main elements of the Policy applying to Executive Directors, as well ashow the
Policy was implemented during the year, are surnmarised below:

Executive Directors

Elamentand Purpose KeyFeatures

Implamentationin2018/13

Implemeniationin 2019/20

Base salary Appropriate level of base salary.
The coreelementof  reviewsd annuallyinthe light of factors
pay, reflecting the such as individual/Group performance,

Michael Topham [appointed
CEC in September 2018):
£495,000 (increasad from

Michael Topham: £495.000 (no
change)

Richard Pike. £325.000 {no change)

individusl's scope ot role, practice adopted by £325.000 whileCFD)
gosltlog wi;}éin the comparatercompanies. Richerd Pike [appointed CFO In
ompany a Salary increases will generally bein September 2018). £325,000
FXperience ling with those awarded tosalaried
mplovees Jan Wakelin (departed the
employees. business September 2018)
£510,000

Benafitain kind The Executive Directors may recejve Exscutive Directors recelved Na changes preposed
Toprovide benefits in kind inciuding car benefits including ear

market-competitive allowance, fuel allowance, private
benefts valued by  family medicalinsuranceandsuch

allowance, fuel cazd and,
private family medical

recipients other marketcompetitive bensfits asthe insurance tothe following
Remuneration Committee considers tatal values:
apprapriate. Michael Tapham- £9,865
Richard Pike: £6,288
Tan Wakelin: £7.3C04
Pansion The Executive Directers willreceivea Michael Topham- 20% of salary Nochanges proposed
Tapravide defined contribution provision [orcash

retiremant benefits supplement)ofupto20% ol salary.

Richard Pike: 15% of salary
Ian Wakelln: 20% of salary

Annual Bonus Payable subject tothe achieverment of
To motivate challenging financial/strategic/
Executive Directors personal performance conditions. Malus
and incentivisethe andclawback provisions apply.

dellvery ofbusiness Currently one-third of any bonus garned

2::—te§:ruuveerr:tin by anExecutive Director willbe deferred
cvclg P B intoshares forthree years if at the bonus

payment date sufflcientshares to
satisty the shareownership guidelines
arenot held.

Meximum opportunities of:
CEO 130%ofsalary
CFO0:110% of salary

Based on performance against
Underlying Profit Before Tax
targets [payingoutat 4l 4% of
maxgimum), Underlying Free
CashFlow targets [paying out
at maximum of20%) and
strategio/personal objestivas
(payingoutatliB¥ of
maximum].

Individual awards were:
Michael Topham: £412,607
(reflecting part-year salary
increase]

Richard Pike: £161,451
fingludes pro-rating for
service)

lan Wakelin: £273,219

[includes pro-rating for
service)

Maximum opportunities of:
CEQ:130% ofsalary
CF0:110% of salary

70% of the bonus will be payabile by
raferencata performance against
financialtargets (60% will be based
on Underlying Profit Before Tax and
20% willbe based on Underlying Free
Cash Flowtargets). 30% of the honus
will be payable based on performance
againstanumber of stratoagic/
personal objectives.

www.biffa.couk
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Element and Parpose

Key Features

Implementationin2018/19

Implementationin2018/20

Parformance
SharePlan

To motivate
Executive Directors
andincentivisethe
delivery of
sustained
performance over
the long term, and
to promaote
alignmant with
shareholders’
interests

Annualawards over shares which vest
are subject to stretching performance
conditiong, generally measuredover a

three-vear period, and continued
service. Malus and clawback
provisions apply.

The October 2016 PSP award
estimated vesting levelis
68.75% of maximum with77.6%
vesting for theunderlying
Earnings per Share (EPS)
element and Total Shareholder
Return [TSR) element
estimated vesting level of 50%

2018 PSP Award were made
at below normallevels

Michael Topham: 125%

of salary

Richard Pike. 100% of salary
No award made to Ian Wakalin.

Vesting dependent on
performanca against
underlying EPS{50%) and TSR
(50%) targets.

2019 PSP award expected tobe
made atnormal levels

CEQ:150% of salary
CFO 125%ofselary

Vesting dependent on performance
againstunderlying EPS (50%) and
TSR (60%) targets.

Allawards made to Executive
Directors fram the 2018 AGM
onwards willbe subjecttoa
two-year holding period

Share Ownership
Guidelings

To promoite
stewardshipand to
turther alignthe
interests of
Executive Directers
with thoge of
shareholders

1f any Executive Director does not meet
the guidetine, they will be expectad to
retaln up to 50% of the net-of-tax number

ofshares vesting under any of the
Company's discretionary share

incentive arrangemaents (ingludingany

delerred bonus shares) untilthe
guideiine [¢ mat

200% otbase salayryforall
Executive Directors.

Nochanges proposed.
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Itlustrations of Application of the Remuneration Policy
The charts below show how the Remuneration Policy set out abave is applied for the Executive Directors usingthe
following assumptions:

Consists of base salary, benefits and pension.

Base salaryisthe salarytobe paid in the 2019/20 financial year.

Benefits are based onestimated values for the 2019/20 financial year (rounded tothe nearest £1,.000).
Pension s measured as the defined contribution or cash allowance inlieu of Company contributions of 20%

Minfmum of salary for the CEO and 15% of salary for the GFO
Basesalary Benehts Pension Totalfxed
Michael Topham £496,000 £12,000 £99,000 £605,000
Richard Pike £325.000 £12.000 £48,000 £401,000
Based on what the Executive Director would receive if performance was on target (excluding share price
appreciation and dividends):
Targot

» Annualbonus consists of the on-target bonus (60% of maximum opportunity used for 1llustrative purpases)
» Long-term incentive plan (LTIP): consists of the threshold level of vesting (25% vesting) under the PSP,

Based on the maximum remuneration receivable (excluding share price appreciation and dividends):
. « Annual bonus. consists of maximumbanus of 130% of base salary for the CEQO and 110% of basa salary tor
Maximum the CTG.

» LTIP:consists of the face value of awards (150% of base salary for the CEQ and 125% of base salary for the CFQ)
under the PSP.

Maximumwith60% Asthe Maximum scenario plus the value resulting from a share price growth of 50% fram the PSP award
share price growth

1 Sharepricegrowth [T LTIP [ AnnualBonus [ Fixed pay (salary, benefits, pension)

£'000
22.500 o _ 22‘362 e T T
£2.250 — g% [ — e "
£1,991
£2,000 —— - ———— - -- - -
£1.760 — - .
38% 31%
£1,600 - [— — —— - - — £1,382 °
f£1,250 ——— £1,177 . - - - £1,149 16%
18% B )
£1,000 2% 27% 36% 30%
- 33% . . £701 _ i
£750 ~ ggos 5% i oo
£500 — - Tt F401 —| 31% —
280 100%] | 51% 30% 26% 7 ) B
® 100% 54% 34% 28%
£0 — --
Minimum OnTarget Maximum Maximum Minimum OnTarget Maximum Maximum
withghare withshare
price growth pricegrowth
Michael Topham Richard Pike
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Dfficer
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Corporate Governance

Directors’' Annual Report on Remuneration

2018719 Remuneration
The following section provides details of how the Directors were paid during the financial yearto 29 March 2019.

8ingle Total Figure Table (audited)
The remunaration for the Exacutive and Non-Fxecutive Directors of the Company who performed qualifying services
during the year is datailed below (with prior year comparatives).

Salary/ Taxable Long-term Total
Director Fees henegfits? Bonus®  1ncentiveg® Pension  Ramunerston
Executive Directors
lan Wakelyn* 2019 £255,000 £7,304 £273,219 £662.428 £51,000 £1,148,951
2018 E510,000 £11,082 £597,355 - E102,000 £1,220,437
Michael Topham® 2019 £410,000 £9,B65  £412,507 £484,611 £82,000 £1,398,983
2018 £326,000 £11,311 £304.228 - £65,000 £706,639
Richard Pike® 2019 £188,250 £6,288 Ff1B81.451 - £27,187 £383,176
2018 - - - - - -
Non-Exequtive Directors
Michasel Averill 2019 €57,000 - - - - £57,000
2018 £57,000 - - - - £57,000
Ken Lever® 2019 £187.086 - - - - £187,098
2018 £64,096 - - - - £64.096
David Martin’ 2018 £57.000 - - - - £62.000
2018 £118.,500 - - - - £118,500
Carol Chesney® 2018 £€41.06% - - - - £41,068
2018 - - - - - -
Gab Barbaro® 2019 £12,500 - - - - £12,500
2018 - - - - - _

1 Taxablg benelils recerved were cay allowance, fuslcard and private family medicalinsuranceand thainttingic value of Sharesave optigns
granted during the year

Thebopnusispaidincash,as sulficient shares to satisfy the shara ownership guidelinesareheld by allthe Executive Dirsctors

3 Theestimated ourturn for the 20168 PSP which vests1n 201815 68 75% and the vestingshare price hasbeen estumated at 195.2 pence, based on
the thres-month average share price ending 20 March 2019, For tucther information see page 102 £43,7860f the above figure for lan Waksiin
16 attributed to a shara price appreciation of 15.2 pence per share, based on an actual award price of 180 pence. £37.736 of tha abovetigure tar
Michag] Topham is attributed to a share price appreciation of 15 2 pence per share, based on anactual award price of 180 pence.

lan Wakalin stepped down from tha Board and left the Companyon 28 September 2018

Michae] Topham was promoted to CED on 29 Septembe: 2018,

Richard Pike joined the Board with effect from 10 September 2018 end assurned the role of CF0 on 29 September 2018

Inaddition to his normaliee and included in the table above, David Martinreceived a further fee of £61,6001n respect of his six-month tenure
asacting Chairman (from September 2017 to March 2018]).

8 CarolChesney|oined the Bosrd with effect from 12 July 2018.

9 Gab Barbaro juined the Board with effect lrom 1. January 2018,

10 Chairrnanannual fees £180,000 pa Figureincludes 2018 fee adjustments.

n

~mianps

Salary paidincludes 2018 adjustments. The aggregate emoluments (being salary/fees, bonuses, benefits and pansion
allowances) of ail Directors for year ended 29 March 2019 was £2,238,736 (2018: £2,255,572]). Aggregate value of vested
long-term incentives of all Directors in the year ended 29 March 2019 was £zero [2018: zero}.

2018/19 Annual Bonus (aundited)

The Exegutive Directors' annual bonus targets were set by the Committee at the beginningof the financial year. As a
rasult of strong underlying financiel performance, the Group exceeded the threshold profit before tax and free cash flow
targets for the purposes of awarding the 2018/19 annual bonuses of the Executive Directors.
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More particulasly, the profit before tax and cash flow bonus targets {as adjusted appropriately for acquisitions made

during the year) were as follows:

Actusl

Pay-out

Maxamum. [ontof

Threshold Target Maximum Actual Potential masimum

£m £m Em £m Pay-gut stated)

Underlying Profit Before Tax -t 60.6 66.0 640 50.0% 44.4%
Underlying Free Cash Flow 28.0 30.3 34.2 478 20.0% 20.0%
Total - 70.0% 64.4%

1 Nopaymentwas payable for belowtarget performance.

Inrespect of the personal performance targsts set for each Executive Director, these ware set against arange of

strategic targets at the start of the year. The targets set were aligned to Biffa's corporate objectives having due regard to

the hive-year strategy.

Detalls of the measures, to the extent they are not commercially sensitive are shown helow.

(% of potential)
Measure Performance Maximum Actual
Potential Pay-out
Hesalth, Salety & Envirgnment CAR scores were reduced buttarget was not met. 6.0% 153
Demonstrate further progress and improvemantin Graup LTI rate increased year-on-year.
safety and environmental performance KPIL. Group
5% LTI Lmprovement and 6% CAR score improvement
Employee Engegement Employee engagement scoreimproved by 5% as 6 0% 6.0%
Deliver an improvement in the Group smployea measured in the annual empleoyee engagement
engagementScore KP14X employee engagement surveycenducted by Aonin February 2019
score improvement
Acquisitions 7 acquisitions completed with a total investment 6.0% 6.0%
Complete acquisitions with a minimum enterprise of 847m.
value of £26m and anexpected ERITDA of £5m.
KP}: Target multipls achieved
Sirategy Strategy was approved by the Board and performance 6.0% 6.0%
Agres tiveryeat strategy with Boszd and makte against KPls including:
prograss against key themes of Grow, Develop, + Organic Net Revenue Growth
Optimise and dellver fully developed proposaland + Acquisition Net Revenue Growth
strategy for EfW KPL: Evidenced progress against « Tonnes of Waste Collected
targets and EfW propesal developed « Tonnes of Waste Processed
« Underlying Operating Profit Margin
« Returnon Dperating Assets
» Returnon Capital Employed
Process Improvement Whilst progress has beenmade, key milestones 6 0% 0%
were not met. Arevised planned tirnetable s
Demonstrate sufficient progress on Project Fusion. belng developed
KPI:Evidence of progress to project plan 8 ped.
Total 30.0% 18.0%

Onthebasis of the above performance, the Committee determined that payment of 18% for the CEOand 18% for the CFD
out of the maximum of 30% for this part of the bonus was proportionate and reasonable in the circumstances. This
performancs resulted in the following performancse assessment for the vear:

Weightings QOutcomes

Michasl Richard Ian

CEQ/CFO Topham Pike Wakelin

Financial performancs (% of potential) 70% 64.4% B4 4% B4.4%

Strategle performance (% of potential) 30% 18 0% 18.0% 18.0%

Tntalperfcrmanc;;)acome [ of potential) 82.4% B 82-4’5 82.4%

Total perfonmance outcome (X of salary) 100.6% 90.7% 107.1%
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Vesting of Long-Tarm Incentive Awards (audited)
The P5P award granted on 20 October 2016 was partly subject to EPS parformance to the year ended 23 March 2018
and partly based on TSR performance to the date of the preliminary announcement of rasults for the year and vests
as is reasonably practicable after. The performance conditions attached to this award and performance against these
conditionsis as follows:

(i) adjusted EPS targets as to 50% of the award, and (ii) relative TSR targets as tothe remaining 50% of the award. The
details of these targets are shown in the tablas below:

Adjusted EPS!{or 2018/18 finencial year {S0% of award]

Portion ofaward vesting

Below 18 5p 0%
iB 5p 25%
18.5p to 21.5p Pro-rata onstrajght-line basis between 25% and 100%
Above 21.5p 100%
Actual performance 20.6p
Vestinglevel 775%
1 Adjusted EPSisdelined asUnderlying Earninge Par Share

Bifta's TSR? ranking vs the FTSE 250 [excluding inansial sarvices
companies and investment trusts) (50X af award)

Portionof award vesting

Below madian

ox

Median

25%

Between median andupper quartile

Pro-rataonstraight-linebasis betweon 26% and 100%

Upperquartile

100%

Actusl performance

Tobecontirmed at end of performance period

Vesting lovel (estimatad}

60%

2 TSR(caleulated based on Biffaplc share price movements, plusdividends reinvested into Biffa ple shares on therelevant ex-dividend dates,
overthe perlormance period) 1s measured over the peciod from the date of granttothe date of the praliminary announcement of resulis for the

2019/20 financial year

Based on the estimated vesting percentage above, details of the shares under award and their estimated value (based
onthethree-month aeverage share price at 28 March 2019 of 1895.2 pence per share) are as follows:

Maximum Number Numbar Estimated facevalue Impact of

Number afshares of shares valugar afawards sharaprice

Executive of shares tovest tolepse vesting £} vesting? an vesting?
lan Wakelin 419,097* 2B88,129 130.968 562,428 518,633 43,796
Michael Topham 361,211 248,264 112,847 484,611 448,875 32,736

W e

Based opnthethraée-month average shars price to 29 March 2019,

Based on the number of shares vesting multiplied by the shars priceat the date of grant (€1.80).
Based on the estimated value at vestlng, less the face value of awards vesting.

Reduced from onginally granted 566,666 on a time pro-rata bas:s.

The awards also receive the value of dividend equivalents.

100 Bista plc Annual Report snd Accounts 2019

www biffa.couk



EVP Awards (suditad)

As described inlast year's Annual Directors' Report on Remuneration, prior to the Company's admission to the London
Stock Exchange certain Directors were granted EVP Return Letters by Wasteholdco 1 Limited (then the parent Company
of the Biffa Group of companies) in connection with a dispute with HMRGregardingthe payment of Landfili Tax for
certain of its operationsin the UK (the EVP Dispute). These EVP Return Letters wera granted in recompense for the
diminution in value of their interests 1n the Group resulting from the EVP Dispute which was linked to incentive
arrangemaents in existence prior to Admission, full details of which appear below in Note 33, on page 173 of the
Financial Statements. As part of the proceedings, the Company was reguired to pay HMRC approximately £63m shortly
following Admission (the EVP Paid Arount].

Ifthe EVP Dispute is irrevocably settted in the Company's favour and the EVP Paid Amount is unconditionally returned
to the Company [less any arnounts which the Group is required to pay in respect of costs incurred by HMRC or penalties
or other associated costs of the EVP Dispute together with the EVP Interest payable {(see below]] (the EVP Return],

the EVP Return Letters shall be settled and these Directors shall be entitled to a cash payment (less tax and national
insurance contributions) under the EVP Return Letters as follows:

%of netEVP

Returnte

whichthey

Director areentitled
Ian Wakelin 7.365
Michael Topham 2.129
Michael Averil] 0.124

Inthe svant the EVP Disputeis irrevocably sattled 1n favour of HMRC, then subject to the Group receiving a net
reduction in the tax liability of the Group (after taking into account any increase in the taxlitab:lity arising in respect of
any profit and loss account credits in Wasteholdco 1 Limited in respect of the EVP preference shares granted 10 certain
shareholders prior to Admission (the Tax Deduction]] the EVP Return Letters shall be cancelled and the Directors shall
be entitled to a cash payment equal to a percentage of the Tax Deduction subject toa maximum payment and a payment
inrespect of EVP Interest (see balow) (less tax and social security contributions) as detailed below:

Maximum
Tax
Daduction EVP

%ofTax Cash Interest TotalMax
Director Deduction Payment Payable Payment
lan Wakelin 8.172 £817,204 E£B39.871 £1,457.075
Michael Topham 2366 FE238,559 £185,226 £421,785
Michael Averill 0.215 £21,505 £16,838 £38,344

The Company was advised by HMRC in Novernber 2017 that the remaining psnalty interest of £8.7m, payable ontha EVP
Paid Amount, was nolonger due (EVP Interest). Once the EVP Dispute has been irrevocably settled, the EVP preference
ghareholders shall be entitled toreceive a proportion of the EVP Interest in line with their shareholding, and, the
holders of the EVP Return Letters shall be entitled to receive EVP Interest [less tax and social security eontributions),
as detailed above.

A Board Committee has been established to provide an independent review of the EVP Dispute proceedings and make
recoramendations to the Board. The independent Non-Executive Directors Ken Lever, David Martin, Carol Chesney and
Gab Barbaro, who hava nofinancial interest in the result of the EVP Dispute, are the members of that Committee

The Company was advised in April 2018 that the First Tier Tax Tribunal had found in favour of HMRC in the EVP

Dispute The Company has lodged an appeal against thisdecision in the Upper Tax Tribunal, which appeal is currently
dua to be heard in November 2019,
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Corporate Governanca

Directors' Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Statement of Directors’ Sharsholding and Share Interests (audited)
For each Diractor, the total number of Directors’ interests 1n shares at 29 March 2019 was as follows:

Michael  Richard lan  Michael Ken Dawvid, Carol Gab
. Topham* Pike Wakelin?  Avenll Lever Martin  Chesnay  Barbazo
Number of Ordinary shares held
ag at 28 March 2018 661,004 358,048 900,087 71,340 52,777 25,000 6,500 -
Number of Ordinary shargsheld
a5 at 30 March 2018 660,999 - 1,845,084 73,340 27,777 15000 - -

1  Numbez ot shares held includes 150 shares in respectof the Bitfa Share Incentive Plans SIP Award for Michael Topham

2 Asaldsteofappointmenttothe Board.

3  Numberofshareshold includes 148 shares inrespect of the Bitfa Share Incentive Plan SIP Awasd for lan Wakehin len Wakelin stepped down
as CEQ and left the Eampany on 28 September 2018

The shareholdings above inc{ude those held by Directors and their respective connected persons. There were no
changes in the current Directors’ interests in shares between 29 March 2019 and § June 2019, Under the share
ownership guidelines, the existing Executive Diractors are required to build and maintaina shareholding equivalent to
at Jeast 200% of salary. At the 2019 year-end, Michael Topham and Richard Pike complied with this requirement.

PSP Awards Granted in the Year (audited)
The following nil-cost options were granted under the PSPin 2018

Numberof

Basisofaward Facavalue of shares undar
Ditector Dats ot grant {%ofsalary) awardeatgrant award' Dateof vesting
Michael Topham 02-Jul-18 100% £325,000 131.048° 01-Jul-21
Michael Topham 01-0ct-18 SeeNote3d £243,543 97,0292 01-Oct-21
Richard Pike 01-Oct-18 94% £304.483 121,330 01-0ct-21

Based onthethree-dayaverageshareprice of £2 48 to 30 June 2018

Basedon the three~dayaverage share price of £2 81 to30September 2018

The Committee approved a top-up award for Michael Topham following his pramotion to CED Theaward levei wascalculated onapre-rata
basis reflecting the increase in base salary and highet award level tor the CEO pasition

[N

These awards vest in 2021 subject to performance relating to (i} adjusted EPS targets as to 50%of the award,and (11)
relative TSR targets as tothe remaining 50% of the award The details of thesetargets are shown in the tablesbelow:

Adjustied ERS *for 2020/21 financial year (50% of award] Partion of award vesting
Below 21 5p [}
21.5p 26%
21.5p1025.5p Pro-rataon straight-line basls between 25% and 200%
Above 26.5p 100%

3 Adposted EPSisdelined asUnderlyingProhtalter Tax per Share.

Biife's TSR ranking ve the FTSE 250 (axcluding finencial services

companiés and 1nvestment trusts) (60X of award) Portion of award vesting
Below Median 0%
Modilan 25%
Between Madien and Upper Quartile Pro rataonstraight-linebasis between 25X and 100%
Upper quartile 100%

4 TSR(celeulated based on Biifa ple share price movements, plus dividends rexnvested into Biffa plc shereson the relevant ex-dindend dates,
overthe pariprmence period)1s measured over the period from rhedats ot grant to the date of the preMminary announcemant of resulistor the
2020/21 financial year
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Outstanding Share Plan Awards (audited)
Details of all outstanding share awards made to Exscutive Directors are set out below.

Date of

Awards Awards Awards vesting/

Exercise Interestat granted:in lapsedin vestedin  Interestat Exercise

Director Award type price(£) Grantdate 30/03/2018 the vear the yvear the year 29/03/2019 peried
Ian Wakelin PSP 0 20-Oct-1B 566,666 - 147,569 - 419,497 SeeNotel
PSPE 0 03-Jull? 344,694 - 344,694 - - 01-Jul-20

s1pt 0 21-Nov1e 135 3 - - 148 SesNote4d

Michael Topham PSP 0 20-Oct18B 361,111 - - - 361,111 SeeNotel
PSP 0 03-Jul1? 182.99& - - - 182,995 01-Jul-20

psp? 0 02-Jull8 - 131,048 131,048 0l-Jul-2l

PSP? 0 01-Oct18 - 397,029 97,028 01-Oct-21

S1P? 0D 21-Nov-16 145 5 - - 150 SeeNoted

SAYES 158 21-Jull? 2.278 - - - 2,278 01-Sep-20

Richard Pike PSP? 0 01-0ct-18 - 121,330 121,330 O0Ol-Jul-21

1 Perlormance targets tor the 2016 PSP awardsare presented above Awards vestas sgonasisreasonably practicable atterthe dateofthe
prehminaryannouvncement ot resultstor the 2018/19hinanciel vear.

Performance targets tar the 2017 PSP awards are presented 1n last year's Direstors Remuneration Report.

Pertormance targets for the 2018 PSP awardsare detailed above

Award of free shares under the Biffa ple SIP2016. The awards were granted on 21 November 2016 and are subject to the normal termsof an
HMRC SIP Awardsgranted in the year relate to the award of rzlated dividend shares under the SIP

5 Awardsgrantedunderthe Biffaple 2017 Sharesave Plan Awardsare based on a three-year savingscontract.

bW

No awards vested during the year and the aggregate gains by all Directors during 2018/18 from share plan awards was
£rul (2017/18 £nil).

Payments to Past Divectors (audited)
There were no payments te past Diractors in the financial year 2018/18 (2017/18: nul).

Payments for Loss of Office [audited)
No paymants were made to any Directorin respect of loss of office in the financial year 2018/19 (2017/18: nil).

Remuneration Arrangaments for lan Wakelin
Ian Wakelin stepped down from the Board and ceased to be an employee on 28 September 2018 and he received his
salary and benefits up until this date.

A pro-rata bonus under the 2019 bonus scheme has been calculated by reference to the performance targets thatapply
and will bepaidinthe normal way in July 2019.

The Committee agread that a time pro-rated portion of Mr Wakelin's 2018 PSP award remained capabla of vesting,
subject to the performance conditions at the normal vesting date, and may then be exercised inaccordance with the
planrules. The 2017 PSP award lapsed on hisleaving employment and no 2018 PSP award was made to M1 Wakelin,
The shares Mr Wakelin holds under the SIP will be treated in accordance with the rules of that plan.

Otherthanthe amounts disclosed above, Mr Wakelin was not eligible for any pay in lieu of notice or severance as a
result of his departure.
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Corporate Govermnance

Directors' Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Review of Past Perfarmance and CEO Remuneration Tabls funaudited)

The graph below shows the TSR of the Company and the FTSE 250 Index {excluding Investmant Trusts) over the period
from Admission t0 29 March 2018, This is considered an appropriate comparator for Biffa, and this aligns with the use
ofthe FTSE 250 in thae TSR performance measure for the PSP.

Bifta TSRva FTSE250 since Admission

SN Eiffa wsemms FTSE 250 Excl Investment Trusts

Total shareholder return {rebased ta 100)
mw— — . — - — _— — _—

13a

125

120

115

110 --

15 -

100 -

95

Oct 2018 Mar 2017 Mer 2018 Mar 2018
{Saurce: Thomson Reuters)

Thae table bolow datails cartain slements of the CEQ's remuneration since Admission.

Long-term

Single tigure Annualbonus incentive

of tota!l pay-outasXat vesungratesas

temuneratian maximurn %oimaximum

2018/19 £€1,958,372 82 4% 67 5%
2017718 £1,220,437 90 1% -
2016417 £10,681,021" 94 5% -

1 It should be notad thet £9,507.310 of the above amount relates to the bonus pald under the Managemant Incentive Plan which wasinplace
from 2013 until the Company's Admission.and was therafore ‘one-off’in nature.

Percantage Change in Remunaration of the CEOQ (unaudited)
The table below presents the year-on-year percentage change in remuneration received by the CEQ, compared with the
changs in remunsration recewved by all Biffa smployess,

AllBiffa

CEQ* employees

Salary -1.5% 52%
Short-term Lngentives -11 6% -16 6%
Alltaxable benefits 10.4% 16.1%

1 This percentage change reflectsthe changein theingumbent aver the perinod
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Relative Importance of Spend on Pay [unaudited)

The table below details the changa in total employes pay between financial years 2017/18 and 2018/19 as detailedin
Note 7tothe Financial Statements, compared with distributions to shareholders by way of dividend, share buy-backs
or any other significantdistributions or payments. These figures have been calculated inline with those in the audited
Financial Statements

X change 2018/189 2017/18
Total gross employee pay 8.1% £253.8m £234 Bm
Distrjbutions to shareholders 49.1% F17.0m £11.4m

Statementof Shareholder Voting (unaudited)
The table below shows the advisory vote on the 2017/18 Directors’ Remuneration Report at the AGM held on 18 July 2018
and the binding vote on the Remuneration Policy at the AGM held on 19 July 2017:

AGM resolution Votes for % Votesagainst Voteswithheld
Remuneration Policy 182,592,187 9973 514,821 7,467,112
Remuneration Repart 164,286,833 99 91 143,951 1,732,103

Implementation of Policy for 2019/20 (unaudited information)
Basa salary
Base salaries wall be as follows (unchanged from the prior year):

Diregtar 1April 2019 % Increase
Michael Topham £495,000 o%
Richard Pike £325.000 0%

Benefits in Kind and Pension Provision

Bensfits will be paid in line with the Directors’ Remuneration Palicy Details of the benefits received by Executive
Directors are set putin the single figure table on page 98. There is no intention to intreduce changes to existing benefits
in2018/20.

Pension provision for Michael Topham and for Richard Pike willremain ar 20% and 15% of base salary respectively.
Contributions may be made as cash supplements in full or 1n part.

Annual Bonus

Bonus will continue to be of maximum of 130% of salary for the CEQ and 110% of salary for the GT0. 33% of any bonus
varned will be deferred into shares for three years to the extent that an Executive Director does not satisfy the share
ownership guideline on the bonus payment date. 70% of the bonus will be payable by reference to performance against
financial targets (up to 50% will be payable based on a sliding scale of challenging Underlying Profit Before Tax targets
and up to 20% will be payable based on a sliding scala of challenging Underlying Free Cash Flow targets). 30% of the
bonus will be payable based on performance against a number of strategic/personal objectivesrelating tothe delivery
of strategy, Health and Safety measures and employee engagement.

In addition, no bonus will be payable unless the Cormittes is satished that the Company's underlying performance
warrants 1t and bonus paymenis will also be subject tothe Committee considering that the proposed bonus amounts,
calculated by reference to pecrforrmance against the targets, appropriately reflect the Company’s overall performance
and shareholders' experience. If the Conmittee does not believe thas to be the case, it may adjust tha bonus outturn
accordingly.

Due toissues of commercial sensitivity, we donot balieve it isinsharehoplders' interests to disclose any further details
of these targets on a prospective basis. However, the Company is committed to adhering to principles of transparency
and will, therefore, provide appropriate and relevant levels of disclosure of bonus targets and performance against
thesetargets for the 2019/20 bonus in next year's report.
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Carporate Governance

Directors' Annual Report on Remuneration continued

PSP Awards
A PSP award will be made in 2019 to Michael Topham as CEQ and Richard Pike as CF0O, 0f shares worth 160% of salary
and 126% of salary respactively,

Adjusted EPS*for2021/22 financial year {S0% of award) Portianof award vesting
Below 24.0p ax
24 0p 25%
24.0p to28 Op Pro-rataonstraight-line besisbetween 25% and 100%
Abovez28.0p 100%

Bitfe's TSR?1anking vs the canstituents of the FTSE 250 (gxcluding

financial services companiesand investment trusts) (SO%of award) Portion ot award vesung
Below Median 0%
Median 25%
Between Medisn and Upper Quartile Pro-rata cn stralght-line basis batween 26% and 100X
Upper Quartile 100%
1 The 2018 PSP awards maybe subject to aformal postvesting holding pecicd as may be sgreed by the Committee.

2 Adjusted EPS\isdefinad as Underivaing Profitattsr Tax parShare

3 TSR({calculated based on Biffa plc thare price movements, plus divigends reinvested into Bitfa plc shares on the rslevant ex-dividend dates.

over the performance period) 15 measured over the 3 year period trom the date of grent.

Chelirman and Non-Executive Director Faes
Ken Lever teceives a fee of £180,000 p.a. following his appointment as Chairman,

The Non-Executive Directors each receive a fee of £50,000p a., with an additional fee of £7,000 p.a. for each of the
Senior Independent Director, Chair of the Audit Committes and Chair of the Remuneration Jommittes. These fees are
unchanged from the prior vear.

In April12019 the Board agreed the SID would undertake the role of designated Non-Executive Director for the workforce
engagernent, asraquired under the new Code, at an additianal fee of £10,000p.a.

This report was reviewed and approved by the Board on § June 2019 and signed on 1ts behalf by order of the Board.

Michael Averili i
Chairman, Rermnuneration Comrnittee
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Directors' Report

Constitution

Bitfa plcisacompany incorporated in England and
Wales with company number 10336040 The Company's
Articles of Association may only be amendad by a special
resolution at a general meetingef the sharsholders.

Principal Activities

Biffa plcisthe ultimate parent Company of the Group and
trades principally through its subsidiary undertakings.
The Group is a leading waste management company in
the UK. All subsidiaries of the Company are listed on
pages 172-175 of this Annual Report.

Information Incorporated by Reference

The following information is provided in other
appropriate sections of the Annual Raport and the
Financial Statements and isincorporated by the
{ollowing referances:

Information Reportedin Pages
Corperate The Corporate 64-110
Governance Governance Statement
and Statement of
Directors’
Responsibilities
Directors Board of Directars £8-857
Directoss’' Reporton 92-106
Remuneration
Dirgetors’share 102
interests
Accounting policies, Flnancial Statements 121-175
finencialinstruments
and financialrisk
management
Going Concern Board Statements 39
Conflicts of Interest Corporate Governance 76
Report
Resulis Consolidated Income 12%
Statement
Greenhouse Gas Strategic Report 80
Emissions
Employee Strategic Report 51
[nvolvement
Employment of Strategic Report 49
Disabled People

www.biffa.couk

Directors’ Report Content

The Strategic Report, tha Corporsts Governance

Report and the Directers’ Remuneration Reportareall
incorporated by reference into this Directors' Reportand
should beread as part of this Report.

Strategic Report

The Company is required to prepare a fair review of the
business of the Group for the 52-weel period endead,

29 March 2019. The Strategic Report can be found on
pages 1-63 and within that Report are details of the
Group's business goals, business strategy and business
madel which are set out on pages 2-7.

Areviewof the Group's activities,and the position of the
Group at the end of the financial period and its prospects
for the future are contained in the Chairman's Statement
on pages 8-9. The Business and Financial Reviews and
the description of the principalrisks and uncertainties
facing the Group are contained in the Strategic Report.
Tha purpose of the Strategic Report is to enable
sharehoiders to assess how the Directors have performed
their duty underx section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
(the Act).

Corporate Governance Reporting

Details of tha Company’s compliance with the Code
and the disclosuresrequired underthe Code and the
UKListing Rules (Listing Rules) are contained within
the Corporate Governance Report on pagas 64-110. The
Compliance Statement asrequired by Rule 7.2.1 of the
Financial Conduct Authority’s (FCA]) Disclosure and
Transparency Rules [DTR) is set out pn page 110,

Management Report

For the purposes of DTR Rule 4.1.5 R(2] and DTR Rule
4.1.8, this Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report on
pages 1-63 comprise the Management Report.

Directors

The Diractors of the Company, including thair
biographical details, are listed on pages 66-67 of this
Annual Report.

The Company's Articles of Association provide thatall
Directors will stand for re-election evary three years but
in compliance with the Code all Directors at the AGM will
retire and present themseives for election or re-slection
tothe Board.

Each of the Directors is being unanimously recommaeanded
by the other members of the Board due to their experience,
knowledge and significant management experience,

their effective contribution to the businesses and a
commuitrentiotheir role.

Biffa plc Annual Report and Accounts 2019 107

0TT-p9 8oueuIsA0g 8)e1odIon



Corporate Governance

Directors’ Report continued

Details of the service contracts of the Executive Directors
and the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive
Directore can be found in the Directors' Remuneration
Policy at hitps://biffa.co.uk/ramunaration policy.

Subjact to applicable lawand the Articles of Assogiation
of the Company and to any directions given by special
resolution, the business of the Company will be managed
by the Board which may exercise 21l the powers of

the Company.

Diractors’ Indemnities and Insurance

The Company has made qualifying third-party provisions
(as defined in tha Act] for the haneht of its Directors, These
provigions temainin force atthe date of this Annual Report.

Inagcordance with the Compeny's Articles of Association,
and tothe axtent permitted by law. the Company may
imdernnify its Directors out of its own funds to cover
itabilities arising as a resuit of their office. Tha Group holds
Diractors' and Officers’ Liability Insurance cover for any
claimbrought against Directocs or Officers for wrengful
acts in connection with their positions butthe cover does
not extend to claims arising from dishonesty or fraud.

Dividends

Theinterim dividend of 2.30 pence per share was paid on
4January 2019 Directors recommend the payment ofa
tinal dividend of 4,90 penca per share for the financial
perind ended 28 March 2019 subject to approval at the
AGMon 10 July 2018, making a total payment for the year
0f7.20 pence per share. The final dividend will be payabls
on 19 July 2019 to shareholders on the register atthe
close of busingss on 28 June 2G19.

In accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.4R, details of
dividends waived by sharehalders can be found below
under the payagzaph headed Share Capital.

Authority to Purchase Shares

The Directors ara seekingauthority at the forthcoming
AGM for the GCompany to purchase its own shares within
certain timiis.

PostBalance Sheet Events

There have been na material events from 29 March 2019
tothe date of this Report.
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Sharshoiders’ Rights

Each Ordinary Share of the Company carries theright of
ang vote at general meetings of the Company. Thereare
no restrictions onthe transfer of Ordinary Shares in the
capital of the Company othey than certain restrictions
which reay from time to time be imposed by iaw. In
accordance with applicable law and the Company's shara
dealing policy, certain employess are raquired toseek
approval before dealingin any Company securities.

Employaes wha participatain the PSPand SIPand
whosa shares remain inthe Plan's trust give directions
to the Trustee to voteon their bahalf by way of a Form
of Direction.

Share Capital

The Company’s Issued sharo capital a5 at the date of
this Report is composed of a single ¢lass of 250,000,000
Ordinazy Shares of 1 pencs each,

On &.June 2019, the Biffa pic Share Incentive Flan 2016
held 839,062 shares and the Wastghaldco 1 Emplovee
Benefit Trust (EBT) held 269,081 shaves, and the Biffa
PSP plan held 1,699,776 shares in the Employee Benefit
Trust. Theright lareceive any dividend has been waived
by the Trustee ol the EBT overtheentire holding of the
trust and by Waalth Norninges Limited in respect of all
Biffa plc shares in their custodian account.

Therights and obligations attached to these shares are
governed by English law, the Actand the Company's
Articles of Agsogiation,

The Campany was dauthoriged at the 2018 AGM to ajlot
shares or grant rights to or subscribe for or convert any
security into sharesin tha Company (i) up to 8 further
narrinal amount of £833,333.33 and (i) comprising
equlty securities up to a further nominal amount of the
same figure E833,333.33 in connection with an affer
by way of arights issue. Sugh authority shall expire

at the earliar of the next AGM of the Carapany or

30 September 2018,

Additionally, the Company was authorised at the 2018
AGM to make market purchases of its own shares subject
to the condition that tha number of Ordinary Shares
re-purchased shall not excead 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company and subjact to the price for such
re-purchase not toexceed the highsr of a) 105% of the
average of the closing price of the shares onthe five
business days prior tathe re-purchase and b) the higher
of the price of thelastindependent trads and the highest
current bid for the shares. This authority shall expire on
the garlier of the next AGM or 30 September 2019,
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Substantial Shareholdings

The information provided below was correct at the date of
notification; hawever, the dateon which the information
was received may not have been within the current
financial year. Jt should be noted that these holdings are
likely to have changed since the Company was notafied.
However, notification of any changeis not required until
thanext not:fiable threshold is crossed.

Information provided tothe Company pursuantto the
FCA's DTRs is published on a Regulatory Information
Service and on the Cornpany’s wabsite.

At29March 2019, the shareholders with 3% or more of the
voting rights in the Company were:

Holding

Number ofissued

ofshares shars

Sharehalder held capital¥%

Angelo, Gordon & Co 36,285,388 14 51

Avenue Eurcpe Internatlonal

Management 25,617,862 10 28
Franklin Templeton lnvastmem-; 22,989,700 920
The Geldman Sachs Group, Inc. 13,944,023 558
Legal & General Investment

Management 12,306,751 4 92
Pelham Capital Management 11,000,000 440
ELQInvestors 8,563,950 343
Modern Slavery

In compliance with the Modern Slavary Act 2015, the
Company’s Modern Slavery Staternent can be found
onthe Company's wabsite at www.biffa co.uk.

Political Donations
Nopolitical donations have been mada during the
financial year.

Charitable Donations

During the year, the Company mads a charitable
donation of £5,000 to WasteAid. Further details
canbe found on page 43.

Contracts and Transactions

The Company is not aware of any significant agreements
towhich it is party that take effsct, alter or terminate
upon a change of cantrol of the Company followinga
takeover. The Company is not aware of any contractual
or othar agreement which is gssential to its business that
ought to be disclosed in this Directors' Report.

wwwhiffa couk

External Auditors

Sofaras each Director is aware, there is no relevant
information of which the Eompany's External Auditors
areunaware. Each Director has takern all steps that ought
to have been taken as a Director to make theraselves
aware of anyralevant audit information and toestablish
that Delpitte LLP are aware of that information.

As detailed on page 90, the Audit Committee
recommended, and the Board approved, the proposal
that the current Auditors, Deloitte LLP, be re-appointed
as Auditors of the Cormnpany at the AGM. Resolutions

to re-appoint Deloitte LLP as the Company's Auditors
until the conclusion of the AGMin 2020 and to autherise
the Directors to determine their remuneration will be
proposed toshareholders at the AGM.

Annual General Mesting

The Company's third AGM will be held at11:00amon
Wednesday 10 July 2019 at the offices of Linklaters
LLP,1Silk Street, London EC2Y 8HQ. The Notice of the
AGM contains a full explanation of tha business to he
conducted at the AGM and can be found on the Company’s
website at www biffa.coukrsinvestors.

Onbehalf of the Board.

Rachael Hambrook
Company Secretary
Biffa ple Y/

Registerad in England and Wales No. 10336040
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Corporate Govarnance

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect

of the Annua! Report and Accounts

The Directors are respansible for preparing the Annual
Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and Group
and parent Company Financial Statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations.

Company lawrequires the Directors to prepare Financial
Statements for each financisl year. Under that law the
Directors are required to prepare the Group Financial
Statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Unionand Article 4 of the International Accounting
Standards Regulation and have slected o prepare the
parent company Financial Statement in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
[United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicakle
law), including FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve

tha Financial Statements uniess they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of tha state of affalis oi the
Group and parent Company and of their profitor loss for
that period. In preparing these Financjal Statemants,
the Directors are requirsd to:

+ selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply
thera consistently:

+ makejudgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

« present information, including accounting policies, in
amanner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information;

+ inrespectof Group and parent Company Financial
Statements, state whether they have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,and

+ preparethe Financial Statements on the goingconcern
basis unlessit is Inappropriata to presume thatthe Group
and the parent Company will continuein business.

The Directors areresponsible for keeping adequate
accounting racords that are suiticient toshow and
explain the parent Company's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the parent Cornpany and enable them to
ensure that its Financial Staternents comply with the
Companies Act 2008, They have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasonably open tothem to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities
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Statement of Directors’ Resp ibility und

the Disclosure and Transparency Rules

Pursuant to Rule 4.1.12 of tha Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTRs] each of the Directors, the
names and functions of whom are set outon pages 66-67
confirm that tothe best of their knowladge.

+ the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance
with the applicable set of accounting standards, give
atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profitor loss of the Company and the
undertakings ingluded in the consolidation taken
as a whole; and

» the management report required by DTR 4.1.8R
(contained in the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report) includes afairreviewof the development and
performance of the business and the pasitionof the
Company and the undertakings included inthe
consolidation taken as & whole together witha
description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that they face.

Statement of Diractors’ Responsibility under

the UK Corporate Governance Code

Each of the Directars as detailad above conficmus that to
the best of their knowledge the Annual Report taken asa
wholeis fair, balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for shareholders to assess

the Group's and the Company’'s position, perforrmance,
business model and strategy in accordance with the Code

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and tinancial information
included on the Company's website. Legislation in the
UKgoverning the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may diffar from legislation in other
jurisdictions A copy of the Financisl Statements s
available on Biffa's website.

The Statermnent of Directors’ Responsibilities was
approved by the Board on 5 June 2019.

Ven “

Ken Lever
Chairman
6§ June 2019
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Biffa pic
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

In pur opinion.

* thefinancial statements of Biffa Plc [the ‘parent company')and its subsidiaries (the'Group') give a true and fair view of
the state of the Group's and ofthe parent company's affairs as at 29 March 2019 and of the Group's profit for the 52 week
period then ended;

+ the Group financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards [IFRSs) asadopted by the European Union;

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally

Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standarg 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™ and

the financial statements have beenprepared in accordance with the requiraments of the Companiss Act 2006 and, as

ragards the Group financial staterrents, Article 4 of the JAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

Group:

* theconsolidated income statement;

* theconsolidated statement of other comprahensive income;

* theconsolidated statement of financial position;

+ theconsalidated statement of changes in equity;

* theconsolidated statement of cash flows;

* therelatednotes1to 37 for the consolidated financial statements;

Parent company:

» theparent companyaccounting policies;

* theparentcompanybalancesheet;

* theparentcompany statement of changes in equity, and

* therslated notes1to 9 of the parent company financial statements.

Thefinancial reporting framework that hasbeen applied in the preparation of the Group financial staterments is applicable
lawand IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that hasbeen applied in the
preparationof the parsnt company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including FRS 101 *Raduced Disclosure Framework”{ United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

Wa conducted our audit in aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (U] (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur
rasponsibilities under thase standards are further described in the auditor s responsibilities for the auditof the financial
staterments section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company inaccordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statemnents in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the ‘FRC's') Ethieal Standard
asapplied tolisted public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements, We confirr that the non-audit services prohabited by tha FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided tothe
Group or the parent company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriata to provide a basis for gur opinion.
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditor's Report to the mermbers of Biffa plc
Report on the audit of the Financigl Statements continued

Summayry of our audit approach

Koy audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the ciirent year were:

« Land#ill Accounting

« Retiremant BenetitObligations

« AssetImpseirmentinEnergy and Municipal Division
+ Onerous Contract Coneiderations

Within thig report, any new kev audit matte:s are identitled with  and any key sudit matters which are

the same ag tha prior year identitled with .

Matoriality The materiality that we usad for the Group finencial statements was £4.0 million which was
determined on the basis of revenue, underlying EBITDA and profit before tax, exceptional items and
re-reeasuremants (*edfusted projit before tax') This equatesto 0.4% of Broup revenue.

Scoping We performed full scope audits an 151egal entitles and specitied sudit procedures onllegalentity
iocated in the United Kingdom and Malte These entities accountfpr 98% ofthe Grovp's ravenue, and

98% of netassets.

Significant changesin One key audit matter identified in the previous year ang descrided in aur report (or the vear ended

our approach 30 March 2018 is not included in gur report for the yeary ended 29 March 2019 Thiswas theremoval of
uncectsin tax positions 55 3 kev sydit maiter on the basis that we contirmed with Ritfa's advisers that
no changes have oocyrred within this case within the year, and hence no change in the proposed

accounting trastment

We have also removed acquisition accounting as a key audit matter as management have utilised
external valuation specialists in the current vear to support theic valuation.

This year we have identified onerous contracts considerations ps a new key audit matter, dute to the
significant judgement exercised in determiningthe amounts and have increas ed our focus onaseet
impairment to include the Municipal division in addition to the Energy division as aseessed inthe
previous period, dueto adverse trading conditions realised in the period

Conclusions relating to golng concern, principal risks and viahility statement

Golng concern

We have reviewed the directors’ staternent on page 110 to the financlal statements about
whether they considered it appropriate to adopt the going tonsern basis of accounting in
preparing them and their identificetion of eny material uncertainties to the Group’s And
company's ability to continue to do so over a period of at 18ast twelve months from the date
of approval of the t{lnancial statements

We considered aspart of ourriskassessmont the netuze of the Group, its business model and

related risks Including where relovant the impact of Brexit, the requirsments of the applicable

tinancial reporting tramework and the system of internal control. We evaluated the directors’
assessment of the Group's ability tn continue as a going concern, including challenging the
underlylng data and key assumptions used to make the agsessment, and evalustad the
directors’ plans for future sctions in relation to their going concern agsessment

We ara required to state whether we have anything tnaterial to add or draw attention to in
relationtothat steiement required by Listing Rule 9 8 8R{3) andreportif the statement is
materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtainedinthe audat.

Principal riaks and viability statement
Based solely on reading the directors' statements and considering whethar they were

consistent with the knowledgs we gbtained in the course of the audit, including tha knowladge

obtained {n the evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group’s and the company's
ability to continue as a going concarn, wa ara required to state whether we have anything
mauterial toadd or dzaw pttention toinrelation 1o

the disclosures on pages 34-38 that describe the principal1isks and explain how they are

baing managed or mirigated,

-+ the dirpotors’ confirmation an page 70 that they have carried cut a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group, ncluding those thet would thresten 1tg businesg madel,
future parformance, sclvency or liquidity: or

- thedirsctors’ explanation on page 38 as to how they have agsessed the prospectsofthe

Group, over what period they have done so and why they consider that period tobe

appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable axpectationthal the

Group willbe able to continue in operation and meet its Yiabilities as they fall due averthe

period of thelr assessment, Including any related disclosures drawing attention toany

necessary quahfications or assumplions.

We are alsorequired to roport whether the dirgctors' statement relsting tothe prospecis of the
Graup required by Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materlally inconsistent with our knowledge
chrained in theaudit.

We cantirm thet we have nothing
materialtorepoct, add ordraw
attentiontoinrespect of these
matters.

We confirmthat we have nothing
material toreport, add ordraw
attention to inrespact of these
matters.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period andincluds the most significant assessed risks of material misstaternent
(whether or not due ta fraud] that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit stratagy, the allocation of resourcesin the avdit, and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinien
thereon,and we donot provide a separate opinion on these matters

Inthe prior year we included Uncertain Tax Positions as a key audit matter. In the current period, this is not considerad
a key audit matter on the basis that there have been nomaterial changes, legal or otherwise, in ths disputes with HMRC.
Furthermors we determined that Acquisition Accounting would not be considered a key audit matterin the current year
due to management's utilisation of external valuation specialists to support their purchase price allocation exercise.
We have also considered that due to the difficult trading positions of the Municipal division in the current year that we
increased our focus on assetimpairment in the Municipal division, as well as potential onarous contract provisions.

Landfill Accounting »

Keyauditmatterdescription  Asat 28 March 2018 the Group holds a landfill restoration and aftercare provision of £67.4 million
{30 March 2018. £7¢4 2 million}.

The Group operates a number of landfill sites in the UK Asignificant cost of owning and operatinga
Tandflll site in the UK arises after theland filling operation ceases due to the constructive and legal
obligation torestore sites and then to care for themuntil it can he dermonsirated that thgy present na
ongoing risktothe environment Theliabilities extend untilthe waste is considered tobe inert, which
is generally assumed to be up to 60 years following closure of the site. The Group makes the provision,
within the financial statements, tor such long-term obligations through its prowvisions for restoration.
The level of costs expected are uncertainand can vary significantly from site to site

As these provisions arise inconnection with sn asset, under IAS 16 "Propesty, Plant and Equipment”
the costs are gapitalised and depreciated over the rernaining life of the associated asset.

The key audit matter arises irom a number of estimation uncertainties which exist inrelation to the
level of the provision and depreciation required. These include the appropriateness af the totalcost
and void data as well as the accuracy of the underlying calculations with the key variables being
gross cost assumptions, void assumptlons and the discountrate applied to the cash flow assumption

As part of our assessment of risk of material misstatements due to fraud, we evaluated which ofthe
judgements and assumptions in landtill provision raight give rise to potential fraud rigks We have
focused our audit procedures ta detectthe inflation of performance through the manipulation ot
the provision.

The associated disclosure is included fn Note 21. The Audit Committee has included their assessment of
thisriskon pege 59 and is included within the key sourcas of estimation uncertalnty in Note 1
For specifics of the Group's accounting policy please sae page 135,

How the scope of our augit Our audit response focused on verifying and challenging the underlying data and key assumptions
responded to the key audit used by management in calculating the restoration and aftercare provisions.
matter

Biffa uses internal and external experts to help deterrine the total expenditure required to
remediate sites. As part of the audit we obtained and inspected experts’ reports for consistency with
publicly available information and their reflection in the forecasts prepared, We have also assessed
the competencs, objectivity and independence of the internal and external specialists.

We performed procedures tounderstand the adequacy of the design, implementation and cperating
eftectiveness of controls in place over the completeness and accuracy aof accounting for landfill
provisions.

We assessed and challenged the assumptions and judgements in management's caleulations with
reference to market and historical data, this Included discount rates applied in the forecast cash
flows. We have Independently calculated an appropriate discount rate range and used thisto
penchmark management's rate, We have performed a sensitivity analysis of the environmental
provision utilising our independently saleulated range We have also tested the mathematical
accuracy of the calculations prepared including the reversal or utllisation of provisions in the
curreat perlod.

Furthermore we performed an assessment of the reasonableness of the forecast earnings that
underpin the cash flows used in the calculation of the provision, for a sample of sltes with
comparison to historical financial information and agreement to budget; tested landfillrelated
provisions through substantive analytical reviews; and re-performed the arithmetical aceuracy
ofthe costof the provision

Kevobservations Based on the work performed as gutlined above we conclude the assumptlons tobe appropriate and
concur with managernent that the level of landfill provtsion is adequate.
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditor's Report to the mmembers of Biffa ple
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements cantinued

Retirement Benetit Obligaticns »

Koy audit matter degeripiion

The Group operates several defined beneflt pension schemes whichare accounted for under IAS 19
(*Employee Benetits™). At 29 March 2019, the Group has recognised a net deflned benetit surplus
arising from the defined benefit schemes of £79.0m (2018: £61 3m) Included within this figure isa
gross defined beneflt obligation of €523.8rm (2018. £472 8m]

Penslaon accounting ls a spectallst area requiring the exercise ot signiticent management judgement
and theuse of technical expertise to determing the surplus ar deficit of the scharne in accordance
with generally accepted actuarial practices. We have identitiod a key andit matter specifically in
relation tothe assumption used in valuing the detined benefit pension liabilities including the use
of assumptions on the discount rate, rortality assumption, inflation level, pension increase and
measures of longevity The settingol these assumptions ;5 complex and changes to the assumptigns
can have a Mmaterial impact on the value of pension assets and liabilities, These measures canhave a
materfalimpact in datecmining the quantum of the setirement benetit liability.

Furthsrmorg, in the current year with the recent requirements for all companies to comply with
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions ("GMP")equalisation. we specifically laoked at the costs associated
with meeting these requizements.

Management also determined to account for certain Local Government pension schemes praviously
accounied for as delined contribution schemes on the basis of materialify as defined benefit schemes
inthe current year There is a keyaudit matter relating to the correct accounting treatmentof these
schemes and associated reimbursabie assets

The fated disch a is included tr Note 25, The Audit Commitise has included their assessment
of thisr(sk on page 89 and {s included within the key sources of astimation uncerstainty in Note 1.
For specifics of the Group’s accounting policy please see page 132,

How the scope of our audit
responded to the keyaudit
matier

We performed walk thraugh procedures to evaluate the adequecy of the design and impl ation
controls in place over tha accounting of retiremant benetit obligation.

Wehave tested the slgnificant judgements made by Bitie plc third party actuaries and agsessed |
their cormnpetence and independence. We also used our internal agtuarial experts io assess the key !
assumptions applied in determining the pension obligation for tha schemas, and determined whether

the key assuwmptions arg r: nable The tincludeds ngand challerging available

yield curves, discount rate, inflation. mortality data and the impact of the recent guaranteed

minlmur pension ruling, torecalculate a reasonable benchmarkfor the key assumptions We

challenged management to understand the sensitivity of changes in key assumptions and quantily

1he impact of illustrativa benchmarkrates that could be used intheir calculations.

Adaitionally we have considered the independence, objectivity and compatence of the indzpendent

actuaries engaged by management ta perform valustions of the relevantschemes Waalsatested 3 !
sample of the data used in the attuarial valuation, as well as assessing the hasis an which pension

surpluses wererecognised Thelatter involved agresingrelated terms to the deeds of the relevant

Group pension scheme

With regards to the ingluslon of the Local Government pension scheme and associated reimburssble
assets, we have assessed the appropriateness of the eccounting treatment with comparison to others
within the industry. and through consuitation with internal specialists. We have also avalugted the
valuatian of the reimbursable assat with consultation with internal spacialists, and raviewed the
terms of the contract to contirm the appropriatenass of the calculations.

Key observations

Based on the work perfoermed as outlined above, we are satisfiad thal the methodologies and key )
sssumptions applied inrelation to determining the perislon vatuation, when taken inwggragate, !
fall within an acceptable range

AssetImpairment in Energy and Munieipal Divisions »

Kevy audit matter description

As at 29 March 2018 the Group held non-gurrent assets of E856.6m (2018 £806.2m) whichcould be at
riskof impairment, including a goodwillbalance of £128 2m (2018 £100.3m] arising as aresult ofthe
previous Group restructurings and acquisitions We focused our impairment of goodwill and other
intangible assets testing on the Energy and Municipaldivisions based ontheir low levels of
headroom, and high sensitivity tokey inputs.

The Grouyp also carries different classes of intangible assets, gas resexves, brand and vustarner
contracts. Additionally, the Group has classes of tangible agsets.

Management identified four Cash Generating Units ("CGUs") that sre in line with their operating
divisions. The recoverable amount of these four GGUs has been calculated on a Value in Use basls
(*V1U"). We havedentified a key audit matter specifically in ralation tg tha key areas of estimation
uncertaintyused inthe forecasts Thase include the discount rate, Jong term growth rates, forecast
tonnage, electricily prices, masket prices and gas yield projections and the Syoup's ability to win
certain new Municipal contracts

The assoclated disclosure is inctuded in Note 12. The Audit C, (ttoe has ded their
of this risk an page 89 and is included withtn the key sources of sstimation uncertainty in Note 1.
For specitics of the Group’s accounting policy please see page 130.
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Asset Impatrmentin Energyand Municipal Divisions cantinued

How the scopsa ol our andit
responded to the key audit
matiar

We held discussions with management to understand the process that the Group followed in its asset
impairmentassessment. Following these discussions we assessed the design and implementation of
the controls that management operates over the process.

Wehave reviewed the forecast reports provided by management’s experts for consistency with

other third party experts, publicly available information and the reflectlonin the cash flow forecasts.

We have assessed thaindependence, objectivity, and competency of the internal and external
expertaused

We have evaluated the accuraey of future cash flow forecasts with reference to recent performance,
trend analysis and an assassment of historicalforecasting sccuracy of their forecasts against actual
outturnthatunderpinthe cash flows usedin the assessment.

Wehave evaluated managements assumptions made over the overheads allocated to the division,
and thelreventualdecline over time as various trading elements of the division cease through
comparison against previous forecasts and our understanding of the nature of the continuing
business.

We further challenged management's sensitivity analysis and performed our own sensitivity
analysis on key variables Havingascertained the extent of change in these assurnptions that
githar were individually or collectively would be reguiyed for the goodwill and intangible assets
tobe impaired, we considered tha likelihood of such movement in those key azsumptions arising

We used our internal valuation specialists to determine an acceptanle range of discount rates
utilising market cornparable information and compared the rate calculated by management. We have
challenged management in the long range growth rates in comparison to those used by comparable
competitors. We also tested the mathematical sccuracy of the salculaticn as performed

We validated the integrity of management’s impairment model through testing the mechanical
accuracy and verifyingthe application of the input assumptions. We also evaluated the process
management undertook to prepare the cash flow forecasts in its impatrment model including
agreegment with the latest Board approved plans and management approved forecasts.

Wea considered reasonable possible changes in assumptions to challenge the appropriateness of
management’s assessment of reasonable possible change scenarios. Dur challenge was informed by
input from certain of our internal valuation specialists, utilising their knowledge and expertise.

Keyobservations

We conclude that the assumptions applied inthe impalrment models, when taken in aggregate, are
within our acceptable range We agree that significant estimation uncertainty surrounding the
Energy division disclosed Note 12 represents reasonable worst case scenarios.

Onerous contract provisions +

Key audit matter description

Inthe partod ending 29 March 2019, managemant have recognised a charge of £10.2m (2018: £5.2m}
within the financial statements against onerous contracts, bringing the total provision to £18 2m
(2018: £7.7m).

Duato the significant increase in the provision in the year, we haverecognised this as a key audit
rmattar in the current year. There 1s a risk that the provision recognised in respect of these contracts
does not appropriately cover the unavoidable future losses against the contract as required under
tAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.

Wehave identitied a key audit matter in respect of the judgements applied in the assessment of
unavoidable future cash flows, particularly inrelation to key estimation areas around the Retail
Price Index [RPI) rate, commodity prices applied and unavoidable costs under the contracts.

The associated disclosure {5 inciuded in Note 21 The Audit Committee has included their assessment
of this risk on page 89 and is included within the key sources of estimation uncertainty in Note 1.
For specifics of the Group's accounting policy please see page 135.

How the gcope of our audit
rasponded to the key audit
mattar

We performed procedures to understand the design and implementation of controls in place to
identify contracts which may be onerous, and determine whether the potential liablity ig
appropriately accounted and disclosed inthe Group's finangial staternents.

We have evaluated the accuracy of future cash flow forecasts with reference torecent performance,
trend analysis. an assessment of hustorical forecasting accuracy and opetational improvements
againstthe contracts.

Additionally, we assessed the forecast assumptions used by management around RPI, commodity
values againstexternal marketdata and otherrates in the model checked against underlying signed
contracts and agreements.

We have evaluated the models created by management tor arithmetical accuracy and the approach
takeninrelation to therecent draft 1AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets”
amendments published by the Financial Reporting Couneil (“FRC"),

Keyobservations

Based on the work perforred as outlined above, we are satisfied that the level of provision recognised
by management Is in accordance with 1AS 37 “Provislons, Contlngent Liabilities, and Contingent
Assels” against onerous centracts.
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Biffa plc
Report on the audit of the Financial Staterments continued

Our application of materiality
We defins materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. Weuse materiality both In
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on pur professional judgement, we determined materiality forthefinanciai statements asa whala as follpws:

Group finencial statements

Patent company financial statements

Marariality

Basia lordetermining

rasteriality

£4.0m (2018: £3.5m)

Materiality hasbeendstermined with reference
torevenue, undexlying EBITDA end profit betare
tax, exceptional ltems and re-measurements
{*adjusted protit before tax” ). The materfality
determined of £4.0meguates to 0.4% (2018- 3X)
of revenue.

inmakingthig determination, we calculated an
adjusted profit betors tax as 101lows:

taking the statutory profit before tax,
addingback iterng classed as exceptionalin
Note 3:and

adjustlag the atfect pf the change in discount
rate on aftercare pravisions. gothatits
tmpact onadjusted profit reprasents a five
vear normalised average figure,

£1.7m (2018 £1.41m)

TheCompany materiality was determined on the
basis of net assets and equates to 0.8% [2018: 0.6%)
ol the Company’s net assets.

Rationale for the
benchmark applied

The business is currently highly acquisitive.
and therefore profitbefore tax is very lowinthe
overall contextof thebalances within the
financial stataments. Wa believe that usinga
materiality based on these benchmarks reflects
critical underlying measures of the Group
which 18 given substantial prominence
throughout the annual report and retlects the
key metrios used by analysts intheirreports
and coramunications to shareholders and
investors, as well as the communications of
peer compaenies. Incalculating an adjusted PBT
tigure, we removed exceptional items as these
are not retlective vfthe underlying performance
of the Group. We consider that the impact of the
change indiscountrate on the aftercars
provision ls @ recusring dterm and have therefore
Included it in our caloculstion; howaver, because
ofits valatility, we have taken an average over
five years Wa consider this measure suitable
having considered also ather benchmarks: our
materlality equates to 2 7% (2018: 2.3%) of
Underlying EBITDA 1.1% (20181 0X] of Net
Assete, 8.8% (2018: 5 8%) of oparating profit, and
0.5%[2018: 0.4% ) of gross non-¢urrent pssets

As the Company is non-trading and operates as
primarily a holding Company for the Group’s
trading entities, wa believe that the net agset
position is the most appropriatebenchmark to use

Revenue
@ Group matenahty

Group matariglity
£40m

£1,091 2m

Gompanent materiality range

£3.2mto £1 2m

Audit Cornrnittee reparting threshold
£0 20m
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Levels of materiality applied to components ranged from £3.2m to £1.2r0 (2018: £2.8m to £1.4m), depending onthe scale of
the component’s operations and our assessment of risks specific to each entity.

We have also set performance materiality for the Geoup at £2.8m (2018, £2 45m]) which represents 70% of our materiality.
We use performance materiality to determine the extent of our testing; it is lower than materiality toreflect our assessmant
of therisk of errors undetected by our sample testingand uncorrected in the financial staternents.

We agraeed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.20m
(2018: £0.17m], as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.
We alsoreport tothe Audit Committee on disclosure matters that wea identified when assessing the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Biffa plc primarily operates in the United Kingdom,; the Group has two active overseas entitias based in Malta that provide
insurance services to the Group.

We consider the statutory reporting structure toreflect the cornponents of the Group as this is how managerment monitor
and control the business. The materiality and scope of work for each entity has been assessed based upon its significance
and contributions tothe Group. Audit procedures are then performed based upon the level of scope identified.

Based on this assessmant, we performed full scope audits on15(2018:15] legal entities and specified audit procedures on
1(2018.2)1egal entitylocated in the United Kingdom and Malta. The number of scoped entities have dacreased since the
prior year following the dissclution of 8 number of non-trading entities in the Group. The full scops and specifiad audit
procedures entities 2ccount for 98% (2018: 39%) of the Group's revenue, 98% (2018: 88%) of profit before taxation and 98%
[2018- 99%] of net asgets.

In additionto the work performed at a component levsl the Group audit team also performs audit procedures on the parent
cormpany financial statements including but notlimited to corporate activities such as treasury and pensions as well as on
the consolidated financial statements themselves, including entity level controls, litigation provisions, the consolidation
and financial statement disclosures. In addition we carried out review proceduras to confirm our conclusion that thers
wereno significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining components
notsubject toa full scope audit or spacified audit procedures.

Asenior member of the Group audit team oversaw work on the Maltese entity. We sent detailed instructions tothe Maltese
component audit team, included them in our team briefings, discussed the risk assessment, attended the closing meeting
and reviewed their aydit working papers.

Revenue Profit before tax Net assets
2% 2% 2% 1% 2%
09ax 96% 9%

4 Fullauditscope
@ Specifled audit provedures
' Review atGroupleve)
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Biffa plc
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements continued

Other information

The directors are respansible for the other information. The other intormation comprises the Wehavenothing toreport in respect
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and ows ofthesa matters
auditor's report thareon.

Qur opinion an the financial statements does not cover the other information and, exceptto
the extent otherwise explicitly stated inour repost, wedo not express any form af assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is tozead the
ather infermation and, in doiag 50, consider whether the pther information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statamants or our knowledge obtalned in the avdit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

11 we identify such materialinconsistencies or apparent materia} misstatements, we are
required 1o determine whether there is a material misstatement in the finencial statemeants
or a material misstatement of the other information. If, hased on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there s a material misstatement of this other information, we arerequired te
report that fact

In this context, matters that we are specitically required to report to you as uncorrected
matyrial misstatements of the other information incluode where we conclude that:

» Fair, baienced and understandabie - the statement given by the directors that they consider
the annualreport and tinanclal statements taken as a whole is fajr, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to agsess the
group's position and performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent
with our knawledge tbtained in the sudit; or

« Audit Cammittes reporting - the section describing the work ol the Avdit Commities does not
appmp:lstew address matters communicated by usto the Audit Committes: or

. t of camplance with the UK Corporate Governance Code - the parts ofthe
dlrecmts statement requited under the Listlag Rulesrelating to the company's compliance
with the UK Corpurate Governance Code containing provisions speclfled for review by the
auditorin accordance with Listing Rule 9 .10R(2) do not properly disclose a departurafrom
a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Coda.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained mora fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors ere responsible for the preparation ot
the financial staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,and for suchinternal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparingthe financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosingas applicable, matters related togoingconcern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidate the Group or the parent campany or to cease
operations, ar have no realistic alternative buttodo so

Aunditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectivesare to obtain reasonable assurance about whathar the financial statements asawhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an guditor’'s report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable
assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantae thatan audit canducted inaccordance with 1ISAs (UK} will
always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud or errorand are considered
material if, individually o1 inthe aggregate, they could zeasonably be expeacted toinfluence the econamic decisions of users
taken onthe basis of theselinancial statements

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud are sat out below.

Afurther deseription of our rasponsibilities for theaudit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's wabsite at:
www.irc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
We 1dentify and assess therisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
then design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, including obtaining auditevidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for nur opinion.

Identifying and assessing potential rigsks related to irregularitias
Inidentifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and
non-compliance with laws and regulations, our procedures included the following:

- enquiring of management, internal audit, legal, the company secretary, site managers and the Audit Commuttee,
including obtaining and reviewing supporting documentation, concerning the Group's palicies and procedures
relating to:

- identifying, evaluating and tomplying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware ol any instances of
non-compliance;

~ detectingandresponding to therisks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged
fraud;

- theinternal controls established to mitigate yisks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We have identified sufficient controls in place to identify fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations,
includinglearnings for all members of employees, and a whistleblowing hotline;

- discussing among the engagement team including significant componentaudit teams and involving relevant internal
specialists, including tax, valuations, pensions, and IT regarding how and where fravd might occur in the financlat
staternents and any potential indicators of fraud. As part of this discussion, we {dentlfled potential for fraud in the
following areas. revenue recognition, landfill accounting, assetimpairment, acquisition accounting, and onerous
contract provisions; and

» obtainingan undersiandingof the legal and regulatory frameworks that the Group operates in, [ocusing on those laws
andregulations that had a direst effect on the financial staterments or that had a fundamental effect on the operations of
the Group. The key laws and regulations we considered in this context included the UK Companles Act, Listing Rules,
pensions legislation, and taxlegislation. In addition, compliance with terms of the Group’s operating licences and
environmental regulations were fundamantal to the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,

Audit rasponse to risks identifigd

Asaresult of performing the above, we identified landfill accounting, asset impairment and onerous contract provisions
as keyaudit matters. The key audit matters section of our report explains the mattersin moredetail and also describes the
spacific procedures we performed in responss to those keyaudit matters.

In addition to the ahova, our procedures ta respond tarisks identified included the following:

+ reviewingthe financiai statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
relevant laws and regulations discussed above;

+ enguiring of management, the Audit Committes and in-house and externallegal counsel concerningactualand
potential litigation and claims;

- performinganalytical procedures toidentify any unusual or unexpected ralationships that mayindicate risks of
material misstatemant due to fraud;

+ reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internalauditreports and reviewing
cerrespondance with HMRC, and FRC and the Environment Agency;

» involvementof specialists and sxternalreports to challenge any key judgements and areas of estimation uncertainty
presented by management, specitically inrelation to revenue recognition, landfill accounting, assetimpairment,
acquisition accounting and onerous contract provision discussed above; and

« inaddressing therisk of fraud through management ovarride of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries
and other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates areindicativeof a
potentialbias; and evaluating the business rationale of anysignificant transactions that are unusual or outsidas the
normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fravud risks to all sngagement team membars
includinginternal specialistsand significant component audit teems, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or
non-compliance with lawsand regulations throughout the audit.
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Financiai Statements -
Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Biffa plc
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements continued

Reporton other legal and ragulatoryrequirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companias Act2006

In our opinion the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be aud:ted has been properly prepared in accordence with
the Companies Act 2008.

Inour opinlion, based on ths work undertakenin the course of the audit:

« theinformation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
staterments are praparad is consistent with thefinancial statements; and
- thestrategic reportand the directors’ report have been prepared in a¢cordance with applicable legalrequirements,

In the light of the knowledge and vnderstandingof the group and of the parent company and their environment obtainad in
the course of the audit, wa have notidentified any material misstatements in the strategic reportor ths directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required toreport by exception

Adequacy of axplanations recsived and acenunting records We have nothing 10 report in respact
Under the Companies Agt 2006 wa are rgguised to réport to you i, in cur opinion: ofthese matters.

» wehave not raceived all the intormation and explanations we require for our audit;or

« adequale accounting records have not bean kept by tha parent company, ot returns adequate
for our audit have not been received fzom branches not visited by us: or

» the parentcompany financlal statements are notin agreement with the accounting cecords
and returns.

Directors’ remuneration Ws have nothing toreport in Tespect
Under the Companies Act 2006 we ar1e alsg required tareportifin gur opinion cartain of these matterss.

disclosuras of directors’ remuneration have not been made or the partof the directors:

remuneration raport to be audited 18 not in agreement with tha accounting racords and retuzns.

Other matters

Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committes, we were appointed by the Board on 23 August 2016 to audit the
financial statements for the period ending 24 March 2017 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total
uninterrupted engagement including praviousrenewals and reappointments of the firmis 3 years, coveringthe pericds
ending 24 March 2017 to 29 March 2014.

Consistency of the aundit raport with the additional report to the Audit Comumittes
Our sudit gpinlon is consistent with the additional report to the audit committes we are required to provide in accordance
wlth15As (UK).

Use of our report

Thisraport is made solely to the cornpany’s membare, as a bedy, in accordence with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Corapanies
Act2006.0ur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required tostate to them {n an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fyllest extent permitted by {aw, we donot
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
wark, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Mhé@@/

Makhan Chahal ACA [Sendor statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Delojtte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

4.June 2019
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Consoplidated Incorme Statermnent

82 weeks endad 26 March 2019 53 weeksended 30 March 2018
R Other
Underlying items Underlying Otheritems
aotvities £m Total activities Ern Total

Notes £m (Note3) £m £m [Note 3] £m
Continuing operations
Revenug z 1,081.2 - 1,091.2 1,076.7 - 1,078 7
Gostofsales [969.0) [34.5) [893.8) {945.0) [17.9] (862 9]
Gross pyofit 132.2 [34.5) 97.7 131.7 (17 9) 1136
Operatinggosts [50.5) (1.8) (62.3) [50.8) (0.9} (51.4)
Operating proft 81.7 (38.3) 45.4 B8l.2 (18.8) 62.4
Finance income 4 1.5 - 1.6 0.5 - 0.6
Finance charges 4 (18.2) {6.2) (25.4) {22 2) (2.5) fea.7)
Profit/(logs) before taxation ] 84.0 (42.5) 21.5 59.6 ({21.3) 38.3
Taxation 9 [(12.8) 8.0 [3.6) (117} 4.9 (7.2)
Protit/[loae) for the period 51.56 [33.5) 18.0 47.9 (16.8) 311
Profit/(loss] attributableto sharsholders
ofthe parent Company 51.8 (33.5) 18.0 47.9 (16 8) 311
Basicand diluted earnings/{loss] per
share (pence) 10 20.8 (13.4) 7.2 192 (6 8] 12.4

Other iterns includes exceptionalitems, the impact of real discount rate changes to tandfill pravisions and amortisation of
acquisitionintangibles.
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Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income ‘

62 weaks 53 wesks

ended ended
29 March 30 March
2019 2018
Notes £m £m
Protitforthe from 1 P 18.0 311
Other P ivel /floas)
Items from continuing oparations that will not be itied 1y to profit or loss:
Actuarisl gain on defined benefit pension scheme 28 27.3 327
Taxrelating 10 items that will not be reclassitied subsequently to profit or loss 8 (4.9} (a1)
22.3 28,8
Items from continuing operations that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Net loss on cash flow hedge [0.3) (0.3)
Other comprehensive income for the period. net of income tax 22.0 28.3
Tatal comprehansiveincomas forthe period 40.0 51: 7
Attributable to shareholders of the parent Company 40.0 58.4
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Asat Asat
280March 30March
2019 2018
Notes Em £m
Assats
Non-current aseets
Gpodwill 12 128.2 100.3
Dtherintangible assets 13 213.0 216.9
Property, plant and equipment 14 365.4 340.5
Long-termreceivables 16 68.9 3.7
Deferred tax assots 22 2.1 1458
Retirerment benefit surplus 29 79.0 513
866.6 806 2
Current pggats
Inventaries 15 14.4 12.7
Trade and other receivables 16 196.2 184.9
Financialassets 19 16.7 9.4
Current tax assets 0.8 0.2
Cashand cash equivalents 17 €6.2 40.8
Assets held far sale 18 0.1 0.1
283.1 2481
Currentliabilities
Borrowings 18 {31.7) (31.1)
Derivative financial instruments 19 7 (0.7) (0.1)
Trade and other payables - 20 (249.6) (233.9)
Provisions 21 [18.0) s 1)
Totaleurrent liabilities [(298.0) [278.2)
Net current Habilities {(a.9) (301)
Non-eurrent labilitios
Borrowings 18 (a87.5) (328.6)
Trade and other payables 20 [13.7) (13.0
Provisions 21 (90.3) (93.3)
Total non-current Habilitiea (a91.5) (434.9)
Netaasotg 3ae0.2 341.2
Equity
Called up share capital 24 2.6 ]
Share prernivm 24 235.3 2353
Hedgingreserves (0.4) -
Mergerreserve 24 74.4 74.4
Retained earnings 25 8.4 28.0
Total equity attributable to shareholders 360.2 3412

TheFinancial Statements were approved by the Board aof Directors and authorised for issue on 5 June 2018. They were

signed on jts behalfby:

Mo —
Michael Topham

Director
Companyno: 10336040
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Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Calledup Hedging Retained

share Share Merge: and other earnings/ Total

capital premium reserve réserves (deficit) aquity

Notes Em £m Em £m £m £m

Asat24 March 2017 25 2355 744 0.3 (21.1] 2916

Profitfor the period - - - 3l.1 311

Other comprehensive (loss}/income - (oaj - [0.2) 28.6 28.0

Total comprehensive {loss}/income - (a.2) - 0.3 £9.6 68.1

Value of employee service inraspect ci share

option schemes 23 - - - - 19 19
Dividends paid - - - - (11.4) (11.43

As at 30 March 2018 2.5 235.3 74.4 - 29.0 341.2
Adjustment inrespect of IFRS 15 adaption - - - - (8.2]) (8.2]

Restated opening position 2.5 2358.3 74.4 - 22.8 335.0

Profitfor the period - - - - 18.0 1B.0

Other camprehensive (loss)/income - - - (0 4) 22 4 22.0

Total preh ive (loss)/d - - - (0.4) 40.4 40.0

Value of employee service inrespect of share

aption schemes (net nf tax) 22 - - - - 2.2 2.2
Dividends paid - - - - [17.0) {17 0)

Asat28March2018 2.5 235.3 744 (0.4) 48.4 364.2
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

52 wasks 53 weeks
ended ended
29 March 30March
2018 2018
Notes £m £m
Cashflows from operating activities
Cash generated trom operaticng 26 133.0 141.7
Restructuring and exceptional cpsts [4.5) [4.3]
Employee share scheme purchase (1.4) {1.5]
Netcash from operating activities 127.1 135.9
Income tax paid (a.2) 1.7}
Net cashinflow from operating activities 126.8 134.2
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {42.4) (36 2)
Purchases ofintangible assets [3.7) (7.0}
Purchase of husiness, netof cash acquired 11 (41.5) (41 0]
Praceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 0.8 5.2
Interest recelved 0.3 0.1
Netcash used ininvesating activitios {B8.4) (7B.9)
Cashflows from tinancing activities
Interest paid ) (18.3) (19.7)
[(Repayment)/drawdown of borrowings a7 45.1 {4.4)
Finance lease principal payments 27 (33.0) (35 3]
Receipt of funds held on long term deposit 8.2 -
Deposits made i respect of long-term bonds - 0.1
Dividends paid ) (17.0) (11 43
Netcash flow used infinancing activities {16.1) [70.9]
Netincrease/(decrease) iIncash and gash equlvalents 26.4 [15.8)
Cagh and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 40.8 56.4
Cash and cash equivalents at theend of the period 17 86.2 40.8
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The consolidated Financial Staterments havebeen prepared inaccordance with Intarnational Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) adopted by the European Union (EU)and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS regulations and
the parts of the Companigs Act 2008 applicable to entities reporting under IFRS. The comparative financial information
has alsa been prepared onthis basis.

Tha consolidated Financial Statemants have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the recording of pensions
assets andliabilities and the revaluation of certain derivative finencial liabijlities instruments.

The preparation of Financial Staterments in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting astimates.
Italso requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
invplving a higher degree of judgernant or complexity, or areas wherg assumptions and astimates are significant tothe
consolidated Financial Statements are disclosed on page 139

The Group'sincorne statement and segrmental analysis separately identify financial results before exceptional and othar
items. The Directors heligva that the pressntation of the results in this way is relevant to an understanding of the Group’s
financial performance. Presenting financial resuits befors exceptional and other items is consistent with the way that the
financial performance is measured by managementand reported to the Board and a1ds tha comparability of reported
results fromyear to year in this context.

Going concern

The Group measts its day-to-day working capital requirements through its bank facilities The current economic and
political conditions create uncertainty: however, the Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably
possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group should be able to operate within the currentlevel of its
facilities. Having assessed the principal risks and other matters discussed in connection with the Viability Statement,
the Directors consider itappropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparningthe consolhidated Financial Statameants,

Basis of consolidation

The Group Financial Staterments consolidate the Financial Staternents of the Company and all of its subsidiaries.
Subsidiaries are allentities over which the Grouphas the power to affectits raturns. The Groupreassesses whether or not it
cantrols an investeaif facts and circurmnstances indicate that there are changes to its ability to govern. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred tothe Group and are de-consolidated from the date on
whichcontrol ceases.

Allintra-group trangactions ars eliminated as part of tha consolidation process. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ascounting policies and disclosures

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year

Impact of Initial application gt IFRS 9 Financial Instrumenta

Inthe current year, the Group has applied from 31 March 2018 IFRS 8§ Financial Instruments (as revised in July 2014) and
therelated consequential amendments to gther IFRS Standards that are effective leranannual period that hegins onor
after 1January2018.

IFRS 9introduced new raquirements for:

- the classification and measurementof tinancial assets and financial liabilities;
- impairment of financial assets; and
» general hadge accounting

IFRS 9 modities the classification and measurement of cartain clasges of financial assets and liabilities and requires the
Group toreassess the clagsification of tinancial assets frorm four to three primary categories (amortised cost, fair value
through profit and loss (FVTFL), fair valua through other comprehensive income), reflecting the business model in which
assets are managed and their cash flow characteristics. Financial liabilities continue tobe measurad at sithar fair value
through profit and loss oramortised cost.
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The Group has applied [FRS 9inaccordance with the transition provisions setout in IFRS 9. (a) Classificationand
measurement of financial assets. The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the Group has assessedits existing
tinancial assets and financial liabilities in terms of the requirerments of IFRS 9}is 31 March 2018 Based onthe factsand
circumstances that existed at that date it has been concluded that the initial application of IFRS 9 has not had a material
impact on the Consolidated Financial Statemaents, There is no adjustment to opening retaied earnings arising fromthe
adoption of IFRS 8 and the prior period hasnotbesn restated.

The consequential amendments to LFRS 7 have resulted in more extensive disclosures about the Group’s exposure to credit
riskin the consolidated Financial Statements.

Impalrmentof assets

IFRS 9requires an expected credit loss {ECL) model tobe applied to financial assets rather thantheincurred creditloss
model required under 1AS 39. The ECL is calculated by considering the probability of default and exposure at detault. The
probability of default isan estimate of the likelihood of default over the expected Lifetime of the debt. The assessment of
creditriskand the estimation of ECL ars required to be unbiased, probability weighted and should incorporate all available
information relevant tothe assessment, including informetion about past events, current conditions and reasonable and
supportable forecasts of agonomic conditions at the reporting date IFRS 9requires creditrisk tobe considered oninitial
recognition of the financial asset and then subsequently at each belance sheet date. the forward-looking aspect of IFRS 9
requires considerable judgement as to how changes in aconomic factors atfect ECLs.

Genaral hedge accounting

Thenew general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedging which were available under IAS 39; fair
value hedges, cash flow hedges and net investment hedges. The Group enters into forward currency contracts to hedgeats
exposure to foreign currencyrisk. The effectiveness requirements under LFRS 8 have been simplified compared to those
under I1AS 39, therefore all existing hedging relationships are eligible, and continued to be effactive under IFRS 9,

Impactof application of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In the current year, the Group has applied [FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Gustomers (as amended in April 2016).The
date of initial application (1.e the date on which the Group has assessed its existing financial assats and llabilities in terms
of the requirements of [FRS 15) is 31 March 2018. IFRS 15 provides a single principles based approach to the recognition of
ravenue from al} ¢ontracts with customers. It focuses on the identification of performance obligationsina contractand
requiresrevenue to be recognised when or if those performance obligations are satisfied. Far more prescriptive guidance
hasbeenadded inIFRS 15t0 deal with specific scenarios.

The Group has undertaken a comprehensive analysis of the new standard based on a review of the portfolios of cantracts
reflecting the diffarent revenue streams across the four operating divisions. The Group has adopted tha modified
retrospective approach whereby the historical cumulative transitional adjustment is reflected through retained earnings
withnoadjustment to prior yearresults Asaresult of theapplication of IFRS15the belowadjustments have been made to
the opening statement of financial position which reflects the timing of municipal contract extensiondiscounts.

Intangible assets £[5.51m
Prepaymants £(C7)m
Retained earnings £B8.2m

Inaddition, there has been a reclassification betwesn cost of sales and revenue with respact to commodity rebates. This
hasresulted in animmaterial decrease of 1ess than 1% in total revenue recognised, with no impact on gross profit, operating
profit or profit before tax which has not been rastated in the prior period

IFRS 15 uses the terms ‘contract asset’ and ‘contract liability’ to describe what might more corarnonly be known as ‘accrued
income’ and ‘deferred income’; however, the Standard does not prohibit an entity from using alternative dascriptionsinthe
statement of financial position. The Group has adopted tha terminology used in IFRS 15to describe such balances.

The Group's accounting policies for its revenue streams are disclosed in detail below. There have been no material changes

to revenue recognition on adoption of IFRS 15, The application of IFRS 15 has not had a significant impact on the financial
position and/or financial performance of the Group
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Finangial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. AccountingPolicies continued

Inthecurrent year, the Group has applied a number of ameandments to IFRS Standards and Interpretations issued by '
the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) that are effective for an annual pariod that begins on or after
1January 2018,

IFRS 2 (amendments) Claseitication and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

Annual Improverments to IFRS5s 2014- 2018 Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Interastional Financial Reparting
Cycle Standards and JAS 28 Investments 1n Associdies and Joint Veniures

Adoption of the above has nothad any matarial impact on the disclosures or onthe amounts reported in thass
Financial Statements.

Changes in atcounting policies and disclogures - future developments
Atthe date of authornisation of these Financial Statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs !
that have baen issuad but are not yet effsctiva:

IFRS 186 Leases

IFRS17 Ingurance Contracts

IFRS 8 [amendments) Pregpayment Features with Negative Compensation

IAS 28 (amendments) Lopg-term Interests in Assoclates and Joint Ventures :
IAS 19 (armmendments) Plan Amendment, Gurtailment or Settlement

IFRS10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and ite Associate or Joint Venture

IFRIC23 Ungertainty aver Income Tax Treatments

Annual lmprovernents to IFRS Standards Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, 1AS 12

2015-2D17 Cycle Ingome Taxes and [AS 23 Borrowing Costs

IFRS 16 Leases

iFRS 16 was issued in January 2018 and will supersede the current lease guidance including IAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations whern 1t becomes etfective for accounting periods beginning onor aftar 1 January 2019. The Board 15 5tillin
the process of reviewing theimpact of IFRS 16 on the Group's accounting policies The Group currently leasesboth
properties end plant and equipment under operating leases which willbe irnpacted by the new Standard. IFRS 16 rernoves
thadistinction between opaeratingleases and finance lgases The result is that themajority of leases willbe capitalised on
the statament of financial position as aright of ussasset within property, plant and equipment. with acorresponding
finance lease creditor. The cost of leasing these assets in theincome statemant 1srecognised as a depreciation charge and
an interest charge, opposed to the operating lease charge previously reflected under IAS17. The exception ta this is the
leasing of assets for a period of less than twelve months which donotrequire therecognition of a right of use asset or
corrgsponding craditor.

The Group has carried cut a full review of the leases and determined that the application of IFRS 18 will have a material
impact on the reportad financial results and the statement of financial position. On transition, IFRS 16 allows for sithera
full retrospective approach whereby all prior year ¢omparatives are restated or the modified retrospective approach. The
Group has adopted the modified retrospective approach. On transition, the Grouphas madeuse of the practical expedients
to excludeleases where the term ends within 12 months from the date of initial application.and tonot reassess whethara
contract is or contains alease. Accordingly. the definition of a lease in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 wall continue to
apply tothose leases entered or modified before 30 March 2019. The Group will also apply a single discount rate to portfolios
of assets with sim{lar characteristics.

Based on a detailed assessment of lease arrangements in place, the Group estimates that it willrecognise leaseliabilities
and right of uge assets in the region of £135m, It isexpectad that profit befare tax wiil reduce in the region af £1.5m.
Operating profit1is expected to increase by £2 3mas the depreciation charge is higher than the original lease payments.
Dver the life of the Jease, the overall impact on profit befors tax is Enil but a higher interest chargeisretflected inthe earlier
yeats of the lease term. The amounts have been calculated using the Group's incremental borrowing rate of between 3.0%
and 3.4%. There is ne irmpact on the total Group's cashNows, however there willbe a material proyentation change. An
increase innet cashflows from operations will beoffset by an increase in the net cash outflows from tinancing activities,
We donotexpectthat the application of IFRS 16 will have a material impact on the Group's effective taxrate.
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in practical terms, the results for the financial year ended 27 March 2020 will not ba comparable to the current financial
year as tha modified retrospective approach doss not require the comparative period tobe restated. In addition, the
covenant requirements as aresult of the refinancing complated in the year were calculated on the basis of the application
of [AS 17, This hasbaen grandfathered on application of IFRS 16, so for internal purposes and covenant compliance,
management will continue to draw out the differences between the standards in order toaid understanding.

There arg no other IFRSs or IFRIC Interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected tohave a material impact
onthe Group.

Business combinations

The Graup accounts for acquisitions of businesses using the acquisitionmethod. The consideration transferredina
business combination is rneasured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of the
assetstransierred to tha Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquires and the equuty
interests issued by the Group1n exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs arerecognised in profitor
lossasincurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiahle assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are racognised at their fair value,
exceptthat-

= deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilitigs related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes' and IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' respectively:

liabilities or equity measurements related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entared into toreplace share-based payment arrangaments of the acquiree aze
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Business Combinations’ at the acquisition dats;

assets [or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS & ‘Non-current Assets Held tor Sale
and Digcontinusd Operations’ are measured in accordance with that Standard.

+

+

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the surm of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
intheagquires, and thefair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest inthe acquiree (ifany) over thenetof the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and theliabilities assurmed. If, aiter reassessment, the net of
the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets and acquired and the liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
sonsideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair valuae of the acquirer's
previously held interest in the acquires [if any), the excessis recognised immediately in profit orloss as a bargain
purchasegain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting froma
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured atits acquisition date fair valueand
includad as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value pf the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted 1etrospectively, with corresponding
adjustinents against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

If the initial accounting jor a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items far which the accountingisincomplete

Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, toreflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances thatexisted at tha acquisition date that,

it known, would haveaffected the amounts recognised at that date.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued .

1. AccountingPolicies continued
Goodwill
Goodwill is initially recognised and measured as set out above.

Goodwillis tested annually for impairment orif there 15 an sndication of impairment, Gains and losses on the disposal ofa
cash-generating unitinclude the carrying amount of goodwill relating 1o that cash-generating unit

For the purposes af impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units {or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the business cornbination. [f the recoverable
armount ol the cash-generating unit 1s less than the carrying amount of the urit, the impatrment loss 13 allocated first to
raducethe carrying amount of any goodwill allocated tothe unit and then to the otherassets of the unit pro-rata onthe
basis of the carrying amount of ach assetin theunit.

Gains andlosses on the disposal of a cash generating unitinclude the carrying amount of goodwill relating to thatcash
generating unit.

Segmental reporting

Operating segmentsare reported in a manner consistant with theinternal raporting provided tothe chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who1s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified asthe Group Executive Team.

The Group'sinternal reporting structure isaligned on thesame basis and segmental intormation is prasentsd on a basis
consistent with this reporting structure. Duringthe f{inancial year ended 29 March 2019, the Leicester business was
transferred from the Municipal division to the Energy division. The segmental reposting disclosed inNote 2 has bean
restated for the 53 week period ended 30 March 2018.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable ance performance obligations have been
fulfilied. Revenue is raduced for value added taxes and trade discounts and commodity rebates. The methodology and
assumptions for the calcuiations of trade discounts and commodity rebates are monitored and adjusted regularly with
reference to contractual andlegal obligations, historical trzends, past experience and projected market conditions. The
nature of the service pravided hy the Group means that returns or refunds are extremaly limited. Landfill Tax is included
within both revenue and cost pf sales.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised whenthe performance obligation has been met. the goods are delivered and
titles hava passed

Ravenue from the provision of services 1s recognised at the point when service has been provided. Collsction revenuas are
recognised at the point of collection from customer eites. For municipal collections, revenue1s recognisad inaccordance
with quantities specified in the customer contracts.

When the outcome of a transaction involving therendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction shall be recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting

period,

Revenua frorm waste processing, treatment and landfill facilities is recognised when the parformance obligation has been
met which isdeemed tobe when waste 1s physically received at the Group sites.

Energy generationrevenue is recognised at the point that power issupplied to the custamer based onthe quantity of
units supplied,

The Group's standard terms for payment offared to customers is typically 30 days.
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Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership tothelesses. All other leases are classified as operatingleases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of the Groupat their fair value atthe inception of the
lease o1, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
inthe consolidated statement of financial position as a tinance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apporticned between finance expenses andreduction of the lease obligation so as to achievea
constantrata of interest on the remaining balance of the Liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
orloss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which casethey are capitalised in accordance with the
Group's general policy on borrowing costs.

Operatinglease paymeants are recognised as an expenss on a straight-line basis over thelease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in whach economic benefits framthe leased asset
are consumed.,

Intheevent thatleasg incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as aliability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where
anothersystematic basis1s more rapresentative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

Farelgn currencies

In preparingtha financial information of each individual Group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at therates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Atthe end of sach reporting period, monatary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailingat that date. Non-rnonetary itams carried at fair valus that are denorinated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
interms of historical cost 1n a foreign currency sre not retranslated

Exchange differences on monetary items ara recognised in profit or loss in the period in which theyarise except for:

« exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use,
which are included in the cost of those assets when they arerecognised as an adjustment to interest costs on thoss
foreign currency borrowings; and

+ exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operatien for whach settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur [therefore forming part of the netinvestment in the foreign operation), which arerecognised
initially in other comprehensive income and raclassified from equity to profit or l1oss on repayment of the monetary
items.

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated Financial Statements, the Group's foreign currency denominated
assetsand liabilitias are translated into Sterling using the exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions areused. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are racognised in other cornprehensive income and accumulated in aquity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifyingassets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of tima to get ready for thair intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Interestincome from a financial asset isrecognised when it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and theamount of income can be measured reliably. Interestincoma is acorued on a time basis, by reference to the

principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is therate that exactly discounts estimated future
cashreceipts through the expectedlife of thefinancial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Accounting Policies continued

Government grants

Bovernment grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to ther and that the grants will be received.

Governmearnt grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as
axpenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Spscifically, Government grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct ar otherwise acquire non-current assets are racognised as
deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit orloss on a systematic and
rational basis over the usefullives of the related assets.

Employee benefits
Payraents to definad contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees haverenderad
service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirament plans, the cost of providing bensfits is determined using the projected unit credit methad,
with actuarial valuations beingcarried out at the end of each annual reporting pariod. Remeasuremant, comprising
actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets [excluding intarast). is reflected immadiately inthe statement of
financial position with a chargs ov credit recognised in other comprehensive income inthe peried inwhich they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other cornprehensive incoma is reflected immediately inretained sarnings and willnotbe
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service costisrecognised in profitorloss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest
is calculated by applying the discount rate at thebaginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined
benefit costs are categorised as follows:

+ Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost as well as gains andlosses on curtailments and
settlaments)

=+ Netinterest expense or income

« Remegasurament

The Group presents service costs in operating costs and net interest expense or income js included in finance income.
Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

Theretirament benafit obligation racognised inthe consclidated statement of financial position represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Group's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is Jimited ta the present
value ot any economic benafits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in {uture contributions to

the plans. The Group makes contributions under Admitted Body status to a number of Local Government Pension Schemes
(LGPS] tor the pariad ta tha end of the relevant custorner contracts. The Group will only participata in LGPS for a finite
period up to the end of the relevant customer contracts. Atremd, any deficit or surplus will be transferred to the next
contractor. Tha Group recognises the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of scheme assets and, an adjustment to
only recognise the amount of defined benefit for which 1t isresponsible under the contract, Movements in this adjustrment
arerecognised inthe same way asmovements inplan assets.

Aliability for a termination benetit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity cannolonger withdvaw the offer of the
tarmination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

Aliability is recognised for benefits accruing toemployees in respect of wages and salaries, annualleaveandsickleavein
the peried the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amoeunt of the benefits axpected to be paid inexchange for
thatservice.

Liabilities recognised in xespect of short-term ernployee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the bensfits
axpected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Share-based payment plans

The Group’s management awards employee share options, from time totime, on a discretionary basis which ara subject to
vesting conditions. The economic cost of awarding the share options to its emplovees is recognised as an smployee benetit
expensa in the income statement squivalsnt tothe fair value of the benefit awardad. The fair value is dstermined by
raference tothestochastio pricingmodel The charga is recognised over the vesting periad of the award.
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Exceptional items
Exceptional 1temns are thosethat in the Directors’ view are required to be separataly disclosed by virtue of their size
orincidence toenable a full understanding of the Group's performance.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sumof the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from "profitbeforetax’ asreported in
the consolidated income staternent because of items of income o1 expense that are taxable or deductiblein other yearsand
iterns that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's current tax1s calculated usingrates that have been enacted or
substantivaly enacted by the and of the reporting peried.

Deferred tax is recognisad on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax
bases, Defarred taxliabilities are generally recognised for ail taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary diffarences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductibletemporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
notrecognised if the temporary difference arises from theinitial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assetsand liabilities1n a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax hiabilities are not recognised if the tarmporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
1t 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be availabie to allowall or part of the asset to be recavered.

Deferred tax Iiabilities and assets are measured atthe taxrates that are expected toapplyin the period in which the
liahility is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and taxlaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred taxliabilities and assets reflects the tax conseguences that would follow from the manner
inwhich the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, torecover or settlethe carryingamount of its assets
and liabilities.

Current and deferred taxare recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that arerecognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which casethe current and deferred tax are slsorecognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively Where current or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
of abusiness combination, the tax effectis included in accounting for the business cornbination.

Property, plant and equipment

Landfill sites are recorded at costless accumulated depreciation and accumulated impalrmentlosses The cost oflandfiil
sites includes the cost of acquiring, developing and engineering sites. There areno directly attributable borrowing costs.
Property, ptant and equipment is stated at cost1ass accumulated depreciation and accurnulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual value over their useful econorniclives. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changesin estimate accounted for on a prospactive basis.

In the Finenc:al Statements depreciation wasrecognised so as to write otf the assets on the below basis:

+ Buildings-length ofleasestraight-line method
« Plant, vehicles and equipment - 4ta 16 years straight-line method
« Landfill sites - void consumed

Wherathe obligation torestore a landfill site 1s an integral part of its future economic benefits, a non-current asset within
property, plant and equipment is racognised. Changes to the obligation ara recorded as adjustrnents to the carrying value of
theasset. The asset recognised 1s depreciated based on ensrgy production.

Assets held under finance leases are dspreciated over their expected useful lives onthe same basis as owned assets.

However, when thereis noreasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the leasa term, assets are
depreciated over the shorterof thelease termand theirusefullives.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

1. Accounting Policies continued

Anitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or lpge arising on the disposal of retirement of anitem of property,
plantand equipment is determined as the diiference betweenthe sales proceeds and thecarryingamount of the agset and
Is recognised in profit orloss.

Intangible assots

Intangible assets with finute useful lives that areacquired separately are carried at cost less accumuiated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated usefullives. The
estimated usetul life and armortisation method arereviewed at the end of each reparting pericd, with the effectof any
changesin estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite usetul lives that ate
acguired separately are carried at costlgss accumulated impairment Josses.

The following useful lives have been applied to tha Intangible assets during the period:

« Brand- Indefinitelife

+ Customer contracts - 3to 20 years

« ITdevelopment-3toSyears

= Landtill gasrights - length of projected profitabie gas axtraction based onlandfill site content degradation

Aninternally generated intangible asset arising from development {or from the development phase of an internal project)
isrecognisedif, and only if, all of the following have been dernonstrated:

« thetechnical teasibility of completing the intangible asset 8o that it will be available for use of sale;

» theintention tocompleta the intangible agset and use orsellit;

« the ghility io use orsell the intangible asset;

+ how the intangibleasset will ganerate probable future economic benefits;

« the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or 58l the
intangible asset; and

+ theabilitytomeasurareliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditureincurred from the
date when the intang:ble asset first meets the criteria listed above. When nointernally generated intangible assat canbe
racognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred Expenditureon
research activities isrecognised as an expense inthe period in which itisincurred.

Subsequent toinitial recognition, internally generated intangible assets ara reported at cost less accumulated
amartisation and accurnulated impairment lossas on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately. An
intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future aconomic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference betwean the netdisposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in protit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Pra-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred until the Group s appointed pretferred bidder. Preferred bidder status provides
sufticient contidenca that the conclusion of the contract is probabie, the cutcome can be measured reliably and is expected
togenerate suificient net cash inflows to anablarecovery.

Pra-contract costs incurred subsequent to appointment as preferred hidder are capitalised onto the balance sheet under
prepayments and accrued income. The prepayment is expensad to the income statement over the period of the contract.
Costs which have been expensed are notsubssequently rainstated when a contract award 15 achieved.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
Assetsthat have anindefinite usefullife aye not subjact to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.

Assetsthat aresubject toamortisation or depraciation are raviewed for irpairment whenever sevents or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be rgcoverable. An impairmentloss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceedsits recoverableamount. The racoverable amount is the higher of fair valueless costs to
gell and valua in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets arg grouped at thalowestleyvels for which there ars
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
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Inventorias

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-first-out
basis. Netrealisable valuerepresents the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make thesale. Full provision 1s made for obsolate or defective stock.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of a past event, itis
probablethat the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the considerationrequired to settlethe present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Whena
provisionis measurad using the cash Hows astimated to settle the prasent gbligation, its carryingamount is the present
value of thoge cash flows (when the effect of the time valus of money is material). The effects of inflation and unwinding
of the discount element on existing provisions arereflected in the Financial Statements as a finance charge.

When some or all of the economic benelits requirad to settle a provision are expected tobe recovered frorn a third party,
areceivableisrecognised as anasset if it 1s virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and theamount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for the cost of restoring landfill sites and aftercare costs are made as the obligation torestore the site arises.
Costs are chargad to the profit orloss over tha operational life on the basis of the usage of void space for each landill site.
The restoration obligation is typically Fultilled within two years of the landfili site being closed to waste.

Provisions for aftercare costs are made as tha aftercare liabifity arises. Costs are charged to the profit or 10ss over the
operationallife of each landfill site on the basis of usage of void space. When the obligation racognised as a provision gives
access to future aconomic benefits, an asset in property, plant and equipment is recognised. Changes in the pravision
arising from revised estimates that relate 1o the assat are recorded as adiustments tothe carrying value of the asset. The
assatis depreciated over the period of gas generation which commences during the active phase of landfill and extends
beyond the closure date, producing commercisl valumes of gas for up to16 years. Aftercare costs are provided for based

on the Directors’ expectation that the obligation will have been fulfilled 60 years postclosure of the site.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contractis
considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which the unaveidable costs of meetingthe obligations under
the contract exceed the economic henefits expacted tobe received from tha contract.

Service cancession artangements

Wheretha Group has constructed infrastructure on behalf of a third party as partof an integrated waste management
contract which grants the Group unconditional, contractual rights to future revenues, the right to consideration is recorded
asafinancial asset. This financial assetaccrues {inance income and isreduced as the financial payments are received.

Financlal instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group entity becomes a party tothe contractual provisions
of theinstruments.

Financial asgets and financial liabilities areinitially measured at fair vaiue. Transaction costs that are directly
attributabla to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial agsets and
financial liahlities at fair value through profit or 10ss) are added to or deducted fromthe fair value of the financial assets
or financial habilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
tinancial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit orloss arerecognised immediately in protit or loss.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterments continued

1. Accounting Policles continued

Derivative i jalinstn t and hadging activities

Darivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the entity becomes party ta the contractual provisions of the
instrurnent and are subsequently remeasurad at their fair value at each balance shest date. The mathod of racognising the
resuiting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is dasignated as a hedginginstrument and the natura of the item
being hadged.

The Group designates certain derivatives as erther aj fair value hedge (hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilitias], or b) cash flow hedge (hadges of a particular risk associated with a recognised asset of liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction); of ¢} net investment hedge [hedges of net investments in foreign operations).

The Group documents the transactionrelationship between the hedging instruments and hedged items atinception.
Atinception and ateach reporting date the Group assesses whether the derivatives used have been effective in offsetting
changes in the fair value of hedged items

Thetair values of derivative instruments used for hedging are shown in Note 18. Movements in the hedging reserve ara
shown inthe statement of changesin equity.

Attheyeporting date the Group has no fair value hedges or net investment hedges. '

Cash tlow hedge

The eftective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges are recogmised in

equity. The Group’s cash flow hedges in respect of forward forelgn exchange contractsresult inrecognition in either profit

andloss orinthe hedging reserve. .

When a hedging instrument expires oris soid, any cumulative gain orfoss in equity at that time remains in squity and
isrecognised when the forecast transaction occurs When a forecast transaction s nolonger expscted to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reportsd in gquity will ba transferred to the income statgment.

Ifa hedging relationship ceases ta meet the hedga effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but therisk
rmanagement objective for that designated hedgingrelationship remains thasame, the Group adjusts the hedgaratio
of the hedgingralationship so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

Changesin the fair value of any derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedgs sccounting are recognised
immediately inthe income statement.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of tinancisl assets are recognisad and derecognised on s trads date basis, Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales ot financial assetsthatrequire delivery of assets with the timeframe established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets areclassified into the follawingspecified categories: financial assets gt fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) and loans and recaivables.

Allrecognised financial assets are measured subsequentlyin their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value depending
on tha classificetion ofthe financial asset.

Debt instruments that meet the tollowing conditions are measured subsequently atamortised cost:

.

Thetinancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold inancial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on spacified dates to cash flows that ars solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount sutstanding.
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Dabt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through ather .
camprehensive income ([FVTOCI):

« Thefinancial asset is held within a business model whoss objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling thea financial assets; and

+ Thecontractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and intarest on the principal amount putstanding.

By default,all other financial assets are measured subsequently at FVTPL.

Amortised cost and sifective Interest method

The etfective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debtinstrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period The effectiveinterest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cashreceipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interestrate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected 11fe of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
thenet carryingamount on initial recognition.

Incorne isrecognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments measured subsequently atamortised costand
at FVTOCI.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCTare measured at FVTPL.
Specifically:

+ Investmentsinequity instruments are classified as atFVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity investment that is
neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business combination as at FVTOClon initial
recognition.

» Debtinstruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCIcriteria are classifiad as at FVTPL. The Group
has not designated any debt instruments asat FVTPL.

Financial assets at FUTPL are stated at fair velua, wath any gains or losses arising onrameasurement recognised in profit or
losstothe extent that they are not part ot a designated hedging relationship.

Impairmentof financial assets

Financial asseis, other than thoss at FYTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reparting period.
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected cred:t losses. The amount of expected credit losses is updsted at each
reporting date toreflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The expected credit losses are estimated based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast future
conditions at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the expected craditloss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are dus
tothe Group in accordance with the contractand all the cash flows that the Group expects toreceive, discounted at the
original sffective interest rate.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares therisk of a default cccurring onthe financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default
ocourring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessmaent, the Group considers
both guantitative ang gualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Irrespective of the butcome ofthe above assessment, the Group presumes that the eredit risk on a financial asset has

increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments ars more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contirnued -

1. AccountingPolicies continued

Impalrment of fin falinstruments

The Group assumes that the creditrisk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since inutial recognution if
thefinancial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is determined
to have low creditriskif:

« thefinancialinstrumenthas alow risk of default;

the debtor hasa strong capacity to meet its contractual cagh flow obligations inthe ngar term; and

» adverse changesineconomic and business conditions in thelonger tertarmnay, butwill not necessarily, sedute the ability
of the borrower to fulfilits contractual cash flowobligations.

All customers are subject ta craditscoring on a quartérly basis. The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the external credit rating of the countarparty exceeds the Group's minimum réquired score, and when the
counterparty has a strong financial position and payments are being made within the contractual terms.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness af the criteria used to identify whether therehas been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria ars capable of identifyinga significantincrease in
creditriskbefore the amount becomes past due

The Group considers the below as conatituting an event of default as historical experience indicates that financial assets
that meet the followng criteria are generally not recoverahle:

+ information developed internally or obtained fram extarnal sourses indicates that the debtor is unlikely topay its
creditors, including the Gioup, in full {without taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Financlal assets may st1l1 bs subject to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate.

Afinancialassetis credit-impaired when one ormore events that have a detrimental impact onthe estimated future cash
flows of that financialasset have occurred, Evidence that a financial asset1s credit-impaired includes observable data
such assignificant financial difficulty of the borrower orit1s becorming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or
other financial reorganisation. The Group writesoff a financial asset whan thereis information indicating that the debtor is
insevere financial difficulty and there 1s norealistic progpect of recovery.

Derecognition of finenclal assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractualrights tothe cash flows from the asset expire, or when
ittransfers the financlal asset and substantiallyall the risks and rewards of ownarship of the agset to anothar party.

On deracognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s catrying araaunt and the sum ofthe consideration
reneived and receivable and the curnulative gainor loss that had been recognised in othar comprehensive ingome and
accurmulated in 8guityisrecognised in profit orloss.

Financial Habilities and equity instruments

Borrowings

Borrowings are racognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Any difference between the amount
initially racagnised (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statemant ovér the
period of the borrowings uaing the effective interest rethod.

Commitment and borrowing feas are capitalised as part of thaloanand amortisad over the life of the relavant agreement.
Al other borrowing costs are recognised in the incoma statement in the period in which they are incurted.

Borrowings are classified as non-current liabilities whars the Group has anunconditional right todefer ssttlement of the
hability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Derecognition ol tinancialllabilities

The Group derecognisas financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability deracognised and the cansideration paid and
payable is tacognised in profit or loss.
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Sharecapital
Ordinary Shares are ¢lassified as equity and recorded at par value of proceeds received. Where shares are issued above par
value, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the share preminmaccount net of direct issue costs.

Dividend distribution
Final dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a l1ability in the Financial Statements intha
period in whichthe dividends are approved. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.

Areas of judgement and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of IFRS compliant Financial Statements requires the use of accounting estimates and assurptions and
alsoreguires management to exerciseits judgement in tha process of applying Group accounting policies. The Group
continually svaluates its estimates, assumptions and judgements based onavailable information and experience. Asthe
use of estimatesisinherent in financial reporting, actual results could differ from these estimates.

The Group does not have any critical judgements in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

The Group has the following key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of ceusing a material
adjustrent tothecarryingamounts of assats and liabilities within the next financial period;

+ Goodwill, see Note 12

« Environmentaland aftercare commitments, see Note 21
- Pension obligations, see Notp 29

+ Uncertaintax provisions,see Notes 32 and 33

Inorder to illustrate the impact that changes in assumptions could have on the Group's results and financial position,
sansitivity analysis has been included within the Notes

The Board believes that the potential impact of Brexit on the Group will be relatively limited given that it operates primanly
within the UK. Principalrisks include foraign exchange movements, imposition of tariffs and potential constraint oflabour
supplies. The Board will continue to closely monitor devalopments in the UK Government's Brexit plans and any potential
impacts on the Group, Similarly, management will continue to monitor potential cost impacts on services and seek to
discuss those with customers as appropriate, on a case by case basis.
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Financlal Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Segmental Information

The Group is managad by type of business and is organised into four operating divisions. These divisionsrepresent the
business segments in which the Group reports its primary segment inforrnation and are consistent with tha internal
reporting provided to thechief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who1s responsible for
allogating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Group Executive
Team. The activities of the divisions are detailed on pages 26-29. The Group's segmental results are as follows:

Revenueg within segments is sliminated on consolidation.

53 weeks

S2weaka ended

snded 30March

28 March 2018

2019 £m

€m rastated

Industrial & Caramercial 808.3 5740
Municipal 164.6 1748
Resource Recovery & Treatment 218.4 22a.3
Eneygy 102.9 107 6

1,091.2 1,078.7

52 waeks 53 woeks

enasd endad
28 March 30March
2o1h 2018
Em €m
Revenue réconciliation
Statutory revenug 1,081.2 10787
LandfillTax [80.4) {70 8)
Net Revenue 1,830.8 1.006 1
Crowth
£ facior
FY18 Not Revenve 1,008.1
Acquisition revenue growth 281 2.9%
Organicrevenue growth [4.4) (0.43X
FY19 Net Revenua 1,030.8

The 53 week period ended 30 March 2018 has beenrestated to reflect the transferofthe Leicester business from the
Municipal division to the Energy division. The Municipal division revenua retlects a reduction of £19.9m witha
correspondingincreasein the Energy division.

Sales between operating divisions are carried outat arm’s langth.

Alltrading activity and operations are in the United Kingdom and there is tharefore no gecondary reporting format by
geographical segment. Thereis no single customer that aceounts for more than 10% of Group revanus (2018: none).

The growth rates above ara based onagtual reported revenus for period ended 30 March 2018 which was 853 week period.
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53 weeks

S2weaks ended

ended 30March

29 March 2018

2018 £m

£m restated

Underlying EBITDA

Industrial & Commercial 87.4 77.2
Municipal 16.8 24.5
Resource Recovery & Treatment 28.7 321
Energy 329 323
Group costs {14.9) {18 1)
Elndorlvln; ERITDA 150.7 150.0
?epreciation and amortisation (68.0) (68.9)
Underlylng Operating Profit 817 812
Exceptional items [Note 3) (18.2) (7.7
Amortisation of acguisition intangibles (18.6) {1 8)
Impact of real discount rate changes to landf1ll provisions {1.8) 5.7
l_ilpentmg Protit 45.4 62.4
Finance income 1.6 06
finance charges (26.4) (24.7]
Profit before taxation 21.6 383

The 53 week penod ended 30 March 2018 has been restated toreflect the transfer of the Leicester business from
the Municipal division to the Energy division. The Municipal division EBITDA reflects a reduction of £1.1m with
acorresponding increase in the Energy division.

Group costs represent those components of shared services and corporate costs {including inter alia, board and corporate
costs, finance, HR, IT,legal and insurance, external affairs and SHEQ} that cannot be meaningfully allocated to the
operating segments.

53 weeks

52 weelks ended

ended 30Match

20 March 2018

2018 £m

£m restated

Underlying Operating Profit

Industrial & Commercial 56.6 48.1

Municipal 4.7 11.2

FResource Recovery & Treatment 111 13.7

Energy ar.2 25.6
Group costs (16.9) [17.4)

81.7 81.2

The 53 week periad ended 30 March 2018 has been restated toreflect the transfer of the Leicaster business from the
Municipal division to the Energy division. The Municipal division Underlying Operating Profit reflects an increase of
£2 5mwith acorresponding reductionin the Energy division.

Underlying EBITDA represents the underlying profit earned by each sagment without ellocation of the shars of depreciation
and amortisation, exceptional iterns, finance costs, matenal impacts of changes in real discount rate applied to the Group's
long-tarmlandfill provisions and income tax expense. Underlying Operating Profit recognises the impact of depreciation
and amortisation excluding the amartisation of acquisition intangibles. These measures are both reported to the Group
Executive Team for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performanca,

The exceptional costs of £18.2m (2018: £7.7m) are disclosed 1n Note 3.
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Financial Statements

Notes ta the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

2. Segmental Information continued Net ook
Nethook valusasat
veluegsat 30March

28 Mareh 2018
2018 £m
£ restated

T ible and int ible assete
Industrial & Commercial 1829 1710
Municipal 48.1 §2.6
Resource Racovery & Treatment 24a.3 g4 B
Energy 168.1 184.0
Shared sezvices and corporate 74.9 540
£78.4 566 4

The 53 weak period erded 30 March 2018 has been restated to reflect the transfer of the Leicester business from the
Municipsi divigion tothe Energy division. The Municipal division tangible and intangible assets reflacts areduction
of EB.Bruwith a corresponding increase in the Energy division.

53weeks
S2weoks ended
anded 30 March
20March 2018
2019 £m
£m Testated

Gapital expenditure
Industrial & Commercial 713 51.2
Municipal 5.8 167
Rasource Recovery & Trestment 17.8 23.8
Energy 4.4 33
Shered services and corporate 71 12.5
108.4 107 5

Capital expenditura comprises additions tointangible assets and property, plant and equipment including leased assets.

The 53 week period ended 30 March 2018 has hesn restated toreflect the transierof the Leicester businessfrom the
Municipal division to the Energy division. The Municipal division capital axpenditure reflects areduction of £1.4m
with a corresponding increase in the Energy division. The Industrial & Commercial division expenditure includes
£25.3m of acquired assets as detailed in Note 11.

53 weeks
S2waaks ended
ended 30March
20March 2018
2019 £
£m restatad

Depreciation and amortisation
Industriel & Cornmercial 31.8 29.1
Municipal 11.8 13.3
Resource Recovery & Treatment 178 184
Energy 8.7 67
Shared services and corporate 2.0 18
88.9 6B.8
Amprtisation of acquisition intangibles 1B.% 16.8
Total BE.§ B5.6

Depreciation and amortisation relates to the write down of both intangible snd tangible fixed assets over their astimated
usefui econornic lives. Amortisation of acqujsition intangibles is disclosed separately inline with tha sagmental
Underlying Opsrating Profit

The 53 week period ended 30 March 2018 has been restated to reflect the transfer of the Leicester business from the

Municipal division to the Ensrgy division. The Municipal division depreciation and amortisation reflects a reduction
of £1.am with a corresponding increase inthe Energy division.
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3. OtherlItems

The Group’s financial performance is analysed into two components, underlying performance (which excludes other
items) and other items. Underlying performance is used by management to monitor finanecial performance as itis
considered it aids comparability of the reported financial performance year to year.

Other items includes exceptional items, amortisation of acquisition intangibles and theimpact of real discount rate
changes in landfill provisions.

Managerent utilises an exceptional itermn framework that has been approved by the Board. This follows a three step process
which considers the nature of the event, the tinancial materiality invelved and the particular facts and circumstances.
Items of incorne and expense that are considered by management for designation as exceptional items include items such
assignificant corporate restructuring costs, acquisition- related costs, write downs or impairments of non-current assets,
movements On onerous contract provisions and strategy-related costs, including the implementation of Project Fusion

52 woeks S3weeks

ended ended
26 March 30March
20189 2018
Included within operating profit £m £m
Exceptional items:
Acquisition related costs 2.8 1.6
Corporate restructuring costs | a.2 (01}
Dnerous contracts 10.2 5.2
Strategyrelated costs 1.9 10
Pensions GMP equalisation 3.1 -
i8.2 77
Amartisation of acquisition 1ntané1blas 18.5 16 8
Impactof real disgount rate changes tolandfill provisions 1.6 57]
36.2 18.8
Corparate restructuring costsincluded withinfinance costs:
Finance charges 6.2) [2.5)
Taxation impact of otheritems 9.0 4.6

S2 weeks 53 weeks

anded ended

280 Margh 30March

2019 2018

£m £m

Segmental exceptionalitems:

[ndustrial & Commercial 2.8 1.5

Municipal 8.6 6.2
Resource Recovery & Treatment [1.0] (1.0

Energy 4.8 o1

Gioup costs 5.1 a.8

18.2 77

Included inthe results for the 52 week period ended 29 March 2019 are £19.0m of costs which management consider to be
non-recurring and specific to certain circumstances thatarose in the pariod. Theseinclude £3.1min relation to the
pensions GMP equalisation, £10.2m1nrelation to onerous contracts and £3.8m of unamortised transaction costs
recognised as a finance charge as aresult of the Grouprefinancing completed inthe period. All of these items are non-cash
items.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statermnents continued

3. Other Items continued

Acquisition-related costs

The £2.8m of acquisition-related pxpenditure in the 52 weeks ended 29 March 2019relates to protessional feesand other
costs which are directly attributable toacquisitions. This includes £0.7m in relationto the acquisition of 100% of the issued
share capital of Specialist Waste Recycling Limited and £0 9m inrelation tothe acquisition of Weir Waste Services Limited.

The £1.6m of acquisition-relatad expenditure in the 53 weeks ended 30 March 2018 relates to professional fees and other
costs which are directly attributable to acquisitions. Thig includes £0.9m in ratation to the acquisition of 100% of the issued
shaye capital of 0'Brien Waste Recycling Solutions Holdings Limited, £0.2m 1n relstion tothe acquisition of 100% of the
issued share capital o} Amber Engineering Limited and £0.2m inrelation to the acquisition of the trade and assets of
Blakeley's Recycling Limited in the prior year.

Corporate restructuring costs
Corporata restructuring costs mostly relate to professional fees.

Onerous contracty

Cnerous contract costs reflect all movement on onerous service contract provisions. The Group has identified two contracts
inthe year which have beenhistorically loss making. In previous periods it was expected that a number of oparationai
measures and economic factors would result inthese contracts returning to protitability Tha Directors have reassassed
thesa contracts and future forecasts and determinad that a return to profitahility is nolonger expected and have
accordingly provided for these. These wers considered as one-off charges due tothe creation of nan-recurring provisions.
Onerous contract costs also include the unwinding of provisions recognised en other loss making contracts in prior periods.

Guing forward, any additional provisions required against these contracts, or unwinds of these provisions, will alsobe
reflacted within exceptional items on the basis that they donot represent the underlying year-on-yeartrading of each of
these contracts !

Strategy-related costs

Strategy-related costs arise from Group-wida initiatives toreduce the ongoing cost base and improve efficiency intha

business. These costs are substantial in scope and impact, and do not form part of recurring operational or management ‘
activities that the Directors would consider part of ouc underlying parformance. Adjusting for these charges providesa

rmeasure 0f operating profitability that1s comparahble over time Strategy-related costs primarily relats to the Group’s

systemreplacement programmae Project Fusion.

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles

Amortisation of acquisition intangibles represents the amnount amortised by the Group ineach period in réspect of
intangibles from prior acquisitions, which amounts arereported separately from the Group's depreciation and amortisation
chargas. The chargesareraported separately and parformance of the acquired business is assessed through the underlying
operational rasults. The Groupuses this Alternative Performance Measure [APM) toimprove the comparability of
information between reporting periods and its divisians to aid the user of the Annual Reportinunderstandingthe activities
taking place across the Group's portfolio.

GMP panaions equalisation

As arasultof the 2018 High Court ruling that Lloyds Banking Group must amend its pension schemes in order to equalise
benetfits for rmen and women. This has resulted inan additional past service cast of £3.1m baing recognised. Thishas been
raparted geparately to aid the understandingof the Group’s performance as it is a non-oparational item.

Impact of real discount rate changes to landiill provisions
Impact of real discount rate changes to landfill provisions reflects the impact on provisions which arises wholly duetothe
change in discount rate onlandfill provisions as this is not reflective of operational performance.
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Inaddition to the Otheritems disclosed above, The Group uses Return on Operating Assets and return on capital employed
as performance measures. Thesearealigned 10 the strategy and are reported internally tothe Board and Operating
Committeesto aid their decigion making. These are calculated as below:

52 weeks S3weeks

ended ended

29 March 30March

2019 2018

£m £m

Return on Dperating Assets

Underlying Operating Profit* 81.7 gl.2

Average of property, plant and equipment? 367.5 338.7
Net working capltal? (37.8) [40.1)

Tatal average of property, plant and equipment plus net working capital 318.8 298.6

Return on Operating Agsets® 26.5% 27.2%

1 Profitbefore exceptional items, arnortisation of acquired intangibles, impact of realdiscountrate changes tolandfill provisions, finance
costsand taxation.

Average vf opening and closing property, plant and equipment

Averagebalancein 2019 and 2018 of the net of inventories, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables.

Returnon Operating Assets is determined by Underlying Operating Profitdivided by the average cf opening and closing PP&E plus net
working capital.

oW

52 woaks 53 weeks

anded ended

28 March 30March

2019 2018

£m £m

Returnon Capital Employed

Operating profit 454 62.4

Exceptional {tems [Note 3) 18.2 77
Impactofreal digcount rate changes ta landtiil provisions (Note 3) 1.6 {5.7)

Adjusted operating profit BS.2 64.4

Average of shareholders' equity? 360.7 316.4

Not debt? 336.0 304.5
Retirement benetits {856.2) (33.4)

Environmental provisions 70.8 776

682.3 665.1

Return on Capital Employed? 5.4% 8.7%

1 Averageofopening and closingshareholders’ equity

2 Netdebtcomprises of the aversgenet debt in 2019 and 2018 [Note 27).

3 Returnon Capital Employed is determined by adjusted operating profit divided by the average of openingand closing sharehoelders
equity, plus the average of net debt, pensions and environmental provisions.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued .

4. Finance Income and Charges
52 weaks 53 weeks

wnded ended

£9March 30March

2018 2018

Em £m

Finance charges

Interest on bankoverdrafts. bonds and loans [17.9) (160Q)
Interest on obllgations under tinance leases (5.0) (6.3)
Interest unwind on discounted pravisions [2.0) (2.1)
Intereston torward contracts (0.5) [0.3])
Total Iinancecharges (25.4) (24.7)

Interest income 18 0.6

Finance income 1.5 08
Neot Hnance charges (23.9) (24.1}

Recognised inother items (Note 3)
52 weaks S3weeks

ended anded

23 March 30March

2019 2018

£m £m

Finance charges

Interest onbank overdrafts, bonds and lpans 3.8) -
Fair value discountunwind on EVP preference instrument (2.4) (2.5)
Totalfinancecharges {8.2) [28)

The £3.8m of interest on bankloans recogrused in other items 1s the write off of proviously capitalised borrowing costs
whicharosea result of the completion of the Group refinancing in the year.

6. Financlal Instrument Gains and Losses
52 wouks 53 wesks

anded ended
E0March 30March
2019 2msa
£m fm
Loans and regelvablos
Interest tncome at amortised cost 1.5 0.6
Other financial labilities
Interest expense st amortised cost (25.4) (24.7]

6. Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation
32 weaks 53 waeks

endeod ended
29 Maroh J0March
2018 2018
£m £m
The following itams haveheen included In 1g st the pre-tax profit/[loss):
Employee costs (Note 7} 276.8 2726
Depreciation of properly, plant and equipment
+« owned assets 38.0 40.5
+ asgetsheld under financeleases 20.7 28.0
Amortisation ofintangible assqts
« acquisitionintangibles [ Note 2] 16.8 18.8
« otherintangibleg 1.3 22
Operatinglease charges:
+ plantand machinery 18 2.0
* other 129 119
Exceptional items (Note3] 18.2 7.7
Profit on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 2.2 2.7
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Underlying operating costs have been split into admirstration and distribution costs as detailed below:

52 woeks 53 weeks

ended ended
29March 30March
2019 2018
£€m £m

Operating costs
Distribution costs 21.7 20.3
Adminustrative expenses 28.8 302
60.5 508

7. Eraplovees and Directors
The average monthly nuinber of persons (including Executive Directors] employed by reporting segment, by the Group
during the period was-

53 weeks
52 weeks ended
anded 3QMarch
29March 2D18
2019 Number
Numbear restated

Bysegment
Industrial & Commercial 3,097 2,924
Municipal 3,404 3,633
Resource Recovery & Treatment 638 638
Energy a3 304
Shared services and corporate 354 373
7.8922 7,773

The 53 week period ended 30 March 2018 has been restated to reflect the transfer of the Leicester business from the
Munictpal division tothe Energy division. The transfer resulted in 162 employeas moving from the Municipal division to
the Energy division.

52 weeks 53 weeks

snded ended
egMarch 30March
2019 2018
£m £m

Their aggregate remunezation comprised:
Wages and salaries 246.6 2340
Socizl security costs 18.4 195
Other pension costs 8.2 82
Redundancy and termination payments 1.8 o8
276.9 272 8

The remuneration of the Directors is set out on pages 92-106 within the Directors' Report on Remuneration described
as beingaudited and forms part of these Financial Statements.

Key managament compensation
52 weaks 53 weeks

ended endad
29March 30 March
2010 2018
£m Em

Thaeir aggregate remuneratlon compriged:
Wages and salarles 2.4 19
Social securlty costs 0.6 0.4
Other pension costs 0.3 a.2
Short-term incentives 1.6 0.8
4.8 3.3

Key managsment personnel have hgen defined as the Group Executive Team.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

8. Auditor's Remuneration

The analysis of the Company and Biffa Group's augitor's remuneration is as fallows:
B2 wueks 43 weaks

anded ended
20 March J0March
2018 2018
Em Em

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Cormpany’s consolideted
annual Financial Statements Q.6 0.5
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's subsidiarias 8.3 0.3
Total andit fees 0.9 0.8
Audit-related assurance services 0.1 0.1
Total audit and non-audit lees 1.0 09

Theother assurance services provided by the auditor related to sgreed upon procedures and other assuranceservices
outside of statutory requirements.

9. Income Tax Recognised in ProtfitorLoss
52weeks 53 waeks

onded ended
20 March A0 March
2010 2018
£m £m
Currenttax
Inzespest of the current year 0.2 01
Adjustment in respect of prior years (01) {0 8)
0-1 [0 8)
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 6.0 B.5
Adjustment in respect of prios years {1.1) 01
Adjustment attzibutablate changes In tax rates and laws (0.5) [0.8)
3.4 1.7
Totaltaxcharge 3.6 7e

Corporation tax is caloulated at 19% (2018: 19%) of the estimated assessable profit for the period. The charge for the period
canbe raconciled to the profit per the consolidated income statement as follows:

B2 wenks ended 29 March 2019

Underlying Dthar
activitiss tams Total
£m Em £m

Prohtbefare tax 84.0 [42.8) 215
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in UK o 18%
[2018:1b%x) 12.2 (8.1) 4.1
Eifects uf:
Gver provision inrespectof prior years - 1.2) (2.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.8 [«X°] 1.3
Non-taxsbleincome [0.2) - 0.2)
Effectofchange intaxrate - [0.5) (0.5)
Total taxgtion 12.6 (8.0) 38
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S53weekserded 30 March 2018

Underlying Other
actrvities items Total
£m £m £m

Profit before tax 59.6 [21.3) 383
Profit onordinaryactivities multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in UK 0f19%
(2018: 20%) 11.4 (8.0) 7.4
Eftects of.
Over provision in respect of prior years - (0 85] (05]
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 0.4 09 1.3
Non-taxable income (0.1 - (01)
Effectof change intax rate - (0.9] [0.9]
Total taxation 11.7 (4 5] 72

Inadditiontothe amopunt credited to the consolidated incorne staternent, the following amounts have been credited/

[charged] directly to equity:
52 weeks 63 weeks

ended ended
20 March 30 March
2019 2018
£m £m
Deferred tax (charge)/credit arising on actuarial {gaing)/losses [4.9) (5 5)
Deferred tax (charge)/credit artsing on share based payments [0.8] 14
Total defarred tax charged directly to equity (5.8) (41)

Tha Finance Act 2018, which provides for reductions in the mainrate of corporation tax from 20% to 19% effective from
1April 2018 and to 17% effactive from 1 April 2020, was enacted on 156 September 2016. As deferred tax assets and liabilities
aremeasured atthe rates that arg expected te apply inthe periods of thereversal, deferrad tax balances at the balance
sheetdate have been caloulated at therate at which the relevant halance is expected to be recovered or settled.

Thecalculation of the Group's taxation charge involves a degree of estimation and judgement in respect of certainitems
whose tax treatment cannot be fully determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant authority as detailed

in Note 32 and 33.

Whilst the UKremains part of the EU the evolution of the application of EU tax competition regulations continues to create
uncertainty over taxlegislations and at this stage it is not possibleta quantify the impact on the Financial Statements.

As the Group's presence is mainly in the UK we do not envisage a significantimpact on the Group following the decision
of the UK Government te invoke Article50 toleave the EU.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staternents continued

10. Earnings per Share

Bagic Earnings per Ordinary Share are based on the Group profit for the year and a weighted average 0§ 250,000,000
(2018:250,000,000) Ordinary Shares in issue during the year.

An adjusted Earnings per Ordinary Share figure has been presented to eliminatethe sffects of exceptional items,
amortisation of acquisition intangibles and the impact of the change in the real discount rate to long-term provisions,
Tha presentation shows the trend in Earnings per Ordinar y Share that is attributable to the underlying trading activities
of the Group.

Thereconciliation between tha basic and adjusted figures for the Group 15 as follows. .

52 weeks to 20 March 2029 53 weeks o 30 March 2018

Easnings Earnings
purShexe perShare
£m peance £m pence

Protit attributable to owners of parent Company
for basic and diluted Earnings per Shaze calculation 18.0 7.2 311 124
Otheritems [Note 3} 33.5 19.4 88 ¥
Adjusted earnings 51.56 20.8 47.8 182

At29March 2019 the Company had a weightad average 2,607,918 Ordinary Sharesinthe Company which underlie the
Company's share option awards and may dilute Earnings per Share in the future. Any potential dilution would
beimmaterial.

11. Acquisitions

52 weeks ended 29 March 2019

On 16 August 2018, the Group acquired 100% of theissued share capital of Weir Waste Services Limuted, 4 leading provider of
waste and recycling solutionin the Birminghamangd West Midlands region. It was acquired in order toextend the Group's
commercial custormer base and market presencein the region, and 1s highly complemantary tothe Group's existing
business. Weir Waste Services Limited contributed £11.5m revenue and £0.1m loss tothe Group's profit before 1ax for the
period between the date of acquuisition and the balance sheet date. If the acquisition had been cornplated on the first day of
tha financial period, Group revenues would have increased by £17 3m and Group profit would have reduced by £0.2m.

0On31August 2018, the Groupacquired the trade and assets ot H&A Recycling Limited, a commercial wasta collection and
recycling business in Cornwall. It was acquired inorder to extend the Group's commercial customer base and market
presence intheragion, and {s highly complementary to the Group's existing business. H&A Recyeling Limited contributed
£1.8mrevenueand £0.1m loss to the Group's profit before tax for the period betwaen the date of acquisition and the balance
sheet date. If the acquisition had been completed on the first day of the financial period, Group revenues would have
increased by £2.7m and Group profit would have reduced by £0.2m.

On 11 March 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Specialist Waste RecyclingLimited, It was
acquired in ordar to extend the Group's commercial customer base and is highly complementary to the Group's existing
business. Spacialist Waste Recyeling Limited contributed £1 8m revenue and £0.1m profit to the Broup's profit before tax
for tha period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date. If the acquisition had been completed onthe
first day of the financial period, Group revenues would have increased by £36.5m and Group profit would have increased
by £2.5m

Duringthe year, the Groupacquired certaintradsand assets of:

« LondonRecycling Services Limited on 30 April 2018

+ Bisset Waste Management Limited on 30 April2018

* TheaKier Group on 31 0¢tober 2018

- Saving British Business Money Limited on 30 November 2018

Total net asseats of £0.5m were acquired for cash consideration of £1.5mresultingin goodwill of £1.0m being recognised.

If these acquisitions had been completed on the first day of the financial period, Group revenues for the period would have
increased by £2.4m and Group profit would haveincreased by £0.8m.
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11. Acquisitions continued
The preliminary amocunts recognised in respectof thaidentifiable assetsacquired and liabilities assumed are as setout
inthe tablebelow

Specialist
Waste Weijr Waste
Recycling HEA Services Dther Total
Limited Recyeling Limited acguisitions preliminary
Em £m £m em £rn
Property, plant and equipment 0.2 11 81 - 84
Intangible assats 13.5 0.7 11 06 1539
Debters 72 - 37 - 108
Cash and cash equivalents 53 - 01 - 5.4
Deferred tax (liability]sasset (2.1) (0.1} (0.9) (D.1} (3 2)
Creditors ") - (39) - [131)
Borrowings - [0.6] (6.8) - [6.1)]
Total netassets 14.8 1.2 2.6 0.6 19.2
Goodwiil 80 1.8 8.8 1.0 27.7
Total consideration 30.9 3.0 11.5 1.6 48.9
Satishedby.
Cash o 309 30 116 15 a5 9
Total consideration transferred 309 30 115 1.5 46 9
Net cash outflow arising on acguisition-
Cash consideration 309 30 11.5 1.5 469
Lass:cashandcashequivalentbalances acquired [5.3) - [0.1} - {6.4)
2586 30 114 15 41 8

The fair value of the debtors includes receivables due from trade debtors with a fair value of £3.1m which the Group expects
ta collect infull.

Nocontingent liabilities were identified at the acquisition date.
Acquisition-related costs included in exceptional costs amount to £2.8m.

The preliminary total goodwill of £27.7m arising from these acquisitions represents an increase in Industrial & Comraercial
businessesand the Group’s strategy {0 become the leading UK based integrated waste managament business. None of the
goodwill is expected to be daductible for income tax purposes.

63 waeks ended 30 March 2018

On5.July 2017, the Groupacquired 100% of the issued share capital of O'Brien Waste Recycling Solutions Holdings Limited,
aleading provider of waste and recycling solutions inthe North East of England. O'Brien Waste Recycling Solutions
Holdings Limited was acquired in order to extend the Group's cornmercial customer base and market presence intharegion,
and is highly complementary to the Broup’s existing business.

On 27 October 2017, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Amber Engineering Limited, anintegrated waste
andecycling solutions provider in South Wales. Amber Engineering Limited was acquired to enhance the Broup’s network
and service offering in South Wales.

Duringthe prior year, the Group acquired certain trade and assets of:

» &5 Waste Management Limited on 29 March 2017

+ HWSWasteLimited on 31 October 2017

« EcoFoodRecycling Lirnited on 17 November 2017

» Enterprise Managed Services Limited on 22 Decamber 2017
+ Cleansing Services Group Limited on23 January 2018
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Financiai Statementg . .
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

11. Acquisitions continued

Total net assats of £0,1m were acquired for cash consideration of £3.9m resulting in goodwill of £3 8m being recognised.
Ifthase acquisttians had been completed on the first day ol the financial period, Grouprevenues for the period would have
increased by £6.7mand Group profit would have increaged hy £0.1m. ‘

12. Goodwil]

Tatal
Em
Gost:
Agat24 March 2017 70.9
Additions 289
Disposals
As at 30 March 2018 100.8
Additions 279
Asat23March 2019 128.7
Amortigation:
Asat24 March 2017 (0.5)
Asat 30 March 2018 [(0.8)
Asat29March 2018 (0.8)
Net book amount:
As at 29 March 2019 1282
Asat 30 March 2018 100.3
Angt Asst
29 March 30 March
2019 €018
£m Em
Bysegmant
Industzial & Commercial 86,8 3890
Municipal 18.7 167
Resource Recovery & Treatment 13.3 133
Enecgy I.a 314
128.2 100.3

The Group reviews at each reporting period whether there are any indicators of impairmant inaccordance with IAS 36
Impairment of Assets. An annual impairment review is cormpleted by cornparing the carrying amount of the goodwill for
aach operating segment toits recoverabls armount. Tha recovesable amount is the higher ot its fair value less costs of
dispaosal and its value in use. If the recoverable amount 15 less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is allocated
hirsttoreduce the carrying amount of the gopodwill and then to the assets of the cash-generating unit. Inthe current yaar all
cash-genarating units have been valued on the basis of value in use, rather than fair value less costs of disposal on the basis
that itisthe highor of the twovaluations.

The key assumptions when calculating the valusin use are forecast revenue and costs. Management's calculation of
value1n use has been developed from forecast tive year cash flows which are preparad on the basis of past performance,
expectation of future performance and market information and a consistent growth rate thereafter, basad onthe
underlying assets of each division. The tinal year growth rate assurption used bayond the five year plan period based on
market trands, after adjusied for assumed inflation is 3.0% (2018:3.0%) for the Energy division and 2.0% (2018: 2.0%) for the
other operating divisjons. These assumptions are considaered appropriate based onthelongterm nature of the business. A
pre-tax discount rata pf 8.26% [2018:7.47%) was applied across all cash-generating units as the inherent risks have been
included in the sagmental cash flow forecasts, Noreasonably foreseeable change intheassumptions used inthes valuain
usa calculations would cause enimpairment toany of the Industrial & Comrmercisl, Municipel or ResGurce, Recovery &
Treatment cash-gensrating units.

Thevaluation of goodwill allocated tothe Energy cash-generating unit is noted tobe most sensitive to any changes in
assumptions dug tothelimited headroom of £0.3m. The valuation is considered to be mostsensitive to changes inthe
assumptions on future ROG Recycle price, market prices for food waste, sxport energy prices,the growth rate and
discount rates.
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Theassumptions have been calculated based on external market reports within the 5 year plan period. Beyond the S year
plan period the assumptions have been inflated using the cash-generating units assumed growthrate 0f 3.0%. The Group's
reasonable worst case scenariorepresents a decline in the assumed growth rate to 1.8%. this would reducs the valuein use
by £4.3m, an increase in the pre-tax discount rate from 8 26% to 8.67% would reduce the valuein use by £3 5m.Based on
third party reports, the Broup has assumed themarket price for food waste at the end af FY24 tobe c£38. Thereasonable
worst case sgenario would be a reduction of tha price hy in excess of 30% to c£26, this would resultin a reduction tothe
valueinuse of £9.4m The export energy prices have been assumed to be c£59 at the end of FY24, thereasonable worst case
scenario based onexternal reports would be c£49, resultingina £16.1mreduction tothe value in use. The ROC recyclerate
has been assumed to be c£61 at the end of FY24,areduction in the valuein use of £2.9mwould be recognised if
managements assessment of the reasonable worst case scenario of c£57 was realised.

The above sensitivity analysis considers each assumption and related reasonable worst case scenerio in isolation.

The commercial reality is that typically there will be mitigating operating factors that would oftset the above impact
ininstances where the reasonable worst case scenariois realised. The division is also expected to banefit frorn the addition
of two naw EfW Facilities as cutlined in the Strategic Report. The future benetit expected to bs derived from these new
facilitiss has not been included in the valuation of goodwill at 30 March 2019

13. Other Intangible Assets

Landfill IT Customer
GasRights  development Brand contracts Total
£Em £m £m £m £m

Ensl:
Ag at2d4 March 2017 1802 11.1 33.3 48 9 283 6
Additions - 58 - - 58
E:u_uired through business combination - - 13 87 100
Disposals - (1.0} - - o
Reclassification - 0.2 - - 0.2
Agat130 March 2018 180.2 16.1 26 578 2085
Opening IFRS 15 adjustment - - - (6.9) (6.9)
Additions - 3.7 - - 3.7
fcquired through business combination - 03 2.1 13.6 169
Disposals - 07 - - w7
Ay at28 March 2019 180.2 19.4 38.7 84.2 310.6
Accumulsted amortisation:
Ag at24March 2017 {37.7) (1.2] - (24.72 (63.8)
Charge for the perled [10.2) (1.0 (08) [703 (19 0}
Dispasals - 10 - - 10
Ag at 30 March 2018 [(47.9) 1.2) (0.8) 317 (81.8]
Opening IFRS 15 adjustment - - - 14 1.4
Charge for the pericd (10.2) 13 (C4) (59 (17 8)
Disposals - 06 - - 0.6
Reclassification - “ - - -
Ag a1 29 March 2019 [58.11 (2.0 (1.2) (38.2) (97.5)
Eat book amount:
As at28March 2019 13z2.1 17.4 ns.5 28.0 213.0
As at 30 March 2018 142.3 14.9 33.e 25.9 216.9
As at24March 2017 162.5 9.5 3.3 24.2 2199

All amortisation charges are recognisead in profit orloss. Included within IT development costs are internally generated
assets with anet bookvalue of £5.4m (2018 £4 4m). The amortisation charge inrelation to theseassets was £0.4m
(e018: £0.3m).
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Financial Statements
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterents continued

13. Other Intangible Assets

IFRS 3 requires that on acquisition, ntangible assets are recorded at fair value. The Biffa brand was first created inthe early
20th century and has been used throughout the Group since then. It remains a highlyrecognisable brand. Given the
longevity ofthe brand, the Directors consider the asset to have an indsfinite life. The Directors reconsider the valuation of
thabrand at each reporting date. The recognition of brand and landfill gasrights as intangible assets initially arose during
the fair value exercise undertaken following the acquisition of the Biffa Group by Wastesharehelderco 1in 2008, The values
wara subssguently remeasured following the restructuring pf the Groupin 2013,

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Landand Landfill Plant and
buildings sites equipment Totai
Em £m £m £m
Cost:
Ag at 24 March 2017 69.8 731 2717 414.4
Additions 3.4 4.4 74.0 818
Acquired through business combination - - 9.9 9.9
Disposals [4.1) - (45.7) (49.8)
Raclassifications® 1.7 0.2 (19 0.1
As at30 March2018 70.8 7.8 208.0 456.4
Additions 18 6.8 69.6 78.0
Acquisred throughbusiness combination 3.5 - 58 9.4
Disposals (0 4] - (45.0] (a5 1]
Reclassiiications! 0.2 {0.5) (2 9) (32)
As 5129 March 2019 75.7 83.9 3358 408.2
depr H

As at24 Maych 2017 (13 0] {33 86) (38 1) {B6 §)
Charge fortha period 39 (7.0 (55 8) (68.5)
Disposals 2.3 - 44 4 46.7
Reclassifications - (0.8) - (0.6)
Aspt 30 March 2018 [15.8) (a1.0) (60.3) {1086.9)
Charge for the perlod (4.0) (8.1) (67.8) {87.7)
Impairment of assets - - {o8) (0.8]
Disposals D.a - 44.7 45 1
Reclassifications? - - 05 0.5
As 5120 March 2010 ne.2) (47.1) (63.5) (129.8)
Netbookamount:
Agat29 March 2019 58.5 36.8 2721 366.4
Asat 30 March 2018 55.0 38.8 257.7 348.5
As at 24 March 2017 656 39.6 2328 3278

Landfill assats includes £7.7m [2018: £7.8r) inrelation to futurg economic benefit tobe derived as a result of activaly
fulfilling aftercare obligations that rasults in gas generation. Landfiil asset additions include £0.7m (2016. £0.3m) in
relation to the future economic benefit to be derived as a result of actively fultilling aftercare obligations that results in
gas generation,

The carrying amount of the Group's property, plant and equipment includas £134.3m (2018: £126.7m) in respect of assets
held under finance leases, analysed as follows:

Asat Asat

29 March 30March

2019 2018

£m £m

Land and buildings 2.1 2.1
Landfiil sites - 23
Plant. vehicles and equipment 132.2 1223
134.3 126.7
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Noother assets hive been pledged to secure borrowings.

Land and buildings and landfill sites at net book amount comprise:

Asat2g March 2019 Asat30March 2018
Landand Landfill Landand Landfill
buildings sites buildings sites
£m €m £m £m
Freehold 37.0 18.5 30.7 1B 6
Long leasehold 13.0 14.0 102 14 6
Shortieasehaold 6.5 7.3 14 2 57
6.5 36.8 55.1 368

As at 29 March 2019 the Group had entered into contractual cormmitments for the acquisition of plant, property and

equipmeant amounting to £6.5(2018: £3.5m].

16. Inventories

Asat As at

29March 30March

2019 e018

£m £m

Raw materials and consumables 2.5 a7
Finished goods 11.9 120
14.4 127

Inventories arestated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories consymed in the period ended 29 March 2019 were £45.8m [2018: £42 1m }. Inventory written down in the
period totalled £nij {2018: £nil]. Reversals of inventory previously written down in the period were £nil (2018: £ml).

16. Trade and Other Receivables

Asat Asat

260 March 30 March

2019 2018

£m £m

Amounts fallingdugwithin one year

Tradeeceivables ) 125.8 123 5
Less expected credit Joss allowance [2.1) (1.73

Tradereceivables ’-net 123.7 121.8

Other debtors 5.0 8.0

Prepayments 11.8 8.1

Contract assets 54.2 452

Prepeid land!ill proyigion expenditure 1.4 1.8

) 196.2 184.9

All amounts included within other debtors, prepayments and acerued income are due within one year, Tradareceivables
arenon-interestbgaring Duetotheir short maturities, the fair value of trade and other receivables appraximates to their
book vaiue. The ayerage credit period taken oninvoices was 36.1days (2018:38.0 days). Tradereceivables includes £8 4m
inrelation to SWR which was acquired on 11 March 2019. This increase has been offset by improved cash collection efforts

Creditlimits for ngw customers are assigned based on the potential customer’s credit quality. An external credit scoring
system is used bafore assigning any creditlimit over £500. Management monitors the utilisation of credit limits regularly.
The trade recelvables balance sonsists of a large number of customer balances, represented largely by local account

customers, and thers is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Inciudedin the Group's trade receivables balances are debts with a carrying amount of £18.1m [2018: £24.5m) whichare
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not recorded an ECL allowance as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does nat hoid any collateral over

thaese balances.
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Frahancial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

16. Trade and Other Receivables continued

The Group writes off atrade raceivable when thereis information indicating that thedebtor is in severe financiai difficulty
and there is norealistic prospect of recovery. None of the trade receivable that have been written off is subject to
enforcement activitias.

The following table details the risk profile of trade raceivables. As the Group's historical creditloss experisnce does not
show significantly different 10ss patterns foy different customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on past
due statusis not distinguished between tha Group's type of customer.

Expected Lifetime
creditinsgs  expacted
rataX craditloss

Axat28March2018
'l:-do recelvables - days past due
1tpo30days 1% 0.2
31toE0days 1% -
Bito80days 1% -
91to120days 50% D.8
Over120days 50% 1.3
Expected
creditioss Liletime
rate % ECL

Agat 30 March2018
Trade receivables - days past due
1to30days 1% -
31to6G days 1% -
611090 days 1% -
91t01204days BO% -
Over 120 deys 50% 17

The allowance for ECL includes individually impaired trade receivables which arain excess of 120 days overdue, in
liquidation or are the subject of lagal action, The ECL recagnised represents the ditference between the carrying amount
of these trade receivahles and the present value ofany expected racoveries.

The following table showsthe movement in ECL that hag been recognised in tradeand other receivables in accordance with
the simplified approach set outin IFRS 9.

Asat Ag at
20 March 30 March
2019 2018
£m Ffm
M intheall tor doubtful debts
Bajance at the beginning of the period 1.7 1.7
Impairment losses recognised 0.7 0.1
Amgounts recovered during the period 0.7 1.5
Amounts written off as uncollectable [1.0) (16)
21 1.7
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade receivabies approximates ther fair vaiue
Lang-term racaivables
Asat Asat
29 Maroh 30March
2019 2018
£m Em
Emountu jalling due after more thanone year
Funds on long-term deposit 24 ga
Brepavment inrespect of EVP Dispute (Note 33) 63.8 836
Loans to Employee Banafit Trust 29 18
t48.8 73.7
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The Groupisengaged ina dispute with HMRC in relation to the Landfill Tax treatment of certain materials used in the
engineering of landfill sites from Septermber 2009 to May 2012. Prior tothe IP0, the Group had hardship relief which meant
pavment was not required tobe mads to HMRC. Subsequent to the IPO the Group pre-paid the disputed amountto HMRC as
disclosed in Note 33.

17. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Asat Asat

30 March 24 March

2019 2018

£m £m

Cashatbankandinhand 24.4 14.0
Short term deposits 41.8 2E.8
Balance at the end of the period 86.2 40.8

Deposits comprise £36.2m (2018: £19.1m) of funds onovernight deposit via a Group cash pooling facilityand an insurance
deposit of £56.7m (2018: £7 7m] whichrepresents cash held as security for self-insurance obligations. Included within

the tatal cash balance is £6.6m (2018, £9.6m] which cannot be accessed by the Group as it is held as collateral against
insurance l1abilities by Bray Insurance Company Lirruted, which is the Group’s captive insurance company.

18. Assets Classifled as Held for Sale

Asat Asat

29 March 30 March

2019 2018

£m £m

Freehold Jand held for sale 0.1 01

The Group holds a freehold property that it nolonger requires and intends to dispose of it within the next 12 months,
Asearchis currently under way for a buyer and the Directors expectthat the fair value less costs to sell will be higher
than the carrying amount.

19. Financial Instruments

Asat Asat
20 March 30 March
2019 2018
£m £m

Atfair value through protfit and loss:

Loans andreceivables:

Liquidity fund! 131 9.4
Service concessionarrangement 2.8 -
15.7 84

1 Currentinvestments held by Bray Insurance Company Limited, the Group’s captive Insurance company

Derivativefinancialinstruments
The derivatives that the Group has entered into qualify for hedge designation as a cash flow hedge under IFRS 8. The Group
has entered into forward foreign exchange rata contracts which all mature within one year

The forward foreign exchange contracts haveresulted in the recognition of a derivative liability of €0 7m. Duringthe year
alosg of £0.4m hasbeenrecognised 1n the statement of other comprehensive income.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts are calculated by discounting the contracted forward values and

translating at the balance sheet rates. The fair value measurements are classified as Level 2in the fair value hierarchy
as defined by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, as the inputs axre from observable quoted exchanges.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

19. Financial Instruments continued
The fair valueand thanotional amounts are as follows:

Asar28 Masch 2019 Asat30March 2018
Fairvalua Notignal  Fairvaiue Notional
£m Em €m £m
Forwerd forgign exchange contracts 0.7} 18.0 {01} 19.0
Borrowings
Asat20Maych 2018 Asat30March 2018
Rook Averags Avernge
valne interest Bookvalue interest
£m rute X £€m rateX
Current
Obligations under finance lesses 1.7 6.8% 311 6 8%
Non-current
Obligations under finance leases 0.9 5.8X 87.7 58%
Bankloans 248.0 3.ax 194.7 3.3%
EVPpreference instrument 48.6 B.5% 46.2 5.5%
ast.b 3288
419.2 369.7
Asat Asat
29March 30March
2018 ems
Cm Em
Bankborrowings including finance leases 3708 3138
EVP prefarance instrument 48.8 48 2
418.2 "8 7

At 29 March 2019 the Grouphas an undrawn revoiving creditfacility (RCF) of £99.0m.

Inthe year ended 29 March 2019, the Group settledits £200m term facility and entered into a £350.0m RCF. The costs

of £3.0m attributed to obtaining the facility have been capitalised and are being amortised over the existing life of the
facility, The unamortised costs of £3.8m1n relation to the historic £200m term facility have heen written off as a finance
chargein Other iterns (Note 3). Due to the nature of the RCF and continued repayments and drawdowns, the cash flows have
been presented on a net basisin the Statement of Cash Flows.

Inthe yearended 24 March 2017 certain pre-1P0 lenders were issued with preference share capital in Wasteholdco 1 Limuted
1n exchange for settlement of amounts due ta thera. In the event that the Groupissuccesstul in ite EVP case (see Note 33)
with HMRC, the EVP preference shareholders will be entitled to certain funds recovered from HMRC by the Company

The Directors consider it liksly that the Group willbe successiul in the case and accordingly have recognised g liability

1n respect of the EVP preferance shares. In the event that the Group isunsuccesstul in tha EVP proceedings and does not
racover the amount prapaid to HMRC, the Group expects torelease the majority of the asgociated EVP liability as disclosed
inNaote33.

Borrowings are measured at amortised cost with the exception of the EVP prafersnce instrument which is measured at fair
value. Allfinancial assets and financial liahilities have been categorised as Level 2. Level 2 financial instruments have

been valued using inputs othear than quoted prices that are gbservabie for the asset or liability either directly o indirectly.

Interest rates onbarrowings

Asot28 March £018 Asat30 March 2018
Averaga Average
intarest interest
Principal rate Principal rate
£m. % €m %
Term facility - 3.2x 200 0 3.8%

Transaction costs of £3.0m (2018: £6.4m) incurred in tha origination of these facilities have beennetted against the
carrying value of the loans. The EVP preference instrument isnon-interest bearnng, however, in accordance with
IFRS §Financial Instruments, an imputed interest charge of 5.5%is being racognised.
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Fair value of financial assets and l1abilities

As at29March 2019 Asat30March2018
Bookvalue Fairvalue Bookvalue Fairvalue
£m £m £m £
Borrowings {370.8) (370.8) (313.5) [318.0)
EVF preference lastrument [(48.8) {48.8) [(46.2) (46.2]
Trade and other pavables* (Note 20) [189.1) {189.1) {165.2) [1B5.2)
Denivative financialinstrument (0.7) (0.7) 0.1 (01)
Trade and other receivables® (Note 16) 123.7 123.7 1218 1218
Liquidity fund 13.1 13.1 g4 54
Funds on long term deposit 2.4 1.4 8.3 6.2
Prepaymentinrespect of EVP Dispute 63.6 62.9 636 59.6
Other long-term debtors 2.9 29 1.8 18
Cashand cash equivalents (Note17) 86.2 86.2 40.8 a0 8

[(327.1) (328.8) (279 3) (290.9)

1 Trade and other payables extludes deferred incore, taxation and social security and other non-financial liabilities,
2 Trade and otherreceivables sxcludes prepayments, other debtors and acerued income.

The fair values of tinancial assets and liabihities are determined as follows:

Interest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted bassd on the
applicabla yield curves derived from quoted interest rates.

The fair values of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities are determined based on discounted cash flow analysis
usingcurrent market rates for similar instruments

Financlal risk management

Tha Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. market risk {including capital risk manageraent, cash flow
interest rate risk, curreneyriskand price risk), creditriskand liquidity risk. The Group's overall riskmanagement
programmes focus pnthe unpredictability of financial markets and seek tominimise potential adversa effects onthe
Group's tinancial performance. Financial risk managernent in the above areas is carried outunder a policy approved by the
Board of Directors.

Capitalrisk managemant

The Group manages its capital structure using anumber of measures and taking into account its future sirategic plans.
Such measures include its net interest cover, Jiquidity and leverage ratios. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’as shownin
the consolidated statement of financial position plus Net Debt Net Debt iscalculated as tatal borrowings [including
‘current and non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and cash
equivalents. The Directors are satisfied that the current risk management strategy1s appropriate and effective.

Cash flowinterestraterisk

The Group’sintersst-bearing assets include cash and cash equivelents which earninterest at floatingrates. The Group's
incomeand oparating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest
rateriskkanses from long-term borrowings. Borrowings 1ssued at variablerates expose the Group to cash flow interestrate
risk.Group policy is tomaintain an appropriate proportion of its borrowings at fixed rate using interest rate swaps to
achisvethiswhen necessary.
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Financiai Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

19. Financial Instruments continued
Tha intarest rate risk profile of the Group's financial assets and liabilities was as follows:

Asat Asat
20March 30Maych
2019 2018
tm £m
Finanoclal liabilities
Floating rate financial liabilities (excluding derivatives) 248.0 194 7
Fixod rate financial liabilfties 1226 118.8
Non-interesthearing financiailiabilities 139.1 1838
Non-interest beasing EVP preterence instrument 48.6 48 2
Total Hnancisl Uabilities 608.3 523 5
Fixed ratefinancialiiabilities relate to obligations under finance leases.
Non-interest bearing financiai liabilities comprise trade payabjes.
Asxnt Asst
20March 3DMareh
2018 2018
£m Em
Financial assets
Floating rate flnanclal assets (axcluding derivatives) 58.8 73.7
Floatingrate financial assets {cash and cagh equivalents) 88.2 408
134.8 114.5
N bearing 1
Ligquidity fund 13.1 9.4
Non-interest bearingfinancial assets 123.7 121§
136.8 130.9
Totalfinancial asnets 271.6 2454

The interest onfixed rate financial instrurnents is fixed until the maturity of the invegstment. The interest on floating rate
financial instruments is re-set at intarvals of less than one year. The other financial assets and liahlities of the Group that
are not included inthe above tables ars non-interest bearing and therefore not subject to interasi rate risk.

Fixed rata and non-interest bearing financial assets and liabilities are exposed to fair value interest rate risk and floating
rate financial assets and lisbilities to cash flow interest rate risk.

The minimum leass payments under finance leases fall due as follows:

Agpt Asal

20March 30March

2018 2018

£m £m

No later than one year a5.8 359
Later than one year but not more than five yaars 84.% 7.7
More than five years 23.3 22.3
143.0 1378

Futurefinance charges onleases ~ (20.9) (19.1)
Presant value of finance Jeasgs liabilities 122.6 1188

Curronoyrisk

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from curcency exposures primanly related to the disposal of RDF via export
ta Europe The Group enters intoforward contracts to purchase Euros based uponexpected costs These derivativesara
classified as cash flaw hedges.

Pricerisk

The Group is not materially exposed to any equity securihies price risk. Allfourdivisions are expesed to commodity price
rigks toa greater or lesser degrae on their autputs. The commodities that the Group is exposed tocommodity price risks an
are fuel, electricity, paper, glass, cardboard, stesl, aluminium and plastics {including HDPE aad PET} The pricerisk
assaciated with commodities is considarad tobsinthe ordinary course of business for the Group.
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Creditrisk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis as appropriate. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents. derivative
financialinstruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as wall as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties witha
minimurm rating of ‘A’ are accepted.

Management does not expect any signiticant losses of receivables that have not been provided ferasshown in Note 16.

Thecarrying amounrt of financial assets recorded in the financial information, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Group's maximum exposise to creditrisk, These amounts 1nclude recgivable balances fromlocal authority
clients, hence are not exposed to significant credit nsk. Given the above factors, the Board does not consider it necessary
to present a detailed analysis of credit risk.

Liquidity rigkc

The Group ensures that there are sufficient comrmitted loan facilities in order to meet short-termbusiness requirements,
after taking into account the cash flows from operations and its holding of cash and cash aquivalents. The expected
undiscounted cash flow of the Group’s financial liahilities (including derivatives), by remauning contractual maturity,
atthebalance sheet dateis shownbelow.

Asat28March2059
Dus Due
betwean between Dusfive
Due within oneand twoand vyvesrsand
oneyoAr twoyvears fiveyears bayond Total
£€m £m €m £m £m
Non-derivative financial Habilities
Borrowings, excluding finance lease (370.85) - £261.0) - {261.0)
Financeleaseliabitities {36.5] (28.3) [(55.7 [23.3) [132.9])
Interest paymants on borrowings - - - - -
Other non-interest bearing liabihiies [188.1) - - - [189.1)
Non-derivative financial assets
Cashandcashequivalents 66.2 - - - 686.2
Liquidity fund 13.1 - - - 13.1
Non-interesthiearingfinancial assets 123.7 68.9 - - 1g2.8
(21.7) 0.8 [306.7) {23.3) (311.1)
Asat30March2018
Due Due
between between Duelive
Due within ane and two and yearsand
one ysar twao years five years beyond Total
Em £m €rn £m £m
Non-dexivative financialliabilities
Borrowings, excluding finance lease - - (200 @) - (200.0)
Finance lease liablities (35 9] (29.9) (49.8) (22.2) (137 8)
Interest payments on borrowings (7.4) (7.7) (12 4] - (27.8)
Other non-interest bearing liabilities (163.8) - - - {183 8)
Non-derivative Hnancial assets
Cashand cash equivalents 40.8 - - - 40.8
Liguidity fung 94 - - - 9.4
Non-interesthearingfinancial assets 121.5 737 - - 195 2
(36 4) 36.1 [e62.2) {22 2) (283.7]
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

19. Financial Instruments continued

Interestrate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses helow have been determined based on the exposure tointerest ratas for both derivativeand
non-denvative instruments at the balance sheet date. For tloating rate liabilities, the analysis ig prepared takingan
average of the liability outstanding over the pericd.

It interest rates had been 2% higher/1%lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's result for the 52 weeks
ended 29 March 2018 would increase/(decrease) by the amounts shown in the table below, This analysis assumes that,
where interest rates are currantiy less than 1%, anyraduction is capped at zero.

52 wesks ended 53 wesks ended
20 March 2018 30March 2018
[+ 4 % 2% 1%
incraase decrease increase decrease
ininterest Ininterast ininterast ininterest
ratey rates rates ates
£m £m £m fm
Gain/(loss) - variable rate financial instruments 6.0 (2.5 (4.0] 20
20. Trade and Other Payables
Asat Aspt
28March 30March
2018 2018
£m £m
Current
Trade payables 166.6 135.4
Taxationand soctal security 42.8 50.8
Interest payable - cs8
Accruals 32.6 284
Contract liability 17.8 i74
(ther payables o.8 o8
240.8 233.9
Non-current
Trade and other payables 13.7 13.9

Contract liability is what was previcusly referred to as deferred income under IAB 18, Included within contract liability is
£0.1m (2018: £0.1m) in relation to Government grants which will be recagnised inmore than one year. £13.0m has also been
rocognisad inrelation tothe EVP Dispute as disclosed In Nate 33. Trade pavablesincludes £8.4m of balances related to SWR
which was acquired on 11 March 2018.

21. Provisions

Landtill
tesloration
&aftercare  Insurance Other Total
£m £m £m £m
Asat 24 March 2017 8o 9 11.6 16.6 108.1
Utllised 7.9 0.6 @7 {10.0)
Charged/(credited) to protit and loss account 47 0.4 57 10.8
Impantof real discount rate changes to profif and loss account (5.7 - - 5.73
Unwinding of discount a.2 ~ - 2.2
Asat30March 2018 74.2 12.6 19.6 1068.4
Uttlssed (9.9) - (11 {10.4)
Charged/(credited) to profit and loss account (0.8) (1) 8g 7.0
Impect afreal discountrate changes to profit and loss account 16 - - i6
Unwipnding of discount 2.0 - - 2.0
Transfers from fixed/other assete (0.3) - - (Q.3]
As at 28 March 2019 87.4 11.5 27.4 108.3
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Provisions have been analysed between currentand non-current as follows:

Asat As at

28 March 30 March

2018 2018

£m £m

Current 16.0 131
Non-current a0.3 93.3
106.3 106.4

Landfill restoration and aftercare

As partof its normal activities, the Group undertakes to restore its landfill sites and to maintain the sites and control
leachate and methane emissions from the sites. Provision is made for these anticipated costs. A number of estimate
uncertainties affect the calculation, including the impact of regulation, accuracy of site surveys, transportation costs
and changesin the real discount rate. The provisions incorporate our best estimates of the financial eftects of these
uncertainties, but future changes inany of these estimates could materially impact the calculation of the provision.
Restoration costsareincurred as each sitais filled, and in the period immaediately after its closure. The provision
incorporates thebest astimate of the financial effect of these uncertainties, but future changesin any of theassurmptions
could matenallyimpact the calculation of the provision.

Maintenance and leachate and methane control costs areincurred as sach site 1s filled and for a number of years
postclosure.

Aftercare costsare incurred as each site is filled and for a number of years post closure. This period can vary significanily
from site to site, depending upon the types of wastelandfilled and the speed at which it decomposes, the way the site is
engineered and the regulatory requirements specific to the site.

Changesin the provigion arising from revised estimates or discount rates or changes in the expectsd imingof
expenditures that relate to proparty, plant and equipment are recorded as adjustments to their carrying value and
depreciated prospectively over their remaining useful economiclives; otherwise such changes are recognised within
theincorme staterment.

The associated outflows are estirmated to anse over a period of up to 80 years depending on the date of gach site closure. In
determining the provision, the estimates for future expenditure required to settle the obligation are inflated wsinglonger
term inflation rates, and discounted using the nominal discount rate. The rates utilised reflect the period of the obligation
on a site by site basis which varies between 10 and 60 years

Long-term aftercare provisions included inlandfill restoration and aftercare provisions have beeninflated and discounted
usingthe below nominal rates:

Inflation rate Discountrate
Asat Asat Assat Agat
29 March 30 March 29 March 30March
Period al obligation 2019 2018 2019 2018
Svears 3.4% 3.0% 1.4% 1.7%
10 years 3.4% 3.2% 1.9% 22%
20 years 3.7% 3 5% 2.6% 27%
30 years 3.6% 3.4% 2.5% 2 6%
60vears 3.1% 3.0% 2.4% 2.3%

Anincrease uf 1% in the real discount rate [at current cost) would result in a decrease of environmental provisions of
approximatealy £11.7m.

Al10%increasa in cash outflows would result inan increased environmental provision of £6.9m.
Long-term aftercare provisions included 1n landfill restoratipn and aftercare pravisions have been inflated at a rate

0f3.2% (2018: 3.4%). An increase of 1% in the rate of inflation would result in anincrease of environmental provisions of
approximately €18.7m.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

21. Provisions continued
Insurance
The associated outflows are estimated to arise over a period of up to five years from the balance sheet data,

Other
Other provisionsinclude a provision for dilapidations of £8.0m (2018: £8.7m] and £17.1m (2018: £7.7ra] relating to onerous
contracts. The associated outflows are estimated 1o arise over a period of up to20 years from the balance sheet date.

22. Deferred Taxation
The followingare the major deferred tax assets and liablities recognised by the Groupand movements thereon during the
current period:

Termporary
dif{erence
arisingon Recognised
property, Retirement taxlosses
plantand  Share-based benefit Intangible carnied
equipment payments Provisions  obiigation Goodwll assats forward Tatal
em €m £m €m £Em £m £m £m
As at 24 March 2017 42.1 0.1 1.9 (2.7) 85 {34.8) 12.4 28.6
Acquired 08 - - - - 1.8} - 21
Credit/{charge] toincome (9.2) 03 - (03 (09 29 (0.8) (7 8)
Credit/{charge] to SOGI - 14 ~ {5.9) - - - 41)
As at 30 March 2018 324 1.9 1.8 [8.5) 4.8 (32.5) 11.8 145
Acquired (0.5 - ~ - - [2.73 - (aa;
Credit/(charge) tolnccme
statement (2.4) 05 {10) - (09) 3.0 (28] (3.9)
Credit/[charge) 10 SOCI ~ - - [49) - - - (48)
Credit/(charge] to retained
earnings - 09 - - - - (09
As at 20 March 2018 28.5 1.4 a.8 {13.4) 7.7 33.2) 2.2 23

Deferred tax has been recognised in the current year using the tax rate of 17% [2018: 17%). Deferred tax assets and liabilities
ara oifset whenthereis alegally enforceableright to set off current tax assets against curreni taxliabilities.

The deferred 1ax asset of £2.1m (2018: £14 5m) has been recognised in the Financial Statements because the Group
considers, based upon its financial projections, that it i probable that future taxable profits will arise against which
the asset can be utilised.

As at29 March 2019the Group had unused taxlosses of £71.9m [2618: £73.61m) available for olfset against future profits.
Adeferred taxassethas been recognised in ragpect of £64 7m {2018: £70.0rn) of theselosses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised inrespect of the remaining £17.2mm (2018: £3.6m) as it is not considered probabla that there will be future
taxable profits available in the statutory entity in which these losses are being carried forward.

23. Share-Based Payments
The following conditional share awards granted to Directors and employees are outstanding:

Asat Asat

88 March 30March

201¢ 2018

Dateofgrant Numbar Number
20 October 2016 2,262,240 2,434,818
24 January 2017 69,088 59,088
3July 2017 1,622,420 2,120,433
1 Septernber 2017 28,230 26,230
2July 2048 826,126 -
1 Octoher 2018 219,389 -
11 Decomber 2018 18,919 -
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The following share-based expenses charged in the year are included within administration expenses:

Asat Asat

28 Mareh 30 March

2018 2018

£m £m

Performance SharePlan as 18

During the yearthe Group had three conditional share-based payment arrangements granted to Directors and employees.
Theschemes are equity settled

Performance SharePlan

Nurmber of Share price
uptions atdateot  Numberof Fairvalue
oniginally Contractual grant employees Expected Expected Riskiree  peroption
Dateofgrant granted 1tfe (years) (pence) atgrant valatility  life [years) rate (pence)
20 October 2016 2,635,794 2.66 1795 13 27% 2,656 0.26% 106 2
24 January 2017 84,188 2.4 186.8 4 27% 2.4 0.23% 1083
3July 2017 2,108,313 3 ze1g 78 26% 3 0 36% 154.6
1 September 2017 26,230 28 228.8 1 26% 2.83 0.22% 161 B
2July 2018 1,014,880 28 2510 36 24% 2.93 071% 173.2
10ctgber201s 218,358 2.9 2530 2 24% 2.03 0.89% 1738
11 December 2018 18,818 2.9 1922 1 24% 2.93 0.90% 114 1

The Group has used the stochastic rnodel to value its share awards.

Theexpected volatility is a measure of the amount by which a share price is expected to fluctuate duning the period. It is
typically caloulated based on statistical analysis of daily share prices overthe langth of the award pariod. Due totharecent
listing of Biffa plc this information 1s not available. Instead it has been based on the volatility of another company ofa
similar size which operates in the sarme market.

Araconciliation of movements in the number of share awards canbe summarised as follows:

20March
Dateof grant Granled Vested Lapsed 2019
At25March 2018 - - - -
20 October 2018 2,635,794 ~ (353.554) 2,282,230
24 January 2017 84,189 - [25,101) £8,088
3July2017 2,196,313 - {575,893) 1,822,420
1September 2017 28,230 - - 26,230
2July2018 1,014,880 - [78,7558) 636,125
1 0ctober 2018 218,359 - - 218,359
11Decamber2018 18,819 - - 18919
At29 March 201§ 6,198,584 - [1,033,303) 65,163,281

The Performance Share Plan {PSP]) provides for the grant of awards in the form of conditional free shares ornil costs
options. Shares in relation tothe award will be released to participants subsequent to tha date of the preliminary
announcement of regults for the 2018/19 financial year dependent upan the extent to which the performance conditions of
achisvernent of adjusted EPS targets for the fiscal year ending March 2019 and performance of the Company's relative total
shareholder growth have been satisfied. The EPS fair value is equivalent tothe share price at grant date on the basis that it
isanon-market based measura.

Inthe prior period the Group launched the Biffa Sharesave Plan 2017 (the Scheme) to allemployees with six months or
more continuous employment at the date of the Schema launch. The Schems is subfect to HMRC rules which limit monthly
contributions to £500 and the option price for this award was £1.68 being a 20% discount to the average market price ovar
the three consecutive days preceding the offer date. The Scheme termis for three years and options may be exarcised
duringthesixmonths after completion of the Save as You Earn contract.

Duringthe period 513,741 options were granted at a fair value 0f 46 2 pence, and as at29 March 2019 450,409 were
outstanding under the Scheme. The share price at award was £2.35 and the option price is £1.98.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

a.
24. Share Capital Nuraber of Called up
shares  sharecapital
Number E
As at 30 March 2018 250,000,000 2,600,000
As at 28 March 2018 260,000,000 2,600,000
Share premium

Tha share prermnium represents amounts received in excess of the norminal value of shares issued upon IPO, net of the direct

costs associated with issuing those shares.
52 weoks 63 woeks

ended ended

20March 30March

2019 2018

Em £m

Opening balance 235.3 2356
Expenses on issue of equity shares - [02)
Closingbalance 236.3 235.3

Mergarragarve
The merger reserve of £74.4m arose on the acquisition of Wasteholdco 1 Limited and is the ditterence between the carrying
value of the net assets acquired and the nominal vaiue of the share capital

25. Retained Earnings/(Deficit)

Asat Asal
29 Marah 30March
2019 2018
£ £m
Retainad esrnings/(doficit] st the end of the period 25.0 (211)
Adjustmentinrespect of adoption of IFRS 15 {6.2) -
Profit for the period 18.0 311
Other comprehensive income for the period 22.4 28.5
Employee service inrespect of share option schemes (Note 23) 2.2 19
Dividends pald [12.0) {11 4)
Rotsined surplus at the end of the period 448.8 290

28. Cash Flows from Qperations
52 waeks 53weeks

ended ended

20March 30March

2019 2018

Lra £m

Profit/(10ss) for the period 18,0 311

Adjustments for:

Finance income Q.5) (0.6)

Finance charges 28.a 247

axatlon a5 72

alnraﬂns profit 45.2 B2 4

EXceptlonal items (Note 3) 182 7.7
Amortigation of intangibles (Note 8) 17.8 19.0
&preciatinn of ptoperty. plant and equipment (Note 6) 87,7 BB 6
Profiton disposaiof fixed sssets {2.2) 2.n
[Increase) in inventories .73 (3.0)

(Incresse)/decressa in dehtors 0.8) 6.0
lﬂﬁalmecreasa} increditors 1.1 (812

lil:reaaef[decreasa] infinancial asset {3.9) 1.2
[(Decrease) in provisions (11.0) {83)

Total cash generated from operations 133.0 1417
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27. Reconciliation of Net Cash Flow to movement in Debt

S2 waaks 53 weeks

snded ended

29 March 30March

2019 2018

£m £m

Net{decrease)/increase incash and cash equivalents 25.4 [15.6)
Net decrease/[increass) in borrowings (69.6] [13.4])
Movement in Net Debt in the period [(34.1] (29.0)
Net Debt at beginning of period (318.93 (289 8)
Net Debt at end of perlog (353.0) [318.8])

Analysis of Net Debt

Asat Asat

e9Maroh 3D0March

2019 2018

£m £m

Cashand cashequivalents 68.2 40.8
Financeleases (122.8) {118 8)
Bankloans {248.07 £184.73
EVP preterence liability (8.3) (83)
Reported Net Debt 310.7] (279.0)
EVP preference liability [(42.3} [39.9)
(353.0} (318 9)

0fthe EVP preference liability, £6.3m has been included within Reported Net Debt as 1t wili be payabla to EVP preference
shareholders irrespactive of the cutcome of the EVP Dispute. The remainder £42.3m has been excluded on the basis that
it will only become payable subject to the outcome of the EVP Dispute and will be funded by recovery of tunds from HMRC.

Changes in liabilitigs arising from financing activities

The table below detajls changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financingactivities, includingboth cash and
non-cash changes. Lisbilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, orfuture cash flaws
will ba, classified inthe Group's consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

Non-cash changes

At Acqulisitian Neaw Asat

20March Finaneing  Fairvalue of finance Other 28 March

2018 c¢ashilows movements subsidiary leases chenges 2019
Obligations under tinance leases [(118.8) 33.0 - (1.9 [38.5) 1.6 (r22.6]
Bankloans (184.7) (45.1) - - - [(8.2] (248.0])
EVP preference liability [48.2) - (2.4) - - - {48.8)
(368.7) (12.1) [2.a) (1.8} (38.5) [6.6) (419.2)

The cash {lows inrespect of the Group's bankloans includes repayments of £686.9m and drawdowns of E732.0m.
Non-cash changes

Al Acguisition New Asat

24 March  Finanoing Fairvalue cf finance Other 30March

2017 cashilows movements subsidfary leases changes 2018
Obligations under tinarnce leases (1068.9) 36.3 - (2.8) (42 8) 0.4 (118.8)
Bankloans (1938) 4.4 - - - [5.5)] (194.7)
EVP preference liability (43 8) - (X)) - - - (46 2)
(346 3) 397 [2.4] [28) (42 8) (5.1) (369.7)
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Financiaj Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

28. Operating lease commitments
As at the balance sheet date the Group has outstanding commitments for futuré minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable opersating leases, which fall due ss foliows:

As st 20 Maxch 2019 Asat30DMarch201g

Landsand Lendand
buildiags Othar  buildings Other
£m £m £m €m
Within one year 1.4 24 136 17
Between une and five years 61.0 3.1 4318 2.4
After five years 102.5 - 88 3 -
1687.9 6.6 145 4 4.1

The Group leases various offices and operational facilities under non-cancellable operatinglease agreemnents. Theleases
have various tarms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.

29. Pension and Post-Retiramant Benetits

Deflned contribution schemes
52 weaks §3 weeks

ended ended

29 March 30March

2018 2018

£m £m

Detined canteibution expeanse 3.4 as

Defined benefitschemas

The Group operates a number of defined benefit schemes: Biffa Pension Scheme (BPS), the Cornwall Pension Fund (the
Cornwall Fund), an Unfunded Un&approved Retirement Banefits Scheme (UURES), the Fedarated Pension Plan (the FPP)
and Prudentisl Platinum (Platinum), the Kent County Councii Pension Fund (the Kent Fund]. the Staffordshire Pension
Fund (the Staffordshire Fund) and the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF){collectively, the Schemes). The Schemes
oifer both pensions inretirement and death benefits to members. All the Schemes are closed to new members, The BPS,
Platinum, the Cornwall Fund, the Kent Fund and the Statfordshire Fund are opentoaccrual although the BPS is closed for
the majority of members ané only a faw employees with statutory protections remain in active service. The BPS makes up
around 95% of the total Liability acrogs the Schemes,

The Group has inthe current period accounted for The Kent Fund, Staffordshire Fund and the GMPF as defined benefit
schermes for the first time. The prior year has notbeen restated asnot material

The Schemes expose the Group to actuarial riskssuch as market (investment) risk, intarestraterisk, inflationrisk
currency risk and longevity risk. Contributions tothe Schemes for the year snded 27 March 2020 are expected to
be £4.1m.

The Schemasare administared by Trustees and tha assets ara hald saparatsly tothe legal entity that is the Group.

The Trusteaboard of the Schemes is composed ofan independent Trustee, and other employer and member nominated
Trustees (where the legal minimum proportion of member nominated Trustees has been upheld). The Trustees are
raquized by lawtoactin the best interests of the members of the Schema. The Trustees arerespansible for the investment
policy with regard to the assets of the Schemes.

The Group considers two measures of the Schemes surplus or deficit. The accounting positionis shown on the Group
balance sheet. The funding position, calculated at the triennial actuarial assessment, is used to agree contributions tothe
Schemes. The two maeasures will vary bacause thay are for differant purposes, and are calculated st different ratesand in
different ways. The key calculation difference isthat the funding position considers the expected returns of Scheme assets
whencalpulating the Schemes liability, whersas the accounting position under JAS 18 discountsliabilities based on
corporate bond yields

The Schemeshave an acoounting surplus that istully recognised on the basis that futura econgmic benefits are
unconditionally availablein the form of a reduction in the future cash contributions or as acash refund Whaerea surplus of
adefined benefit scheme arises or thers is potential for a surplus to arise from committed future contributions the rights of
the Trusateesto prevent tha Group obtaininga refund of that surplus is considered in determining whetheritis necessaryto
restrict the amount of the surplus that is recognised.
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Afull actuarial valuation of the Schemes was ¢arried out as at 31 March 2015 which revealed a funding shortfall of £66.7m.
The Group committed todeficit payments of £3.85m each year to 31 March 2017 and escalating with RPIinflation each year
fromn 31 March 2018t0 31 March 2024.

The Groupisanadmitted body in one other scheme that is partof the Local Governmment Pension Scheme The contractual
terms of the commercial agreements that admit the Group to the schames limit the actuarial risk that the Group is exposed
to, consequently thascheme has been accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.

Investmentrisk

The present values of the Schemaes’ liabilities are calculated using a discount rate determined by refersnce to yields
available onhigh quality A A rated corporate bond yields; in other words, from the position of being fully funded then ifthe
return onthe Schemes’ agsets were belaw this rate, it would creata a deficitin the Scheraes.

Inaddition tothe natural interest rate hadging provided by its investrnent in bonds the Trustes also purchases darivatives
toensurethat the funding position ofthe Schermes are, overall, hedged against 0% of movementsinlong termrisk {ree
interest rates and 60% of movements ininflation expectations. No annuities or specific mortality hedging products have
been purchasad by the schame

Interestrisk
Adecreasein the corporata bond yield will increase the Schemes’ liabilities; however, this will be partially offset byan
increase inthe value onthe Schemes' corporate bond asssts.

Longevityrisk

Tha present value of the Schemes liabilities ave calculated by refarence to the best estimate of the mortality of the
Schemes’ members both guring and after their employment. Anincrease in thelife expectancyof the Schemes' members
willincrease the Schemaegs’ liabilities.

inflationrisk

The present value of the S5chemes’ habilities are calculated by reference to the future expected pension indexation
(both indexation in deferment and pension increasas in payment), which will depend on future inflation expectations.
As such. anincrease in the expectation of future inflation will increase the Schemes'liabilities.

Tha lump som death benefits paid tothe dependants of the Schemes’ members are insured with an external
ingurance company,

The present value of the gbligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
projected unit credit method.

A full actuarial valuation of the Schemes was carried out as at 31 March 2015 and has been npdated to 30 March 2018 by
aqualified independent actuary. The major assumptions used by theactuary were {in nominal terms) as follows:

Asat Asat
28 March 30March
2018 2msa
Discount rate 2.6% 27%
Reteof salaryincrease 3.3% 3.2%
Rste of inflation - RP1 3.3% 2%
Rate of intlation - CPI o 2.3% 2.2%
Rate of pension increases! - RPl with floorof 0% cap of 2 5% pa. a.2% 22%
Rate of pensionincreases' - RPlwithfloorof 0% capof 5 0% p.a. 3.2% 3.1%
Rate of pensionincreases’ -~ RPlwithfloorof 0% capof6 0%pa 3.3% 3.2%
Rate of pension increases’ - CPI with floor of 0% cap of 3.0% p &, 2.2% 2.1%
Longevity (years)
Expected future lifetime of a male pensioner currently aged 65 21.0 211
Expected future lifetime of a female pensioner currently aged 65 23.3 23.6
Expacted future lifetime trom age 65 of a male member currently aged 50 z22.0 - N
Expected future lifetime from age 65 of a female member currently aged 50 24.1 25.0

1 InexcessofanyGuaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP].
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

29. Pension and Post Retirement Benefits continued
The agsets inthe Schemes were:

Asat20 Merch 2018 Asat30March2018
£m % £€m %
Asset catagory
Equitles 128.2 214 128.3 24.4
Bonds 3019 51.4 235.0 44.7
Properties and infrastructure 829 158 88 4 185
Hedge funds 40.9 a5 62.8 12.0
Other 18.8 2.0 12.4 2.4
587.8 524.9
Actualreturnonplan assets 48.9 33.6

Thetfair value of all of the above asset classes are determined based on quoted (bid) market prices. Virtually all squity and
debt instruments have quoted prices in active markets. Derivatives ara classified asLevel 2instruments and hedge funds
and property as Level 3instruments. It is the policy of the Schemes to use hedge funds and liability driven investments to
hedgae sorme of their exposure to interest rate and inflation risks. This palicy has been implemented during the current and
prioryears.

Reconcillation of npaning and clasing bal ofthep value of the defined benefit cbligation
Avat Asat
20 March 30 Merch
2018 2018
Em £m
Benefit cbligation at beginning of period ates 488 7
Newly recognised obligations 42.8 5.0
Service cost a2 14
Past service cost 3.1
Interest cost 13.7 14.0
Contributions by Scheme participants 0.5 0.2
Netremeasurement [gains)/losses - financial 29.2 3.6
Net remeasurernent [gains)/losses - demographic (7.9) (17 5)
Net remeasurement [gains)/losses - experience {14.5) [0.2)
Benetits paid (18.9) (22 3)
Benetitobligation at end of period 523.8 472.8

The past service cost of £3.1mrelates to the GMPequalisation and has been recognised as an gxceptional cost as detailed in
Note 3.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balancesof the falr value of Schemes’ assets

Asnt Asat

28 March 30 March

2019 2018

£m £m

Fair value of Schemes' assets et beginning of period 624.9 5D4.2
Newly recognised GMPF asset 29,2 5.2
Interest income on Schemes' assets 14.8 14.5
Return on assets, excluding interest income ara 19.1

Contributions by employers 5.8 4.7
Contributions by Schemes' participants a6 0.2
Benefits paid {18.9] {22 3)
Scheme administrative cost {0.8) Q.7]
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 587.8 524.9
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Amounts racognised in comprehensive income in respact of defined benefit Schemes

Asar Asat

29 March 3o Harch

2019 2018

£m Em

Current servicecost 3.2 14

Past service gost 3.1 -

Adminlstrative cost 0.8 0.7
Netinterest on the net defined benetit liability [21) (0.6]

GComponentg of defined benatit costrecognised in protit or loss 5.0 1.5

Remeasurement on the net defined benetit ltability

Return on Schemes’ assets {excluding amaunts ln net interest expense) 32.3 19.1
Actuarlal galns and losses from changes in financial assumptions [28.2) (3.5]

Actuarlal gain from changes in demographic assumptions 7.9 175

Actuarial gain from changes in experience assumptions 14.6 0.2
Movementin asset ceiling 1.8 (0.6}

Components of defined benetit cost recognised in other comprehensiveincome 273 32.7

The current service costis included 1n operating costs in profit or loss. The net interest expenseis included withinfinance
chargesinthe consolidated statement of profit orloss. The pastservice cost of £3.1mrelates to the GMP agualisation as
disclosed in Nota 3.

Theremegsurement of the net defined benefit hability is included in other comprehensive incomae.

Theamountincluded inthe consolidated statement of financial position arising from the Group's obligation inrespect of its
defined benefit Schemes is as follows:

Asat Asat
29 March 30 March
2019 2018
£m Em
Present valug of funded defined beneht obligation (623.8) (472.8)
Fairvalue of funded Schemes' assets 587.6 524.9
Adjustment for the restriction in asset benefit (0.3} (0.B)
Adjustment in respect of GMPF agreement 16.8 -
Net asset/[liabilities) arising from delined benefit gbligation 79.0 51.3

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the discount rate, expacted
futureinflation and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes
oftherespective assumptions occurring atthe end of the reporting period, while holding atl other assumptions constant.

I the discount rateis 0.5%]ower the defined benefit assat would decrease by £568.6m.

Iftheinflation assumption increases by 0.5% the defined benefit asset would decreaseby £44.2m.

Itthe life expectancy increases by one year for both men and women, the defined benetit asset would decrease by £21.8m.
The sensitivity analysis presentsd above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined banefit obligation
as1tis unlikely that the change in assumptions would cccurin isolation of one another as some of theassumptions may

be correlatad.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit abligation has been

calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as thatapplied in
caloulatingthe defined benefit obligation liability racognised in the statement of financial position,
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

29. Pension and Post Retirement Benefits continued

The Schemes’ participating employers are Biffa Waste Services Limited, Biffa Leicester Limited and Biffa West Sussex
Limited. These subsidiaries fund the cost of any protected members’ future accrual [to the extent that any protected
membaears remain working for each of these companies) earned on a yearly basis.

Protected members pay a range of fixed contributions of pensionable salary depending on what section of the Schemes they
are in. These contributions range from 3% to 8% of pensionabla salary Theresidualcontribution (including past service
sugmentationg] is paid by theabove antities of the Group. These contributions, raquired to fund accrual, are agreed
batween Biffa Corporate Holdings Lirmuted (the Principal Employer] and the Trustees of the Schemas following each

triennial valuation ofthe Schemes.

In accordance with the Pensions Act 2004, the Schemes'liabiiities are measured using a prudent discount rate at the
triennial valuation, but some asset putperformance is allowed for when calculating the deficit recovery contributions paid
for by the participating employers. Additional liabilities steraming from past service due to augmentation of benefits are

added tothe Schemes deficit.

The average duration of the banefit obligation at 29 March 2019 is approximately 21 years (2018: 23 years).

Tha Group expects tomake a contribution of £4.1m (2018. £4.Bm) tothe Schemes duringthe financial year to2? March 2020.

30. Related Party Transactions

There have bean no raterial related party transactionsin the 52 weeks ended 29 March 2019 (2018: nil) except for key
management compensation as set out in tha Directors Remuneration Report

Details of the Diractors rernuneration are set out in the Directors Rernuneration Report on pages 92-106.

Thare have been norelated party transactions with any diractors in the year or inthe subsequent period.

No Diractors held any rnaternial interest in any contract with the Company or the Group in the year or subseguent period ta

29 March 2019,

The Group has made £9 2m (2018: £8 2m) contributions to the pension schemaes.

31. Subsidiary undertakings

All subsidiary undertakings have a financial yearended coterminous with Biffa plcunless otherwise noted.
The Companies disclosed below are deemed to be the principal subsidiaries of the Group.

Principal Submidiary Place of incorporation Activity Shareholding
Biffa Polymers Limited' England and Wales Waste management 100%
Biffa Municipal Limited* England and Wales Waste management 100%
UK Waste Management Limited’ England and Wales Waste management 100%
Bitfa Waste Managermnent Limited? England and Wales Waste management 100%
Biffa West SussaexLimited? England and Wales Waste management 100%
Bray Insurance Company Limited® Malta Insurance services 100%
Barge Waste Management Limnited*® England and Wales Waste management 100%
Isiand Waste Services Limited? England and Wales Waste management 100%
Poplars Resousce Management Company Limited! England and Wales Waste managerment 100%
Biffa Waste Services Limited® England and Wales Waste management 100%
Biffa Leicester Limited* England and Wales Waste manageyment 100%
Biffa Envirornvmental Municipal Services Limited! England and Wales Waste managament 100%
WeirWaste Services Limited? England and Wales Waste management 100%
Weir Racycling Services Limited? England and Wales Waste management 100%
Speclalist Waste Recycling Limited™ England and Wales Wasts management 100%

1 Rogistered at Caronatien Road, Cressex, High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire HP12 3TZ.
2 Registered at Development House, St Anine Street, Floriana, Malta.
3 Registered at Annan Suite, 10 York Place, Edinburgh, Scotland EH1 3EP

* Financlal yearended 31 Decemnber 2018
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32. Contingent Liabilities

The Group must satisfy thefinancial sacurity requirements of environmental agencies inorder ta ensure thatitis ablato
discharge the obligations in thelicences or permits that the Group holds for its landfill sites. The Group satisfies these
financial security requirements by providing financial security bonds. The amount of financial security which is required
is determined 1n conjunction with the regulatory agencies, as is the method by which assuranceis provided. The Group has
existing bond arrangements in England and Wales of approximately £84.9m outstanding at 29 March 2019 (2018: £85.3m)
inrespect of the Group’s permitted waste activities where the Group has obligations under the Environment Agency's fit
and proper person test to make adequate financial provisioninorder to undertake those activities. Additionally the Group
has bonds to avalue of £19.8m (2018: £21.6m} in connection with security for performance of local authority and other
coniracts. Noliabilityis expected to arise inrespect of these bonds.

The Group is engaged in adispute with HMRC inrelation to the landfill tax treatment of certain raterials used in the
engineering of landfill sites from September 2009 to May 2012, which is fully explained in Note 33.

The Groupis also engaged 1n a dispute with HMRC in relation to the landfill tax treatment of sub-soils with low levels of
contamination from asbestos. At the date of signing of the accounts the outcome is not certain, howaver the Group has
received a protective assessment of £8.6m that the Group s disputing. Having taken independent professional advics,
the Directors donot reasonably expect atiadility of this order tocrystallise. Discussions with HMRC are on-going and
management are not able reliably to estimate the amount of any potential liability, and accordingly no provision hasbeen
madeinthese financial statements.

33. EVP Related Items
The Group is engaged in a dispute with HMRGC concerning historical Landfill Tax.

HMRC claims that the Groupisliable for £61.9m of Landiill Tax 1n raspect of certain waste materials deposited in Biffa's
landfill sites from 2009 to 2012 (EVP). Biffa contests that the material was used in the sites for an engineering purpose and
isnot therefore subject to Land{ill tax. Notwithstanding the Group’s opinion on the tax treatrent of this material, since
2012 all materials of this naturs have been subjected to Landfill Tax The maetter washeard bythe First tier Tax Tribunal
which found in HMRC's favour. Having taken appropriate advice the Directors have decided toappeal this judgement, this
hearing is scheduled to take place in Novernber 2019.

The contested armount was originally unpaid under 2 hardship agreement with HMRC but was paid to HMRC following the
reflnancing of the Group upon its IP0 1n October 2016, In addition to the payment of £61.9m, the Group paid £1.7m in interast
inthe prior year.

The Directors, having taken appropriate advice, donot beheve that a liability totax exists, and accordingly have treated the
payment of the tax and associated interest as a prepaymant.

Aspartofthe IP0 of the Group, arrangements were putin place to make certain payments to the sharehnlders and certain
members of employee incentive schemes of the Group immediately prior toits Listing, subject to and inrespect of the
outcome of the dispute. A liability of £48.6m has been recognised in borrowings, an accrual of £13m has been recognised in
non-current liabilities, and a non-underlying non-cash interest charge of £2.4m has heenrecognised in finance chargesin
respect of these obligations. Of the liability of £48.6m, £6.3m has been included within Reported Net Debt as it will be
pavableirrespective of the outcome of the dispute. The remaining balance of £42.3m has been excluded from Reported

Net Debt.

34, Service Concession Arrangements

The Group has two integrated waste managerment contracts with Leicester City Council (25 years - awarded in2003) and
West Sussex County Council [25 years - awarded in October 2010). The concessions vary as to the extent of their
obligations, but typically requirethe construction and operation of an asset duringths concession period including
scheduled maintenance and capital expenditure. The operation of the assets includes tha provision of waste management
services such as collection, recycling and disposal. Typically at the end of concession periods the assets are returned tothe
concession owner. There havanot been any significant changes to these arrangements in the period. The construction of
the infrastructure for West Sussex County Council was funded by the Council and therefare falls putside of the scope of
IFRIC 12 and nofinancial asset or intangible has been recognised. A financial asset of £2.7m has beenrecognised inrelation
tothe Leicester City Council contract (nota 193

Thesa contracts generated revenue of £49.6min the 52 weeks ended 29 March 2019 (2018: £64.2m). The contract with
Leicester City Council is loss making and areturn to profitability is not expected and as such an onerous contract provision
has been recognised. An increase to the provision of £4.75m has been recognised as an Exceptional item (note 3) inthe 52
weeks ended 29 March 2019.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

35. Non-principal Subsidiary Undertakings
The following entities complete the full list of the Company's subsidiary undertakings.

Allsubsidiaries are 100% owned and consolidated unless otherwise stated.

Name Countryefincerporation Activity Shareholding
Wasteholdce 1 Limited===? Jersey Holding corapany 100%
Wasteholdco 2 Limited* Jersay Holding company 100%
Biffa Group Holdings Limited*? Jersey Holding company 100%
Biffa Group Limited=*! England and Wales Holding company 100%
GSEquity Co* Cayman[slands Haolding company 100%
GS Acquisitions Limited** England and Wales Helding company 100%
Bifta GSHoldings Limited*! England and Wales Holding company 100%
Material Recovery Nominees Limited™ England and Wales Darmant 100%
Bitfa GS UK Holdings Limited** England and Wales Holding company 100%
Wastelink Services Limated*'s England and Wales Bormant 100%
Biffa GS (LPP] Limited** England and Wales Waste management 100%
Biffa GS Environmental Limitea™ England and Wales Wasta management 100%
Biffa GS (RUR) Limjted** England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa GS Environmental Recycling Limited** England and Wales Waste management 100%
Wespack Limitad*'* England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa GS [M&B) Limited*! England and Wales Waste management 100%
Bitta GS (FC) Limited** England ond Wales Waste management 100%
The Fosse Group Limited*** England and Wales Dormant 100%
Ecovert LEmited™"* England and Wales Dormant 100%
Bifta Group Holdings (UK) Limited"? England snd Wales Holding company 1D00%
Bitfa Corporate Services Limited*’ England and Wales Dormant 100%
Bitta Corporate Holdings Limited** England and Wales Holding company 100%
Biffa Netherlands B.v." Netherlands Holding company 100%
BitfaServicios de Energia MexicoSAde CV** Mexico Waste management 100%
Empress de Servicios Espezlaloados en Generacion de

Energia,S.A deCV.** Mexico Waste menagement 100%
Biffa Waste Limited™ Eagland and Wales Waste management 100%
Bitfa Holdiags (Jereey) Limlited*? Jersey Holding campany 100%
Biffa UK Group Limited*! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Bitfa UK Limited™ England and Wales Dormant 100%
Bifta (UK) Holdings Limited™ England and Wales Waste managemant 100%
UK Waste Management Holdings Limjted* England and Wales Waste management 100%
§.C.5 Contractors Limited** England and Wales Dormant 10G%
R A Johnson (Haulage) Lirmited=12 England and Wales Dormant 100%
ASmith & Sons {Waste Disposal) Limited*t England and Wales Dormant 100%
Bitta (Land] Lirmnited*® Guernsey Waste managemsnt 100%
Pllmuir Waste Dispasal Limitad* England and Wales Dorrnant 100%
Biffa {Roxby) Limired™t England and Wales Dormant 100%
Norwaste Limiteds England and Wales Dormant 100%
Waste Clearance [Holdings) Limited** England and Wales Dormant 100%
Verdaat Murnicipal Limited™* England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biffa Wast Sussex Holdco Lirmted™ England and Wales Dormant 100%
Bray 2008 (Malta) Limited*? Malta Holding company 100%
Reclamatlon & Disposal Limited™! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Bitfa Holdings Limited™* England and Wales Haolding company 100%
Biffa (Jersey) Limited*® Jersey Holding company 100%
Richard Biffa (Reclamation) Limnited™ England and Wales Dormant 100%
MJoseph & Son (Rirmingham]) Limited*: England and Wales Dormant 100%
Biogeneration Limited*» England and Wales Dermant 100%
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Nama Countryofincerporation Activity Shareholding
Biffa Pension Scheme Trustees Limited* England and Wales Dormant 100%
Hales Waste Control Limited*™ England and Wales Dormant 100X
CresseX Insurance Services Limited*t England and Wales Dormant 100%
White Cross Limited™ England and Wales Dormant 100%
Wastedrive Limited" England end Wales Dormant 100%
Wastedrive (Menchester) Limtted* England and Wales Waste rmanagement 100%
The Withnell Brick & Terra Cotta Company

(1912) Limited** England and Wales Dormant 100%
Arnber Engineering Limited** England and Wales Waste management i0ox
0'Brien Waste Recycling Selutions Holdings Limited*! England and Wales Holding company 100%
0’'Brlen Waste Recycling Solutions Limited England and Wales Waste management 100%
SWR Plastics Limited**! England and Wales Dormant 100%
SWR Waste Management Limited*** Eungland and Wales Dormant 100%
Smash & Grab Glass Recyeling Limited**! England and Wales Dormant 100%
Wastecutter Limited**! Engliand and Wales Dormant 100%
New Star Environmental Limited** England and Wales Waste management 100%
SWREquipment Limited** England and Wales Darmant 100%
SWR Smash & Grab Limited**? England and Wales Waste management 100%
RUR3 Environmental Limited*** England and Wales Waste management 100%
National Waste Collection Limited*** England and Wales Dormant 100%
SWR Jugt Bins Limited*=* England and Walas Dormant 100%
SWRNewstarLimited**! England and Wales Dormant 100%
BitfaChemical Waste Lirmnited*!® England and Wales Waste management 100%
Commerclal Waste Limited** England and Wales Wasle management 100%

* Financial yearended 28 March 2018.

** Financial year ended 31 December 2018,
*** Directly held by Bitfa plc.

A Dissolved 2 April 2018.

B Dissolved 16 April 2019,

Registerad at 44 Esplanadae, St Helier, Jersey, JE49WG.

-~ oUW

36. Dividends

Registered at Coronation Road, Cressex, High Wycombe, Buckinghamshlre HP123TZ.

Rogigtered at EastLathian Depot, Barbachlaw, Wallytord, East Lothian, EH21 8GQ.
Registered at Strawinskylaan 3127 8e verdieping, 1077ZX Amsterdara.
Reglstered at Walkers Corporate Services Limited, Walker House, 87 Mary Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KYLS005.
Registered at PO Box 119, Martello Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY13H.

Reglstered at Development House, St.Anne Steeet, Floriana, Malta.

The Board has adopted a progressive dividend policy, aiming te distribute circa 35% of underlying profit after tax split
approximately ona-third (interim) and two-thirds [{inal). The Directors recommend a final dividend of 4.90 pence per
share, bringing the total dividend payablenvespect of the yearto 7.20 pence per share (prior year 6.70 pence per share).
Thavear-end dividend 1s expected to total £12.3m and, if approved, be paid on 19 July 2019 to those shareholders on the

1agister asat28.June2019.

37. Postbalance sheets
Therehavebeenno postbalance shest events.
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Financial Statements
Parent Company Balance Sheet

The parent company staterments are prspared under FRS101 and relate to the Cornpany and not to the Group. The
accounting policies which have bagn appliad to thesa accounts ¢an be found an page 178 snd 4 separate independent
auditors’ report on page 111,

Asut Asat
20March 30March
2018 2q18
Notes Er Em
Asuots
Non-current assels
Investments 2 266.7 2529
‘Trade and other receivables a 2.9 16
258.8 254 4
Currentassets
Otherreceivablies 3 34.0 24.0
Cash andcash equivalents L] 0.1 Q1
Current liabilities
Derivativeg financial instruments 5 (0.7] {0.1)
Trade and other payabies a (29.3} (291)
Net current assets/ (liabllities) . a.1 52)
Net asasts 262.7 249 2
Egquity
Celledupsharecapital 7 2.6 25
Shars premium 236.3 2353
Retatnedearalings 20.2 &8
Hedglng and other reserves 4.7 18
Total surplus/(deficit) atiyit tosh 1dars 282.7 249.2

Retained profit for the year was £27.6m {2018: £0.4m).

The Financial Stataments on pages 176t0 182 wers approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:
M‘a‘

Michasl Topham

Director

Biffapic
Registered no: 10336040
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Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity

d

[oueut

Called up Hadging Retaired
share Share andother  earnings/ Total
capital premium reserves (deficit) equity
£€m £m £m £m £m
At24 March 2017 2.5 236.5 0.3 2l 259.5
Profit for the penod - 02) - 04 0.2
Cash flow hedges - - 03 {0.1) [0.4)
Value of employes service In respect of share option schemes
and share awards - - 1.8 (0.8) 1.3
Dividends paid [11.4) (11 4)
Asat30March 2018 25 235.3 18 9.6 249 2
Profitfor the period - - - 276 278
Cashflowhedges - - [04) - (0 4)
Value of employee service in respect of share option schemes
and share awards - - 33 - 33
Dividends paid - - - [17.0) (172 0)
Asat20 March2019 2.5 235.3 4.7 20.2 262.7

28T-TTT SIUsWaleIg[e

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own income staternent or
statement of comprehensive tncome. The profit of the Company for the year attributable to shareholders was £27.6m.
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Firancial Statemants

Accounting Policies to the Parent Cormmpany Financial Statements

Basis of Preparation

These Financial Statements relate to Biffa plc, a publicly traded company incorporated and domiciled inEngland and
Wales. The registered address is Coronation Road, Cressex, High Wycombe, Buckinghamshire, HP123TZ,

These Financial Statements present the results of the Company as anindividual entity and are prepared onthegoing
concern basig, in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced DisclosureFramework' (FRS 101) and the
Cormpanies Act 2008.

The Companyis part of alarger group and participates in the Group's centralised treasury and banking arrangeraents.
The Company1s expacted to generate positive cash tflows to continue to operate inthe foreseeable future.

The Company has not presentad its own incomae staternent or staternent of comprehensive income as permitted by section
408 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Financial Statements have been prepared inaccordancs with the accounting policies set out below, which have been
consistently applied toall the years presented except where the Company hag elected to take the following exernptions
under FRS 101:

* Therequiremenisof IAS7'Staternent of Cash Flows'.

+ Thereguirements of paragraph 17 of IAS 24 'Reloted Party Disclosures’ in respect of key management personnel,

» Requiremnents of IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ to disclose transactions between wholly owned membars of
the Group.

» Therequirements of IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, as equivalent disclosures are provided in the
consolidated Financial Statements of the Group to which the Cormpany belongs.

» Therequirements of IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payments’.

» Therequirements of paragraphg 91to 99 of IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurements', as squivalent disclosures are prasented
inthe consolidated Finangal Statements.

Arxeas of Judgement and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Company does not have any key assumptions concerning the future, or otherkey areas of estimation uncertaintyin
thereporting period that may have asignificant risk of causing material adjustmentto the carrying amount of assetsand
liabilities within thae next financial year.

Investments

Invastments are initially stated at cost. Investments are tested for impairment when an event that might affect asset value
has occurred. Anmpairment 10ss 18 recognised :othe extent that the carrying amounts cannot be recovered either by
sellingthe asset or by the discounted futura cashflows from the mvestment,

Dividend Distribution

Final dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised asa liabihty inthe Company's Financial
Statements in the period 1n which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders, Interim dividends are
repognised when paid.

Other Receivables

Dther receivables are recognised initially at tair value less any provision for expected creditloss. They are subsequently
held at amortised costless any provision for expected creditloss
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Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

Derivatives areinitially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and subsequently
1armeasured at fair value at sach balance sheet date. The method of recognising theresulting gainor loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, 1f so, the nature of the itern being hedged.

The Company designates cartain derivatives as gither a) fair value hedge (hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities); or b) cash flow hedge (hedges of a particular risk associated with arecognised asset or liability ora highly
probable forecast transaction); or ¢ net investment hedge [hedges of netinvestrents in foreign operations).

The Company documents the transaction relationship batween the hedginginstruments and hedged items at inception.
Atineception and at sach reporting date the Company assesses whether the derivatives used have been highly effective in
offsattingchanges inthe fair value of hedged items.

The fair values of derivative instruments used for hedging are shown in Note 5 Movementsinthehedging reserve are
shown in thg statement of changes inequity,

At thereporting date the Corapany has no fair value hedges or net investmant hedges.

Cash Flow Hedge

The effective portion of changesinthe fair value of derivatives that are designated as cash fiow hadges arerecognised in
equity. The Company’s cash flow hedges inrespect of forward foreign exchange contracts resultin racognition in elther
profitandloss orin the hedgingreserve.

Whena hedging instrument expires or is s0ld, or when the hedge nc longer meets the eriteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain orlossin equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction occurs.
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected ta occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity will be
transferred to the income stateraent.

Changesinthe fair value of any derivative instruments that donot qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
irmmediately in the income statement.

Other Payabiles

Accoumts payable are classified as current liabilities :f payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as
nen-currgnt labilities.

Share Capital
Ordinarysharesare clagsified as equityand are recorded at par value of proceeds received. Where shares are1ssued above
parvalue, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the shars premiuvm account net of direct issue casts.
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements

1. Employess and Directors

Detalls of the remuneration received by Directors of Biffa plc are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Repori on pages

98-108, Biifa ple hastwo employees [(2018: two).

2. Investments

Asat Asat

28 March 30March

20198 2018

em £m

Interests in Groupandertakings 266.7 26219

There have been no indizators of impairment during the year and norequirement for impairment. The Directors believe
that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets.

Disclosure ofthe Company’s subsidiaries is givenin Notes 31and 36 of the Group Financiai Statements.

3. Trade and Other Receivables

Asat Asat
29 March 30 March
2019 2018
£m £m
Amounts talling due within ons year
Amounts due from subsidiazy undertaking 330 240
Amounts fallingafter more than one year
Other receivables 2.9 1.5
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade receivables approximates their fair value
4. CashandCash Equivalents
Asat Asat
2o March 30 March
201e 201R
£m £m
Cashatbankandiphand a1 -
6. FairValue of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Asat 20 March 2018 Asat30March 2018
Bookvalue Fairvalue Bockvalve Felrvalne
Finanocial asssts and liabilities £m €m Em £m
Derivative assst (0.7} [0.7] - -
Trade and other recefvables 36.9 38.9 256 2556
Cash and cash equivalents 0.1 0.1 - -
Trade snd other payables [(29.3) [28.3) (29 1] {29.1)
Total financial aggets andliabilities 7.0 7.0 (38 (3.5)

Derivative financial instruments

Full details of the derivative financial instruments are disclosed 1n Note 19 of the Group Consohidated Statements.

Thefairvalueand thenotional amountsare as follow:

Asat 28 March 2018 As at 30 March 2018
Fair value Motional  Fairvalus Notional
£m £m £m £m
Forward foreign exchange contracts [0.7) 18.0 on 18.0
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6. Trade and Other Payables

Asat Asat

29 March 30March

2018 2018

£m Em

Non-current

Amounts payable ta subsidiary undertakings (26.3) (250)
Other - (0.1]
‘Total trade and other payables {29.3) {28.1)

Allcreditors areunsecured,

The fair value of non-derjvative financial assets and liabilities are determined based on discounted cash flow analysis
using current market rates for similarinstruments.

7. Called up share capital

Number of Called up

shares  share capital

Ne e

As at 29 March 2019 and 30 March 2018 250.000.000 2.500,000

8. Related Party Transactions
There have been nomaterjal related party transactions inthe 52 weeks ended 29 March 2019 (2018: nil]) except for key
management compensation as setout in the report of the remuneration commitiee.

9. UKRegistered Subsidiaries Exempt from Audit

Thefollowing UK subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exemption set out within section 479A of the Companies Act
2006 for the period ended 29 March 2019. Unless otherwise stated, the undertakings listed below are 100% owned., either
directly orindirectly, by Biffa plc.

Propozition of shares held
by subsidiary

Name (%) Companynumber
GS Acquisitions Limited 100% 07255980
Biffa 3S Holdings Limited 100% 04802885
Matesials Recovery Nominggs Limited 100% 05186581
Biffa BS UK Holdings Limited 100% o 04831832
Bifta GS (LPP) Limited 100% 02276398
Biffa GS Envirpnmental Limited 100% 03446693
Biffa GS (RUR) Limated 100% 04594882
Biffa GS Environmental Recycling Limited 100% 04786413
Bifta GS (M&B) Limited 100% 01173507
Biffa 38 (FC) Limited 100% 04800628
Bifta Group Holdings (UK] Limited 100% 04081901
Reclamat:on and Disposal Limited 100% 008793156
Biffa Waste Limited 100% 04084432
Biffa UK Group Limited 100% 03650457
Biffa UK Limited 100% 63650459
Biffa { UK) Holdings Limited 100% 03249168
UK Waste ManagementLimjted 100% 01362615
A, Sith & Sons (Waste Disposal) Liraited - 100% 01346573
Pilmuir Waste Disposal Limited 100% 01828739
Biffa Waste Management Limited 100% 01138022
Biffa (Roxby] Limited 100% 02031861
Norwaste Limited 100% 01041912
White Cross Limited 100% 015637610
Wastedrive Limited 100% a1396771
Wastedsive (Manchester) Limited o 100% 01517244
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Finanegial Statements

Notes to the Parent Corapany Financial Statements continued

Proportion of sharss held
by subsidiary

Name %] Company nomber
Biffa Holdings Limited 100% 01032104
Richard Biffe {Reclamation] Limited 100% 00529000
Barge Waste Management Limited 100% 02648409
Island Waste Sexvices Limited 100% 01652791

M. Joseph & Son (Birmingham] Limited 100% 00440100
Amber Engineering Limited 100% 01067283
O’Brien Waste Recycling Solutions Limited 100% 09362887
0O'Brien Waste Recycling Solutions Holdings Limitad 100% 09560589
Weir Recycling Sarvices Lirnited 100% 9390864

Welr Waste Services Limited 100% 03777183

SWR Equipment Limited 100% 08974078

SWR Plastics Limited 100% 07800837

SWR Waste Management Limited 100% Q7800679 -
Smash & Grab Glass Recycling Lirnited 100% 07800734
Wastecutter Limited 100% 08212454
National Waste CollectionLimited 100% 09700337
SWhkJust Bing Limited 100% 10060304
SWRNewstar Limited 100% 11098385

Inaccordance with section 473C of the Cornpanies Act 2006, the Company will guarantee the debts and liabilities ot the
above UK subsidiary undertakings. As at 29 March 2019 the total sum of these debts and liabilities 13 €371 million.
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Glossary

Acquisition Net Revenue Growth

Acquisition Net Revenue Growth in any pericd reprasents
the Net Revenue Growthintherelevant period from 1)
acquisitions completed intherelevant period and (ii)
acquisitions completed inthe 12 months ended to the start
of the relevant period up tothe 12 month anmiversary of the
relevantacquisition date [to the extent such Net Revenue
fallsinthe current perind). Acquisition Revenue Growth is
calculated onthe same basis, using revenue in place of
NetRevenue

Acquisition Net Revenue Growth Rate
Acquisition Net Revenue Growth Rate in any period
represents the Acquisition Net Revenue Growth for the
period expressed asa percentage of the prior period’s Net
Revenué Acquisition Revenue Growth Rate is calculated
on the same basis, using revenue in place of Net Revenue

AD

Anaerobic digestion. a procass that generates renewabie
slectricity using biogas created from bindegradable waste
material {primarnly food waste) in the absence of oxygen

Admission

TheCompany's admission of its shares to the UK Listing
Authority's Official Listand listing onthe Main Markst of
the London Stock Exchange on 20 October 2016

AFR

Accident Frequency Rate

CARScore

Compliance Assessment Repart score

CRC

Carbon Reduction Commitment

Efw

Energy from waste, typically from the incineration of RDF

Energy Generation
Energy Generation is total energy generated by Bifia's
Energy division, Excludes generation by third parties

Environment Agency

Non-departmental public body, with responsibilities
relating tothe protection and enhancementof the
environment in England and Wales

ERF

Energyrecoveryfacility

ESA
Environmental Services Association

ESOS
Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme

www.biffa.co.uk

EVP

Engineersd into the void permanently, related to the use of
certain material at alandfili site, placed at specified depths
immediately below the geomerbrans layer at the topofa
landfill cell, for use in capping the site

Greenhgusa gas

HDPE
High-density polyethylene

I&C

Industrial and commercial waste producers inthe UK

Inactive Waste

Waste materials listed inthe Landfill Tax (Qualifying
Material} Order 2011, as amended, namely: (i) wastes which
arenot ‘hazard’ within thenneaning of the revised Waste
Framework Directive [2008/98/EC]; (ii) wastes which are
not biodegradable, have a low organic content or donot
break downunderthe anaerobic conditions that prevail in
land{ill sites to produce methane; (iii) waste with litt}e or
np organic content, such asinorganicresidues or
cornpletely combusted residues from the incineration of
biodegradable/organic wastes; and (iv) waste with low
polluting potential in the landfill environment

IPO
Initial Public Offering

ktns

Thousand tonnes

Itpa

Thousand tonnes per annum

Leverage Ratio
Ratio of Reported Net Debt to Underlying EBITDA

Loader-to-LGV
Loader-to-Large Goods Vehicles

LTI

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate,asafety benchmarking
maasure calculated as the nurnbar of lost time injuries
occurringin a workplace per 100,000 hours worked

M&A

Mergers &acquisitions

MBT

Machanical and biological treatment
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Additionalinformation

Glossary continued

MRF

Materialsrecyeling fasility

MW
Megawatt

MWwh

Megawatt hour

National Grid

High-voltage electric power transmission network in
the UK

Net Capex
Cash capexless praoceeds from disposal of tangibleassets

Net Revenue

Statutory Revenus axcluding landfill tax, unless stated
otherwise, ‘revenua’ refers ta Statutory Revenue

Organic Net Revenue Growth

The increase/(decrease) innetrevenue inthe period
excluding netrevenue from acquisitions completedi1n
the period and net revenue from acguisitions complsted
inthe prior period up tothe anniversary of the relevant
acquisition date, to the extent such netrevenue falls in
thecurrent period. Drganic netrevenue growth can be
exprassed both asanabsolute financial value andas

a percentaga of prioy period revenue

PSP

Pertormance Share Plan

RDF
Refuse-derived fuel, produced by processing solid waste to
segregata largsly combustibla components forincineration

Recyclate
Raw material sentto, and processed in, awaste recycling
plantor ruaterials recycling facility

Reported Net Debt
Net Debt excluding the EVP prefarence instrument

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

Operating Profit excluding exceptional iterns and impact of
real discount rate changes tolandfill provisions divided by
the average of opening and closing shareholder's equity
plus nst debt {including finance leases), pengionsand
environmantal provisions

Return on Operating Assets (RODA)
Underlying Operating Profit divided by the avaraga of
cpening andclosing Tangibla Fixed Assets plus nat
working capital
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rHDPE
Recycled high-density polyethylens

ROC
Renewsble Obligations Certificate

SECR

Streamlined Energyand Carbon Reporting

SHEQ

Safety, health, environment and quality

sIp

SharalIncentive Plan

SWaRF
Secure Waste and Recycling Facality

T&A
Tradeand Assets

Tonnes Collected

Tonnas Cpllected is calculated as total waste tonnages
collected from customars by Biffa operations. Excludes
sub-contracted services and haulage/internal movements

Tonnes Landfilled

Tonnes Landfilled is calculated as total waste tonnages
accepted for disposal at a Biffa operated landfiil site.
Excludes sites managed by third parties. Excludes
nuit-wisle materials (g.g. restoration soilsj thatare not
subject to Landfill Tax. Tonnes Processed is calculated as
the tonnages received in the period subjected to processing
activities at Biffa operatad sites. Processing activities
includes (iYsorting, baling and transfer; (i1) ROF
praparation; (ii1) soils and aggregates processing; (iv)
cormposting; (v] plastics recycling; (vi] hazardous waste
processing; (vii) anaerobic digestion; and (viii} mechanical
and biclogical treatment. Where materials are subjected to
more than onae processing sctivity the tonnes are counted
inrespect of each process towhich the material is
subjected. Tonnages that have not been subjected toany
processing activity and aze disposed of in landfill and so1ls
received atlandfill sites for restoration are excluded.
Excludes any proesssing activity carried out by third
parties on Bitfa's behalf. Where waste Is not weighed

(a.g. some hazardous wastes), tonnages are estimated

Underlying Earnings per Share

Underlying Earnings per Share 1s expressed as underlying
profit after tax dividend by the weighted average nurnber of
sharesinthe year

www.biffa.couk



Underlying EBITDA

Profit before depreciation and amortisation, exceptional
items, impact of real discount rate changes tolandtill
provisions, finance costs and taxation. Divisional
underlying EBITDA ig stated after allocation of shared
services costs

Underlying Free Cash Flow

Thenet increase/(decrsase) in cash and cash equivalents
excluding dividends, restructuring and exceptional items,
acquisitions, moverant in financial assets and
movernents inbarrowings or share capital (but including
finance lease principal paymsents)

Underlying Operating Profit

Profit before exceptional items, amortisation of acquisition
intangibles, impactofreal discount rate changes tolandfill
provisions, finance costs and taxation. Divisional
underlying operating profit is stated after allocation of
shared service costs

Underlying Operating Profit Margin
Underlying Operating Profit margin is expressed as
Underlying Operating Profit as a percentage of Statutory
Revenue

Underlying Profit after Tax

Underlying Profit after tax is the profit or loss for the

period as adjusted for non-underlying operating items
[exceptional items, amortisation of acquisition intangibles
and impact of real discount rate changes to landfill
provisions), non-underlying net interest items and
non-underlying taxation

Void
Measure of potential capacity of a landfili site in cubic
metres

Waste Hlerarchy

The hierarchy nf waste management options established
by the Waste (Englard and Wales] Regulations 2011
fasamended]

Working Capital Movement

Working Capital Movarent represents the movement from
the previous perlod in relation to inventories, tradeand
otherreceivables, tradeand othar payables, provisionsand
adjusted [or the impact of acquisitions onthese balances

www.biffa.co.uk
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Additionalinformation

Corporate Information
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Bitfa plc

Coronation Road
Cressex

High Wycombe
Buckinghamshire
HP123T2Z

Registrar
EquinitiLimited
Aspect House
Spencar Road
Lancing

West Sussex
BEN936DA

Auditor

Deloitta LLP

2 New Street Square
London

EC4A3BZ

Corporate Brokers
JP Morgan

25Bank Street

Canary Whart

London

E145JP

Nurms Securities Limuted
10 Paternosier Square
London

EC4M 7LT

Sollcitors
LinklatersLLP
18Silk Strest
London
EC248HQ

Financial PR Advisers
Houston PR

New Wing

Somerset House

357 Strand

London

WC2RILT
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Forward-looking statements

Certain statoments made in this Annual Reportare
forward-lockingand arebased oncurrent expectations.
The statements are subject to assumptions, inherent

risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the
Company's control and which could cause sctual results to
differ sigruficantly from those expected. Unless required
bylaw, regulations or accounting standards, the Company
does not undertake to update or revise any forward-looking
statement, whether asaresult of new information or future
developments. Any forward-looking statements made by or
on behalt of the Group speak only as of the date that they
are made and arebased on knowledge and information
available to the Directors on the date of this Annual Report.
Nothingin this Annual Report should be regarded as a profit
forecast or constitute an oifer tosell or an invitation to buy
any shares in Biffa plc.

Website

The Company's website www.biifa.co.ukgives additional
information on the husiness Notwithstanding the
references made in the Annual Report to the website, none
af theinformation made on the website constitutes part

of this Annual Report or is deerned to be incorporated by
reference herein.

www biffa.co.uk
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A little bit about the
production of your
Annual Report:

The printer;

The printer s an Eco-Management and Audit

Scheme ("EMAS"Jcertified company. EMAS is designed
toimprove snvironruental performance of companies.
Its environmental managementsystemis certified
015014001,

Thematerial:

This document is printed on carbon balanced Revive silk
paper, accredited by the World Land Trust Revive 100
Silkis made from 10Q% Recycled fibre and is certilied in
accordance with the Forest Stewardship Council’.

Carbon footprint:

Carbon emissions generated during the manufacture
and deliveryof this report have been reduced to net zero
through a verified carbon offsetting project.

Recovyeling:

Ifrecycling this report please ensure
vyou do so responsibly, using your
local recyeling methods for both
paper and card.

Consultancy, design and production
www.luminous.co.uk
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